4 Title: Economic Development & Culture
lcRla
s O TES Date: 21 June 2012
Brighton & Hove _
City Council Time: 4.00pm
Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall

Members: | Councillors:

Bowden (Chair), Mac Cafferty (Deputy Chair),
Brown (Opposition Spokesperson), Fitch, Janio,
A Kitcat, Littman, Morgan, Smith and

C Theobald

Contact: | Penny Jennings
Democratic Services Officer

29-1065
penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk

E\ The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users,
(4 including lifts and toilets

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for
7 anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter
e 1] and infra red hearing aids are available for use
during the meeting. If you require any further
information or assistance, please contact the
receptionist on arrival.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by
the nearest available exit. You will be directed to
the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital that you
follow their instructions:

¢ You should proceed calmly; do not run and do
not use the lifts;

¢ Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

e Once you are outside, please do not wait
immediately next to the building, but move
some distance away and await further
instructions; and

¢ Do not re-enter the building until told that it is
safe to do so.

Economic Development & Culture Committee

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk



Democratic Services: Economic Development & Culture Committee

Legal Councillor
Officer Bowden
Chair

Strategic
Director
Communities

Democratic
Services
Officer

o

Strategic
Director Place

Councillor
Mac Cafferty

- Deputy Chair

Strategic Director

Resources
Councillor
Officer
Councillor
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Speaking
Councillor
Speaking

—\

—/

Public
Speaker

Public
Speaker

Public Seating

|

Councillor
Janio

Councillor
Brown
Opposition Spokes

|

Councillor
Smith

Councillor
C. Theobald

Councillor /
Morgan

Councillor
Fitch




ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE

AGENDA

PART ONE Page

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

(a) Declaration of Substitutes - Where Councillors are unable to attend
a meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting.

(b) Declarations of Interest — Statements by all Members present of any
personal interests in matters on the agenda, outlining the nature of any
interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial
under the terms of the Code of Conduct.

(c) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.

NOTE: Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in its
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the
public.

A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls.

2. MINUTES 1-18

(@) Minutes of the Cabinet Member Meeting, Culture, Recreation &
Tourism held on 6 March 2012 (copy attached for information);

(b) Minutes of the Cabinet Member Meeting, Planning, Economy,
Employment & Regeneration held on, 29 March 2012 (copy attached
for information).

Contact Officer:  Penny Jennings Tel: 01273 291065

3. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS

4. CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 19 - 26

Report of the Strategic Director, Resources (copy attached)

Contact Officer: Mark Wall Tel: 29-1006
Ward Affected: All Wards

5. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 27 - 28

To consider the following matters raised by members of the pubic:



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE

(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions presented to the full council or at
the meeting itself;

(b) Written Questions: to receive any questions submitted by the due
date of 12 noon on 14 June 2012,

(c) Deputations: to receive any deputations submitted by the due date
of 12 noon on 14 June 2012.

6. ISSUES RAISED BY COUNCILLORS

To consider the following matters raised by councillors:

(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions submitted to the full Council or at
the meeting itself;

(b) Written Questions: to consider any written questions;

(c) Letters: to consider any letters;

(d) Notices of Motion: to consider any notices of motion.

7. SALTDEAN LIDO 29 - 58

Oral update by the Strategic Director, Communities, Minute extract and
report considered at meeting of Policy and Resources Committee held on
24 May 2012 (copy attached)

8. ROYAL PAVILION & MUSEUMS CATERING REVIEW 59 -72

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities (copy attached)

Contact Officer:  Janita Bagshawe Tel: 29-2840
Ward Affected: St Peter's & North Laine

9. IMPLICATIONS OF THE NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY 73 -110
FRAMEWORK FOR DECISION MAKING

Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached)

Contact Officer: Liz Hobden Tel: 29-2504
Ward Affected: All Wards

10. UPDATE ON THE ECONOMIC STRATEGY & THE CITY PROSPECTUS 111 -

132
Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached)
Contact Officer:  Cheryl Finella Tel: 29-1095
Ward Affected: All Wards
11. PETER PAN LEISURE SITE, MADEIRA DRIVE, DEVELOPMENT 133 -
PROPOSAL 220

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities (copy attached)

Please note: There will also be a brief power-point presentation in respect
of this item.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Contact Officer: Toni Manuel Tel: 29-0394
Ward Affected: East Brighton

ULTRAFAST BROADBAND BID 2012: WIRED FOR GROWTH 221 -
228

Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached)

Contact Officer: Max Woodford Tel: 29-3451
Ward Affected: All Wards

AMENDMENTS TO WOODEN BEACH HUT SPECIFICATION - HOVE 229 -
PROMENADE 236
Report of the Strategic Director, Communities (copy attached)

Contact Officer: Paul Vidler Tel: 29-1292
Ward Affected: Wish

OVINGDEAN CONSERVATION AREA REVIEW 237 -
276
Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached)
Contact Officer: ~ Sanne Roberts Tel: 29-2261
Ward Affected: Rottingdean Coastal
MAJOR PROJECTS UPDATE
Note: This will be a standing item on future meetings of the committee,
but will be dealt with under Chair's Communications at the meeting
on the 21 June, 2012.
Contact Officer:  David Murray Tel: 29-7329
Ward Affected: All Wards
PART TWO
PART TWO MINUTES - EXEMPT CATEGORY 277 -
280

The non public minutes of the Cabinet Member Meeting, Culture
Recreation and Tourism, 6 March 2012 have been circulated for
information (circulated to Members only).

PART TWO PROCEEDINGS

To consider whether the items listed in Part Two of the agenda and
decisions thereon should remain exempt from disclosure to the press and
public.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public. Provision is also made
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings.

The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting.

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Penny Jennings, (29-
1065, email penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Date of Publication — Wednesday 13 June 2012




ECONOMIC Agenda Iltem 2 (a)
DEVE LOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council
CULTURE COMMITTEE

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING
4.00pm 6 MARCH 2012
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL
MINUTES
Present: Councillor Bowden (Cabinet Member)

Also in attendance: Councillors Brown and Fitch

PART ONE

62. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS
62(a) Declarations of Interests

62.1 There were none.

62(b) Exclusion of Press and Public

62.2 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the
Cabinet Member considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press
and public were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of
confidential information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information
(as defined in section 100I(l) of the Act).

62.3 RESOLVED - That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of items 79 and 80.

63. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING




CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

63.1 RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Culture, Recreation & Tourism Cabinet Member
Meeting held on 6 December 2011 be agreed and signed by the Cabinet Member.

64. MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING

64.1 RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Special Meeting of the Culture, Recreation and
Tourism Cabinet Member meeting held on 7 February 2012 be agreed and signed by
the Cabinet Member.

65. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS

65.1

65.2

65.3

65.4

Royal Pavilion and Museum Services

The Cabinet Member stated that there were more success to report from the Royal
Pavilion and Museum’s service, due to a successful grant application to Heritage
Lottery Fund, it had been possible to purchase a unique and valuable collection of
Roman coins found in Burwash, West Sussex. He had also attended the launch of
“‘Dreams of Here”, an exhibition of new works by contemporary painters and
printmakers at the Brighton Museum and Art Gallery. It is a lovely exhibition, it ran
until 10 June.

Visitor numbers across all sites had continued to rise. The service had had 592,860
visits so far from April to January a 75,167 increase on the previous year. It was
believed these figures were a result of programming e.g. family focused at Hove and
the new exhibition gallery at Royal Pavilion. The “Dress for Excess” exhibition had
received lots of national press and media coverage as had the Ice Rink, and a
number of TV programmes had featured the Royal Pavilion.

Culture
Brighton Festivals Month

The Cabinet Member had also attended the launch of both the Brighton Fringe
Festival and the main Brighton Festival a the end of February. It was understood that
ticket sales for the Brighton Festival were up on what they had been for the same
time last year already and that there were more events than ever in the Brighton
Fringe. It looked as if May was set to be a successful Festival month for the city,
much needed at the in this difficult economic time.

Tourism and Conferences

VisitBrighton’s Convention Bureau had recently held their major sales and
networking event at the House of Lords which the Cabinet Member had attended in
order to showcase the city to an audience of conference organisers. The conference
team were to be congratulated on a very professional and effective event which was
already resulting in business leads for the city.

Seafront



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

65.5

65.6

65.7

65.8

65.9

65.10

The Volks Railway would be opening earlier this year to coincide with the start of the
Easter school holidays. The first service would operate from 10.15am on Saturday
31 March.

Sports Development

The Sports Development Team had run a whole range of successful events over the
last month, including the Indoor Athletics Competition for primary and secondary
schools, during their February Half Term, activities offering fun and free physical
activity sessions in the City to over 300 people had taken place.

Working in partnership with the Youth Offending Team, “The Street Games Festival”
had taken place at Stanley Deason Leisure Centre, 56 young people had taken part
in activities.

Libraries
World Book Day Thursday 1 March 2012

Brighton & Hove City Libraries Services had celebrated the 15" World Book Day on
Thursday 1 March. The celebrations had included special sessions for babies to
promote the “Bookstart” scheme which provided free books for babies and children.
Over 110 local school pupils had engaged in lively question and answer sessions
with authors Matt Haig and Dave Cousins, and other authors, Morag Ramsey and CJ
Daugherty attended the Homework Clubs that evening. Some community libraries
had held special preschool story times in partnership with Brighton Museums
Services featuring some curious objects from the museums collections.

Events for adults had included the “Library Whispers” and the “Open Spoken Word
Collective” browsing customers had been surprised with impromptu poetry recitals
and the special information point at Jubilee Library had seen 40 members of the
public enquire about the new eBooks service.

Budget

The Cabinet Member stated that he could not end his communications without noting
the not insignificant matter of the Council’s budget. This has now been set, and
whilst the changes affecting his portfolio will be challenging, officers were now
working through them in preparation for the new financial year. He wished to place
on record his thanks to all of the officers for the time and expertise that had gone into
dealing with unprecedented challenges.The one area which still needed clarification
was the operation of the Mobile Library. Following various amendments to the
original Green budget presented, he had asked officers to clarify the current position
when this was clearer he would be happy to offer an update.

66. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION

66.1 RESOLVED - That all items be reserved for discussion.



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

67.
(i)
67.1

67.2

67.3

67.4

68.
68.1

68.2

68.3

PETITIONS

Petition — Freestyle Gymnasiums

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director of Resources
detailing a petition signed by 22 people in the relation to the provision of Freestyle
gymnasiums for teenagers.

Ms Oaten Beggs the lead petitioner presented her petition in the following terms :

The Cabinet Member thanked Ms Oaten Beggs for her petition stating that he
recognised the importance of opportunities for young people to participate in sport and
physical activity and gave the following response:

“ The council are currently formulating a New Sports Facilities Plan for Brighton & Hove,
the purpose of which is to inform future facility developments in the city. The Plan will
assess the quantity and quality of existing sports facilities based on feedback from a
consultation process held during January and February 2012. From this assessment the
council will identify a set of priorities and recommendations to help meet them. The
requirement for facilities such as Freestyle Gyms will be assessed along with other
sporting activities and future priorities identified according to need.

| understand that you were made aware of the consultation process and hope that you
have taken the opportunity to complete the survey. The findings of the Sports Facilities
Plan will form the basis of a report to Cabinet in April 2012.”

RESOLVED - That the contents of the petition be received and noted.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
The Cabinet Member reported that 2 public questions had been received.
Ms Crook asked the following question:

“At the Cabinet meeting in December | presented on behalf of the “Save Saltdean Lido
Campaign” and the local community a clear mandate asking the Council to seek to
negotiate a surrender of the lease and if no agreement is made by the end of February,
seek to take back the lease via CPO with legal papers served on 1 March. Please can
the Council provide a detailed update on whether they have acted on the instructions of
local residents.

The Cabinet Member gave the following response:
“Listening to local residents is one thing that |, as a democratically elected councillor,

take very seriously, as is the need to stay within the law and the Council’s financial
regulations.”



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

684

68.5

68.6

68.7

68.8

68.9

69.

69.1

69.2

69.3
noted.

69.4

70.

Ms Crook asked a supplementary question requesting to know whether the Lido was
included as a priority on the Council’s Sports Plan.

The Cabinet Member responded that although the venue was considered important the
Sports Plan related to indoor venues.

Mrs Fishleigh asked the following question:

“The last meeting of this Committee approved the introduction of monitoring
arrangements of the Lido pools during the next season. Please can you tell us what
items monitoring will cover and how monitoring will be implemented?”

The Cabinet Member gave the following response:

“As indicated in the report to my Cabinet Member Meeting in December, the monitoring
will relate to the opening of the Lido for swimming. The monitoring will be undertaken by
members of the Sports Facilities Team who have considerable expertise in such work.”
Mrs Fishleigh then enquired whether other checks took place e.g., water quality etc.

The Cabinet Member explained that the lessee was required to meet all health and

safety requirements as a legal obligation and checks were made to ensure that these
health and safety requirements were met.

DEPUTATIONS

The Cabinet Member considered the following deputation from from Ms Crook on behalf
of “Save Saltdean Lido”

“Saltdean Lido — The Case for Enforcement Action and Compulsory Purchase Order:
B&HCC have commissioned numerous surveys on the condition of Saltdean Lido and
served a notice to the leaseholder in May 2010 relating to this disrepair. Despite the
lessee previously claiming to have complied with that notice and the council stating
publicly that this is not their view the council still cite that their option a) seek compliance
with the lease is a great focus. The Council are out of touch with what local people want,

failing to act upon the community mandate presented by the Save Saltdean Lido
Campaign.”

The Cabinet Member thanked Ms Crook for her deputation the contents of which were

RESOLVED - That the deputation be received and its contents noted.

LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

70.1

71.

71.1

72.

721

73.

73.1

73.2

73.3

73.4

73.5

There were none.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS

There were none.

NOTICES OF MOTION

There were none.

OPERATION OF SALTDEAN LIDO

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities
providing an update on the progress made on the recommendations approved at the
Cabinet Member meeting on 6 December 2011 on the operation of Saltdean Lido.

The Head of Planning Strategy explained that the first stage warning letter had been
sent and notwithstanding a delay inspection of the premises had taken place. The
surveyor’s report was currently awaited. It was not appropriate to take further action
pending its receipt. However the Local Planning Authority would then seek to progress
the matter further.

Councillor Fitch expressed his disappointment that this matter had not progressed more
swiftly, it appeared that the matter had been hanging fire for sometime. The Cabinet
Member stated that whilst he shared that sense of frustration it was important that the
council proceeded within the law, certain processes had to be observed and the
interests of all council tax payers had to be protected. Clear advice had been given that
if the local authority sought to compulsorily purchase the site without observing due
process, such action as well as having significant cost implications was likely to fail.

Mr Bruce, Principal Solicitor and Legal Adviser to the Cabinet Member Meeting gave an
update on the current position. He explained that details from the appointed Valuer’s
Executive Summary were due to be placed on the council website imminently, which
referred to a nil valuation for the surrender of the lease,on the basis that there was no
“hope value” for the lease. It was known however that the lessee maintained that there
was “hope value”, on the basis that there was potential development on the site.
Meetings had taken place with Officers of the Planning Department on several
occasions and the lessee had been advised that such an expectation was unrealistic.

The Principal Solicitor went on to explain that arrangements had been made by the
lessee for a representative from English Heritage to visit the site later that month. This
was important because if, as envisaged English Heritage’s independent assessment of
the development position accorded with the council’s it would bolster its stance in
relation to surrender of the lease and a robust approach. A Compulsory Purchase Order
remained a matter for the Planning Authority using local planning powers. The current
functional divide between executive and non-executive decisions would be removed by
the impending change to a Committee based decision making process although there



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

73.6

73.7

74.

74.1

74.2

would still need to be “chinese walls” between the council’s roles as local planning
authority and as landlord. Proceeding in the current manner (seeking to negotiate a
surrender against the backcloth of potential action under planning legislation)
represented the swiftest and most appropriate way forward.

Councillor Brown welcomed the report and the approach being taken especially in
relation to health and safety issues, it was encouraging to note that after a number of
years progress was being made. Councillor Brown expressed the hope that a robust
approach would result in the matter being able to be resolved.

RESOLVED - That the Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Tourism:

(1) Notes that the head lessee has agreed to have without prejudice negotiations
regarding the possible surrender of the lease;

(2) Notes that an external valuer has produced a valuation of the Lido for surrender
and/or compulsory purchase purposes;

(3) Notes that liaison with Saltdean Community Association (SCA) has been on-going,
as, in accordance with the Full Council resolution, actions, actions undertaken by the
council are with a view to not prejudicing the position of the SCA; and

(4) Notes that the local planning authority is considering the position under sections 47
and 48 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as referred
to in section 4 of the report.

PRIDE FESTIVAL EVENTS 2012

Note: The special circumstances for non-compliance with Council Procedure Rule 3,
Access to Information Procedure Rule 5 and Section 100B (4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 (items not to be considered unless the agenda is open to inspection at least
five days in advance of the meeting) were that: Officers have been in ongoing
discussions and communications with potential organisers regarding their intentions to
stage a Pride event in Brighton & Hove in 2012. The outcome of these discussions
needed to be taken into account in drafting the report.

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities which
set out details of two proposals received for Pride events in 2012. One was from an
organisation formed for this purpose and the other was for an event to held in Preston
Park only from the organisers of the 2011 event. The report sought landlord’s consent to
stage Pride Festival activities over the weekend of 1 & 2 September 2012.

It was explained that each event would be subject to the conditions and guidance as
detailed in the Health & Safety Executive (HSE) Purple Guide which set out the
requirements that needed to be met in full and signed off by the responsible lead agency
and, where applicable, the City Safety .Advisory Group. The Outdoor Events Policy also
stated that for major events of this size a comprehensive event plan was required to be
produced by the approved organiser



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

74.3

75.

75.1

75.2

75.3

75.4

76.

RESOLVED - That the Cabinet Member agrees that the Council:
(1) Continues to support Pride events over the weekend of 1 and 2 September 2012;

(2) Grants Landlord’s consent to Pride Brighton & Hove to stage both the Parade
through the city and the fenced and ticketed Pride Festival in Preston Park, with both
elements subject to the conditions as set out in paragraph 3.8 of the report;

(3) Authorises officers to enter into formal agreements with the respective event
organisers to determine fees, charges and conditions as appropriate;

(4) Agrees that Landlord’s consent may be withdrawn should an organiser fail to comply
with the conditions and recommendations as set out;

(5) Agrees that, following past practice, a deposit is held for the use of Preston Park to
ensure that the Authority does not incur any costs that cannot be recovered and that this
deposit does not incur any costs that cannot be recovered and that this deposit will only
be released on reinstatement of the area to the satisfaction of the Authority; and

(6) Delegates authority to the Strategic Director, Communities to agree any necessary
permissions associated with any other events planned for the Pride weekend such as St
James’s Street party or other community or cultural events.

OUTDOOR EVENTS POLICY

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities
seeking approval to the Outdoor Events Policy as set out in Appendix 1 to the report and
to the proposed fees and charges for 2012/13 as set out in Appendix 2 to the report.
This would enable the Outdoor Events Policy to be approved and fees and charges to
be set for 2012/13.

The Cabinet Member stated that it was recognised that outdoor events were very
important to the visitor economy of the city and that major events had citywide
implications. It should be noted that the Safety Advisory Group gave advice on the
impact of major events in the city.

Councillor Fitch sought clarification of how the it was determined whether an event was
“minor” or “major” and the differentiation between them.

RESOLVED - (1) That the Cabinet Member approves the Outdoor Events Policy set out
in Appendix 1 to the report; and

(2) Approves the fees and charges for outdoor events 2012/13 listed in Appendix 2 to
the report.

ROYAL PAVILION AND MUSEUMS' RENAISSANCE



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

76.1

76.2

76.3

17.

771

77.2

77.3

77.4

78.

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities
advising that the Royal Pavilion and Museums had been awarded a major grant under
the Arts Council’'s New Renaissance Programme. The report set out the Renaissance
Programme scheme and detailed the work that it would support.

The Cabinet Member stated that he was pleased to note this success which attested to
the hard work and enthusiasm of the staff concerned, Councillors Brown and Fitch
concurred in that view.

RESOLVED - That the Cabinet Member notes the proposed programme subject to the
negotiations on the funding agreement with Arts Council England.

ART UP INTERREGS BID

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities
seeking approval and endorsement for the submission of the Interreg IVA Art Up Bid.

It was explained that the project was led by Care Co-operatives Ltd and involved 9
partners from England and France. The project aimed to involve young children, young
adults and disabled people in developing confidence and skills via a series of
collaborative artistic and cultural projects and events.

Councillor Brown expressed support for the scheme stating that she hoped that it was
successful and that the appropriate level of matched funding was in place.

RESOLVED - That Brighton and Hove City Library Services’ participation in the Interreg
Iva Art Up Bid be approved and endorsed.

UPDATE ON 2012 AND DIAMOND JUBLIEE CELEBRATIONS

78.1 The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities
detailing planned activities for 2012 and the Diamond Jubilee seeking
endorsement of the proposed approach to supporting a summer of community
based activity to support celebrations relating to both Olympic and Paralympic
activity and the Diamond Jubilee.

78.2 The report focused on Brighton and Hove’s plan of activity for 2012 to maximise
opportunities presented by London hosting the Olympic

78.3 Councillor Fitch stated that he was pleased to note that a series of integrated
sports activities were planned which would foster an interest in sport and fitness
which would dovetail with the memorable events going on across the country.

78.4 Councillor Brown welcomed the initiatives proposed and welcomed the
involvement of young people and disabled groups.

78.4 RESOLVED - That the Cabinet Member notes the contents of the report and
plans for activities; and



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 6 MARCH 2012

79.

80.

(2) That the Cabinet Member endorses the approach to supporting a summer of
community based activity to support celebrations relating to both Olympic and
Paralympic activity and the Diamond Jubilee.

SUMMARY OF ITEMS CONSIDERED WHILST THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
WERE EXCLUDED

The Press and Public were excluded during consideration of the following
events which were exempt under Paragraphs 2 and 3 of the Local
Government Act 1972 as amended.

UPDATE ON 2012 AND DIAMOND JUBILEE CELEBRATIONS

The Commissioner for Culture gave a detailed presentation in respect of
arrangements made to date in respect of events arranged in relation to Brighton
and Hove’s Programme for 2012 and the Diamond Jubilee, this included
information which was highly confidential at this stage.

PRIDE FESTIVAL EVENTS 2012

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Communities
in relation to proposed Pride Festival Events in 2012.

There was a history in Brighton and Hove of the Lesbian, Gay Bisexual and
Trans (LGBT) community staging an annual Pride event in the city for many
years. The Part 1 report (see above) had set out two proposals for pride events in
2012 and had made recommendations as to the granting of Landlord’s consent to
Pride Brighton & Hove. The Part 2 report set out further confidential details in
respect of both of the proposals and the chronology leading to the
recommendations made in the Part 1report.

The meeting concluded at 5.55pm

Signed Chair

Dated this day of

10



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 2 (b)
DEVE LOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council

CULTURE COMMITTEE

85.

85(a)
85a.1
85(b)

85b.1

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL

PLANNING, EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMY & REGENERATION CABINET MEMBER

MEETING
4.00pm 29 MARCH 2012
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL
MINUTES
Present: Councillor Randall (Cabinet Member)

Also in attendance: Councillor Morgan (Opposition Spokesperson) and C Theobald
(Opposition Spokesperson)

Other Members present: Councillors MacCafferty

PART ONE

PROCEDURAL BUSINESS
Declarations of Interests
There were none.

Exclusion of Press and Public

In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the
Cabinet Member considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press
and public were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of
confidential information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information
(as defined in section 100I(l) of the Act).

85b.2 RESOLVED - That the press and public not be excluded.

11




PLANNING, EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMY & REGENERATION 29 MARCH 2012
CABINET MEMBER MEETING

86.

86.1

87.

87.1

87.2

87.3

88.

88.1

89.

89.1

90.

90.1

91.

91.1

92.

92.1

93.

93.1

94.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2012 were approved
as a correct record.

CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS

The Leader explained that he was acting as substitute for Councillor Amy Kennedy who
was unfortunately unwell. As this was the last meeting of the Planning, Employment,
Economy and Regeneration Cabinet Member meeting the Leader thanked the work of
Councillors Kennedy, Morgan and Carol Theobald and all the Officers who had been
involved.

The Section 106 Agreement for the redevelopment of the Royal Sussex County Hospital
had been finalised on 28 March 2012; the South East Regional Health Authority would
be meeting shortly, and it was expected the Authority would recommend to the Minister
for Health that the funding for the scheme be agreed. The redevelopment would provide
an important boost to the economy of the city.

The South East Dance Group had confirmed it would commit approximately £134k
through capital funding from the Arts Council as part of the cost of the dance space
included in the plans of the Circus Street Market scheme. The plans for the scheme

were currently being worked on, and it was noted that this would be an important
development site for the city.

ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION
RESOLVED - That all items be reserved for discussion.
PETITIONS

There were none.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were none.

DEPUTATIONS

There were none.

LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS

There were none.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS
There were none.

NOTICES OF MOTIONS

12



PLANNING, EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMY & REGENERATION 29 MARCH 2012
CABINET MEMBER MEETING

94 .1

95.

95.1

95.2

956.3

95.4

95.5

95.6

96.

96.1

96.2

96.3

There were none.
EMPLOYMENT UPDATE

The Leader considered a verbal update from the Economic Development Manager,
Cheryl Finella, concerning employment in Brighton & Hove.

The Economic Development Manager explained that, in line with the national trend,
employment had risen since 2008; however, the rise was proportionally less than both
the regional and national average. Similarly the figures for both male and female
unemployment were below these averages. There was evidence that the work
undertaken by the team was having a real impact on reducing figures, and it was vital
that the Council continue to monitor and take active steps to address unemployment in
the city.

Councillor Morgan noted that it had been forecast that the UK economy would enter
recession in the next quarter, and he went on to highlight the negative personal impacts
of unemployment on individuals; the Leader agreed with Councillor Morgan’s comments.

Councillor Carol Theobald said that the figures were still high — even though they were
proportionally less than the regional and national averages — and stated that the
Government were taking measures to mitigate the situation. The Leader noted that the
effect of unemployment was greater on women.

The Economic Development Manager clarified that ‘unemployed’ was a loose term
covering those not currently in the labour market.

RESOLVED - That the update be noted.
UPDATE ON YOUTH UNEMPLOYMENT

The Leader considered a report from the Strategic Director of Place concerning Youth
Unemployment in Brighton & Hove. It was noted there was work on-going with local
companies to offer work experience for youths who had no experience of work in their
families, and the Corporate Parenting Body had also suggested schemes to provide
work experience for youths who would be coming out of care.

The Economic Development Manager explained that the large student population in the
city increased the number of 18-24 years olds not in employment, but there were
increases in employment figures during Christmas and the summer period. Work was
being undertaken by the Apprenticeship Training Agency in collaboration with the City
Collage to allow small businesses to engage in training and work experience, and it was
hoped they could offer services to approximately 125 youths in the first year. The Youth
Contract would launch in April 2012; the achievements of the Youth Employability
Service (YES) were highlighted and potential funding from the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) had been identified.

Councillor Morgan stated that a loss of talent and potential in the work force at any age
was negative. He went to state that, although construction training was an excellent

13



PLANNING, EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMY & REGENERATION 29 MARCH 2012
CABINET MEMBER MEETING

96.4

96.5

96.6

97.

97.1

97.2

97.3

97.4

means to reduce the number of NEETS, it should be recognised that the manual aspects
of the work were not suitable for everyone, and opportunities in creative industries could
be further explored. In response the Economic Development Manager highlighted that
the construction industry was one option among many, and work was on-going to see
how businesses in all sectors could engage.

Councillor Carol Theobald highlighted some of the schemes that the Government was
funding to address youth unemployment. Councillor Morgan noted his concerns that
many such schemes were regionally targeting, and the Southeast could potentially
benefit less from this where the situation was proportionally better than other parts of the
country.

In summary the Leader noted the importance of training people in the construction
industry and the number of large building schemes coming forward in the city;
expressed his concern over the potential lose of talent in the work force, and highlighted
some of the positive work being undertaken by the City College.

RESOLVED - That the Leader acting as the Cabinet Member for Planning, Employment,
Economy and Regeneration note the contents of the report and the work being
undertaken to mitigate the impact of rising levels of unemployment on young people.

UPDATE ON THE LEPS

The Leader considered a report from the Strategic Director of Place concerning an
update on the Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).

The Economic Development Manager introduced the item and outlined the background
to the partnership and its main aims and targets. The two main strands of activity
focused on internationalism and entrepreneurship; to help build diversity and resilience
in the local market. Levels of entrepreneurship in the city were some of the highest in
the country, and a recent meeting had proposed growth be focused around the M23/A23
corridor where it was believed it would have the highest yield. In relation to income it
was explained that there was a small amount for running and research costs, and
funding was allocated for ‘shovel ready’ projects where planning permission was already
in place but progress had stalled.

The Leader highlighted that the Council had bid for funding for the i360 project, and, if
agreed, the funding would be in the form of a loan to the developers. The LEP
Investment Sub-Committee had met to consider the current bids and the i360 had been
put forward against others for potential funding. The Leader also highlighted potential
future bids including ultra-fast broadband and a joint bid with Adur District Council and
West Sussex County Council for flood defences at Shoreham Port.

Councillor Morgan asked questions in relation to the funding, and highlighted that there
should as much transparency in the process as possible. In response Officers explained
that some of the start-up funds were effectively ‘one-off’, and there was £16 million of
core funding. The LEP had not yet finalised the funding arrangements, and it was felt
that smaller community bids could be funded through grants; there was a responsibility
to ensure that any loans were allocated reasonably.

14



PLANNING, EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMY & REGENERATION 29 MARCH 2012
CABINET MEMBER MEETING

97.5

97.6

98.

98.1

98.2

98.3

98.4

98.5

99.

99.1

99.2

Councillor Carol Theobald noted that the i360 was a good scheme for the seafront, and
it was clarified that if successful the prospective loan period would be approximately 11
years. The Leader also highlighted that the scheme would provide approximately 180
jobs in its construction and running.

RESOLVED - That the Leader acting as the Cabinet Member for Planning, Employment,
Economy and Regeneration notes the contents of the report.

ADDITION OF LONDON ROAD COOP TO THE LOCAL LIST

The Leader considered a report from the Strategic Director of Place concerning the
addition of the former London Road CoOp building to the Local List.

The Senior Planner (Conservation), Tim Jefferies, introduced the report, and explained
that the request, to add the building to the local list, had been received from the
Planning Committee on 14 December 2012 when an application for demolition of the
building and erection of student accommodation had been refused. The current Local
List predated the formation of the Council and was out of date; a comprehensive review
was due to begin later in the year. It was not the normal process to add buildings on an
ad hoc basis; however it was felt that the importance of the building locally and the
request from the Planning Committee made an exceptional case. Inclusion on the list
did not give the building any additional statutory protection, but it did ensure that greater
weight and exploration would be given to consideration of retaining the building, and it
was noted that retention already formed part of the London Road master plan.

The Leader noted that there was a strong case to retain the building as it was a popular,
and reflected the departmental store architecture of its 1930s context; furthermore, the
reason for refusal at the Planning Committee had related, in part, to the design of the
proposals.

Councillor Carol Theobald said that she welcomed the report, and hoped future
applications would, at least, be able to protect the fagade of the building. Councillor
Morgan went onto note that this was an important ‘hub’ for the London Road area, and
he hoped that any proposed development could make flexible use of the space. The
Head of Planning and Public Protection confirmed that the addition of the building to the
Local List was the appropriate tool to enable flexibility in future development proposals.

RESOLVED - That the Leader acting as the Cabinet Member for Planning, Employment,
Economy and Regeneration approve that the former London Road CoOp building at 84-
103 London Road, Brighton be added to the council’s list of Buildings of Local Interest
and that its local interest be defined in accordance with the Statement of Significance at
Appendix 1.

MAJOR PROJECTS UPDATE

The Leader considered a presentation from two of the Project Managers (Major
Projects), Max Woodford and Richard Davies, in relation to major projects in the city.

The Project Managers gave an update on four major projects in the city. The Open
Market project on London Road had begun works in January 2012; the scheme would

15



PLANNING, EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMY & REGENERATION 29 MARCH 2012
CABINET MEMBER MEETING

99.3

99.4

99.5

99.6

99.7

provide 44 permanent markets stalls, 12 workshops and 87 affordable housing units,
and was scheduled to open in August 2013. The Keep, Woolards Fields, a joint project
with East Sussex County Council to provide a new historical records office, was set to
achieve BREEAM standard excellent, and was due to open in June 2012. The new
AMEX House was currently in the final stages of internal fitting, and was due to be
occupied in late summer 2012; with the old AMEX House scheduled for demolition in
2016. Finally the Circus Street Market scheme was ready to move onto consultation as
part of the planning stage; the Arts Council had awarded funding to the South East
Dance Group, and an application was expected in late 2012 with potential completion in
2015.

The Leader highlighted the cross-party support for the Circus Street Market scheme, but
felt that failure to agree a temporary market use was a lost opportunity. There was
increased public confidence in taking the scheme forward, but public consultation
needed to be at the centre of any proposals.

Councillor Morgan welcomed the presentation, and suggested that work could be
undertaken to look at the secondary employment created by AMEX to consider how
other businesses and individuals, who were not directly employed, relied on the site
staying in the city.

Councillor Morgan also went on to note that the Brighton Centre needed further
discussion; in response the Leader agreed that further work was necessary, although
some improvements had already been made, and suggested that cross-party project
boards could be set up in the next municipal year. Councillor Carol Theobald also noted
the improvements made to the Brighton Centre, and said that there were further
structural works to be completed.

Councillor Carol Theobald also asked questions in relation to the West Pier and the i360
project; in response it was explained that it was important to deliver the i360 project
before considering other projects that may not necessarily compliment the i360. Once
this was completed there would be an opportunity to discuss the necessity of a second
pier, given that much of the heritage aspects of the West Pier had unfortunately been
lost.

RESOLVED - That the update be noted.

The meeting concluded at Time Not Specified

Signed Cabinet Member

16



PLANNING, EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMY & REGENERATION 29 MARCH 2012
CABINET MEMBER MEETING

Dated this day of

17



18



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 4
DEVELOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council
CULTURE COMMITTEE

Subject: Constitutional Matters

Date of Meeting: 21 June 2012

Report of: Monitoring Officer

Contact Officer: Name: Mark Wall Tel: 29-1006

E-mail: mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Wards Affected: All

For General Release

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT

To provide information on the committee's terms of reference and related
matters including the appointment of its Urgency Sub-Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the committee’s terms of reference as set out in this report, be noted;
and

That the establishment of an Urgency Sub-Committee consisting of the Chair
of the Committee and two other Members (nominated in accordance with the
scheme for the allocation of seats for committees), to exercise its powers in
relation to matters of urgency, on which it is necessary to make a decision
before the next ordinary meeting of the Committee be approved.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

The Council meeting on 26 April 2012 agreed the new constitution for the City
Council. The new constitution came into force at the conclusion of the Annual
Council meeting on 17 May.

Article 6 of the constitution, which incorporates a schedule of all the
Committees/Sub-committees established in the new constitution together with
a summary of their respective functions, is reproduced at Appendix 'A' to this
report.

The Economic Development & Culture Committee — Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of the Economic Development & Culture Committee
are set out in the new constitution. This Committee discharges the Council’s

functions in relation to culture, arts and heritage; tourism and marketing;
libraries and museums; events; leisure, sports and recreation; planning policy;

19



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

economic growth and regeneration; major built environment projects;
conservation and design; building control; and as local planning authority
(except for the development control functions delegated to the Planning
Committee).

[Note: These terms of reference should be read in the context of the
'Introduction and General Delegations' included in the Scheme of Delegations
to Committees and Sub-Committees at part 4 of the constitution. For ease of
reference these sections are attached at Appendix 'B' to this report]:

Membership
The membership of the committee is set at 10 Members of the council.

The arrangements for substitute Members to attend meetings of
Committees/Sub-Committees, as set out in the Council Procedure Rules 18 to
24, apply to meetings of the Economic Development & Culture Committee.

Programme Meetings

Ordinary meetings of the Economic Development & Culture Committee are
scheduled to take place on the following dates during 2012/13:

Thursday 21 June 2012
Thursday 20 September 2012
Thursday 15 November 2012
Thursday 10 January 2013
Thursday 7 March 2013
Thursday 25 April 2013

Meetings of the Committee will normally be held at Hove Town Hall and will
start at 4.00 p.m.

Urgency Sub-Committee

The Constitution states that 'each Committee of the Council except the Audit
& Standards Committee may appoint an Urgency Sub-Committee to exercise
its powers. The Membership of such Urgency Sub-Committee shall consist of
the Chair of the Committee, and two other Members nominated by the Group
Leader or Leaders as appropriate to meet the requirements for the allocation
of seats between political groups. Such Urgency Sub-Committees may
exercise their powers in relation to matters of urgency on which it is necessary
to make a decision before the next ordinary meeting of the Committee. Every
decision of each Urgency Sub-Committee shall be reported for information to
the next ordinary meeting of the Committee as appropriate.'

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

All Members considered and approved the new consitution on the 26" April
2012.

20



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

9.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. Itis
expected that the overall effect of the introduction of the new constitution will
be cost neutral.

Finance Officer Consulted: Name Anne Silley Date: 23/05/12

Leqgal Implications:

The Council's constitution complies with the requirements of the Localism Act
2011, the Local Government Act 2000, the Local Authorities (Constitutions)
Direction and relevant guidance.

There are no adverse Human Rights Act implications arising from this report.
Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date: 23/05/12

Equalities Implications:

There are no equalities implications arising from the report.

Sustainability Implications:

There are no sustainability implications arising from the report.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

There are no crime & disorder implications arising from the report.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

The provision of this pay policy statement provides greater transparency to
enable the public to understand and challenge local decisions of pay and
reward of the council’'s workforce.

Public Health Implications:

There are no pubic health implications arising from the report.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

There are no corporate or city wide implications arising from the report..

EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

21



6.1  The council’s constitution provides for the appointment of the sub-committees
and urgency sub-committees and it is for the Committee to determine this
action and tit could decide not to make such appointments. However, this
would be contrary to the wishes of the council and is not therefore regarded
as a viable alternative option.

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 The recommendations are being put forward in line with the requirements of
the constitution.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. (A) Article 6 — Committees and Sub-Committees
2. (B) Terms of Reference

Background Documents
1. The Constitution

22



Appendix ‘A’

ARTICLE 6 - COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

6.01

6.06

Introduction

The implementation of the Council’s budget and policy framework, and
the discharge of its regulatory functions, is undertaken by a number of
Committees and Sub-Committees with powers delegated from the full
Council. The Council has also devolved powers to Partnership Boards
with health bodies, under the National Health Service Act 2006, the
Children Act 2004 and the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

The Council will appoint or make appointments to the Committees, Sub-
Committees, Joint Committees and Partnership Boards as set out in the left
hand column of the tables below. An indication of the functions of each
Committee/Sub-Committee/Joint Committee/Partnership Board is shown in
column 3 of the table. The terms of reference and powers delegated to each
Committee, Sub-Committee, Joint Committee and Partnership Board are
more particularly set out in Part 4 of the constitution.

Urgency Committee/Sub-Committees

The Council shall establish an Urgency Committee to exercise its powers.
The membership of the Urgency Committee shall consist of 7 Members. The
Urgency Committee may exercise its powers in relation to matters of urgency
on which it is necessary to make a decision before the next ordinary meeting
of the Council. Every decision of the Urgency Committee shall be reported for
information to the next ordinary meeting of the full Council.

Each Committee of the Council may appoint an Urgency Sub-Committee to
exercise its powers. The Membership of such Urgency Sub-Committee shall
consist of the Chair of the Committee, and two other Members nominated by
the Group Leader or Leaders as appropriate to meet the requirements for the
allocation of seats between political groups. Such Urgency Sub-Committees
may exercise their powers in relation to matters of urgency on which it is
necessary to make a decision before the next ordinary meeting of the
Committee. Every decision of each Urgency Sub-Committee shall be
reported for information to the next ordinary meeting of the Committee as
appropriate.

23



Appendix 'B

Procedural Rules:
Rule 22: Urgency Sub-Committees

22.1

22.2

Each Committee of the Council shall appoint an Urgency Sub-Committee to
exercise its powers. The membership of such Urgency Sub-Committee shall
consist of the Chair of the Committee, and two other Members nominated by
the Group Leader or Leaders as appropriate to meet the requirements for the
allocation of seats between political groups.

Such Urgency Sub-Committees may exercise their powers in relation to
matters of urgency on which it is necessary to make a decision before the
next ordinary meeting of the Committee. Every decision of each Urgency
Sub-Committee shall be reported for information to the next ordinary meeting
of the Committee as appropriate.

Scheme of Delegation to Committees and Sub-Committees: Introduction and
General Delegations

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF COMMITTEES

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE

Explanatory Note
This Committee is responsible for the council’s functions relating to planning policy,
employment, economic growth and regeneration, culture, tourism and leisure.

Delegated Functions

1

Planning

To exercise the Council’s functions as local planning authority (to the extent
that they are not development control functions delegated to the Planning
Committee), including the formulation and development of the Development
Plan Documents prior to their adoption by Full Council.

Economic Growth and Regeneration
(@) To exercise the Council’s functions and partnerships regarding the
promotion of economic growth and the establishment and development

of business.

(b) To promote and develop the economic fundamentals of the City in areas
such as adult skills, productivity, development sites etc.

Major Built Environment Projects
(a) To oversee the progress of major projects (including major building,

infrastructure or other projects involving the erection or significant
alteration of major permanent structures or landmarks) undertaken by

24



10.

the Council, and advise the Policy & Resources Committee as
appropriate.

(b) To review major projects and any project Boards having regard to
capacity to deliver, corporate priorities and resources, and advise the
Policy & Resources Committee as appropriate.

Conservation and Design

To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to Conservation and Design
including the Hove Borough Council Act 1976.

Building Control
To exercise the Council’s functions regarding building control.
Culture, Arts and Heritage

To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to culture, including arts,
entertainment, cultural activities and heritage.

Tourism & Marketing

To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to tourism, marketing and
conferences.

Libraries and Museums

To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to libraries, museums, art
galleries, historic buildings and their gardens and the functions of the Council
regarding public records.

Events

To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to events, including the annual
programme of entertainment events (providing that if the relevant Strategic
Director, or other officer with delegated powers, is of the view that the event is
a major event or has corporate budgetary or policy implications the matter
shall be referred to the Policy & Resources Committee).

Leisure, Sports and Recreation

To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to the provision and
management of leisure, sports and recreation facilities.

25



26



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 5(a)
DEVELOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council
CULTURE COMMITTEE

Subject: Petition(s)

Date of Meeting: 21 June 2012

Report of: Strategic Director, Resources

Contact Officer: Name: Penny Jennings Tel: 29-1065

E-mail: Penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Key Decision: No
Wards Affected: Various

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 To receive any petitions presented at Council, any petitions submitted directly
to Democratic Services or any e-Petition submitted via the council’s website.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.2 That the Committee responds to the petition either by noting it or writing to the
petition organiser setting out the Council’s views, or where it is considered
more appropriate, calls for an officer report on the matter which may give
consideration to a range of options, including the following:

taking the action requested in the petition

considering the petition at a council meeting

holding an inquiry into the matter

undertaking research into the matter

holding a public meeting

holding a consultation

holding a meeting with petitioners

referring the petition for consideration by the council’s Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

= calling a referendum

3. PETITIONS

Governing Party Conventions

3. (i) To receive the following e-Petition submitted via the council’'s website by Tom
Coady. The final number of signatures obtained will be advised at the
meeting.

“We the undersigned petition the Council to discourage visitors who
require excessive security measures. While we welcome anyone of any
faith, creed or persuasion to visit our city, we consider the security

27



measures disproportionate to the actual risks. If the risks are truly in
proportion to the quantum and expense of the security operation, it
would seem that these conferences are subjecting everyone living or
passing by to an unacceptable risk of collateral damage and so should
consider holding their conference somewhere remote. Given the
restrictions to anyone entering the secured area, it is difficult to see how
these visitors are engaging in any form of democratic exchange, not to
mention the limited scope for delegates to contribute to the local
economy outside the secured zone”

Justification:

In the words of the recent warning letter: “Brighton and Hove City
Council to host the Liberal Democrats’ conference at the Brighton
Centre between 22 — 26 September.” As the Liberal Democrats are part
of the coalition government, there will be a security operation in place for
this event for which will be led by Sussex Police. At this time we
anticipate the main security measure for this event which will be led by
Sussex Police. At this time we anticipate the main security measure for
this event will be temporary fencing around the Brighton Centre and the
Grand Hotel. The pavement immediately outside these buildings will
also be closed to the public. There will be no other access restrictions
for residents — either walking or driving. Residential vehicle passes will
not be required as they have been in previous years. We would
however, be grateful if you would advise us as far as possible in
advance if you are planning anything which may involve large vehicles
driving in and out of the area.”

What this means in practice is a period of at least a week where:

*our homes are surrounded by police, private security guards, sniffer
dogs and builders creating temporary security fences and barriers.

*there are unreasonable restrictions placed on the free movement of
people and deliveries to their private homes.

*anyone wishing to enjoy the hotel facilities such as gym membership
have to forego their entitlement.

*anyone who usually uses the car parks has to move their car and not
return until the event is over.

*most local businesses refuse to deliver goods or services, and if they
do run a gauntlet of challenges or roadblocks.

*anyone who happens to walk to or from the area puts themselves at
very high risk of intrusive searches under prevention of terrorism
powers.

You have more chance of winning first prize in the National Lottery than
you have of being killed by a terrorist. On average, each year in the past
decade approximately 150 people drown in their own bath in the UK. On
average, each year in the past decade approximately eight people are
killed in the UK by terrorists. One death is too many, but terrorism is one
of the very least likely ways we might die.

28



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 7
DEVELOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council
CULTURE COMMITTEE

POLICY & RESOURCES Agenda ltem 3
COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Saltdean Lido
Date of Meeting: 30" May 2012/ 21 June (submitted to Economic
Development & Culture Committee for information)
Report of: Strategic Director - Communities
Lead Member: Economic Development & Culture
Contact Officer: Name: lan Shurrock Tel: 29-2084
Email: ian.shurrock@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Key Decision: Yes
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

Note: The special circumstances for non-compliance with Council Procedure Rule 3,

1.1

Access to Information Procedure Rule 5 and Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 (items not considered unless the agenda is open to
inspection at least five days in advance of the meeting) was the short
timescale since conclusion of negotiations and receipt of proposals.

This item was published in the Committee Agenda on the 24" May 2012. This was
the first opportunity after the Council became aware of the proposal. A decision is
required to be taken by 31%' May 2012 meaning it would be impracticable to defer
the decision. The procedures required under Part 5 Overview & Scrutiny Rules,
Procedural rule 18 and Part 7 Access to Information, have been followed.

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT

The council is the freeholder of Saltdean Lido which is leased on a long lease
to Saltdean Lido Limited (SLL) of 125 years, of which 111 years are
remaining. SLL is the head lessee, with sub tenancies to Saltdean Community
Association (“SCA”) for the community centre and the council for the library.
This report is being considered within the context of the council being the
freehold owner of the Lido complex and therefore as the “superior landlord” of
the property. The council also has statutory duties in respect of the property,
from a planning perspective as the local planning authority and as the
regulatory body for health and safety issues through Environmental Health.
The current situation has resulted in a considerable amount of officer time

29



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

being expended across these council functions on issues in relation to the
Lido.

Saltdean Lido is an important community facility with the community centre
and library providing activities and services primarily to local residents.
However, the Lido itself is the largest enclosed outdoor swimming facility for
the city and therefore has a wider catchment area. In addition, health and
fitness facilities are also provided within the Lido complex.

The overriding requirement of the council is to seek a vibrant, accessible, high
quality facility that befits the status of the Lido as a key asset of both the local
and wider city community.

A resolution of full Council was agreed at the meeting of 20" October 2011
included a review of the options available in relation to getting a resolution to
the current impasse and the taking of early actions that would facilitate the
repair and refurbishment of the Lido which do not prejudice the position of
SCA, who are tenants of SLL.

Reports on the operation of Saltdean Lido have been considered at the
Cabinet Member Meeting for Culture, Recreation & Tourism on 6™ December
2011 and 6™ March 2012 (Appendices 2 & 3). At the first meeting it was
approved that senior officers should continue to seek a negotiated way
forward with the head lessee, including if satisfactory terms can be agreed,
surrender of the head lease back to the council. At the March meeting it was
noted that the head lessee had agreed to have without prejudice negotiations
regarding the possible surrender of the lease.

Various questions have been put to various meetings of the council by the
Save Saltdean Lido Campaign.

Negotiations with SLL have resulted in an agreement in principle for the head
lease to be surrendered back to the council but as the terms of the proposed

agreement are commercially sensitive they need to be considered in a part Il

confidential session.

A plan of the site is attached in Appendix 1.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That it be noted the terms for the surrender of the Lease of Saltdean Lido
(“the surrender”) are recommended to be agreed in the Part Il report going to
this meeting;

That it be noted as the surrender does not entail the transfer of a going
concern, it is inevitable that, if the terms of the surrender are agreed, the

pools and gym part of the Lido will not be immediately open at the start of the
summer season; and

30



2.3 Thatif the terms of the surrender are agreed, it be agreed that interim
management arrangements are put in place as soon as possible by officers in
consultation with the Chair of the Economic Development & Culture
Committee.

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS
3.1 History & Lease Arrangements

3.1.1 The relevant history is set out in Appendices 2 and 3. As explained in the
appendices (a) the library is leased back to the council; no rent is payable but
the council are liable under the sub lease to contribute to the repairs and
maintenance to be carried out by SLL; (b) the SCA are holding over the
sublease granted to them and the council’s legal view is that their
documentation provides for a 55% contribution; and (c) the sublessee of the
public house does not contribute to the main Lido expenses and pays a
ground rent to SLL.

3.1.2 The current lessee is SLL for whom Mr Audley is also a director. The
Appendices refer to relevant requirements under the head lease and steps
taken by the council under the lease. On May 15™ mediation between the
council and SLL took place to see if agreement could be reached regarding
the terms of a surrender of the lease back to the council. The detail of the
proposal is in the Part Il report. If the recommendations in that report are
agreed the agreement to be entered into on 31 May 2012 would be in full
and final settlement not only of all claims between SLL and Mr Audley and the
council but also of the current claims and counterclaims between SLL and Mr
Audley and the SCA.

3.1.3 SCA runs a thriving community centre which provides a wide range of
activities with approximately 700 users per week. The community centre is a
strong focal point for the local community and as well as a programme of
regular activities, the centre is often used for functions and events. The library
is open 3 days a week and is used by approximately 37,000 visitors per year.
Saltdean Library is the second busiest community library in the city on a visits
per hour basis.

3.2 Condition of Building and position of the Local Planning Authority

3.2.1 On 12" May 2010 the council served a notice as landlord under the lease
regarding aspects of disrepair. The lessee served a counter notice which
means that no further action can be taken by the council without resorting to
court.

3.2.2 The Lido was upgraded to a grade II* listing in March 2011 and was put on
the Buildings at Risk register on 19" October 2011. This register is used by
English Heritage as part if it's Heritage at Risk programme which was
established “to identify historic assets that are at risk of being lost through
neglect, decay or development or are vulnerable to becoming so”.

31



3.2.3

3.2.4

3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

3.2.8

The local planning authority appointed a surveyor to advise on the works that
would be necessary for the proper preservation of the listed building. A first
stage warning letter was sent to SLL on 12 January 2012 expressing concern
over the condition of the building and advising SLL of the council’'s powers to
serve a Repairs Notice under section 48 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the powers to compulsory purchase the
building lease under section 47 of that Act if such a Notice is not complied
with. SLL was further advised that the use of these powers was being actively
considered in this case. The Lido was inspected by a conservation officer
from the Heritage team together with the appointed surveyor and a schedule
of works drawn up.

A 10-15 year maintenance plan was proposed by SLL to the local planning
authority, with a view to removing it from the At Risk Register. However, the
lessee made it clear that this programme of works could only be funded by
way of an enabling development scheme on the land occupied by the
Saltdean Tavern and adjoining car park. Both the local planning authority and
English Heritage advised the lessee that they would only ever consider a very
modest development of the site (see paragraph 3.2.10).

On 22 March 2012 the local planning authority issued a second warning letter
and a schedule of works to be completed by the lessee. SLL’s solicitor
responded that his client did not consider the building to be at risk and that no
substantial works are required for its proper preservation. The local planning
authority is awaiting the outcome of the discussions by the council as landlord
with the lessee prior to considering any further action.

If a Repairs Notice were to be served by the council as local planning
authority, compulsory purchase proceedings may be commenced after a
minimum of two months from the date of the Notice but a sufficient period of
time would need to be allowed for the works to be carried out before
proceeding with compulsory acquisition. Given the extent and scope of the
works required in this case, and taking into account that much of the work
would need to be undertaken in favourable weather conditions, a period of at
least 6 months would be reasonable. However, this would need to be subject
to continuous monitoring and review and if no progress were evident the local
planning authority could commence compulsory purchase without further
warning.

The Senior Planning Officer (Conservation) has held initial discussions with
English Heritage on this matter. They have indicated that, in principle, they
would support the local planning authority taking action under section 48 of
the Act and that financial assistance (in the form of grant aid) may be
available to the council towards acquisition, professional and legal costs. The
amount of such grant aid would depend upon the regional funds available at
the time of application.

It should be noted that the service of a notice under section 48 of the Act is an

enforcement matter within the Planning Committee’s remit. Any subsequent
action under section 47 for compulsory purchase would require authorisation

32



3.2.9

by the Policy and Resources Committee. A compulsory purchase order would
require confirmation by the Secretary of State and if the lessee disputes this a
public inquiry would have to be held. Compensation would be payable to SLL
and see the Part Il report in this respect.

If the lease is surrendered back to the council, the maintenance
responsibilities currently vested in SLL would, of course, revert to the council.

3.2.10 As explained in the appendices, the lessee undertook various pre-application

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

discussions but did not submit any planning applications in respect of the Lido
complex. The council as the local planning authority has been very clear with
the lessee on the limitations and difficulties of achieving anything other than
modest development of the site. English Heritage have specifically
commented that the Lido’s low-lying form, distinctive silhouette and unusual
intactness, are likely to make anything more than very modest development in
any position on the site harmful to the Lido’s setting. In planning terms

any development on this site that reduces areas of open space or parking is
likely to be resisted and any modest development would require
complementary leisure and recreational uses. There are also restrictive
covenants on the site.

NEXT STEPS

If the negotiated surrender is agreed, as there is not a transfer of a going
concern, it will not be possible to immediately open the gym and pools part of
the Lido. At the handover of keys, officers will begin an immediate
assessment of the feasibility of opening the facility in the short-term and the
requirements for a procurement process for the long-term operation of the
facility.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

Prior to the mediation referred to at paragraph 3.1.2 of this report various
meetings took place with the lessee and with SCA, Saltdean Residents
Association, Save Saltdean Lido Campaign (“SSLC”) and local ward members
to discuss a range of issues on Saltdean Lido.

SSLC has previously indicated an aspiration to operate the Lido complex.
However, it has been inappropriate for the council to actively seek an
alternative operator of the Lido complex or actively engage with the SSLC
whilst the legal agreement with SLL exists. If the recommendations in the Part
Il report are agreed, recommendation 2.3 of this report recommends that
interim management arrangements are put in place as soon as possible by
officers in consultation with the chair of the Economic Development & Culture
Committee.

Thereafter the council will need to consider if it wants to do a marketing
exercise for a property transaction or if it would prefer to remain in substantive
control of the property and have a detailed service specification to be fulfilled
in-house or by an appointed leisure services contractor. It is likely that the

33



6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Economic Development & Culture Committee will lead on the options
appraisal, but given the property, legal and final implications, Policy &
Resources Committee will need to approve the final way forward.
FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications:

The financial implications arising from the recommendations are detailed in
the Part |l report.

Finance Officer Consulted: Michelle Herrington Date: 29/05/12

Legal Implications:

As stated at above there are a number of issues which cannot be included in
this public report as they remain confidential, due to legal privilege or
commercially sensitivity.

The legal implications of this matter have been included in the main body of
the report.

Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce, Principal Solicitor Date: 29.05.12

Equalities Implications:

The council seeks to provide a range of opportunities for residents to
participate in sport and community activities across the city.

Sustainability Implications:

The efficient operation and effective maintenance of the facility has
implications for the long term sustainability of the Lido complex.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

There are no direct crime and disorder implications but the provision of sport
and leisure opportunities can help to reduce anti-social behaviour.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

As with any leased facility where the risk of operation has been transferred to
the head lessee, there is a risk of non compliance with the terms of the lease.

Public Health Implications:

Opportunities to participate in sport and physical activity, community activities
and access to a local library are all very important to the health and well being
of the city’s residents.

34



6.8

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

Saltdean Lido is an important recreation resource for the city.
BRIEF REVIEW OF OPTIONS

The length of the head lease is a key issue, in that a long lease gives greater
security to the lessee and it is difficult for a landlord to be able to secure
forfeiture of a 125 year lease through court action. The position is further
complicated by the provisions regarding contributions to be made by the SCA.

There are 3 options — (a) seek compliance with the lease, (b) seek a
negotiated surrender of the whole lease or part of the lease and (c) seek to
take back the lease through forfeiture or compulsory purchase. Further
discussion on the complex implications of these options can take place in Part
I, but for immediate purposes brief information on these options is set out
below.

Officers have been pursuing option (a), as evidenced by service of the notice
referred to in paragraph 3.2.1. SSLC have expressed serious concerns about
when the site is open and some health and safety issues. The opening hours
issue was addressed by a proposed monitoring regime and all health and
safety issues raised have been properly addressed by the council.

Option (b) entails seeking agreement with the lessee on the timing and extent
of any surrender. Fragmented management or ownership of the Lido should
be avoided and it is not considered appropriate for the council to take back
just the pools area or part of the complex. There is clearly scope to seek
agreement with the lessee about surrender of the whole lease and the key
aspect will be the terms including any compensation provisions.

Option (c) is the last resort. Forfeiture proceedings are notoriously expensive
and protracted and the court encourages landlords and tenants to settle their
differences by agreement. Compulsory purchase may be a route, but is a
local planning authority consideration linked to whether or not Planning
Committee agree the service of a section 48 Notice and then whether or not
that Notice is complied with. Compulsory purchase would require confirmation
by the Secretary of State and he/she would need to be satisfied that proper
steps were not being taken to preserve the building. It is likely that a public
inquiry would be held.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

Saltdean Lido is a leased facility and therefore the position of the head lessee
and council as freehold owner need to be recognised.

Saltdean Lido is a Grade 2* listed building on the Buildings at Risk Register.
Therefore, it is important that the building is maintained to the appropriate
standard so that it is removed from the register and operated to its full
potential for the benefit of the community.

35



36



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. Site Plan
2. Report and minutes of the CRTCMM 6" December 2011

3. Report and minutes of the Cabinet Member Meeting of 6™ March 2012

Documents in Members’ Rooms

None

Background Documents

None

37



38



Ingle
reakwater
i Reprqduce_d from the C_)rdpance Survey N
m
o e . altdean Lido Leased Area
ion infri i w E
. and may lead to prosecution or Civil
Bl‘lghton & Hove rproceedings. Scale 1:1,500
Brighton & Hove City Council s

City Council  ticéne - 100050508



40



CULTURE RECREATION  Agendaltem 40
& TOU RISM CABIN ET Brighton & Hove City Council
MEMBER MEETING

Subject: Operation of Saltdean Lido

Date of Meeting: 6™ December 2011

Report of: Strategic Director - Communities

Lead Cabinet Member: Culture, Recreation & Tourism

Contact Officer: Name: lan Shurrock Tel: 29-2084
Email: ian.shurrock@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan No: 2

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.1

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

2,

21

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT

The council is the freeholder of Saltdean Lido which is leased on a long lease
to Power Fitness Ltd (“PFL”) of 125 years, of which 111 years are remaining.
PFL is the head lessee, with sub tenancies to Saltdean Community
Association (“SCA”) for the community centre and the council for the library.
This report is being considered within the context of the council being the
freehold owner of the Lido complex and therefore as the “superior landlord” of
the property. The council also has statutory duties in respect of the property,
from a planning perspective as the local planning authority and as the
regulatory body for health and safety issues through Environmental Health.

Saltdean Lido is an important community facility with the community centre
and library providing activities and services primarily to local residents.
However, the Lido itself is the largest enclosed outdoor swimming facility for
the city and therefore has a wider catchment area. In addition, health and
fitness facilities are also provided within the Lido complex.

At full Council on the 20" October 2011 a petition was presented and two
Deputations received which, as indicated by items 33 and 35 on this agenda,
led to the issues raised being referred to this Cabinet Member Meeting.

A plan of the site is attached in appendix 1.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Tourism:

notes the terms of the lease between the council as landlord and Power
Fitness Limited (“PFL”) as the head lessee which operates the Lido complex

41



2.2

23

24

2.5

2.6.1

2.7

2.8

3.1

3.11

and determines the action that can be taken by the council as landlord in
respect of the facility;

notes that the council on 12" May 2010 served a notice under the lease
requiring certain works to be carried out, that the lessee claims to have
complied with that notice and that negotiations with the lessee in that regard
are ongoing;

notes that the resolution of full Council at its meeting of 20™ October 2011
includes reviewing the options available in relation to getting a resolution to
the current impasse and the taking of early actions that would facilitate the
repair and refurbishment of the Lido which do not prejudice the position of the
Saltdean Community Association, who are tenants of PFL;

requests the local planning authority to consider whether or not action can be
taken under sections 47 and 48 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990;

approves the introduction of monitoring arrangements of the Lido pools during
next season;

agrees that senior officers should continue to liaise with the local planning
authority and seek a negotiated way forward with the lessee, including if
satisfactory terms can be agreed, surrender of the head lease back to the
council;

instructs officers to urgently seek a valuation of the Lido for surrender or
compulsory purchase purposes; and

agrees that a further progress report should be brought to the next Culture
Recreation & Tourism Cabinet Member Meeting unless a report can be taken
sooner to Cabinet.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS

History & Lease Arrangements

The freehold of the Lido complex was purchased by Brighton Borough Council
on 1% March 1962 from the receiver of the Saltdean Estate Company Limited,
The purchase was subject to certain covenants including restrictions on the
sale of alcohol. On 16" February 1976 the council granted a 28 year lease of
part of the complex to the Trustees of the Saltdean Community Association
(“SCA”), which required the building of a ground floor extension which was
completed in 1980. At this time the Lido was occupied by (a) the Borough
Council for the purpose of running the pool, (b) East Sussex County Council
re: the library and (3) SCA who then as now ran the community centre.
Saltdean Lido was listed as a grade |l listed building on 13" July 1987. Upon

42



3.1.2

3.1.3

3.14

3.1.5

3.1.6

local government reorganisation in 1997 the ownership of Saltdean Library
transferred from the County Council to the city council.

When managed by the council the pools made a loss and various proposals
were raised but rejected in the 1980s, including privatisation and covering the
pools to make it available for year round use. In April 1993 the running of the
pools was licensed for one year to a local businessman. He lost over £20,000
and initially did not wish to continue without financial contribution from the
council. However he persevered and broke even in 1994. After that
arrangement came to an end, the council instructed external surveyors to
market the property on a long lease. As a result of consultation by the council,
the marketing stressed the listed building aspects and referred to the ongoing
requirement for community facilities and local demand for a family
pub/restaurant, which would entail release of the no alcohol restriction
referred to in paragraph 3.1.1.

Over 120 expressions of interest were received, none of which were from
community based groups, although a local group of residents, Saltdean
Preservation Trust, did express an interest in the site after the preferred
bidder had already been appointed. The chosen bid led to the setting up of
Marlborough Leisure Limited (MLL), who were granted the head lease for the
Lido complex on 1% December 1997 for a premium of £275,000, to be used to
refurbish the Lido complex. MLL secured a release of the alcohol restriction
by payment of an additional sum of money to the company with the benefit of
the covenants, Chaucer Estates Limited. The lease premium was paid by
Allied Domecq Leisure in return for a 125 year underlease from MLL of the
public house to be built on land within the site adjacent to the Lido. The
ground rent payable under the pub underlease to the lessee is £1000 p.a.

The library is leased back to the council for 125 years. No rent is payable but
the council are liable under the lease to contribute to the repairs and
maintenance to be carried out by the head lessee. It was originally proposed
that MLL would grant a new underlease to SCA of the community centre.
However as terms could not be agreed between MLL and SCA, primarily due
to proposed service charge contributions, the headlease was granted subject
to and with the benefit of the existing lease to SCA referred to in paragraph
3.1.1. SCA, the Council and the headlessee have over a period of time sought
to agree the appropriate level of contributions payable by SCA to the
headlessee and the Council’s legal view is that the documentation provides
for a 55% contribution.

On 15" August 2008 the head lessee served notice on SCA to terminate their
underlease and replace it with a new lease. SCA made counter proposals and
pending the outcome of either court proceedings or mediation the legal
position is such that the terms of the original lease referred to in paragraph
3.1.1 remain in force, i.e. SCA are “holding over”.

In August 1999 MLL changed its name to Saltdean Lido (Brighton) Limited
and on 30" September 2004 the lease was transferred to Mr Dennis Audley.

43



3.1.7

3.1.8

3.1.9

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

3.3

3.3.1

The lease was subsequently transferred by Mr Audley to PFL on 7" July
2011, for whom Mr Audley is a director.

The lessee is required to open the Lido complex throughout the year and the
pools during normal (unspecified) hours between 31%' May and 1! September
(subject to the exceptions set out at paragraph 3.3.2). The head lease is full
repairing, although contributions are recoverable from SCA and the council as
sub tenants. PFL is liable to pay all utility bills, subject to service charge
recovery from the council (in respect of the library) and SCA (in respect of
their part of the building). The actual running of the premises and its
associated health and safety and environment issues are under the direct
control of PFL.

SCA runs a thriving community centre which provides a wide range of
activities with approximately 700 users per week. The community centre is a
strong focal point for the local community and as well as a programme of
regular activities, the centre is often used for functions and events. The library
is open 3 days a week and is used by approximately 37,000 visitors per year.
Saltdean Library is the second busiest community library in the city on a visits
per hour basis.

There are a number of issues which cannot be included in this public report as
they should remain confidential, due to legal privilege or they are
commercially sensitive financial or business affairs. As these issues are under
constant review a verbal update can be provided to members within a closed
part Il session, if required.

Condition of Building

On 12" May 2010 the council served a notice under the lease regarding
aspects of disrepair. The lessee served a counter notice which means that no
further action can be taken by the council without resorting to court. A Scott
Schedule of the repairs required has been completed by a surveyor appointed
by the lessee and this is being reviewed by a council appointed surveyor. This
will identify those areas of repair that have been completed satisfactorily,
those for which further work is agreed, and any that may be in dispute.

The building was put on the Building at Risk register on 19" October 2011.
This register is used by English Heritage as part if it's Heritage at Risk
programme which was established “to identify historic assets that are at risk of
being lost through neglect, decay or development or are vulnerable to
becoming so”. The local planning authority’s position on the condition of the
building is indicated in 4 below.

Opening of Lido
Concern has been expressed by the Save Saltdean Lido Campaign (“SSLC”)
that the Lido pools are not available for swimming at times when the weather

is suitable. There is provision in the lease for the Lido pools to be open as
per paragraph 3.1.7 above.

44



3.3.2

3.3.3

3.4

3.4.1

3.5

3.5.1

41

There are exceptions to the requirement to open the pools that include
“‘routine cleaning, maintenance, inclement weather, force majeure, or other
reasons outside of the reasonable control of the lessee”. The head lessee has
responded to the concerns by indicating the pools have been closed on
occasion due to inclement weather.

Inclement weather is clearly not a precise term. However, given that a key
aspect of the lease is the opening of the pools for swimming and in response
to the concerns raised, it is proposed to implement a monitoring regime for the
next summer season.

Possible Development of the Site

Although there have been pre-application discussions the lessee has not
submitted any planning applications in respect of the Lido complex. However,
the head lessee did hold a public exhibition of proposals last year and that
acted as a catalyst for the formation of SSLC. The council as landlord would
have to approve any development of the site. In addition, development would
require planning permission and listed building consent and the council as the
local planning authority has been very clear with the lessee on the limitations
and difficulties of achieving anything other than modest development of the
site. English Heritage have specifically commented that the Lido’s low-lying
form, distinctive silhouette and unusual intactness, are likely to make anything
more than very modest development in any position on the site harmful to the
Lido’s setting. In planning terms (a) no convincing evidence has been
submitted that a large scale development is necessary, (b) any development
on this site that reduces areas of open space or parking is likely to be resisted
and (c) any modest development should introduce complementary leisure and
recreational uses to the site.

Different Operator of the Site

SSLC has indicated an aspiration to operate the Lido complex. However, as
the council has a legal agreement with the head lessee, it would be
inappropriate for the council to actively seek an alternative operator of the
Lido complex while such a legal agreement exists. See section 7 as to the
options available to the council.

THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY’S POSITION

The Lido was upgraded to Grade II* listing in March 2011 and in October
2011 English Heritage, as part of their annual update, added the building to
their register of Buildings at Risk (BAR) at priority category C (on a scale of A
to F where A is the worst). Buildings in category C are considered to show
“slow decay; no solution agreed”. BAR is used by English Heritage to identify
England’s historic assets that are at a risk of loss through neglect, decay or
development or are vulnerable to becoming so. The council is due to update
its own register of Buildings at Risk at the Planning, Employment, Economy &

45



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Regeneration Cabinet Member Meeting of 22" December and it is proposed
that Saltdean Lido will be included. The inclusion of the Lido on the English
Heritage register does not confer any additional powers on the council.

The council has the power under section 48 of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (“the Act”) to serve a Repairs Notice on the
owner of the building, as a preliminary to compulsory acquisition under
section 47 of the Act. The minimum period allowed by the legislation between
service of a Repairs Notice and commencement of compulsory acquisition is
two months. Good practice advice on the service of Repairs Notices, as set
out in the English Heritage publication ‘Stopping the Rot’, recommends that
the local planning authority (LPA) send a written warning and a draft schedule
of repairs to the owner before commencing statutory proceedings.

A Repairs Notice under section 48 of the Act must be confined to those works
which are “reasonably necessary for the proper preservation of the building”.
The term ‘proper preservation’ implies positive action to put and keep the
building in good repair in a way which fully respects its special architectural or
historic interest and to prevent it being exposed to harm. Guidance in
Stopping the Rot states that “a Repairs Notice should be considered when a
building is neglected and the need for permanent repair accumulates to the
point where there is potential for serious harm”.

The Lido has recently been inspected by the council’'s Heritage team on
behalf of the LPA. As a result of that inspection it is considered that the
condition of the Lido does meet these criteria. Although some works were
carried out to the building in the Spring of 2011 and further works are in
progress (in response the schedule of works served by the council as
freeholder), it is considered that the works carried out are no more than
cosmetic in nature, are not of a quality consistent with a the listed status of the
building and have not addressed the underlying issues of disrepair. At best
they may very temporarily arrest the building’s physical decline. They cannot
be considered a permanent repair.

A Repairs Notice in respect of the Lido could be based upon the schedule of
works already prepared by the council as freeholder but would be need to be
amended to ensure that only works ‘for the proper preservation of the building’
were included. If a Repairs Notice were to be served a sufficient period of time
would need to be allowed for the works to be carried out before proceeding
with compulsory acquisition. Given the extent and scope of the works required
in this case, and taking into account that much of the work will need to be
undertaken in favourable weather conditions, a period of between 9 and12
months would be reasonable (subject to review if no progress were to be
evident).

The Senior Planning Officer (Conservation) has held initial discussions with
English Heritage on this matter. They have indicated that, in principle, they
would support the local planning authority taking action under section 48 of
the Act and that financial assistance (in the form of grant aid) may be
available to the council towards acquisition, professional and legal costs. The

46



4.7

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.3

amount of such grant aid would depend upon the regional funds available at
the time of application.

It should be noted that the service of a notice under section 48 of the Act is
not an executive function but rather an enforcement matter within the
Planning Committee’s remit.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

Various meetings have taken place with the lessee and with SCA, Saltdean
Residents Association, Save Saltdean Lido Campaign and local ward
members to discuss a range of issues on Saltdean Lido. However, much of
the detail of the matters discussed has not been set out in this Part | report so
as to not compromise the various parties relationships with each other.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications:

The financial implications arising from the recommendations of this report
regarding officer time will be met from existing resources. However, there may
be financial implications arising from subsequent proposals or actions that will
need to be identified and reported back in due course.

Finance Officer Consulted: Michelle Herrington Date: 24/11/11

Legal Implications:

As stated at paragraph 3.1.9 of this report there are a number of issues which
cannot be included in this public report as they remain confidential, due to
legal privilege or commercially sensitivity. If necessary confidential legal
issues can be discussed in Part Il of the meeting or be set out in a future Part
Il report once matters have moved on.

There is no quick or easy fix to a complex legal situation. The legal
implications of this matter have been included in the main body of the report,
particularly sections 3 and 7 and the explanation at paragraph 4.7 that service
of a notice under section 48 of the Act is not a direct matter for this meeting
and hence the wording at paragraphs 2.4 and 2.6.

Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce, Principal Solicitor Date: 23/11/11

Equalities Implications:

The council seeks to provide a range of opportunities for residents to
participate in sport and community activities across the city.

47



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Sustainability Implications:

The efficient operation and effective maintenance of the facility has
implications for the long term sustainability of the Lido complex.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

There are no direct crime and disorder implications but the provision of sport
and leisure opportunities can help to reduce anti-social behaviour.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

As with any leased facility where the risk of operation has been transferred to
the head lessee, there is a risk of non compliance with the terms of the lease.

Public Health Implications:

Opportunities to participate in sport and physical activity, community activities
and access to a local library are all very important to the health and well being
of the city’s residents.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

Saltdean Lido is an important recreation resource for the city.

BRIEF EVALUATION OF OPTIONS

The overriding requirement of the council is to seek a vibrant, accessible, high
quality facility that befits the status of the Lido as a key asset of both the local
and wider city community.

The length of the head lease is a key issue, in that a long lease gives greater
security to the lessee and it is difficult for a landlord to be able to secure
forfeiture of a 125 year lease through court action. The position is further
complicated by the provisions regarding contributions to be made by the SCA.

There are 3 options — (a) seek compliance with the lease, (b) seek a
negotiated surrender of the whole lease or part of the lease and (c) seek to
take back the lease through forfeiture or compulsory purchase. If necessary
further discussion on the complex implications of these options can take place
in Part Il, but for immediate purposes brief information on these options is set
out below.

Officers have been pursuing option (a), as evidenced by service of the notice
referred to in paragraphs 2.2 and 3.2. SSLC have expressed serious
concerns about when the site is open and some health and safety issues. The
opening hours issue is addressed in section 3.3 of this report and all health
and safety issues raised have been properly addressed by the council.

48



7.5

7.6

8.1

8.2

8.3

Option (b) entails seeking agreement with the lessee on the timing and extent
of any surrender. Fragmented management or ownership of the Lido should
be avoided and it is not considered appropriate for the council to take back
just the pools area or part of the complex. There is clearly scope to seek
agreement with the lessee about surrender of the whole lease and the key
aspect will be the terms including any compensation provisions. The valuation
referred to in paragraph 2.7 will be key to the full evaluation of this option.

Option (c) is the last resort. Forfeiture proceedings are notoriously expensive
and protracted and the court encourages landlords and tenants to settle their
differences by agreement. Compulsory purchase may be a route, but is a
local planning authority consideration linked to whether or not Planning
Committee agree the service of a section 48 Notice and then whether or not
that Notice is complied with.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

Saltdean Lido is a leased facility and therefore the responsibilities of the head
lessee and council as freehold owner need to be recognised.

Saltdean Lido is a Grade 2* listed building on the Buildings at Risk Register.
Therefore, it is important that the building is maintained to the appropriate
standard so that it is removed from the register.

A key provision within the lease is the opening of the lido pool during the

summer season. Therefore, it is important that the council is clear that
compliance with the terms of the lease on this issue is being met.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1.

Site Plan

Documents in Members’ Rooms

1.

None

Background Documents

1.

None

49



50



Appendix 2.1

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING
4.000om 6 DECEMBER 2011

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL

Present: Councillor Bowden (Cabinet Member)

Also in attendance: Councillor: Brown, Spokesperson, Conservative

40.

401

40.2

40.3

Party and Councillor Fitch, Opposition
Spokesperson, Brighton Labour and Co-operative
Party

Minute Extract

OPERATION OF SALTEAN LIDO

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director,
Communities detailing issues in relation to the operation of Saltdean Lido. At
full Council on 20 October 2011 a petition had been presented and two
deputations received which had been received at items 33 and 36 on that
days agenda and had led to the issues raised being referred to the Cabinet
Member Meeting. The Cabinet Member stated that he had agreed to permit
individuals representing interested parties to speak for a period not exceeding
three minutes in order to give their perspective. He understood that the issues
were complex and were potentially emotive. However, he urged all parties to
treat each other with respect.

Before proceeding to consideration of the report each of the following spoke in
respect of Saltdean Lido. It was noted that the lessee Mr Audley, on behalf of
the lessee company, had been invited to attend that day’s meeting but had
been unable to attend and had circulated a note which had been circulated in
his absence and would be appended to the approved minutes.

Councillor David Smith

Councillor Smith spoke in his capacity as a Local Ward Councillor also on
behalf of his ward colleague Councillor Mears. He was aware of the on-going
discussions which had taken place since 2002. During that time
notwithstanding that the Council had made it clear that the site should be
retained for sporting and community use the lessee had repeatedly failed to
maintain the building to and to honour the terms of the lease. This matter

51



40.4

40.5

40.6

40.7

Appendix 2.1

needed to be progressed as a matter of urgency .If negotiations could not be
successfully concluded with the lessee he urged that action should be taken
by the Planning Committee under the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Ms Rebecca Crook, “Save Saltdean Lido”

Ms Crook spoke on behalf of “Save Saltdean Lido Campaign”, She explained
that this unique listed building of its period, was now on the English Heritage
“Buildings at Risk” Register. A meeting had been held the previous Sunday
attended by 250 people all of whom had expressed support for urgent
measures to protect and preserve the designated use of the building. The
level of affection and support for the building was evidenced by the fact that
the recent petition to the Council had contained the largest number of
signatures ever. There was a tremendous sense of frustration that the Council
had been unable to progress the matter more rapidly and there was now a
tremendous sense of urgency to progress improvements and to ensure that
the Lido was open for the requisite number of days each year.

The “Save Saltdean Lido” team had a devised a robust and viable business
plan for operation of the Lido and would be happy to enter into detailed
discussions with the Council to that end. Mr Audley, on behalf of the lessee
was not present that day and to them that spoke volumes. There was a need
for urgent action and it was disappointing that a further delay was likely if a
further report would not be brought before the cabinet member until the next
scheduled cabinet member meeting in March 2012.

Mr L O’Connor, Saltdean Resident’s Association

Spoke on behalf of members of Saltdean Residents Association. The Head
Lessee had repeatedly flouted their obligations in terms of maintenance of this
facility for a long time and urgent action was required. The various options to
the Council were noted and in the event that all else failed their preference
would be for the building to be compulsorily purchased.

Mrs L Lee, Saltdean Community Association

Mrs Lee spoke on behalf of the Saltdean Community Association. Whilst in
agreement that the matter needed to be progressed she was also aware of
the legal processes which needed to be observed. Regular weekly events
took place at the Lido with use for other occasional events as well. The SCA
had limited financial means at their disposal but had nonetheless been
instrumental in helping to keep the Lido in use. Feelings were running very
high and the views put by representatives of “Save Saltdean Lido” were not
the only ones which needed to be considered. Some members of the
Community Association had been subjected to considerable personal
unpleasantness and this was regrettable as all local groups and those
representing the wider community had a common interest and goal.

52



40.8

40.9

40.10

40.11

40.12

Appendix 2.1

The Saltdean Community Association wished to facilitate and support an early
and appropriate resolution of the current problems.

Discussion and Debate

The Cabinet Member noted all that had been said, also noting that the
building and the resource which it provided was treasured by many and
considered it important that the local community groups worked together
rather than in competition with one another.

The Head of Planning Strategy explained the context of the buildings inclusion
on the “Buildings at Risk” register and the time frame for any action being
taken under planning legislation. It was important that the building was
maintained to the appropriate standard so that it could then be removed from
the register. However, whilst compulsory purchase might be a route it was a
local planning authority consideration linked to whether or not the Planning
Committee agreed to the service of a Section 48 Notice and then whether or
not the Notice was complied with. This was a relatively lengthy process in
view of the timeframes for compliance which were built into it.

The Principal Solicitor clarified that the length of the head lease was a key
issue in that a long lease gave greater security to the head lessee and it was
difficult for a landlord to secure forfeiture of a 125 year lease through court
action. The position was further complicated by the provisions regarding
contributions to be made by the Saltdean Community Association. The 3
options available to the Council were (a) to seek compliance with the lease,
(b) to seek a negotiated surrender of the whole lease or part of the lease and
(c) to seek to take back the lease through forfeiture or compulsory purchase.
Option C represented the last resort as forfeiture proceedings were expensive
and protracted and the court encouraged landlords and tenants to settle their
differences by agreement. There was no quick or easy fix to this complex
legal situation.

Councillor Fitch expressed concern at the potential further delay which might
occur if a report was not put to Planning Committee at the earliest possible
time seeking their agreement to service of a notice under section 48 of the
Planning Act. Councillor Fitch requested the Cabinet Member to consider
authorising such action at that day’s meeting. The Cabinet Member stated
however that he was mindful of the advice given by officers, both in the report
before him and also orally at the meeting. Considerable action had already
been taken by the Council and it was important to take the appropriate action
in a structured and methodical way. The Council was anxious for progress to
be achieved, however it needed to be recognised that this would not be a
rapid process. There would be no undue delay as a further report would be
submitted to the next scheduled Cabinet Member Meeting on 6 March 2012 .
He was therefore minded to agree the recommendations as set out in the
report.

40.13 RESOLVED -

53



(2)

(8)

Appendix 2.1

That the Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Tourism notes the
terms of the lease between the council as landlord and Power Fitness Limited
(“PFL”) as the head lessee which operates the Lido complex and determines
the action that can be taken by the council as landlord in respect of the facility;

notes that the council on 12t May 2010 served a notice under the lease
requiring certain works to be carried out, that the lessee claims to have
complied with that notice and that negotiations with the lessee in that regard
are ongoing;

notes that the resolution of full Council at its meeting of 20t October 2011
includes reviewing the options available in relation to getting a resolution to
the current impasse and the taking of early actions that would facilitate the
repair and refurbishment of the Lido which do not prejudice the position of the
Saltdean Community Association, who are tenants of PFL;

requests the local planning authority to consider whether or not action can be
taken under sections 47 and 48 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990;

approves the introduction of monitoring arrangements of the Lido pools during
next season;

agrees that senior officers should continue to liaise with the local planning
authority and seek a negotiated way forward with the lessee, including if
satisfactory terms can be agreed, surrender of the head lease back to the
council;

instructs officers to urgently seek a valuation of the Lido for surrender or
compulsory purchase purposes; and

agrees that a further progress report should be brought to the next Culture

Recreation & Tourism Cabinet Member Meeting unless a report can be taken
sooner to Cabinet.

54



CULTURE, RECREATION Agendaltem73
& TOU RISM CABIN ET Brighton & Hove City Council
MEMBER MEETING

Subject: Operation of Saltdean Lido

Date of Meeting: 6™ March 2012

Report of: Strategic Director - Communities

Lead Cabinet Member: Culture, Recreation & Tourism

Contact Officer: Name: lan Shurrock Tel: 29-2084
Email: lan.shurrock@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Ward(s) affected: Rottingdean Coastal

FOR GENERAL RELEASE/ EXEMPTIONS

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 This report is an update on the progress made on the recommendations
approved at the Cabinet Member Meeting on 6™ December 2011 on the
operation of Saltdean Lido.

1.2  Saltdean Lido is an important community facility including a library and
community centre as well as the Lido outdoor swimming pool and health &
fitness facilities.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Tourism:

2.1 Notes that the head lessee has agreed to have without prejudice negotiations
regarding the possible surrender of the lease.

2.2  Notes that an external Valuer has produced a valuation of the Lido for surrender
and/or compulsory purchase purposes.

2.3  Notes that liaison with Saltdean Community Association (SCA) has been on-
going, as, in accordance with the Full Council resolution, actions undertaken by
the council are with a view to not prejudicing the position of the SCA.

2.4  Notes that the local planning authority is considering the position under sections

47 and 48 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as
referred to in section 4 of this report.

55



3.1

3.1.1

3.2

3.2.1

3.3

3.3.1

41

4.2

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

History & Lease Arrangements

The history and lease arrangements were outlined in detail in the report to the 6™
December Cabinet Member Meeting and will therefore not be repeated in this
report. However, due to the complex arrangements in relation to the Lido, it is
important that this report is not considered in isolation, as it is an update on
progress since the December report.

Condition of Building

On 12" May 2010 the council served a notice under the lease regarding aspects
of repair. The lessee has previously purported to have complied with that notice
and the company’s lawyers have claimed that the lessee does not need to deal
with the issue of repairs referred to in the notice any further - on the grounds that
the notice is defective. This is not the council’s view, but in any event the issue of
the condition of the building is now being considered by the local planning
authority whose update appears in section 4 of this report.

Negotiated surrender of the lease

The lessee has agreed to the request to commence negotiations to see if
surrender of the lease is possible. Fragmented management or ownership of the
Lido should be avoided and it is not considered appropriate for the council to take
back just the pools area or part of the complex. There is scope to seek
agreement with the lessee about surrender of the whole lease, but the key
aspect will be the terms including any compensation provisions.

THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY’S POSITION

The local planning authority has appointed a surveyor to advise on the works that
would be necessary for the proper preservation of the listed building. A first stage
warning letter has been sent to the head lessee expressing concern over the
condition of the building and advising him of the council’s powers to serve a
Repairs Notice under section 48 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the powers to compulsory purchase the
building lease under section 47 of that Act if such a Notice is not complied with.
The head lessee was further advised that the use of these powers is being
actively considered in this case. The Lido has been inspected by a conservation
officer from the Heritage team together with the appointed surveyor and a
schedule of works is being drawn up.

In the meantime a maintenance plan has been proposed by the lessee to the

local planning authority, with a view to removing it from the At Risk Register.
Subject to the local planning authority’s view on the information provided, the

56



detailed schedule of works will be sent to the head lessee with a second stage
warning letter. A verbal update will be provided at the meeting.

5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

5.1  Meetings have been held with local ward councillors, Saltdean Community
Association, Save Saltdean Lido Campaign and the lessee.

6. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

6.1  The financial implications arising from any future proposals or actions will need to
be identified and reported to the appropriate council meeting in due course.

Finance Officer Consulted: Michelle Herrington Date: 21/02/12

Legal Implications:

6.2 A full valuation report was received on 27" February. That report will be shared
with the head lessee and will be a key part of the negotiations to see if surrender
of the leases can be agreed. An oral update will be given at the meeting, which
may involve going into Part Il confidential session. Given the public interest, a
version of the report will be put on the council’s website for information.

Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce Date: 27/02/12

Equalities Implications:

6.3  The council seeks to provide a range of opportunities for residents to participate
in sport and community activities across the city.

Sustainability Implications:

6.4  The efficient operation and effective maintenance of the facilities has implications
for the long term sustainability of the Lido complex.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

6.5 There are no direct crime and disorder implications but the provision of sport and
leisure opportunities can help to reduce anti-social behaviour.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

6.6  As with any leased facility where the risk of operation has been transferred to the
head lessee, there is a risk of non compliance with the terms of the lease.

Public Health Implications:

57



6.7

Opportunities to participate in sport and physical activity, community activities
and access to a local library are all very important to the health and well-being of
the city’s residents.

6.8  Corporate / Citywide Implications:

Saltdean Lido is an important recreation resource for the city.

7. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

7.1 Asindicated in the December 2011 report, there are 3 options — (a) seek
compliance with the lease, (b) seek a negotiated surrender of the whole lease or
part of the lease and (c) seek to take back the lease through forfeiture or
compulsory purchase.

7.2 Option (b) is now being pursued with the lessee as per 3.3 but greater focus may
return to Option (a) if a negotiated surrender cannot be achieved. Option (c) still
remains as the last resort.

8. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1  The issues in relation to the operation of Saltdean Lido are complex and there is
not a simple and easy resolution to the matter. Therefore, this report is an update
on the progress on a range of actions agreed in December 2011 which are on-
going.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. None

Documents in Members’ Rooms

1.

None

Background Documents

1.

Report to the Cabinet Member Meeting on 6" December 2011.

58



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 8
DEVE LOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City

CULTURE COMMITTEE wounet
Subject: Royal Pavilion & Museums Catering Review
Date of Meeting: 21 June 2012

Report of: Strategic Director Communities

Contact Officer: Name: Janita Bagshawe Tel: (29)2840

E-mail: Janita.bagshawe@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Key Decision: Yes/No
Wards Affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE/ EXEMPTIONS

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 To set out the current position of catering provision across Royal Pavilion &
Museums (RPM) and recommendations for future business development to

maximise income for maintaining and developing the RPM service.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:
2.1 To approve the seeking of tenders in respect of all catering provision

for RPM under contractual arrangements which will subsist for a period
of five years with an option to extend for up to a further two years.

2.2 To authorise the Strategic Director, Communities to consider and
determine, with a view to driving efficiencies and value for money:

e how the tendered opportunities should be packaged eg. whether there
should be division into lots;

e whether the tender should take place jointly with Brighton Dome and
Festival Ltd (BDFL) and if so, how best to structure the tender/
contractual arrangement.

2.3  To authorise the Strategic Director, Communities to accept tender(s) in
accordance with officer recommendations following the tendering
exercise and to approve the award of contract(s) accordingly.

2.4  To approve the use of external catering expertise in visitor
attraction/venue market to assist with the tender process.

2.5 To note that a report on the result of the tendering process will be
brought to Policy and Resources Committee for agreement.

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF
KEY EVENTS:

59



3.1

3.2
3.2.1

3.2.2
3.2.3

3.24

Current Catering Provision

Across the Royal Pavilion & Museums public catering arrangements
have evolved on an ad-hoc basis as licence arrangements for each
venue have arisen.

e The Royal Pavilion Tearoom was run by Ecovert South Ltd until
the contract expired in 2004. A contract for tearoom services
was then tendered but no suitable contractor was found.
Therefore, in order to ensure continuity of this visitor service, the
decision was taken to appoint an in-house catering team. A
number of Ecovert staff were TUPE transferred to the in-house
catering team. (Policy & Resources Committee 2004 — Royal
Pavilion Catering, The Queen Adelaide Tearoom)

e The Gallery Café at Brighton Museum was tendered when the
Museum re-opened in 2002 following major re-development.
‘We Are Delicious’ (formally the ‘Delicious Food Company’) won
the contract. Their current contract expired in April 2012, though
an extension of lease has been mutually agreed until January
2013 whilst the Council considers options. The operator pays a
concession of 8% pa

e Hove Museum Tearoom was tendered when the Museum re-
opened in 2003 following redevelopment. ‘The ‘Delicious Food
Company’ was awarded the contract and continued to operate
there until November 2007 when the company pulled out of the
contract. At that point, the decision was taken to re-open the
Tearoom as soon as possible using the in-house catering team
based at the Royal Pavilion.

e For functions and hires, Royal Pavilion & Museums use caterers
from an approved list. This approved list is now due for re-
tendering.

e Brighton Dome Festival Ltd ( BDFL) operate a similar system of
approved caterers for functions. A number of caterers on the
BDFL approved list are also on the RPM Approved list.

e BDFL run the bar service in-house and since February 2011
have been opening the foyer bar during the day offering a
selection of teas, coffees and cakes. The doors between
Brighton Museum and the Dome are open, giving Museum
customers the opportunity to use the café and encouraging café
customers to visit the Museum

Current Catering Business Performance

The table below sets out sales net of VAT and overall net income
achieved after costs since 2008/9.

Key points from the table are:

Losses at Hove Museum in 2008/9 are partly accounted for by initial
set up costs of the in-house operation. However, it has since
continued to operate at a loss.

The Royal Pavilion had begun to return a marginal profit although this
diminished in 2011/12 with increases in staffing and goods for resale
costs.

60



3.2.5 Concession income from the Gallery Café and Functions catering has

increased marginally.

Overall, it is clear that the return from the catering business is poor.
(See appendix 1 for break down of visitor numbers and tea room
users). This is particularly challenging because catering services in
almost all heritage environments are there to generate income. In
Brighton & Hove at the moment, catering actually adds a budget
pressure for the organisation with the losses offset by the
improvements in admissions income.

2009/10
2008/09 2010/11 2011/12
NET NET NET NET
INCOME INCOME INCOME INCOME
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Royal
Pavilion
Tea Room -14 4 8 -11
Hove Museum
Tea Room -47 -9 -24 -21
Gallery Café
Brighton
(commission) 7 7 11 13
Functions
catering
(commission) 3 3 5 3
total income -51 5 0 -16
Net income
target 43 51 37 39
profit /loss -94 -46 -37 -55

3.2.6 RPM is responsible for all maintenance and replacement of equipment,

3.3
3.3.1

as well as energy costs, of the in-house operations and existing
contracts for Brighton Gallery Café and functions. This represents a
considerable financial outlay because equipment in all the kitchens is
out-dated and limited budgets are available for emergency repairs and
replacement. There are no budgets for planned renewals and
investment. Emergency replacement costs totalled £4,000 in 2010/11
and £5,000 in 2011/12.

2011 Catering Review

In September 2011, with funding from the national body Museums
Libraries & Archives Council (MLA) under a programme called
Renaissance in the Regions and the institutional transformation
strand, and as part of RPM and BDFL’s on-going partnership work,
RPM embarked on a joint catering review with BDFL and appointed a
consultant for that purpose. This was the first time the combined
catering strands at RPM have been strategically reviewed. The terms
of reference were:

e Assess current offer, facilities and performance

61



3.3.2

3.3.3

3.4
3.4.1

3.4.2

e Research and analyse the current food and drinks market in
Brighton and Hove to help identify trends, target customer
groups and competitors etc

e Generate and assess options for future catering provision to
generate the best model for future operations (e.g. joint venture,
independent models, in-house versus outsourcing models, etc)

e Develop a business case for the preferred model indicating
levels of investment required and the return on that investment

After a competitive tender, the consultancy contract was awarded to
Turpin Smale. Their recent clients have included The Natural History
Museum, The Museum of London and Historic Royal Palaces, The
Royal Society for the Arts, Birmingham Rep and Birmingham City
Council on a joint redevelopment, Fulham Palace and the Royal
Albert Hall.

The review for BDFL & RPM was completed in December 2011. The
report is commercially sensitive containing financial information
relating to BDFL. A copy of the Final Review can be made available
to Members on request. Key findings and recommendations relating
to RPM are outlined below.

Key Findings and Recommendations

The review found that the Royal Pavilion catering income falls well
below the industry norms for visitor attractions, achieving in 2010/11 a
spend per visitor of 54p. A major visitor attraction should expect in the
region of £1. Part of the reason for this serious underperformance
relates directly to the constraints of the building - the Tearoom is on the
first floor, with no street access allowing for non-visitor custom. It is
also sited in the middle of the visit as opposed to the end of the visit
which, in general, visitors prefer. There is no lift in this part of the
building which means no access to visitors using wheelchairs, for
example.

In view of these serious impediments to generating a reasonable
income, the review recommended exploring the potential of an
additional on-street catering facility in part of the current retail/Visitor
Information Centre (VIC) space. This would require an investment of
approximately £85-100k to improve visibility and access for everyone,
including those visitors who use wheelchairs, for example. This
opportunity fits with Council budget papers from December 2011 that
indicated that the Visitor Information Service will be altered in the
budget year 2013/14 and re-provided to meet visitor needs at a lower
cost to the authority. This will allow for the vacation of the existing
premises and permit alternative uses relating to catering. While the
options and work on the visitor information service is ongoing it is not
expected that changes will be implemented until autumn 2013. The
work on re-providing the visitor information service is on schedule, with
options being developed, informal staff and partner discussions are
also taking place’

62



3.4.3 At Hove Museum, sales have dropped since the catering has been
taken in-house, partly due to falling visitor numbers which have now
been reversed. However, the review acknowledged that it is difficult
to make a café profitable, with a low level of sales and an associated
labour cost nearly as high as the sales. In view of this, the review
noted that it is not surprising that a £24k loss was recorded in
2010/11. However, the Museum has a strong children’s programme
which could be used to drive additional business in the café, and the
review suggested extending into another room within the building
and/or developing external decking and a play area to build the
market. Investment required would be in the region of £50k.

3.4.3 At the Brighton Museum Gallery Café, the review was complimentary
about the current offer. However, it felt that sales were constrained
by the seating capacity of the café. It recommended investment in a
kiosk offer in Brighton Museum foyer. Investment required would be
in the region of £20k.

3.4.4 In terms of functions, the review found that, even allowing for the
competitiveness of the Brighton market, the level of catering
concession income generated from external caterers was low at 8%
of catering profit per event, compared to an industry norm of 10%. It
recommended consideration should be given to a closer working
relationship with BDFL on the marketing, sales and packaging of the
rooms across the Royal Pavilion estate for mutual benefit. It also
recommended that caterers licensed to work on the estate should be
required to introduce a certain amount of business in terms of room
hire from their own sales contacts as part of their terms of contract.

3.4.5 The report set out a series of operational proposals in three broad
stages:

¢ Immediate: can be implemented quickly with relatively small
additional cost, but should have a positive impact on sales/
profitability; work has already begun to address some of these
issues, particularly around the review of menu options and
signage within buildings;

e Medium-term: will involve some significant changes to facilities
and services, with some expenditure;

e Long-term: involving major changes to spaces, facilities and
services, with substantial expenditure

Both the medium and long-term recommendations require significant
investment and whilst two areas of the business continue to be
operated in-house, the return on investment would be limited, as laid
out in Item 6 - Evaluation and Options Appraisal below.

3.4.6 The key recommendation of the report is that RPM & BDFL look at
jointly tendering all of the day-to-day and functions catering to achieve
maximum economies of scale, maximum income and to secure a
contractor who is willing to invest in the business. It is advised that the

63



3.5
3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

tender should be structured so that organisations can tender for all of
the business, for individual outlets or for groups of outlets. Only when
the tenders are received would it be possible to select the tender(s)
that best meet the long-term requirements of organisations and their
visitors, guests and customers. The evaluation would take account of
both the financial and qualitative factors that make up a successful
catering business. The new contract would run for 5 years with an
option to extend for up to two years.

Other Considerations

RPM has four staff on permanent contracts, who would be subject to
TUPE arrangements. There are limited career opportunities at present
for catering staff within the museum/council organisations. The benefits
of working for a specialist catering contractor would include broader
training and development and improved opportunity for career
progression.

Virtually no large museum services or historic attractions run in-house
catering businesses, as they are difficult to operate effectively and can
involve a lot of special arrangements. Most comparator services have
found their strengths to be a focus on their core activities and
harnessing external expertise to drive the catering specialism. To
meet the demand for catering within the sector, a considerable number
of specialist catering contractors have grown over the past decade.

The main advantage of such an approach is that the financial and
qualitative outcomes are more predictable without the host
organisation having to employ specialists or becoming involved in the
very time consuming minutiae of catering. A specialist contractor has
the advantage of improved buying power, sector knowledge, the ability
to attract skilled expertise, access to investment funding and
commercial drive to improve the profitability.

The exceptions to museums and historic houses outsourcing tend to
be when the business is too small and cannot be made profitable to a
contract caterer, or if it is a very large organisation and can support a
good in-house management/support structure to operate it effectively.
One of the few examples of this is the Tate, but their catering operation
is on a much bigger scale than will ever be required in Brighton &
Hove.

As both BDFL and RPM management teams lack specialist catering
knowledge and experience in a complex tender for visitor attraction/
venue market, it is recommended that Turpin Smale be utilised again.
They are now familiar with both organisations’ operational needs,
alongside corporate procurement and legal services, and will help to
ensure that all issues around joint tendering/contracting (if deemed
appropriate), structure of tender, selection criteria, Key Performance
Indicators and monitoring procedures are effectively addressed.
Although this will cost a certain sum, it is very likely that this will be
recouped from the resulting contract or contracts that will be secured.

64



3.54

3.5.5

3.5.6

5.1

If the Committee agrees to these proposals, the proposed timetable for
tendering and appointment of contractors is as follows

Briefing/Strategy/Evaluation Criteria June
Advertisement July
Pre-qualification questionnaires returned July
Select Contractors July
Finalise Tender Documents July
Invitation to Tender issued August
Tenderers’ Briefing & Walk Round August
Tender Return Deadline October
Initial Evaluation Report October
Presentation by Leading Bidders October
Contract Award November
Services commence January

Both Brighton & Hove City Council’s RPM and BDFL are committed to
supporting the local economy and sourcing products from local
suppliers and this commitment would be reflected in tender
documentation.

Tenders will be considered from any form of bidding arrangement
including - a social enterprise, a community interest company or a co-
operative. Independent support can be made available should staff
wish to bid as a social enterprise. The out come of the tender process
will be brought to a future Policy and Resources Committee for
agreement.

CONSULTATION

Discussions have begun with Trade Unions and the four members of
permanent contracted staff working at the Royal Pavilion and Hove
Museum regarding the likelihood of TUPE transfers. The Trade
Unions and individual staff will continue to be consulted and kept
informed throughout the tendering process.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:
Financial Implications:

The 2012/13 budgets for these services amount to a target net surplus
of £43k. However, there is an on-going forecast pressure of £55k
should services remain unchanged from 2011/12, as detailed in
paragraph 3.2.1

Based on the findings of Turpin Smale, it is estimated that by tendering
the catering services, a net surplus of £69k to £190k per annum could
be generated depending on whether the tender exercise was B&HCC

65



5.2

alone or jointly with BDFL. Compared to the current target budget of
£43k surplus, this would provide an additional £26k to £147k pa. An
increase in room hire income as a result of improved catering provision
is also expected, amounting to approximately £39k per annum. The
figures are based on a full year effect of the proposals and may require
the relocation of the Visitor Information Centre.

Assuming these proposals were implemented with effect from January
2013, it is estimated that after allowing for initial costs, there would be a
reduced pressure of approximately £20k in 2012/13 which would be
managed within existing resources. With effect from 2013/14, it is
estimated there would be a net surplus in excess of £26k, depending
on the outcome of the tender process. This would enable the service to
reduce the pressure for 2012/13 and ensure it makes a net contribution
to service costs in future years.

The re-location of the VIC is already included in the budget strategy for
2013/14 and would be dealt with as a separate issue.

Finance Officer Consulted: Michelle Herrington date: 8.6.12

Legal Implications:

Depending upon how the offer is structured, the tender will be for the
provision of catering services or for the granting of catering
concessions or a mixture of both. Catering services are categorised as
Part B services for the purposes of the Public Contracts Regulations
2006 and are not therefore subject to the full rigours of the procedural
requirements contained in those regulations. Service concessions are
exempt from the regulations. However, in both cases the Council must
adhere to EU treaty principles of equal treatment and transparency in
tendering and contracting.

TUPE will apply to some members of staff and the procurement
timetable and process will need to allow for appropriate consultation.

Lawyer consulted: Sonia Likhari date: 21.5 2012

Equalities Implications:

5.3In framing the specification, care must be taken to ensure that

adequate provision is made for special dietary needs related to health
and to ideological or religious observance. The terms of the contract
tendering process will require potential service providers to
demonstrate that they have policies in place to ensure that staff and
customers are treated in such a way as to support their rights in
equalities legislation.

The option of providing a second catering outlet in the Royal Pavilion
on the ground floor with street access will significantly improve
accessibility for visitors. The current first floor tearoom is inaccessible
for visitors with mobility difficulties.

66



54

9.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

Sustainability Implications:

Commercial services at RPM exist to generate income in order to

contribute towards the costs of the provision of core services. If the

current catering provision for RPM is not addressed to enable it to

generate more income and overcome its losses, the service to the

public is placed at risk.

Sustainability issues will be addressed in the Pre Qualification
Questionnaire and service specification documents. The specification
and evaluation criteria will include reference to local and sustainable

sourcing including food miles, food provenance and the use of
seasonal ingredients and food produced using sustainable practices.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

None

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications:

Failure to address current catering provision will jeopardise the
service’s ability to meet income targets and efficiency savings.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

The Royal Pavilion & Museums play a vital role in the cultural, learning
and economic life of the city, and its visitor offer. Commercial income is
essential to the business case for running these services.

EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

An options appraisal was conducted as part of the Catering Review

Options Financial Summary

Option 1 Option 2 Option3a  Option3b | Option 4
RPM RPM
Outsource  Outsource
alone-no alone with
street street
As now with As now access access
operational with Pavilion Pavilion Outsource
improvements | investment | tearoom tearoom with BDFL
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Current achievement to
income target -55 -55 -55 -55 -55
Income improvement 12 48 69 110 190
Investment payback 0 32 0 0 0
Achievement to target -43 -39 14 55 135

Option 1: Continue as now with operational improvements
The current mix of in-house and contracted arrangements for RPM
could continue as is. The catering review set out a number of short-
term operational proposals for the in-house catering, such as menu
changes, overhaul of kitchen and storage areas and extending café’s

67




6.4

6.5

seating into a second space at Hove Museum. The business model
predicts £12k increase in income on current levels as a result of these.
For 2011/12 combined catering made a net £16K loss although the
budget target was a £39k profit, the result to the service is a £55k
income pressure. A £12k increase in profitability would not mean that
catering achieves its income target. It would only reduce the income
target pressure to £43k.

Option 2: Continue as now with operational improvements and
investment

The current mix of in-house and contracted arrangements for RPM
could continue as is with investment to allow for potential for business
growth. The existing Royal Pavilion Tearoom looks ‘tired’ and would
benefit from a new counter and furniture. The possible move of the VIC
provides opportunity of development of catering offer with street access
in part of the existing Pavilion retail space. Hove Museum & Art
Gallery would benefit in investment in a decked outdoor seating area
and improved counter display. Brighton Museum & Art Gallery also
presents opportunity for a foyer kiosk offer. Total investment required
is estimated at £160-£175k, however, the expected improvement in
income in the year following such investment would be £48K above
current levels.

For 2011/12, combined catering made a net £16k loss although the
budget target was a £39k profit, the result to the service is a £55k
income pressure. A £48k increase in profitability would result in
achieving £7k loss against target. A capital investment of £160-£175k
paid back over 5 years would be approximately £32-35k a year at the
lower level pushing the business further into net loss of in excess of
£32k pa. This does not make financial sense for an operation which is
supposed to generate income for the service.

Option 3: RPM outsourcing alone

3a As the Brighton Museum Gallery Cafe contract and approved
caterers list are now due for re-tendering, there is an opportunity to
tender all catering functions to maximise possible efficiencies and
economies of scale for potential contractors. Hove Museum Tearoom is
not viable on its own, so would need to be linked to the Royal Pavilion.
As part of a five year contract, the expectation is that a specialist
contractor would aim to improve performance by approximately 20 %.
With combined sales from the Royal Pavilion, Brighton Museum,
Functions and Hove projected at approximately £690,000 this would be
an attractive package. Even with an expectation on the successful
caterer to commit to investment in Brighton Museum, Hove Museum
and the existing Royal Pavilion tearooms. Based on the current £55k
budget pressure, this would provide the service with an additional £14K
over and above income target and remove the service’s liability for
equipment replacement and catering related energy costs.

3b If the contract was widened to include a new Tearoom with street
access at the Pavilion, whilst there is a good business case for the
investment, the number of caterers able to tender with the level of
investment would be more limited. As part of a five year contract, with

68



the new outlet as well as existing outlets the level of business could be
in the region of £1.1million. The expected commission would be 10%
i.e. £110k. Based on the current £55k budget pressure, this would
provide the service with an additional £55k over and above income
target and remove the service’s liability for equipment replacement and
catering related energy costs.

6.6 Option 4: RPM outsourcing with BDFL
The size of this business opportunity will attract caterers with the ability
to invest in capital improvements, including the recommendation for a
new Tearoom with a street entrance in the Pavilion Shop/VIC space.
The scale of business would amount to in excess of £3million pa
across all sites and as such BDFL and RPM could expect a concession
in the region of 17-18%. Even with investment required for the Royal
Pavilion, on this level of business the higher concessions would realise
in the region of £190k pa based on current levels. Based on the
current budget pressure, this would provide an additional £135k of
income over and above the current income target as well as removing
the service’s liability for equipment replacement and catering related
energy costs.

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 Recommendations are made on a financial basis. The Council cannot
continue to underwrite what should be a service generating income to
enable core museum services to operate. Even with investment,
repayment costs would still mean that catering would not achieve
income targets. Tendering the business jointly with the BDFL provides
opportunity to maximise income and encourage much needed
investment into areas of the service that lack investment and are not in
keeping with the quality expected from major museums and heritage

attractions.
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Appendices:
1. Museum Visitors and tea room users

69



70



"UOISSSDUOD D SO UNJ A|LUSIIND SI SIYL SO LUNSSNYY Uoiyblg JO) S|QDJIDAD JOU SI8SN LIOOI0S) JO "ON

L00'¥SC 10.'v22 150°€€T wnasny
uoybug
%EL vE6'vY | 2L6'6VE | %l Z29¢'vy | 09€°ELE | %Gl LEL'LY | £€60°€82 uoljined [eAoy
%LE 60291 80125 | %cE 8€0'tL Zvs'vy | %9¢ 96£'t7L 950'0% wnasnp\ eAoH
% sJosn SJIO}JISIA % slasn SJI0}ISIA % slasn SJIO}ISIA
wooJesa | |elog wooJea | |elo| wooJea | |elo|
ZL/110z L1/01L0Z 01/6002

$19SN WOOIDS] PUD SIOLSIA WN3SNW
| xipuaddy

Z10zZ aunr Buueipd Wd¥ 220ad

71



72



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 9
DEVELOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council
CULTURE COMMITTEE

Subject: Implications of the National Planning Policy
Framework for Decision Making in Planning

Date of Meeting: 21 June 2012

Report of: Strategic Director, Place

Cop’rqc’r Name: Liz Hobden Tel: 29-2504

Officer:

Email: Liz.hobden@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 The Government published the National Planning Policy
Framework on 27 March 2012 which replaces previous national
guidance. This report identifies the implications of this on the policies in
the Brighton & Hove Local Plan, East Sussex and Brighton & Hove Waste
Local Plan and East Sussex and Brighton & Hove Minerals Local Plan in
determining planning applications.

2, RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1  That the Committee notes the implications of the National
Planning Policy Framework on the Brighton & Hove Local Plan, Waste
Local Plan, Minerals Local Plan and for the emerging City Plan Part 1.

2.2 That the Committee agrees the policies in the adopted Plans, as
assessed against the NPPF in the tables set out in Appendices 2, 3 and
4 to this report, should continue to be given weight as material
planning considerations in decision making under the planning Acts
until such policies are superseded by emerging and adopted policies
in the City Plan and Waste & Minerals Plan.

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

73




3.1 The Government has undertaken a review of national planning
policy guidance as a key part of its reforms to make the planning
system less complex, more accessible, and to promote
sustainable growth. The National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) is intended to replace, shorten and consolidate all
Planning Policy Statements/Guidance (excluding those relating
to Waste and some Mineral guidance), two Planning Circulars
and a number of Letters to Chief Planning Officers. It
consolidates over 1,000 pages of national planning policy
guidance into one 59 page document.

3.2  The Draft NPPF was published in July 2011. The response from the
city council supported the aims of the Government to
consolidate national planning policy guidance and to promote
economic growth and additional homes. However, there were a
number of significant concerns raised including the references to
sustainable development which appeared to place an
emphasis on economic factors over environment and social
factors. Additionally, there was a lack of detail on certain policy
areas, no fransitional arrangements and concerns were raised
that the draft NPPF would be contrary to the stated aims of
localism.

3.3 The final version of the NPPF was published on 27 March 2012. The
government responded to comments made by the city council
and other consultees. The main changes to the document include:
e a more balanced definition of sustainable development
e transitional arrangements for Local Plans
e encouraging the development of brownfield sites first.

e confirmed that Neighbourhood Plans need to comply with
policies in city wide planning documents.

See appendix 1 for a key points summary of National Planning

Policy Framework.

3.4 The NPPF came into effect immediately and therefore the majority
of the previous national planning policy and guidance has now
been superseded, though some supporting guidance remains in
place. As aresult, the NPPF replaces former national policy in
determining planning applications and in plan making and will be
cited in the reasoning for planning conditions and in some cases
the refusal of applications.

3.5 All planning policy documents are required to comply with the
policies and guidance set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework. In terms of Brighton & Hove, changes to national
policy have already led to a number of amendments to the City

74



Plan Part 1 which was agreed for consultation at Cabinet on 10
May.

Status of the Brighton & Hove Local Plan

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Annex 1 of the NPPF provides guidance on implementation of the
NPPF. Paragraph 214 of annex 1 allows decision-takers to continue,
for a period of 12 months from the publication of the NPPF, to give
full weight to relevant policies adopted since 2004 where the
development plan was prepared and adopted in accordance
with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. Whilst the
Brighton & Hove Local Plan was adopted in 2005 it was prepared
and adopted in accordance with the Town and Country Act 1990.

For this reason the ‘saved’ policies in the Local Plan must be
considered in terms of their consistency with policies in the NPPF as
required by paragraph 215 of the NPPF. Therefore the closer the
policies in the Local Plan are to the policies in the NPPF, the greater
weight they may be given. Where there is inconsistency between
the NPPF and the saved policies in the adopted Local Plan, the
NPPF attracts greater weight.

To meet these requirements Officers have undertaken a
consistency assessment of the saved policies against the NPPF and
this is set out in the table in Appendix 2. The table demonstrates
that the majority of policies in the Local Plan will continue to carry
significant weight. It is recommended that this table is used to
inform planning decisions until the Local Plan is replaced by
policies in the City Plan parts 1T and 2.

In addition, the NPPF allows weight to be given to emerging plans,
such as the City Plan, with greater weight being accorded as such
plans progress towards adoption, Emerging plans will also attract
greater weight the greater the degree of consistency between
the plan and the NPPF. The City Plan may be given full weight
once adopted.

Status of the East Sussex and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Local
Plans

3.10 The Waste Local Plan was adopted in 2006, but was also

prepared and adopted in accordance with the Town and Country
Act 1990. The Minerals Local Plan was adopted in 1999. The ‘saved’
policies in both Plans must therefore also be considered in terms of
their consistency with policies in the NPPF as required by paragraph
215 of the NPPF.

75



3.11 Consistency assessments of the saved policies in these Plans
against the NPPF are set out in Appendices 3 and 4. The tables
demonstrate that the majority of policies in the Waste and Minerals
Plans will continue to carry significant weight. It is recommended
that these tables are used to inform planning decisions until the
Plans are replaced by policies in the new Waste & Minerals Plan.

4, COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

4.1 Consultation has not been undertaken in relation to this report.

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

5.1  Any costs associated with this report have been met from within
existing Planning Strategy & Projects revenue budgets, and
consist mainly of officer time.

Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date:
17/05/2012

Legal Implications:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
provides, in relation to a determination, that where the various
planning Acts require that regard is to be had to the
development plan that determination must be made in
accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. As regards the determination
of planning applications s70 (2) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 provides that the planning authority must have
regard to the development plan, so far as material to the
application, and to any other material considerations.

The policies in the NPPF are material considerations which the
Council, as local planning authority, must take into account in
relevant determinations as from the date of the publication of
the NPPF. That being so, and as pointed out in the body of the
Report, the weight to be given to policies in the Brighton and
Hove Local Plan depends on their degree of consistency with the
NPPF, and also in relation to the weight that can be accorded to
emerging policies in the City Plan as it progresses towards
adoption.

76



It is not considered that any adverse human rights implications
arise from the report.

5.2

Lawyer Consulted: Name Hilary Woodward  Date:
21/5/2012

Equalities Implications:
Equalities issues are tackled through the planning system. Saved
policies in the Local Plan will continue to carry weight.

5.3

Sustainability Implications

Sustainable development is a golden thread running through the
published NPPF and is central to saved policies in the Local Plan
and the emerging City Plan.

5.4

Crime & Disorder Implications:

5.5 None identified.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

The assessment of Local Plan policies against the NPPF is necessary as
a result of the publication of the NPPF and the transitional
arrangements set out within it. Risk and opportunity
management will be addressed through emerging and future
planning policy documents.

5.6

Public Health Implications:
None. Public health will continue to be addressed through emerging
and future planning policy documents.
5.7

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

. The status of policies in the adopted Local Plan the implications of the
NPPF for emerging and future planning policy documents
(including the infroduction of Neighbourhood Plans) are
significant. It will affect development, regeneration and future
planning decisions in the city.

77



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Key Points Summary of National Planning Policy Framework

2. Table setting out the consistency of policies in the Brighton &
Hove Local Plan with the NPPF

3. Table setting out the consistency of policies in the East Sussex
and Brighton & Hove Waste Local Plan with the NPPF

4, Table setting out the consistency of policies in the East Sussex
and Brighton & Hove Minerals Local Plan with the NPPF

Documents in Members’ Rooms

1. None

Background Documents

1. Brighton & Hove Local Plan

2. National Planning Policy Framework
3. East Sussex and Brighton & Hove Waste Local Plan
4, East Sussex and Brighton & Hove Minerals Local Plan

78



Appendix 1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF, March 27 2012)
Summary

General points

Establishes a more balanced concept of sustainable development. Not
only about economic growth but balanced with seeking improvements
to social and natural environments (see para.7-9, page 3 of NPPF)

A presumption in favour of sustainable development should be the
basis for every plan and planning decision but clarifies where
development should be restricted.

Plan-making:

Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) should positively seek opportunities
to meet the development needs of their area.

Local plans_should meet objectively assessed needs unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the
framework as a whole.

Planning should involve local people in plan-making and be less about
‘scrutiny’ and more about ‘collective enterprise’ with local people and
communities.

Plans should be based on a ‘proportionate evidence base’ — but
requirements are comprehensive and fairly specific.

Plans should be deliverable and based on effective joint working on
cross-boundary strategic priorities.

Duty to Cooperate on cross boundary issues (eg. meeting housing
requirements across housing market areas) now part of ‘soundness’
tests at Examination.

Decision-making:

NPPF does not change statutory status of development plan as starting
point for decision making.

Development/proposals should be approved if in accordance with the
development plan.

Where a plan is absent, silent or out of date, permission should be
granted unless adverse impacts of doing so outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against policies in the framework as a whole.

For 12 months, full weight can be given to policies in local plans
adopted since 2004. After that, due weight will depend upon degree of
consistency with NPPF.

Emerging plans will also have weight according to stage of preparation
— the more advanced the plan , the greater the weight.

Guidance emphasises the important role of pre-application
engagement to resolve issues and improve development outcomes.
Acknowledges that right information is crucial to good decision taking

79



Housing

Local authorities should plan to meet in full their assessed needs for
market and affordable housing, so far as is_consistent with policies set
out in the framework.

They must identify, and update annually, a five year supply of specific
deliverable sites to provide 5 years worth of housing against
requirements with an additional buffer of 5%. Where there is persistent
under-delivery, then buffer should be 20%.

Identify sites or broad locations for growth, for years 6-10 and, where
possible for years 11-15.

Set out a Housing Implementation Strategy to manage housing delivery
over plan period.

Local Authorities should set out their own approach to housing density
to reflect local circumstances.

Plan for a mix of housing based on current and future demographic
trends, market trends and the housing needs of different community
groups.

Affordable housing policies should be sufficiently flexible to take
account of changing market conditions over time.

Encourages the effective use of previously developed land (brownfield
sites) but is not a ‘brownfield first’ policy.

Allow changes of use from B uses to residential if there is a need in
area and provided no strong economic reasons why any such
development would be inappropriate.

Economy

LPA should be pro-active in driving forward sustainable economic
development and set out a clear economic vision and strategy for their
area.

Set criteria or identify strategic sites to meet anticipated needs over
plan period

Avoid long term protection of employment sites where there is no
reasonable prospect of a site being used for that purposes.

Promote mixed use development

Strengthens the 'town centre first' policy and now includes offices as a
town centre use

LPAs to allocate sites to meet retail, leisure, office, commercial, cultural
and community needs in town centres.

Identify priority areas for economic regeneration

Transport

Strong focus on sustainable transport.

Patterns of development should support and facilitate the use of
sustainable modes of transport.

Work with neighbouring authorities to ensure sustainable travel and
transport infrastructure (ties in with Duty to Co-operate approach)

80



Promote mixed use development on large scale residential sites to
encourage day-to-day activities on the one site by providing key
facilities such as schools, employment and local shops.

Plans should promote the sustainable movement of goods and people.
Strong emphasis on infrastructure e.g. electric vehicle charging points
Defines the factors that will need to be taken into account when setting
local parking standards for residential and non-residential
development.

Countryside, Open Space and Natural Environment

Recognises the ‘intrinsic character and beauty’ of the countryside but
no longer requires the ‘protection of the countryside for all’.

Existing open space, sports and recreational buildings and land should
not be built on unless surplus to requirements; to be replaced or for
alternative recreational provision where need outweighs the loss.
Plans should set out a strategic approach for the creation, protection
and enhancement of networks of biodiversity and green infrastructure.
Plan for bio-diversity at a landscape-scale across local authority
boundaries and map local ecological networks reflecting a hierarchy of
designations and areas for habitat creation/ restoration.

Introduces Local Green Space and Nature Improvement Area
designations.

Heritage and design

A better_balance between local context and innovation in design
Prominence given to heritage assets as an irreplaceable resource
Acknowledges the contribution that design makes to sustainable
communities

Emphasis on finding viable new uses for vacant or neglected heritage
assets

Where proposals would lead to some harm to a heritage asset, then
harm to be weighed against public benefits of the proposal, including
securing its optimum viable use.

Sustainability

Supports the move towards a low carbon future

Plans to identify development areas or sites which can deliver
enhanced levels of renewables and energy infrastructure

Adopt nationally described standards for buildings sustainability.

Food production is recognised as one of the multiple benefits of mixed
use development.

Evidence should be gathered which assesses the needs of the food
production industry and planning should attempt to address any
barriers to investment.

Travellers (separate new National Policy Guidance)

LPAs to assess the accommodation needs for both permanent and
transit site provision over the lifespan of the plan.

81



¢ Requirement to identify a five year supply of sites to meet identified
needs and also to identify sites to meet needs over the first 10 years of
the plan.

82



z10z Aow l IoUNOD A{ID SAOH puD uoybug

ssaIppPL AjPALISOd O} 3885 ADlj0od ay] — juajsisuod A|pipnd | AHjIQIsse220 podsunl) 21gnd Mo JO spaUD Ul JuswdoiaAad Al
"4ddN 98U} UHm JO1juoD jou op Adjjod
Byl uI pasipl sanssl ayi ‘eidiouud ul ‘pios 1py] "Adlod sy
0} UBAIB ©q Abwi JybBlam paliwi ‘©2uasqpo S}l Ul ‘pup paonpold
uS8Q JoU SOy Syl "A}ID 8y} JO spd JUBIalIP JO ALIQISSODOD
oy} BulAjuapl juswnoop Buluupb|d Aiojuswalddns

D O} sI9jal X8} Bulioddns ay] — jualsisuod A|piund pBuppod pup AIGISS&2D LIodsupl) D1|IgNd il

Juajsisuod Ajng |©ADI} JO} PUDWSP 8y} pUp JuswdoleAaq Lyl

Adlj0d

uoid

4ddN 3y} ypm Adusjsisuod Sl Adljod |  |PO0O]

podsuDni} pub asn pub| U9aM}aq Uojoauuod ayj Buppw — [ Jojdoy)

"1ddN 9Ul YlIM ADUSJSISUOD 10]
POSSOSSD USSQ JOoU SADY saloljod asay]| ‘pala|dwod usaq soy byl luswdoaAsp d110ads alls O a1p|al
$o12110d UNOJ ‘UOCIIPPL U] "800 Ul 8401S JO AIDlal1d8S 8yl AQ PBADS JOU 81aM saldljod ub|d [0D07 SUIN

‘PapNoUl

SI SMBIA §,|IDUNOD AlID 8yl JO UolbuD|dXa Jalg © ‘JUSISISUOD AjjN) 89 Jou ADW S8IDIj0d SIoUM “LUSISISUOD
JoU 8o oY) seioljod BUIMOYS pal pPUD Passasso Usad Jou ALY oyl saloljod Bullooipul Jo jondwl
[DJINBU O BUIMOYS 300|g ‘ADUB]SISUOD [oInd JO [N} BulloDIpUl UsalB YlIM ‘Pap0D IN0J0D S 8|go] ay]

‘suolp2lddo Buluup|d BululuIBIBR Ul WYL SN ||IM [IDUN0D AllD 8yl MOy 8102dIpul
puD saIoljod 8y} JO ADUBISISUOD 8Y] SSUDWILINS MO $O|dPL 8Yl “4ddN DYl YLIM JUBISISUOD a0 Asy]
layleym auluuialap 0f saldljod ubid [0207 9A0H PUD Uolyblg [PaADS, 8yl PamalAal sy [IounoD AllD

aUL "(4ddN) 3Homawoid Adljod Buiuubld [DUOHON S Paysiand JUSWUISA0D aU} Z10Z Y2IOW UL/Z UO

JUSWISSaSSD AHIqOdUWIOD JIOMaWIbI] AJI[O4 BUIUUD|J [DUOCHDN — UD|d [DO0] 9AOH pPuD uojyblg

Z Xipuaddy

83



210z Aow

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

judjsisuod Ajn4 3iod AlO| JYBIUIBAO puUD Yo0n0D Wid} Buol L2yl

judjsisuod Ajn4 Bupod yoooD ozl
"SPIOPUDLS
Buppod Bulolp Ul UOIDISPISUOD I0) SI0LO0) N0 518S 4ddN
Byl JO 4¢ ydoiboiond spaopunis bupond ay) 10 Adljjod ayy
Ul Pa108|}8l JOU 31D S8|DIYSA UOISSILS YbBiy JO UOIDISPISUOD
PUD S|9A9| dIYSIOUMO DD |0DO] ‘suoldo podsupiy o11gnd Jo
AIIgPRIIOAY AHIQISS©D2D JO JUNODDD PB}IWI| 840} PUD PaJOP

210 SPIPPUD]S Bupupd pajdopb ay] — Juajsisuod Ajpiund SpJppuUDLS Buppd 6131
"AHIQISS©22D JO ssojpIobal Jybnos
80 P|NOM UOISIAOID BUWOS &2Uls joadsal Jby) ul wsajgold o
2q o} A|9¥1| 559 SI SalIqSIP Yim ajdoad 10} uoIsinoid Buind
"SpJoPUBS Bupod Japim 8y} Jnogp sUledU0D JUpDLIUBIS
104 61341 ©8S "4ddN SUL YHM Ajin} SpIodoD siy] “juswdoloasp
D 0} $$9200 8y} 0} 8500 sallIgqpsIP Yim ajdoad 1o} seonds

Buppod apinoid 0} $398s ADII0d By] — Juajsisuod Ajpiund ALIQoSIP pajplal Aljigqow o yim ajdoad 1o} Buyind IR

jusjsisuod Ajjng Ajligowdoys L1Yl

Juajsisuod Ajnyg todep jybiay} |11 [OUSIOd bAR 11

judjsisuod Ajn4 NIOMIBU B|DAD Syl

judjsisuod Ajn4 Buppod pup $s8220 8|0AD Lyl

Juajsisuod Ajn4 NIOM}BU UDLIISOPad ISR

Juajsisuod Ajn4 ualp|iyd JO JuswsAOW Juspuadapul oy buldieH AR T

Juajsisuod Ajn4 SOU0Z A}8JDS |O0OYDS PUD |O0YDS O} S81N0J 940S LLYL

Juajsisuod Ajn4 Buiw|nD D10I] YR

Jusjsisuod Ajn4 soynoJ Ajuoud upLysapad 6yl

Juajsisuod Ajn4 S9JN0J UDLYSOPad 8yl

judjsisuod Ajn4 Juswdol|oasp aps 241

Juajsisuod Ajnyg SPIY PUDL IO il

Juajsisuod Ajng4 sanoJ Ajuoud sng pup SIOPLIOD pOdsUDIy 9|gpuUIDiSNS Gyl

Juajsisuod Ajn4 SUD|d |oADI] il

"20UdpPIAS Bulioddns JO YO0 8y} USAID

Adjjod 8y} 0} PapPIoodD 89 AW JyBlom pajiul ing ‘4ddN
9y} Yim JD1Ju0od ou sl alayy ‘ejdiouud u| "uoljpjuswaidudl

Ul SaI}NDIIP SWOS sjuasald JUswIssasso ALlIQISSODD0

[[OJOAO JO JUBWISSISSO UL JO 320| 8Y} ‘4ddN 94} YHM SPI0DD0
SIYL ISIIUM  "SBIIS 8]QISS8DID $$8| UO HOdSUDI) 9|qouInisns

84



z10z Aow IoUNOD A{ID SAOH puD uoybug
21j10ads SAIB JOU SO0P 4ddN YL — Juajsisuod Ajplauas $92UDISgNSs SNOPIDZOH zZLns
juajsisuod Ajndg sBuIp(INg puUL PUB| Pa}N||I0d LLNS
Juajsisuod Ajng 92UDSINU SSION oLns
Juajsisuod Ajn4 |OJJUOD ©2UDSINU PUD UOKN||Od 6NS
juajsisuod Ajndg pup| 8|gpisun 8Nns
"1SDOD
2y} Buojp pub 0} $s8200 2l|Ignd poddns pupo AjlgouInisNsS
‘1SD0OD By} JO J8}onInYD pub ubisep ‘uoljosiold Jo Aopnbapo
PUD A}B}0S $SOIPPL Ylog pup Uubljo Aj9soD 4ddN dUit
pup /NS Adljod Ag pasipi sansst 8yl “dpw S|psodold upid 0207
BY} UO UMOUS Sl BUO7 [DISDOD 8y} NG ‘UD|d Juswabpubw
abupyD PISLOD OU SPY [IDUNOD BY] — JUajsIsuod Ajplauas BUOZ |DJSDOD By} UIylim Juswdoaaaq NS
"1ddN @Y} YHM SpIoDDD AjIniauab
A2oljod ay} ‘unid juswaboupy 8buby) [PISPOD pajdopo
up BUIADY JOU SA0OH puUD uolybug ajidseq paboupwl
aq [|IM S9DUBBP [PISLOD MOY LNo Bullias up|d Juswasboubu
BUIBIOYS D SOY [IDUNOD 8y] “juswabounw S} pup abupyd
[DISDOD UO AJIADSBY S9SND0) 4ddN SYJ — Jujsisuod Ajplauas $SO2UBJBP |PISLOD 9ns
Juajsisuod Ajn4 2INLONIISDIUI [0SOdSIP 960MBS |NO} PUD JSIOM 8DDHNS sNns
‘'sowlibal |0J4u0D uoln|od
JBY10 JO uoipINIdNp ‘©214001d PIOPUDLS APDSIID SI SO ‘PIOAD
PINOYs sa101jod {oy} s8404s 4ddN YL "800T Ul jUSUISSSSSY
31y POOI4 2163810 D PaONPOId |IDUNOD BY] — JudisIsuod Ajnd 3SU POOJ} PUD JJO-UNJ JSIOM 9DDLING NS
‘sowlibal |0J4u0D uoln|od
JBY10 JO uopINIdNp ‘©214001d PIDPUDLS APDSIID SI SO ‘PIOAD
pPINOYS sa101jod oy} $8101S 4ddN YL — JUaisisuod Ajjpiauss AJIOND JIBY} PUD $82IN0SBI JSJOM ens
s|oUapW
JualsIsuod Ajng | pup Jajom ‘ABisus Jo asn ay} Ul jJuswdoeAsp JO Aduaiog Zns
pPaADS jou Adjj0d HUBWISSaSSD 1opduwll [DJUSWUOIIAUT LNS
Adj0d
uojid
4ddN 3y} yim Adusjsisuod Sl Adljod |  |POO]

SJSDM pup uonnjod "19jpm 'AbJau] - g 19jdbyD)

85



210z Aow

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

"SIDIIJUO0D ©dDISUMOL BID 818y} SI8UM UDAS ‘SPIOPUDIS
Alllgouinisns pupo ubisap ybiy jo sbuipjing Buljjoddns ul
ADUBSISUODUI BUOS $8SIDJ 4ddN dUl 1O G9 ydoiboind "AllLuspl
PUD J8}20IDYD [0D0] O} puodsal O} JuswdoASp 10} pasdu
2y} pup Buluup|d pooyinogybiau P20 Jo Aydosojiyd 4ddN

BY} YHM JUBISISUOD AJJOYM SI 2D ADIIOd — judisisuod A|piauas spooyinoqybiau 1o} sajdiouud Aay — ubisag rda]o)
JUjsIsuod Ajng slUaWaplsS UBISep puD Juswdo|dAap JO Aljonb — ubisag Lad

Adlj0d

uojid

4ddN 3y} yim Adusjsisuod Sl Adljod |  |PO0O]

JUSWIJO[SASP JO AJIIDND 94} pPUD AJaJbs "ubisaq — ¢ Jojdpy)

Juajsisuod Ajng

ABJaus a|qoMmaual JO UoI1DONPOId

LNS

"'suolpbIqo
PUD SUOIIPUOD UO 82UbpINB 4ddN O} Py 89 pjnoys pionbal
‘JuswdoleAsap D JO ppd SO 8INLONISDIIUL BUSSS 8I9UM

‘Aoljod oy} oddns |jIim

SPOBU BINLONULSDIUI S, ALD Y} JO JUBWISSESSD a1pp Of dn pup
IDBID VY "WBYL SPIOMO} UOIINQUIUOD D O 8INIONILSOIJUL JIO/PUD
SODIAIBS JO UOISIAOID By] salinbal G| NS ADIj0d "Alpssaoau
9IBUM JUBWAOIDASPD MBU O} UOID|a1 Ul 8IN}DNIISDIUl

aplnoid o) pasu ayi sppoddns 4ddN 9y — 1uajsisuod Ajjpiauss

2INDNIISOIU|

sLnsS

JuUjsIsuod Ajng

JuswieBoUDW B1SOM

yLNS

"800¢
suolp|NBayY SUD|d JuswabpUD B1SOM BlIS 8y} sajpoldnp
A2lj0d 8y} ‘sjuswidol|oAsp 1aBID| 104 A|9AILDB}}8 S82IN0Ssa

BUISN PUD B}SOM JO UOLIDSILUIUILI YLM JUBLSISUOD S| € NS ADI|0d
"OISOM UO B4} SUIDIUOD 4ddN YL — Juajsisuod Ajplauas

SISOM AJISNPUI UOIIDNIISUOD JO ©SN-8J PUD UOILDSILUIUIN

eLns

‘sowlibal [0J4U0D

uolnjod J1aylo jo uolpoldnp ‘©214o0Id pIoPUDLS APDaIID

SI SO ‘PIOAD PINOYS $a101|0d 1Py} $81DJS 4ddN Yl “Ajjpoiousb
aJow papoddns aip uoln|iod 1o piozoy pliusiod JO saNss!
9y} INQ ‘'$SO2UDISgNS SNOPIDZDY JO 8sN/aB10Ls U0 8ouUppINB

86



z10z Aow IoUNOD A{ID SAOH puD uoybug
Juajsisuod Ajng S|oLB Ysip aj|eios | 22ad
Juajsisuod Ajndg Sjuswiio|ly L2ad
‘'spaau 9o0ds uado ainin} PUD JUSIIND UO UOIDWIOUI 810P
0} dn AQ papoddns aq |IM ADljod ay] — judjsisuod A|piauas 2opds uado upgin 0zad®
"9|04 SIY} Jnogpo oiI0ads Jou si jjasy Aojjod ay ybnoyyo
‘4ddN 9y} AQ 1yBNos ,syIomldu 02180009, By} 810810 0}
Buidiay Ul 8|gpNPA 8Q UDD SADMUDBID) — JUBJSISUOD AJ|pIBuas SADMUBBID 61Ad
Jusjsisuod Ajn4 uoloajo.d saloadsg eLad
Juajsisuod Ajnd | sainioa} UOIIDAISSUOD SINJOU JO UOIIDIBa Ul PUD UOID9]0Id 21ad
Juajsisuod Ajng smolebpay pup seall | 91ab
judjsisuod Ajn4 ubisep adoospun SLad
Juajsisuod Ajn4 SUOI}DJB}|0 PUD SUOISUSIX] y1ado
"1ddN SU} YHM JUBISISUOD SS9 Sl ‘SDDID UOIDAISSUOD SO YdNS
‘SBIO DIIDBdS JO UOISNOXd By} ‘ALBJs DIIgNd pupL AjlUSWD
JO sonssi Aay saljlluapl AD1jod 8y} IS|IYUM — JUSJsIsuod Ajpiauss sBUIPJDOY JUBWBSILIOAPY cLao
Juajsisuod Ajn4 SUBIS pUD SjUBWBSIIBARY | Z1ab
Juajsisuod Ajnyg spulg | LLAD
judjsisuod Ajn4 sjuosydoys oLao
Jusjsisuod Ajn4 sasiuald ssauisng pup sdoys ‘sypy4 Jo dn Buipioog 6add
Juajsisuod Ajn4 sia11nys doys 8ad
Juajsisuod Ajn4 uBbIsep |DJUBWUOIIAUS YBNOoJy} uoljuaAald swu)d £,ad
jJuajsisuod Ajndg 10 J1Ignd 9@d®
Jusjsisuod Ajn4 sebojuol) Joalls — ubisaq sad
"S1DIJU0D
9dDISUMOJ BID 8IBY} IBUYM UBAS ‘SPIDPUDIS ALIQOUIDISNS
pupo ubisep ybiy Jo sbuip|ing Buipoddns ul ADUa}sISUODUI
BWIOS $85I0J 4ddN BYl JO 69 ydoiBoInd “IX8}Ju0d JUOSIY
pup adpospup| ‘@dpPISUMO} Bulpn|Dul juswdo|eAsp JO
IXBJUOD JISPIM Y4 JO JUNODDD saXp} {1yl ubisap Aljonb ybiy
3995 YI0g 4ddN dU} PUD QO ADI|Od — JUajsisuod Ajplauas 1ropdwl o1baypuys — ubisaQ yado
"SIDIJUO0D ©dDISUMO} BID 318y} DI8UM UDASD ‘SPIDPUDIS
Alllgoulnisns pupn ubisap ybiy o sbuip|ing 1o} Joddns
ssaldxa JOU Se0P ‘4ddN dYi aIUn ‘€ ‘SallIsusp pasoaloul JO
aAllIoddns ISjIUMm AHoo0] 8y} 0} ajpudoiddo juswdojeasp Jo
SOILISUBP SABIYDD O} pUD SBUIP|ING 1O PUD| JUDDDA IO [Dl|218p
95N81 0} %885 4ddN Byl PUD £QO ADI|0d — JUdisIsuod Ajpiauas $OJIS JO SN BAILD8}8 PUD JusIdDle — ublisa( €ad

87



210z Aow

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

upb|d 2IN1DNILS UO paspqg som | OH) +tabipt Buisnoy papasiadns
D pPuUL saINBl} €007 UO Paspq sl |OH Pyt UBAIB ‘e21100.d U|

"A|lddNS IDBA SAl} PBlILUSPI UD PUOASQ %S [DUOKIPPD
salinbal MoU 4ddN 9yl ‘pPuocAaq pup pouad IDBA SAl} D JIBAO

sjuswalinbal s, ALD 8y} Josw o} Alddns Buisnoy Jo uoisinoid puisnoy
9Y} 4995 4ddN dUl pup | OH ADI|0d Yiog — Juajsisuod Ajpipnd JO JUBWISIS UD YLIM SBLIS &SN Paxill puD salls BUISNOH LOH
Adjj04
uoid
4ddN 3y} ym Adusjsisuod Sl Ad1j0d IP307

SORIIOD} AJIUNWIWIOD pUD SOy JUS23p D 0} SS900Y — p Jojdpy)

‘Po920.d 0f JuswdojpAsp

Bulgpud PUD SUOIIPUOD LaxI0W Ul s8BUDYD O} UOID|SI

ul ALIgIxal} Buimoys ‘sainspaul jaljal Uolissadal Alnloduis)
pPa}dopn SOY [IDUNOD 8y “1YBNnos aq |Im suoibbliqo yoiym
10} swiIo 10| sisl| Adljod 8yl "4ddN @Uul Jo 0z ydoiboipd
PUD Q1 0Z sUoBINBaY AAST 8INLDNILSDIU| ALUNWIWOD Sy}
AQ palslep usaqg aADY §isd) 858y} JO OM] "S00Z/S0 J0INDIID
1OUNBP MOU By} YlIM 82UDpIODD0 Ul suolobiigo Buluuo|d

10} S1S8) OAl} SBIHUBPI 8ZAD ADI|Od — JUd)sIsU0D Ajplauas suolpblgo Buluuold | 8ZAD
Judjsisuod Ajng AllUSWD JO UOIKD80Id |  Lzabd
juajsisuod Ajnyg Buyybipoold | 92aD
jusjsisuod Ajinj Bulub| [ouseix3 | §2AD

"JUDDBIUBIS 80 0} AjoX|jUNn SI 121U SIy} ‘8211004d Ul
‘PUD , SOBIO JUDpOoduwl, 858y} JO aAlLO80Id Ajplausb SI 4ddN
By} ‘@laymas|3 "4ddN dyl ubyl Jeyun} Buiob so paalediad
8g Apbw JI ‘spalo Juppoduwl, Ul ung a}8|dwod P Jussaidal
10U SO0P $ZAO ISIIUM "SDBID UIDHSD Ul jusuwdooasp
SUOIDDIUNWIWOD8I8} UDJ JOU PINOYS saljlioyino Buluuo|d
[DDO] DY} $8101S 4ddN BUl 1O ¥ ydoibBoind — Juajsisuod JoN | spaip juppodwi Bulposiip snipioddo SUOPIIUNWIWODSI8] | FZdd
"WBYSAS SUOIDDIUNWIUWIODS|S}
9y} 1oJ posduU By} uolsanb Jou PINOYS SaliIoyiND
Buiuup|d [020] 1Y} $8101S 4ddN YL — JudjsISUoD AjpIrauas (joJousb) snipioddo sUCKPDIUNWWOD9I8] | £2AD

88



z10z Aow IoUNOD A{ID SAOH puD uoybug
Buisnoy ainjn} pupo jusuND UO UOILDWIOUI B10P
0} dn AQ papoddns aq |IM ADljod 8y] — juajsisuod A|piauas spoau [pIoads yim aidoad 1o} BuisnoH S1LOH
‘puBWSBP/Spasu
Buisnoy ainin} pupo JUSLND UO UOILDWIOUI 8100
0} dn AQ papoddns aq |IM ADljod ay] — judjsisuod A|piauas (SOWH) uolpdno20 a|dijjnW Ul S9SNOH ¥1OH
Juajsisuod Ajn4 SOWIOY awWiidl| pup BuisNoy 9|qIsseodY | £10OH
‘PUDWSBP/SPaauU BuisNoy 81NN} PUD JUSUND
uO uolbwlojul 8PP 0f dn AgQ papoddns aq |Im Adljod ay]
"'SOAILO8[Q0 4ddN JOPIM ULIM SPIODDD LOdSUDI) PUD SaIHIUSWD
o} Ajlwixoid palinbal ay| “sidoad Jsp|o Jo) Buisnoy jsioroads
JO uoisinoud spoddns Z | OH ADIj0d — Juajsisuod Ajpiauas o|doad Jop|o 10} Buisnoy pabpubw pub palisaleys ZIOH
‘puUBWBP/Spasu
Buisnoy ainin} pupo JUSIND UO UOILDWIOUI 8100
0} dn AQ papoddns aq |IM ADljod ay] — juajsisuod A|piauas sowoy BuIsiNU pupD 2102 |PILUSPISSY LLOH
‘puDWBP/Spasu
Buisnoy aInin} pupo JUSLND UO UOILDWIOUI S10P
0} dn AQ papoddns aq |IM ADljod ay] — judjsisuod A|piauas a|doad ssej|ewoy 10} UCIDPOWWODDY OLOH
"S}HUN PBLIBAUOD “JI8|IDWIS PUD
BuISNOY AW} IO} SPadU 8INN PUD JUSLND UO UOIDUIOUI
alop 0o} dn Ag papoddns aq |im Adljod ay] “004s Buisnoy
PUD S81IS BUIISIXS JO 85N SAI1D8}J8 pUD fusIold spoddns sBuljlemp
PUD ALI|IQIXS|} SOLDIISUOWBP 4OH ADIOd — JUaisSIsuod Ajjpiauss Jo|IDWIS JO UOILUSBLaI By} PUD SUOISISAUOD |DIIUSPISSY 6OH
JU3jsISuUod Ajn4 Buisnoy Buiuioiay 8OH
Juajsisuod Ajng Buisnoy 881} 10D LOH
‘'spaau 9o0ds uado ainin} PUD JUSLND UO UODWIOUI 810P
o} dn Ag papoddns aq |im Adljod ay] — juaisisuod A|piauas | sawsayds Buisnoy ul 820ds UOI}08ID81 JOOPLNO JO UOISIAOIJ 90H
luswdojgoasp
Juajsisuod Ajng [DIHUBPISSI Ul 820dS AllUBWD 81DAUd JO UOISIAOI( SOH
Juajsisuod Ajng sallsusp bullemg yOH
‘puBWBP/Spasu
Buisnoy ainin} pupo JUBIND UO UOILDWIOUI B10P
0} dn AQ papoddns aq |IM ADljod 8y] — juajsisuod A|piauas 97Is pup adA} Bulleomg €OH
jusjsisuod Ajinj (SOHIS [|OJpuUIM, — BUISNOY S|PPIOHY COH

T ENTITRICIVIETS)
(%G snid) Alddns JIDdA BAl} JUBLIND D 885 O} USSY 8q
[IIM OYM ‘siojoadsul Yiim fybrom o|il| AUoD o) Ajx| SI i “(1eBun)

89



210z Aow

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

S 2J8Y] 'SPSdU DIWOUODS JodW O} 4ddN @yl Ag 1ybnos
JABalplls 109|0,, 8y} Buluioy ‘sasn jJuswAojdus Jo abupl

0 1O} SOIS sallluapI AjoAllISOd ADIj0d SIYL — JusisIsuod Ajpiauas (sseuisng pup Aisnpul) salis JuswAoidwa palluap| LW3
Adjj04

uojid

4ddN 9Y} UM Adusjsisuo)d (s§2>10op.1q Ul siIaquinu ydpiboind) jx3} 4ddN |p207

S1OoM ojul 9|doad bujab pub AWouooa [po0o] 3y} bupoddng — g Jajdpy)

Juajsisuod Ajng SSILI|I00} 810D PIYD PUD sauasinu Abg 9ZOH

#S010/0L0ZH4 jo Hpd sp paAoiddp anpuad Apunwwod LUDAS|2] |ON GZOH

pPaADS jou Adjj04 BPDISHOd ‘Y2INYD S, MBIPUY IS {0 1jUsd ALUuNwuoD yZOH

Juajsisuod Ajng UDSPBUIPOOM Ul 814USD AJlUNWIWOD ¢ZOH

pPaADS jou Adjj0d ULBP|0D IO BIUSD ALUNWWOD ZTZOH

sewayos asn

Judjsisuod Ajn4 PaXIW PUD [DILUBPISSI Ul SBILI00} AHUNUWIWIOD JO UOISIAOI LZOH

Juajsisuo?d Ajn4 SOIIDD} AHUNUWIWOD JO UOUSLDY 0ZOH

Juajsisuod Ajng SOIIDD) AHUNWWOD MON 6LOH
"SOlIS

a|doadmoys Bul||oADI] 10} PBBU PBSSASSD OU S| 818Y] - [PIYNSN a|doadmoys Bulj|oADl] 10} $B1IS 81OH
"SPaaU |[DDO| UO UOIDWIOUI
a]pp-04-dn AQ papoddns aq |Iim ADljod ay] "spoasu Passasso
198w 0} $s8JIs JO A|ddns JnaA oAl D BUIADY SBPN|DUI SIY}
pupD pouad up|d By} JIBAO SPadU 8s0Y} joaw 0O} AjoAllisod uo|d
PUD SPasdU |00 ssaIPPL O} salluoyino Buluup|d ainbal 4ddN
By} PUD $BJIS I8||ADI} 10} ADljod Buluup|d S, JUBWUIBA0S) 8y]
's| pouad
up|d 8y} JISAO S81IS 10} Juswalinbal passassp ayl 1PYMm JNo 18s

JOU S80P INQ JUBISISUOD A|PD0I]T SI /| OH — Judisisuod A pbipnd SI9||I9ADI] JO/PUD SBISAASD) IO} SO4IS LLOH
pazeelle/ipd/oup
[INgPUBBUIUUD[d/SIUSWND0P /AN AOD SSIHIUNWIIOD MMM/ /-A1IY
$91IS 18||9ADI} 1O}

A2ljod Buluup|d s, JUBSWIUISA0S) By} OS|D 985 — Juajsisuod Ajn4 $91IS SIo||oADI] Jo/PUb AsdAD Bulsixe BulpionbBalns 910OH

‘pudbWop/spaau

90



210z Aow

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

"YIMoIB a|gpuinisns Buipaduul

SO UOLIBLD 8y} MBIA ADW S10}08dsul ‘SPadu DIUIOUODS
AJijuepl 0} s\Yd1 10} podu ay} siyBIYBIY 4ddN DU} ISIIUM
95N |PIDJOWWOD pasodoid sy} Jo) PaduU JO UolDIISUOWSP
$399S W3 JO UOLIBLUD ISIl} 8] — JUd)SISU0d AJ|pisauss

SIS PAIIIUSPIUN UO S3SN [DLISNPUI PUD SSSUISNG MSN

L4AE ]

"dddN U} Yyim 2oup|idwod
Ul ‘92U8pIAS 84ppP-0}-dn AQ pajplisuowap aq |Iim Buisnoy
B|QPPIOLD PUD SHUN JIOM/DAI| SAILDUISL|D 10} pasu ay|

'SPOBU DILUOUODS |DDO] UO UoIDUIIOUI 81pp 0} dn AQ
papoddns aq [IIM PUD PasSasSSO 80 UDD spaau JuswAojdwe
ulopowl 1o} AHIgRLINS YDIym AQ DUSILD IDS|D N0 sjas Adjjod
Byl 'sgol uIbiUIbW PUD 81P3ID O} JOPIO Ul Sayls JuswAoldwa
BulisIxa JO 8AI10810Id SI §NT — JUSJSISUOD A||pIauss

AlISnpul JoJ sajls |saq sy} Buiuiolay

€W3

"SPBaU DILOUODS |DDO| UO UOIIDWIIOUI B10P
o} dn AQ papoddns aq |im ADljod 8y "sasn JayLo MOJ|D O}
ALIQIX3]} JO HOD| SI WO} SBSUD 4ddN SYL UM ADUSISISUODUI AUy

"JUBJSISUOD AJjny SI ADjjod 8y} ‘esuas 1oyl Ul "YIMoIb DILuoU0DS
a|qpulpisns poddns pup Ajliuspl 0} ABajnUis aAlsod ay) Jo
JUBWIBIS UD SUUIOJ SIYL “SBLIS PaljI{uspI UO $8SN 92110 [pIsuab
pub Yyooa}-ybiy sajowold g3 ADIj0d — judisisuod A|piauas

595N 9211JO PUD YO8}-UBly Joj Paljiusp! SIS

[A\E

"4ddN O} WIOJuUOD Jou
ADW SBYIS ©D1HJ0 PBLIDDIO|ID | W SWOS "W s 0O§Z ULyl JIablin|
SOJIS 1O} juBWISSass jonduil up pup yoooiddo plusnbas
9y} 04 }0algns 8q PINOM $81JUSD UMOJ} JO N0 jusudoloAsp
91O "SOYIS B4IUSD JO N0 BUWOS sepN|DUl| W3 ADlj0d

"SPOBU DIWOUODS
|0OD0] UO uoljpbwliojul 8jop o} dn Ag papuoddns aq [IM puD
1oadsal oy Ul 4ddN Ui YHM JOIIJUOD AJoalIp JOou S0P W3
ADI|0d "salls 1o8104d AlLUpssaoauUN JO juauIdo|aAsp DILOUODS
3o0g ploy jou pinoys Buluunid joyj soiols 4ddN Y]

‘89 JO SAl}DLYsal
s1 Aolj0d 8y} YBNOYHD ‘595N o]qn4dad0 Sy} Ulypm ALICIXS])

91



zL0z AW 0l

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

SO paullep Bwos Bulpn|oul ‘sasn 1ay}o sajowold Aojjod ay]

"'SONSSI A{lUBWID PUD
sjuswialinbal aI1n}oNILsSOILUL SassalppPL Adljod ay] “saAlLoalqo
Hodsupl} PUD DIWOUODS 4ddN UM SPIODDD YDIYM ‘Uoisundxa

pajbjal pod spoddns Aojjod ay] — Juajsisuod Ajpiauss S9SN PaxiW — INOQIDH WDY3I0YS ZIW3
"SpPodU jUsWAO|dWS UO UOIDWIOUI B40P

0} dn AQ papoddns aq |IM ADljod 8y] — juajsisuod A|piauas S9SN POXIW — SMOW LLW3
"SpaauU JuswAo|dws UO UOILDWIOUI S0P

0} dn AQ papoddns aq |IM ADljod ay] — judisisuod A|piauas SOSN Paxiw — DaJly duInT YLION oLw3a

JU3jsIsuod Ajn4 $9JIS 9N paxiw Aay pub sasn PaxIW 6W3

$9}IS 9SNOYaIoM

JUjsisuod Ajn4 PUD SSBUISNG PUD [DUISNPUI JUDPUNPSI UO SHUN JIOM-DAIT 8W3
"YIMoIBb
DILIOUODS 3|qpUIDISNS BUILOLISaI SO PaMaIA 8Q P|NOD Adljod
By} ‘4ddN 8y} Jo sadiound 810D YiM 82UDPIODD0 Ul ‘SONSSI
[10D0] BullO8|}al ISIIYM “ALID 8y} JO SOISUS100I0YD |0ISAYd
By} 109]}84 O} PUD A|IDDO] UOID8ID Ol 8SIWIXOW O} JI8pPIOo

Ul Juswdo|oAsp 9SNOYBIOM JO BAILOULSal ST ADIjod ay] - |pInSN (8g) sosnoyaIopm IW13
4ddN
By} Ul pa}o3|jal 8Io DY} ‘SUIDDUOD 8BDIBY PUD 92UDCINISIP
[PIUSL0d SO YoNSs ‘SONssI Jay1o sassalppo os|o Adljod

SIYL "©A0QD GWI UO SJUBWUILIOD 98§ — JUdjsIsuod Ajpiauas SHUN ©SNOYSIDM PUD SHUN SSBUISNG ‘|PUISNPUI [|OUIS oW1
"4ddN @y} yiim ©oupniiduwod Ul ‘'©dUspIAS
9]opP-0}-dn AQ pajpIIsUOWSBP aq |[IM Buisnoy a|gppIolo
puUD sasN BulpIsusb JUBWAO|dWS SAILDUIB}ID IO} POBU BY]
'dddN 94} UM SpIoOO0
A|PDOIg pUD ADUDPUNPSI 84DIISUOWBP O} SIS} N0 sjas Adljod
9yl ‘pasn Bbuleq way} jo 1oadsold ajgouospal ou,, Sl a1y}
2JaUM S8JIs JO uolDa10Id WId) BUO| PIOAD PINOYS sa1dljod 1oy}

$91DJS 4ddN @Yl ,,tuppunpal Apuinuab,, Si }I ss8jUN 820dSIO0|) sosn 1aylo
92140 UID}al O} $3885 ADI|0d 8y] — Judlsisuod A||plauas) | O} SUOISISAUOD pUD 820dsSIO0|) 82140 JUDPUNPSI JO 85039y SW3

‘[oADI} O} PaBU B8y} BuidNpal puD UOILDAISSUOD 8INPU ‘Pa3U
Buisnoy so yons ‘4ddN @yt Ul pajybiybiy sanssi juauudojoAsp
a|gpuinisns dn o1d AD1j0d 8y} UIlyim DUSLLD 1Yo ay]

92



z10Z AoW Ll

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

SPO3U D $93S }I 'JIOASMOH “4ddN 92U UYLM 82UDpIODDD
ul yoonouddo [pluanbas o N0 $18S ZyS ADI|Od — Judjsisuod JoN

saJjuad Bbuiddoys paysiigoise
Bulisixs Jo abps 8yl puoAag JUsuwWdoBASP |ID}S1 MON

s

"110dsunJ 8|gPUIDISNS PUD [0 1O} ALIIQISSODOD
BuIpN|oUl ‘4ddN @U4 JO SUISDU0D Jaylo sassalppp Adljod ayl

"1oodwl

By} JO JuBWISSasso salinbal 4ddN By} S|Iym ‘Jusudojoasp
By} 0} POSBU D JO UOIDIISUOWBP S3085 | YS ‘SO}IS 81juad

10 8Bps 104 "1oadsal [y} Ul JUS4SISUOD JOU S| PUD $81USD
Bullsixa JO AHIIODIA PUD ALOHA O} JUSWILISP OU S4DI}SUOUWIBP
0} suolpINddo sainbal (D) | JS ADIOd “LUBUISSOSSD

1opduwil UD aliNbal JoU S0P 4ddN BU4 ‘S8IUSD UMO} UIYHM

"4ddN Sy}
UM aull ul yooouddo plusnbas o jdopo seop I ‘'salIs D110ads

AJIJUSPI 1OU SS0P 1 ISIIYM "SSIIUSD JO 8Bpa SYJ UO IO UIYLIM
JUBWIdO|ASP [IDJ81 MBU YLIM S0P | YS ADI|Od — Juajsisuo JoN

saljuao Buiddoys paulep
Bulisixe JO abpa ay4 U0 IO UIYHM tuawdo|oAap (10481 MON

LyS

4ddN 39U} yim Aduajsisuod

(s}2xop.1q Ul s;Iaquinu ydoiboiond) §x3} 4ddN

Adj04
upjd
|p207]

AHIQDIA PUD AJ[DHA BUIUIDJUIDW — 91NSI9] pub uolbaldal ‘buiddoys - 9 Joydby)

9j9|dwod juswdojaAap wnipbjs Ajlunwwo) UHON ADM 9BD||IA (YA E]
JuU3jsIsuod Ajn4 X9SSNS JO ALISIDAIUN 61W3

JU3jsIsuod Ajn4 uolybug JO ALSIDAIUN 81W3

JUjsIsuod Ajn4 $0DUDg UOJSald ZIW3

pP3ADS jou Adjj0d S9SN PaxIW — |9allS S|PPIW/12311S S9DA0G/19014S ISOM 91W3

9191dwod juswdojaAap joaus 29Iqnr $OsN paxiw — }oalS 99|IgN[ SLW3

paADS jou Adjj0d sosN paxiwW-{unIpoNnb }9a11S YLION/19311S IV IE

JUjsIsuod Ajn4 S9SN paxiw — UOIIDLS uolybug SIW3

4ddN
By} Yim aul| Ul palinbal 8g ADW SJUBWISSSSSO Jondwll puUD S$1S8)

[olUBNbSS “JNS8I O SY "4ddN 9Yi AQ ,,$8SN 81USD UMO} UIbwl,,

93



zL0z AW zl

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

‘sdoys [020] 128j0id O] Sl UoIUSIUI 108]D 8yl ISIUM [1018J WOJJ
25N Jo sebupyD JoJ Isa] AoubpuNnpal D sepPNoUl §YS ADIj0d

‘spasu
Buiddoys App-0}-ADP JoauUl O} SWID PUD SHUN [ID}81 [ONPIAIPUI
10} UO1}08}0Id SI18}JJ0 8YS ADI|Od — jUdISISUOD A||pI1auas

sdoys [pNpIAIpU|

8YS

"YIMOIB D1luouoos Buloulsal Ajipiiuaiod ul

4ddN SU} UHM JUBISISUODUI SO POMSIA G ADW 584 iU} ‘AHIGDIA
PUD ALIDLIA UIDLSJ O} S| UOLUSLIUI IDS|D 8y} ISIIUM “|ID1D LU0}
asn JO seBuUDYD 10} 1S8) ADUDPUNPSI D SOPN|DUI £3S ADIIOd

"SPOBU ADP-0J-ADP |22W pUD

SOILIUNWILIOD SAISN|DUI PUD AYLDBY 810810 O} SWID 4ddN Yim
SPIODID }| "SPIOYSaIY} pUD sasn 8|gnidadon uo aouppIinb
10812 $BAIB pup Ayoupialy buiddoys s,Aj10 8y} jo puod

SO soppInd 00| sauleP ADI0d SIYL — JudjsIsSuod A|pIauas

sopniod 0007

LS

"YIMOID DlluouoDs bulpouysal Ajjoipuaiod ul

4ddN SU} YHM JUSISISUODUI SO PamdIA G ADW 584 iU} ‘AHIGDIA
PUD ALID}IA UIDLSI O} SI UOILUSIUL JIDS|D BYL IS[IUM (10481 LUOUY
25N JO sebupyd IO} IS8} AduppuUNpPal D S8ONPOILUI 9¥S ADI0d

SposuU ADp

-0J-ADP 98U PUD SBIHIUNWWIOD SAISNOUI PUD Aylpay 810810
O} SWID 4ddN UM SPIODDD }| "SPIOYSalyl pup sasn a|goidadon
uo 82ubpPINB IDB|D SBAIB pub Ayolupialy Buiddoys s,AlID 8y} Jo
Hod SD s8I UBD PDO] sBuUleP ADI0d SIYL — judisIsuod Ajpiauas

$2JJUSD |0D01

9US

Juajsisuod Ajng

S8J4U8D BuIddoys }DUSIP PUD UMO]

Sys

Juajsisuod Ajn4

a14uaD buiddoys |puoiBay

12:)

‘Josodoud a244ua2 JO JNO UD Jo)

JUBWISSaSSD Jopdwll AUD JO S|IDIBP 8y} Uo Buipuadap JUDAS|SI
2q AbW [NOAD|/azZIS JIuN pUD SPOOB AN O} Bullb|al saNnss!
oyl -Alddp [IM BAOQD ZYS JopuNn SJUBSWWOD 8y} ‘Ajnisuss
"S}UN JO UOISIAIPQNS 1O SPOOB AY|NG ‘SOSNOYSIOM |ID}8)

0} 92UalJ8}a1 D1J10ads OU SaPW 4ddN YL — JuUdjsIsuod JoN

SOSNOYSIOM [I0]8Y

€ys

'4ddN
SUl Ul [NO 85 JUBWISSasSSD [o0dWl 8yl UDY) J8YI0) ‘[USUISSSSSD

94



zL0z AW el

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

1ddN 8yl "UD|d |0207 84op-01-dN UD YlIM 92UDPIODD0 Ul Jou
PUD 2J1Ua2 BullSIXS UD 8pPISINO alo ASyl 2I1aym |sa] [pliuanbas
D saliNbal PuUD S9SN BIJUSD UMOJ UIDW,, SO S9SN ALUNWWOD
PUD ‘|0IN{ND ‘WISUNO] ‘2INSI3| SaIIILUSPI 4ddN SUl "JSASMOH

"saNSss| ALIQOUIDISNS PUD [IOdSUD.) ‘UOIIDAISSUOD
2INJDU ‘[DISDOD ‘WSLNO] ‘UOIID8ID3I SO YINS SONSSI
UO SWUID 4ddN SOssaIpp AjaAllisod || *sasn ainsis|/uoljnaidal

10} B4IS JUOJJDSS JUDDDA D $81020|0 ADIj0d SIY] — JudjsIsuod JoN 9IS Y00y o0|g 614S
Juajsisuo? Ajn4 UOIDBID8I JUOIDSS CIRES
Juajsisuod Ajng SOIH|IDD} [DUOIDSBID8I PUD Bullods 8j02s I9|IPWS L1Y¥S
JuU3jsIsuod Ajng SOI4IID0} [PUOIDaIDa) pUL Bulods Jolow 91¥S
*ADUBJSISUODUI SBSIDJ BIJUSD UMO}
PaLILUSPI UD UDY} JI8YLDI DBID 810D D JO 85N ay} ybnoyyo
‘4ddN ©U} UM SPIODDD Spaau S, ALUNWWIOD 8y} Bulleswl
PUD AWOUODS |DD0| Y4 JO SisaIalul 8y}l Ul uoldaoid Jo
a|diouud 8yl ‘PBID 8I0D PBULBP BY} UIYLIM UOLIDPOWWODD0
1SLNOJ JO BAILD8}0Id S ADJjod 8y] — JuajsIsuod JoN sosnNoy 4sanb/s|40y JO Uol}0810.1d SLYS
"PUD| SSBUISNg/|PUISNPUI
JO 8sn 8y} Uo ALjIgixa|} ‘Ajipiiusiod ‘1o D8I BIIuUdD
UMO} pauljep 0 ‘I1sa} [pliuanbas ayl JO sud) Ul 4ddN SUi Yim
AIdUWIOD JOU SBOP ‘SDBID |DIIUSD AJSAI}D|S] Ul UODPOUWUIODD0
1SUNOJ MBU 8}0D0| 0} Buyaas s|iym ‘Aojjod ay|
"1S81 |pIlUSNbas OU SOY INQ ‘UD|d [PD07 8y} Ul paullap naIn
9102 |940Y D SPIOMO} UOILDPOUWUIODD0 WSUNOL MBU sapInb
713 ADIIOd "1S84 [plUSNbas D SEDNPOILUI PUD 85N BJIUSD
UMOJ UIDW,, D SO WSLINOJ SBUIIBP 4ddN Y1 — Judjsisuod JoN UOILDPOWIWODDD Jsanb puUD [810Y MON AR LY
jusjsisuod Ajinj SANOIYBIN cLAS
144
JUSJSISUOD AJIng | SSDID SN PUD SBNUSBA (JULP PUD POOJ) €V SSPID asn ab.07 rAR L
Juajsisuod Ajng $O|DS 100 J0D PUD SISYIOW LLYS
Juajsisuod Ajng S9IIUSD/SOPODID JUBUIBSNUIY oLyS
jusjsisuod Ajinj 19211S dIys |G @O $50d Uojybug 63S

"YIMOIB D1luouoDs Bulouisal Ajpljuajod
Ul 4ddN SU} YHM JUBISISUODUI SO POMBIA 90 ADW }$8} SIY}

95



zL0z AW 7l

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

Juajsisuod Ajn4 pupD (SIDNS) @ouppodw| UOIDAISSUOD 8INJDN JO SBJIS ¥ON

Juajsisuod Ajng (SN1) seasasay aInibN [0D07 ¢ON

Juajsisuod Ajng UOIJDAIBSUOD 8INJoU JOJ 8dupnpodull [PUOILOU JO S8}IS ZON
UOIIOAISSUOD alnjou

pP3ADS jou Adjj0d 10} @2ouppodwl UPadoINg JIO/PUD [PUCIDUIBIUI JO SBIS LON

Adjj0d

uojd

4ddN 3Y} Yiim Adudjsisuod S|y Adljod | |POOT

SPISAJUNOD Sy} PUD UODAISSUOD 2Jinjbu 0} yoboiddb pajpibajul uy — Z 19jdby)

JIDd [DUOIDON SUMOJ YiNOS Sy} Ul papn|oul
JOU SOM 8JIS BY] ‘Spa3U UOI}081081 JOOPLINO UO UOILDWIOUI

alpbp o} dn AQ papoddns aq |m Adljlod ay] “salIUNUIUIOD
Ay}|o8ay S|gpUS PUD $82IN0SaI JO 85N 82NP3J 0} 4ddN dYi JO

SUIID YIIM PJODDD Ylog "SSIIon] [OUOI108ID8I/AlUNUIUIOD PUD

BuloADal aplacid O} s3985 ADljod SIy] — Juajsisuod Ajplauas wlo]10g uold|BUbLH 92yS
JUjsIsuod Ajn4 uoliapd spods yind AiIngbuljoH GZyS
jusjsisuod Ajinj B}Is YINY/Palv Bury vTys

9j9|dwod wnipbjs AHUNWWOD wNIPPLS AHUNWIWOD €ZyS
JuUjsIsuod Ajn4 sonuaA bullods Jolbw TS
"SPaau UoI08IDal JOOPINO
UO uolbwIojul 8PP 0f dn Ag papoddns aq |Im Adljod ay]
"SOIHIUNWIWOD AYipay Joj seo0pds uolipaldal JO sjijauag ay}
9sIUBO0D3I 4ddN 89U} PUD | ZyS ADI|Od — JUJsIsu0D Ajplauas SOI|IOD} UOIIDaID81 JOOPUI JO SSOT LZyS
"SPBauU UOI08IDa1 JOOPINO
uO uolbwlojul 8PP o) dn AQ papoddns aq |Im Adljod ay]
"SOIHIUNWIWOD AYipay Joj seo0nds uolipaldal JO sjijauag ay}
3sIUBO0D3I 4ddN 9Y} PUD OZyS ADIOd — 1UdisIsuod Ajpiauas) | 200ds UOIDSIDa) JOOPINO 31PALd puL Dljgnd JO UOID8}0Id 0ZyS

ERVEERENC!

D} PINOM 4ddN By} ‘Sjoadsal 8say} Ul ‘pupb JUBUISSaSSD
ropdwi Io Jsa) pluanbas o alinbal jou seop Adljod

9yl "INO paLInD 8Q O} JUBWISSassD jopdull UD ‘Ploysaly}
ajpudoiddp sy} JBAO S| jJuswdoeAsp alaym ‘salinbal os|o

96



z10Z AoW Gl

1IDUNOD AlID SA0OH pupL uolybug

salIs (0216002 YID

JUJSISUOD Ajn4 Juppodwl JBYL0 pUD SjUBSWNUOW JUSIDUD PajNpPayds Z13H

Juajsisuod Ajng suspPILB PuUD SHIDd DLOJSIH L13H

Juajsisuod Ajng 1S@J48}Ul [I0D0] 4O sbulp|ing OLl3H
BuipiNg Pajs]| O JO AHUIDIA 8y} Ul JO ‘UO

JUJSISUOD Ajn4 PUD SOBIO UOIDAIBSUOD UIYLM SUBIS PUD SJUSUISSILIOARY 63H

Juajsisuod Ajng SDBID UOIDAISSUOD Ul Uoljowa( 83H
SulaiS

pP3ADS jou Adjj0d PIO - PUD 19311 S8DUlld ‘193l11S UOIIADd Bululolpo pupn Z3H
SDBID UOIDAIBSUOD

JUJSISUOD Ajn4 1O Bullas ayi Buiposip 1o ulyim juswdoleaag 93H

pPaADS jou Adjj0d 191d 1SOM S3H

Juajsisuod Ajng sBUIP|INg PaJsI| UO Sainjpa} |DUIBLIO JO JUBWSDISUIDY ¥aH

JU3jsISuUod Ajn4 Buip|ing paisl O JO Bulllas ayy buljdoayo juswdoleaagd €3H

juajsisuod Ajnyg BuipIng Pajs]| O O UoKjowWdd C3H

jusjsisuod A|nyg sBuIP(ING P34 L3H

Adjj0d

uoid

4ddN 3y} yim Adusjsisuod Sl Adljod |  |POO]

JUSWIUOIIAUS JlIOJSIY UD UIyIM abubyd bulbbuby - g 1ojdoy)

pP3ADS jou Adjj0d puD| [DIN}NDUB apIb YBIH ZION

juajsisuod Ajnj uing poiuag O AHUIDIA Sy} Ul sBuip(ing pup puoT | LLON

juajsisuod Ajnd uiog ploljusg OLON

jusjsisuod Ajinj AS|IPA ployueg 6ON

"SI0 [OUOIDN JO aAl10a101d AIBUOULS SI 1 YBNOoYLo ‘4ddN SU4 Ul AlnDag

YD [PUOIIDN JO Bulllas 8y} JO uoluaw 2110ads ON — [PINSN [DJNION BUIPUDISINQ JO DAY SUMOJ Xassng ay} Jo Bullas 8ON
Juajsisuod Ajng Alnoag |DINION BUIPUBISINQO JO DaIY SUMOJ XBSSNS LON

Juajsisuod Ajng PUD|UMOP/BPISAILUNOD By} Ul jJuswdoaaaq 9ON

Juajsisuod Ajn4 abuuy upqgin SON

(SO1Y) says [p2160j099 jupoduw| Apuocibay

97



98



Appendix 3

Assessment of consistency of ‘saved’ Waste Local Plan policies (2006)
with the National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

To determine which of the Waste Local Plan policies can continue to
be used in the consideration of planning applications, an assessment of
these policies against the NPPF has been undertaken. The Local Plan
policies have been placed in one of the following categories as a
result of this assessment:

Fully consistent with the NPPF — policies in this category either
replicate the NPPF, add to the NPPF (whilst remaining
consistent with the thrust of the document), or provide less
detail/caveats than the NPPF (whilst not contradicting it).
These Local Plan policies can confinue to be applied
alongside the NPPF.

Consistent, in part, with the NPPF — a number of the ‘saved’
Local Plan policies contain a significant level of detail. Parts
of these policies are consistent with the NPPF, whilst certain
parts are not. These policies need to be applied by judging
the weight that can be applied to them, alongside the NPPF,
in the specific circumstances of each individual application.

Inconsistent with the NPPF — policies that take a different
direction and view on matters to the content of the NPPF.
These policies should no longer be applied.

Not covered by the NPPF - This Framework does not contain
specific waste policies, since national waste planning policy will
be published as part of the National Waste Management Plan
for England. A number of policies therefore are not covered by
it.

99



00}

Policy Policy Title Consistency with NPPF
Number
WLP1 The Plan’s Strategy Parts a) to e) are not covered by the NPPF.
Part f) is partially consistent with the NPPF: Paragraphs 117 and 118 support the
policy’s level of protection for protected environments, however paragraph 118
allows for adverse effects on the special features of SSSIs where the benefits of
the development clearly outweigh the impacts. Paragraphs 132 and 133
further allow for substantial harm to or total loss of the significance of a
designated heritage asset where it can be demonstrated that the substantial
harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh
that harm or loss. Paragraph 134 requires any harm to a heritage asset this harm
to be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its
optimum viable use.
WLP2 Transport Strategy Fully consistent with the NPPF paragraph 30.
WLP3 Areas of Outstanding Fully consistent with the NPPF paragraph 116.
Natural Beauty
WLP4 Road fto Rail or Water Fully consistent with the NPPF paragraph 30.
Transfer
WLP5 Safeguarding Sites Not covered by the NPPF.
WLP6 Expansions or Not covered by the NPPF.
Alterations to Existing
Facilities
WLP7 Site Specific Allocation | Site specific policy not covered by the NPPF but principle of location is
for Road to Rail Transfer | consistent.
Facilities
WLP8 Site Specific Allocations | Site specific policy not covered by the NPPF but principle of location is

for Materials Recovery

consistent.




O}

Policy
Number

Policy Title

Consistency with NPPF

Faculties / Waste
Transfer Stations

WLP9

Site Specific Allocation
for Energy from Waste
and Material Recovery
Facilities

Site specific policy not covered by the NPPF but principle of location is
consistent.

WLP10

Site Specific Allocations
for Waste Disposal to
Land

Not covered by the NPPF.

WLPT1

Reduction, Reuse and
Recycling during
Demolition and Design,
and Construction of
New Developments

Not covered by the NPPF.

WLP12

Recycling as Part of
Major Development

Not covered by the NPPF

WLP13

Recycling, Transfer and
Materials Recovery
Facilities

Partially complies. Policy restricts development to brownfield sites whereas NPPF
is more flexible as it only ‘encourages’ the reuse of brownfield land. (Para. 111).

WLP14

Recycling and
Recovery Facilities for
Construction and
Demolition Waste

Partially complies. Policy restricts development to brownfield sites whereas NPPF
is more flexible as it only ‘encourages’ the reuse of brownfield land. (Para. 111).

WLP15

Small Scale Recycling
Collection Facilities

Not covered by the NPPF




c0l

Policy Policy Title Consistency with NPPF
Number
WLP16 | New Household Waste | Partially complies. Policy restricts development to brownfield sites whereas NPPF
Sites is more flexible as it only ‘encourages’ the reuse of brownfield land. (Para. 111).
WLP17 Reprocessing Industries | Not covered by the NPPF
WLP18 | Composting Facilities Fully consistent with the NPPF as the policy allows for development in rural
areas.
WLP19 | Energy from Waste Partially complies. Policy restricts development to brownfield sites whereas NPPF
Facilities is more flexible as it only ‘encourages’ the reuse of brownfield land. (Para. 111).
WLP20 | Landfilling — Non-Inert Not covered by the NPPF
Waste
WLP21 Landraising — Non-Inert | Not covered by the NPPF
Waste
WLP22 | Landfill Gas Not covered by the NPPF
WLP23 | Landfilling — Inert Waste | Not covered by the NPPF
WLP24 | Landraising/Improvem | Not covered by the NPPF
ent with Inert Waste
WLP25 | Landfill Mining Not covered by the NPPF
WLP26 Mineral Waste Not covered by the NPPF
WLP27 | Special and Difficult Not covered by the NPPF
Wastes
WLP28 | On Site Clinical Waste Not covered by the NPPF
Facilities
WLP2? | Independent Clinical Not covered by the NPPF
Waste Facilities
WLP30 | Wastewater and Not covered by the NPPF

Sewage Sludge




€0l

Policy Policy Title Consistency with NPPF
Number
WLP30a | Wastewater and Not covered by the NPPF
Sewage Sludge
(Brighton & Hove /
Peacehaven
Catchment)
WLP31 Disposal of Liquid Not covered by the NPPF
Waste and Dredgings
on Land for ifs
Improvement
WLP32 | Liquid Waste Facilities Not covered by the NPPF
WLP33 | Agricultural and Stable | Part a) complies with NPPF guidance on design. Parts b) and c) are not
Waste covered.
WLP34 | Animal Carcass Waste | Not covered by the NPPF
WLP35 | General Amenity Parts a) to d) are fully consistent with the NPPF.
Considerations Part e) is partially consistent with the NPPF: Paragraphs 117 and 118 support the
policy’s level of protection for protected environments, however paragraph 118
allows for adverse effects on the special features of SSSIs where the benefits of
the development clearly outweigh the impacts. Paragraphs 132 and 133
further allow for substantial harm to or total loss of the significance of a
designated heritage asset where it can be demonstrated that the substantial
harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh
that harm or loss. Paragraph 134 requires any harm to a heritage asset this harm
to be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its
optimum viable use.
WLP36 | Transport Fully consistent with the NPPF para. 35




Policy Policy Title Consistency with NPPF
Number

Considerations

WLP37 | Flood Defences, Flood | Fully consistent with the NPPF para. 103
Plains and Surface
Water Runoff

WLP38 | Surface and Not covered in the NPPF except in the context of mineral development.
Groundwater

WLP39 | Design Considerations | The policy does not contradict the NPPF but Part 7 of the NPPF goes further than
the existing policy by providing extensive guidance on what constitutes good
design.

WLP40 | Environmental Not covered by the NPPF
Improvements and
Other Benefits

1441




¢T/v/92 ud

#TOdIN "8'2 22uepingd paj|22ued -uou Jo uolle|si33|
Jayzo Japun e} Aew Ayl ysdnoyije 4ddN 241 Aq paJanod Ajjeaiioads Jou sanssi ssaappe yoiym saijod — 4ddN 2yl Aq paianod JoN e

‘paljdde aq 498u0| ou pjnoys
saljod asayl ‘4ddN 2Y3 JO 1U31U0I 3] 0] SI311EW U0 MIIA PUB UOI1I3JIP JUSJ3)4Ip e 33el 1eyl saidljod — 4ddN 3Y3 YlIM Jullsisuodu| e

‘uoliedjdde |enpiAlpul Yyoea JO S92UeISWNIIID J13199dS ay3 ul ‘4ddN 2Y3 apisduoje ‘wayy o3 paljdde aq
ued 1ey3 ysiam ay3 3uiSpnl Aq paijdde aq o1 pasau sajdijod 9sayl “jou aJe sped ulenad 1s|Iym ‘4ddN oYl Yim Jua3isisuod aJe sapijod
959y} JO Slded °|1e19p JO |9A3] JUedIJIUSIS e uleuod saldijod ue|d |e207 ,PaAES, 3Y3 JO Joaquinu e — 4ddN 941 Yum ‘ued ul ‘qQualsisuo) e

*4ddN Y3 apis3uoje paljdde aq 03 anuijuod ued sapjjod
ue|d |e207 asayl (M SuIld1peIIu0D 10U 1S|IYM) 4ddN Yl UeY] S1eaARI/|Ie1ap SS9 9pIA0Jd 4O ‘(JUBwnI0p 3yl JO 1SNJY3 3yl YUM
1U3SISU0D Sutulewad 1S[IYym) 4ddN Y1 01 ppe ‘4ddN Y3 21edijdal sayua A1o3a3ed siy3 ul sad1jod — 4ddN Y3 YHM JudlsIsuod Ajin4 e
:JUBWISSASSe SIY}
JO 3 nsaJ e se sali08a1ed 3uimo||o4 Y3 Jo duo ul pade|d uaaq aney saldijod ue|d |BI07 BYL "UIendpun uaaqg sey 4ddN 3yl 1suiede saidijod asayl
JO Juawissasse ue ‘suoliedijdde Suiuue|d JO UOIIBIIPISUOD BY] Ul PASh 3 0} SNUIFUOI UBI S3IDI|0d Ue|d |BIOT S|BISUIIA Y1 JO YIIYM dUIWIDI3P O

(2102) JMomdweay Adijod Suluueld jeuonieN ayl Yum (666T) sa1d1jod uejd |e207 S|esdul ,panes, Jo Aoualsisuod JO JUdWISSISSY

t Xxipuaddy

105



4ddN @42 yum juaisisuod Ajng Hod Ay 1T
4ddN 241 Yam judisisuod Ajjn4 110d USABYMIN WoJj Jodsuedy |1ey 0T
4ddN 241 Yam judisisuod Ajjn4 140d USABYMIN 6
4ddN @Y1 yym juaisisuod Ajjn4 1104 weyaioys 8
YTOdIN 8'2 9dueping 4o uolle|si3a| Jay3o
Japun sj|ej ysnoyije 4ddN 3y Aq paianod Ajjeaijidads 10N— 4ddN @Yl Aq patanod JoN JnoqgJeH aAy L
wJey
[l PUB UOISUdIXd JN0) ASU3l02S ‘YlION
4ddN 241 yym judisisuod Ajjn4 [llywooug je saiedai3se Jo uoioelixd 9
"B1491142 YONS 9 03 P3J3PISU0D
9Q 9404243Y3 p|nod Adijjod ay3 ul ,S92uUeiswnadd [epads, Syl °elda1ldd [euol1edo|
pue Soy ‘seaJe paJiasa.d ‘S21Is 214199ds JO W04 Ul 9q p|NOYS uoisinodd $33e1Ss 4ddN Sealy paJtiasaid
4ddN 941 yum ‘ued ui ‘quaisisuo) pue yoJeas Jo sealdy ayl apIsino g
4ddN 241 Y3m judisisuod Ajjn4 y2Jeas JO Sealy pue sealy padajaid 7
uoI3deJIXd
4ddN 241 Y3Im Judisisuod Ajjn4 | |9AeJ3 pue pues o uoisiroad ay3 40} S91S €
9}ep JO IN0 MOU NYTdHIS 01 S90UI2}9Y
4ddN 243 yym juaisisuod Ajjn4 $931e89.4338Y JO UOISINOI] D4NIN4 4
‘Ad1jod siyy
ul PaJanod si yaiym jue|d Sulanioejnuew pue 3uissadoJad [esauiw JO UOI3eI0| Y3 JO
‘s911s 91e39433e-uou palliwiad/3uilSIXa JO UOISUSIXS Y] 0] J3J3J 10U S0P 4ddN dYL
4ddN 941 yum ‘ued ui ‘quaisisuo) yoeouddy |esauan T
4ddN yHm Adudjsisuo) )M Mdjjod 41N |  ‘oN Adljod

106



S9SN JUBWI-UOU 40} 3|BYD JO UOI1BIO|
J0 Joj puewap a3y} 03 Ja4aJ Ajjediy10ads 30u s20p 4ddN YL "d1ep Jo Ino Ajasue| si Adijod
4ddN @42 yum ‘pued ui ‘quaisisuo)

3|[1NaN Suliie]

T¢

"S9SN JU3WII-UOU JO4 |BYD JO UOIIEIO|
10 J0oj puewap 3y 03 43434 Aj|ea1y10ads 30U S20p 4ddN YL 231ep J0 1no Ajadue| si Adjjod
4ddN 342 yum ‘pued ui ‘quaisisuo)

A1BYD

0¢

‘Jue|d J19y3 wouy Juelsip ssupjaom Aejp mau
JO UOI1LJ0| 9Y3 01 J3}3J4 Aj|e214199dS 10U S90P 4ddN YL °931ep Jo Ino Aja3.e| si Adljod
*4ddN 2431 yum “ed ui quailsisuo)

(uonpesixs Aed) syuomydlg umopysy

61

‘SANOY 9p!sino

woJj 3q p|hoys sjedauiw A3iaua-uou jo syueqpue] |ea13oedd se Jej se 1eyl s91eis 4ddN
9y ‘SallAIlde/3unjiom Aejd Mau Joj UOI1eI0| gNOY Ue 1IN0 3|nJ 10u saop gT Adljod
4ddN 941 yum ‘ped ui ‘quaisisuo)

dNOV 3Y3 Ul Supjiom Ae|)

8T

4ddN 241 Y3im jualsisuod >__=u_

saAnJI9saYy Ae|D a4nind

LT

*Ad1jod s1y3 ul paianod si yarym s3upjiom Aejp mau
Jo sjue|d SulanloejNUEW MBU JO UOIILIO0| dY] 01 J9)aJ Ajjeatjdads 10U sa0p 4ddN Yl
4ddN @Y1 yam ‘ded ui qualsisuo)

s9)Is Ae|D maN

9T

‘Ad1jod s1y3 ul paJsAod si yatym jueld Jisyl wody juelsip sgupjiom Aed
Mau Jo sjue|d Sulunloejnuew Jo uol1ed0| ay3 01 43434 Ajjealy1dads 10U s20p 4ddN 9YL
4ddN @Y1 yam ‘ded ui qualsisuo)

s9Ms Ae|D Sunsix3

ST

*Ad1jod siy3 ul pasnod
SI Yoiym saij1oey uljoAdaa Jo uol3edo| syl 03 439434 Ajjeaiydads 10u s20p 4ddN YL
4ddN 941 yum ‘ued ui ‘quaisisuo)

|ela31e|n SuljpAday

14"

"Aatjod siyy
Ul P43A0I SI Ydlym s30dap |ied JO uol1ed0| syl 01 4934 Ajjeal1oads 3ou s20p 4ddN 2yl
4ddN 941 yum ‘ued ui ‘quaisisuo)

syodaq |iey

€T

4ddN 3Y3 YHm 3uaisisuod Ajng

Jue|d dUOISpPEOY PAILO) P|3IJIUNOIA

4"

107



4ddN 941 yum ‘ued ui ‘qualsisuo) [E3USWUOJIAUT -|0J3U0)) JUswWdo|aARQ I€
*Ad1j0d ue|d 94n310NJ1S Y3 Ul PRIBAOD
uda( aAeY pINOM SIY] “Juawdo|aAap JO saseyd JUaJdP € Yl uaaMiag ysinduiisip
01 SYdIA sa4inbaJ osje 4ddN @yl ‘Adijod ue|d 24n3anJ3s (4ow4oy) Jo syuswalinbaa ay3
199W Ydo1ym suoljesado uogied04pAy 1o} elaa34d Juawdo|aAap Ino s33s Ajuo o€ Adljod
4ddN 941 yum ‘aed ui ‘qualsisuo) suoqJed0J4pAH o€
*s1 3u1pAdau 404 JUBWSSeINOOUD INg
4ddN 9Y3 Aq pa4anod jou s| Adijod siy3 Jo |1esp syl "231ep 4o 1no Aj@3.e| si gz Adljod 3uijpAda4
4ddN 941 yum ‘ped ui ‘quaisisuo) pue 3ulinjoejnue|n pieogJalse|d 6¢
4ddN 241 Y}m judisisuod Ajjn4 93p14gs142g0oY 1e Jul| |Ied JO UOIIUDIDY 8¢
‘S| 9Jed249)je
pue uollelolsaJ paepuels y3iy ing 4ddN 3y Aq pa1anod jou st Adjjod siy3 Jo |1esp syl SUIIN 3uljay3iug ay1 pue adplugsiaqoy
*4ddN Y1 YHm Judisisuod Ajjn4 punoJe jJuswadeuew pue uollel01saYy Yid
'SGNOV 9pISIN0O W04} 3q p|NOYS S|esauiw
A31aua-uou jo syueqpue| |ea13oead se Jej se 1eyl Sa31el1s 4ddN 2yl ‘uolleudisap e yans
ul ApeaJje aJe Sal3IAI}0. JUSJIND 3Y} SE UOI1ed0| gNOY Ue 1n0 3|nJ Jou saop 9 Adljod
4ddN 941 yum ‘aed ui ‘qualsisuo) wnsdAg 9¢
4ddN 243 yym juaisisuod Ajjn4 |1} UOIIONJISUOD 404 Y|eyD (o4
‘eaJe ue|d
9y3 ul sjue|d ou JaAaIMOY 3Je 349y ‘sjue|d Juawad SullSIXd J0) SIAISAI paniwiad
sieaA GT apinoad 03 SYdIN Sa4inbat 4ddN "Sulinjoejnuew Juswad S1sisad ¢ Adljod
*4ddN 2431 yum “ed ui quailsisuo) 9JNnjdejnuep JUsWa) v
*S9SN JUSWSI-UOU 404 Y|eyd JO UoI1ed0]| 3yl 01 4234 Aj|ea1}19ds 30U S90pP 4ddN 2yl
4ddN 941 yum ‘ued ui ‘quaisisuo) Asaenp 3uiydas N €z
"3y3nos si Aylunjioddo 3s31j4e9 9Y3 1e UoI}eI03SJ JOASMOH
*S9SN JUSWSI-UOU 404 Y|eyd JO UoI1ed0| 3yl 01 4234 Aj|ea119ds 10U S20pP 4ddN 2YL
4ddN 941 yum ‘ued ui ‘quaisisuo) uolyesoisal Ausenp 3uiyoj|i4 44

108



4ddN 9Y1 Aq pasanod 10N S91IS JO MIINDY 9¢

4ddN

9y3 Aq paJan02 j0u aJe yaiym uawdo|aAap }jing pue Suljjiypue| 03 sia434 os|e Adjjod

9yl 'S¢ Adjjod ul papnjoul a4e 4ddN Y3 Ul In0 13S S9SNJD1Je Y3 JO ||B 10U INg dWOS
4ddN @Y1 yum ‘ded ui quaisisuo) EN BV g€

‘A}94ES UOI1BIAR 0] 43434 30U S90P INQ 4ddN Y3 JO syuawalinbal ay3 s3039|4a4 Adljod
4ddN 3y3 yum ‘ved ui quaisisuo) uoljelolsay 143
4ddN @Y1 Aq pasanod 10N |043u0d Suluue|d jo sayoeaug €€

'sasn A}109ds 4oy $93Is |e13ualod ueyl Jayied suolled0| |enide uo paseq si eyl

Aem e u11ng ‘4ddN @Y1 uil paiiuapl 3us Jo sadAl sy jo Auew spaendajes g€ Adljod
4ddN 941 yum ‘ued ui ‘quaisisuo) 3uipJsengdajes 43

"$3094J9 9AI}R|NWIND PUB UO|}BUIWEIUO0D
JO uoles3iw ‘92ua3sisgns guluiw ‘|14 doeq Asienb Jo JUSWI1SS |el1uIBIP ‘ANjIgels
9do|s Auuenb pue di3 ‘yyjeay uewny uo 3oedw] JSA0I 30U S90P 1 ‘U9AIMOH “4ddN
9Y3 Ag pa49A0D 10U BJe S|1E}DP SWOS BIIDNII [EIUSWUOIIAUD Auew SI9A0D T € Adljod

JUQWISSasSSY

109



110



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 10
DEVELOPMENT &
CU LTU RE COMM'TTEE Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: UPDATE ON THE ECONOMIC STRATEGY AND THE
CITY PROSPECTUS

Date of Meeting: 21 June 2012

Report of: Strategic Director, Place

Contact Officer: Name: Cheryl Finella Tel: 29-1095/1757

E-mail: Cheryl.finella@brighton-hove.gov.uk;

Wards Affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: This report provides an update
on activities relating to the creation of the Economic Strategy
and the City Prospectus.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the Committee:
2.1  Support the proposed refresh of the economic strategy;

2.2 Agree in principle a proposal for the City Prospectus website to
be hosted by the Economic Partnership subject to legal and
financial agreement.

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Economic development strategies have been a notable feature
of local and regional government over the last 20 years. Their
purpose has been largely to set out priorities by economic sector
and locality as to where the public sector is directing its
investment and otherwise seeking to shape and influence
market forces. The current Brighton & Hove Economic Strategy,
‘Raising our Game’ (2008) is distinctive in that its creation was led
by the Economic Partnership with the support of the city council
and other key stakeholders in the city. It was the subject of
extensive consultation with businesses, councillors, council
officers, the universities and FE sector and other city stakeholders.
The key aspiratfions included:

= supporting high growth businesses;

111



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

= promoting the application of new technologies across
sectors;

» improving business competitiveness as a means of creating
and safeguarding employment.

New economic realities

The current strategy spans the period 2008-2016 but was
conceived before the financial crash and subsequent flat-lining
of the national economy. Between 2008 and 2009 the United
Kingdom experienced the largest and deepest recession since
the 1930’'s; the international banking crisis affected over 90% of
the economies in the Organisation for Economic Cooperation
and Development (OECD). In April 2012 the Office for National
Statistics (ONS) reported that UK gross domestic product (GDP)
fell 0.2 per cent between January and March. The GDP fall
followed a 0.3 per cent decline in the final quarter of 2011,
fulfilling the technical definition of recession - two consecutive
quarters of negative GDP growth; in effect a double dip
recession with very uncertain prospects for growth nationally and
across Europe.

The advent of recession meant that many projects across the
city and the UK were stalled as access to investment capital for
major infrastructure and bank credit for small firms dried up.
Business failures and public sector job losses have contributed to
rising levels of unemployment and the need for an even greater
focus on job creation.

Against this backdrop there have been increases in the cost of
raw materials, food and energy and an increased desire on the
part of government to find sustainable energy sources and
reduce carbon waste. Public, private and third sector
organisations are being asked to take a more active role in
determining the future of their local neighbourhoods in an
environment of hard pressed resources.

Economic Development Commission

In February 2011 the Economic Partnership submitted a research
proposal to the Public Service Board. As a consequence the
Council’s Strategic Director of Place established the Economic
Development Commission (EDC) which reported to the Public
Services Board in September 2011. The findings and
recommendations of the Commission were accepted and
included:

. The proposal of the new Leader of the Council to seek a
formal review of the City’s Economic Development Strategy

112



3.12

3.13

3.14

in the light of the economic climate and the ambition to
move towards a lower carbon economy;

. To ensure that the City's economic strategy can deliver a
lower carbon economy, key statutory undertakers and
infrastructure providers are invited to participate in the
review process;

. The review works promptly to inform forthcoming revisions to
key areas of public policy including the Council’'s Core
Strategy;

. Create an up to date prospectus which sells the
city/encourages businesses to the area who are looking to
open or expand in this area;

. Draft an inward investment prospectus for Brighton & Hove
including priority investment locations;

. The revised Core Strategy-City Plan to consider site specific
options and incentives to enhance the better economic
use of land.

The recommendations are being taken forward by the members
of the Economic Development Commission which includes
representatives from the two universities, the Economic
Partnership, the PSB, the Chamber of Commerce, a Coast to
Capital Board member, City College and council officers from
Property Services, Economic Development and Planning; and
chaired by the Strategic Director for Place.

City Employment Skills Plan

The City Employment & Skills Plan 2011-2014 identifies the need to
create at least 6,000 by 2014 due to the rising population. To
date the Plan has been championed by a City Employment Skills
Group (CESG) chaired by Phil Frier who has recently stepped
down. Compared to many areas of the country, unemployment
in the city is relatively low but has beenrising. There are
particular concerns about the impact on young people growing
up in the city and finding it difficult to compete for local jobs.
The CESG has been proactive in promoting local apprenticeship
schemes.

Brighton & Hove Living Wage

The Council has adopted a living wage policy and has actively
encouraged other employers in the city to consider adopting this
where possible.

City Plan

113



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

On 10 May the second stage of consultation on the City Plan
was approved by Cabinet. The City Plan will provide the
strategic land use vision to 2030. It will set out how the council will
respond to local priorities, meet the challenges of the future and
identify the broad locations, scale and types of development
needed together with the supporting infrastructure.

The City Plan will form an integral part of the refresh of the
Economic Strategy as it will set down a clear set of parameters
for developments across the city, taking into account the needs
of priority sectors, business clusters and opportunities for jolb
creation. The consultation that has and will take place regarding
the City Plan will inform the direction of the Economic Strategy
and help to set priorities for the city.

Public agency intervention

In May 2010 the new Coadlition Government set out an ambitious
programme aimed at reducing the structural deficit, devolving
powers to local people and communities and re-balancing the
UK economy by promoting private sector-led growth. The
Regional Development Agencies were wound up and new
business led Local Enterprise Partnerships were created to focus
on economic development activity within self-defined local
geographies. There is an expectation from government that the
private sector will co-invest in major regeneration projects and
reduce dependence upon public funds.

The Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership is now fully in
operation and has commenced administration of public funding
initiatives such as the Growing Places Fund and the Regional
Growth Fund. It will also advise on the priorities for devolved
Department of Transport major projects funding. The Leader of
the Council has a seat on the Board and officers are working
closely with the partnership to ensure the city is able to benefit.

In addition to the LEP initiative, the government is also
encouraging cities and city-regions to step up in stimulating
economic recovery and sustainable growth. Brighton & Hove
does not currently form one of the designated 'Core Cities’.
Nonetheless, the city council, alongside other growth cities in the
south east region has been lobbying government to widen the
number of cities that may conftribute to the initiative.

Brighton & Hove Economic Strategy Refresh

Drawing on the work already underway and outlined above, the
advent of the Economic Development and Culture Committee
affords a timely opportunity to formally engage members in

114



3.21

4.0
4.1

4.2

4.4

4.5

refreshing the city’s Economic Strategy by reviewing the policy
assumptions of the current strategy, considering the impact of
the Council and its diverse activities on the business economy,
exploring the scope to better retain small and medium sized
businesses in the city and also to identify measures to encourage
new enterprises particularly around environmental industries.

The refresh of the strategy is being sequenced with the
consultation and adoption of the City Plan. A detailed timetable
for community and business engagement is being agreed with
the Economic Partnership.

City Prospectus

An early practical win in taking forward the refresh of the
strategy is the City Prospectus agreed in principle by the Public
Services Board. Reports such as the HSBC ‘Supercity’ and Centre
for Cities Outlook 2011 highlighted the unique business offer that
the city provides; including above average levels of
enfrepreneurs, graduates and business start up. The City
Prospectus will define in greater detail and on an ongoing basis
the substance of the city’s business and employment offer and
will set out for the first time to audiences in and outside of the city
a comprehensive profile of the city’s business and investment
opportunities.

Under the direction of a steering group, a local consultant team
have been given a small commission to expedite the collation of
content for a web site. This will include testimonials from leading
and innovative businesses, information on key businesses and
their supply chains, business sectors and their networks and site
development opportunities.

As a city with a global reputation for digital media and reflecting
the need to keep the information current, the prospectus is to be
hosted on a website that reflects the digital excellence of this
city and one that can be updated by the various partners
engaged in attracting inward investment. A web development
team has been appointed to work on developing a site that
showcases the cities core characteristics and displays the
content in a way that is appropriate for potential audiences.

Consultation on the prospectus is underway with Council
Members, business representatives, developers within and
outside of the city and other stakeholders. The web developers
will be suggesting options for the look and feel of the site to the
project working group which comprises the Economic
Partnership and officers from marketing, ICT and Economic
Development in the city council. Proposals will also go to the
Economic Development Commission for feedback.

115



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Along with hard data on city demographics, transport links,
educational achievement and quality of life, the strategy will
profile some of the key sites and developments with investment
potential in the city including those that are underway in order to
demonstrate the city’s willingness to support sustainable
development. This may include major projects such as:

2012-2015

= {360

= Block J New England Quarter

» Brighton Station Gateway

» Ultrafast Broadband

» Lewes Road Corridor improvements
» Preston Barracks

» Circus Street

» Toads Hole Valley

2015-2019

» Brighton International Arena
»= Brighton Centre

» Shoreham Port

» 3T's Teaching Hospital

The Economic Partnership has indicated its willingness to host the
site and all partners within the Economic Development
Commission will be contributing to the content and links to the
site. At the end of May partners will be meeting to agree a
working protocol similar to a protocol which has been
developed within the Coast to Capital LEP. The protocol will
ensure that all potential leads are followed up and that alll
enquiries wherever they land (City Council, EP, Chamber of
Commerce etc) will be captured.

The Council is working with a private business group led by South
Downs Solar who are organising, on a commercial basis, an Eco-
Technology Show at the Amex Stadium 15-16 June. The event
has a linked conference, called Smart Growth on the Friday 15
June at which Greg Barker MP (Environment Minister) is
scheduled to speak. A seminar session is arranged for the Leader
of the Council to profile the City Investment Prospectus along
with other initiatives such as the current plans for the i360.

Partners have been very clear that they want to focus on
producing an exemplar website that reinforces the city’s
creative and digital credentials. To this end they have not been
prescriptive about the deadline however it is expected that the
work will be complete by the end of the Summer.

116



4.10

4.11

6.1

6.2

As part of the hosting and content upkeep of the site the
Economic Partnership will consider whether there are any
income generation opportunities arising from it. It is not yet clear
whether a website of this type can generate income however
any income derived will conftribute to core costs for the
partnership (which ceased with the demise of the Regional
Development Agency) and will support activities arising from the
strategy.

Representatives from the government’s foreign direct investment
(FDI) agency UKTI are participating in the project and, in now
recognising Brighton and Hove as an FDI location, are bringing to
the city this coming autumn a delegation of ¢.30 US based
digital media companies looking to invest in the UK.

CONSULTATION

The work streams described in this report have arisen as part of a
consultation that took place with members of the Economic
Development Commission. Four separate sessions were held over
the course of six months plus two additional sessions focusing on
the inward investment prospectus.

A workshop on the City Prospectus was held in May and hosted
by Wired Sussex for the digital media sector and a series of
individual face to face and telephone interviews are informing
the content.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:
Financial Implications:

There are no immediate financial implications arising from this
report. The costs associated with production of the Economic
Strategy, the City Prospectus and website and the contribution
to the Eco Technology Show are all being met from within the
Economic Development initiatives budget for 2012-13. Other
work relating to the implementation of projects included within
the plan will be subject to further reports.

Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date:
07/0612

Legal Implications:

There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.
Work arising from the Economic Strategy that impact on council
services and resources will be subject to separate reports. The

117



6.3

6.4

6.5

5.6

6.7

detailed arrangements for hosting the website will be brought to
a future Committee.

Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce Date: 7/06/12

Equdlities Implications:

The Economic Strategy will be accompanied by and Equalities
Impact Assessment which will consider whether there are any
negative impacts arising from the agreed priorities and will seek
to mitigate them.

Sustainability Implications:

The new Economic Strategy will consider how Brighton & Hove
can become a ‘sustainable city’ with regard to a ‘One Planet
Living' framework. In seeking to reduce the carbon footprint of
the city the Economic Strategy will take into account the
recommendations of the Climate Change Strategy, the
Sustainable Community strategy and the cities bid to attain UN
Biosphere status.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

Improving the economic prospects of the city’s residents may
conftribute to reducing and anti social behaviour.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

There are no risk & opportunity management implications arising
from this report.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

It is expected that the creation of the Economic Strategy will
have a positive impact on the economic performance of the
city and will facilitate joint working with other public sector
agencies. The City Prospectus will provide a clearly articulated
business message that will seek to attract new business and
create jobs and strengthen understanding between the Council
and the local business community.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
Investment Prospectus background paper

118



Documents in Members’ Rooms:
None

Background Documents:
None

119



Annex 1: Economic Context

1.

The last quarter of 2008 and the first of 2009 were characterised by a sharp
contraction in world trade, industrial production and GDP growth in much of
the developed world. 2009 saw a steep decline in manufacturing output and a
similar decline in the service sector. With rising inflation and the near collapse
of global financial markets in 2008, business and consumer confidence
plummeted.

A combination of falling demand, high input costs and difficulties accessing
credit has squeezed business profit margins and cashflow. In response many
firms sought to conserve costs by cutting staff and reducing or cancelling
capital expenditure.

UK growth figures since its exit from recession at the end of 2009 have been
modest. In the first three quarters of 2011 the UK economy grew by just 1.0%.
Growth forecasts remain cautious and the ongoing uncertainty within the
Eurozone along with instability in other global economies suggests that the
UK economy may be depressed for some years to come.

Table One
The economic recovery has wavered

GDOP: Change from peak

2% —

[ g = (o} (==} -t [ O o
— — (o} [3r ) [3r ) -t

Meonths from start of recession

@ 1930-1934 ®1973-1976 1979-1983 1990-1993

Source: MIESR (2011) NIESR Monthly Estimates of GDF, 7 December 2011, London: NIESR

120

@ 2008-



4. The Conservative-Liberal Coalition came to power in 2010 with a pledge to
reduce the structural deficit, reform the Welfare State, devolve power to local
people and communities and rebalance the economy toward the private
sector. Significant public expenditure cuts were made along with the abolition
of the regional tier of governance (SEERA in the south east) and economic
development (SEEDA in the South East) in favour of new private sector led
Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs). The LEPs were encouraged to define
their own functional economic areas in which to direct local economic
regeneration.

5. The UK has struggled to rebuild its economy post-recession however and
London and the South East are still the main drivers of economic growth in
the UK. After London, the South East has the highest GVA per capita and
despite some significant pockets of deprivation the area has fared better than
many other regions.

6. Within the South East, Brighton & Hove was cited by the Centre for Cities as
an area with the potential to help lead the UK economy out of recession
(Outlook 2010). The Centre for Cities report highlighted the city's impressive
private sector jobs growth from 1998, along with it's proximity to London and
international markets via Gatwick Airport.

7. The 2012 Cities Outlook acknowledges that while Brighton does not have the
scale of cities like London, Manchester and Bristol to drive national/ regional
economies, we have particular niche strengths and a knowledge economy
cluster which provides the foundation for future growth.

8. The HSBC report describes Brighton & Hove as having the potential to
become a 'supercity' over the next 20 years and highlights its access to
knowledge and creativity as ingredients that make it well placed to become an
'alternative economic and innovation powerhouse'.

9. From 2005 — 2010 the total GVA produced by the Brighton & Hove economy
grew from £4,207,500,000 to £4,830,790,000 — a total change of 14.8%, or
£623.29m. However there have been notable differences in growth across
industry types. £350m of the £623m GVA growth came from Business
Services and Banking Insurance, with 86% of this from Banking & Insurance.

10. Electricity, Gas & Water have grown in value by around £100m, from £130m
to £230m or 77%. By contrast Hotels and Catering has contributed around
£40m GVA per annum and increase in 25%.

11. The trajectory of these industry types suggests that it is the higher value
sectors that are growing and the lower value sectors declining and that the
increase in the city's knowledge sector industries is positioning us well for
future growth, as existing clusters of businesses and individuals generate
momentum in the ‘new economy’.

The Rationale for Inward Investment

12.In 2009 the City Council published the Business Retention & Inward

121



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Investment Strategy (BRII). The BRIl sought to identify the strengths of the
local economy and the sectors that should be focused on for inward
investment and indigenous growth.

The BRIl suggested that the city should focus on those sectors where there
was an existing strength that could be developed; the key sectors identified
were:

Food and Drink Manufacture

High Tech Manufacturing

Financial Services

Computer and related activities, incl. Gaming

Retail

Other business services (incl. The creative industries)

It also suggested that there may be scope for the development of other
sectors such as the Environmental Industries and Health.

An Inward Investment Board was established in 2009 chaired by the elected
Member for Enterprise Employment & Major projects. The Board comprised
senior representatives from the private and public sector along with the
Universities with the aim of driving the BRIl action plan. One of the main
challenges for the Board was how to encourage investment in the city's
strategic sites and how to attract inward investment that would accord with
the City's existing business profile.

The advent of the recession saw some key developments stall across the city
and many existing businesses hampered from investing in their own business
growth due to reduced bank lending and limited access to credit

Activity focused on tracking the progress on development sites, building
relationships with the city's commercial estate agents by improving the
Commercial Property database and working with SEEDA to raise the profile
of Brighton & Hove overseas.

The BRIl identified a number of city strengths and these strengths remain
post-recession:

The city's creativity

Skills of the resident workforce
Two world class universities
High brand awareness

Quality of life

Business dynamism

Strategic connectivity

The Need for Inward Investment

19.

The City Employment and Skills Plan (CESP) 2011-14 sets a challenge for
the city to create at least 9,600 ‘'high quality' jobs by 2020 if it is to

122



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

accommodate its growing working age population; not taking into account
likely job losses over the period.

The government’s deficit reduction programme will see significant cuts to
public expenditure. Job losses within the public sector are likely to continue
as local authorities and other public services seek to balance their budgets.
The public sector accounts for around 19.7% of the business base (2008
latest data) and just over 33% of employment (2010). Evidence suggests that
this sector will continue to decline and it is therefore vital that strategies are
put in place to mitigate these job losses and the job losses that accrue from
private sector businesses that are reliant on public sector contracts.

The Centre for Cities report (Outlook 2010) highlighted Brighton & Hove’s
success in job creation, with over 20,000 additional jobs since 1998. However
the CESP notes that much of the job creation occurred between 1998 and
2001, with 5,400 between 2001 and 2005, falling to 3,200 between 2006 and
2008. Part-time employment accounted for 51% of the city’s employment
since 1998. Although recent cuts to public sector jobs have resulted in a
reduction in part-time employment in recent years.

The 2012 Cities Outlook shows that Brighton remains at the top of the UK
rankings for business stocks per head, but businesses are smaller than
average. The challenge is therefore how they can be grown to create
employment.

The city’s GVA is low relative to other localities (89% of the national average),
however it is artificially low due largely to the number of students in the city.
There are around 40,000 full-time undergraduates and graduates, many of
whom will stay in the city to become the next generation of entrepreneurs
driving our economy.

The presence of two universities is seen as a significant contributor to the
growth of the knowledge based industries in the city. Both the BRIl and the
CESP make the link between the graduate population and growth in key
sectors.

The land constraints of Brighton & Hove have been well documented. What is
known and agreed on is that there is very little brown or green-field land
available for development and there is a need to maximise the available
commercial space that already exists.

Vacancy rates for industrial/ warehousing and office are around 10% and
vacancy rates for Grade A office space is around 2%. The main demand is for
space between 465m? and 1,850m2 (5,000 — 20,000ft?). Many businesses are
attracted to Brighton & Hove due to its connectivity to London and the
relatively cheap office space. There is also a desire for flexible space, short
leases, easy-in/ easy-out terms and rent free periods.

In 2002/8 the Brighton & Hove Business directory highlighted 12 key
developments that would add new commercial space and employment to the
city.

123



Table Two

Black Rock X
The Brighton Centre X
Brighton Marina Inner Harbour

X
Brighton Marina Outer Harbour Technical start
Brighton Station Partial
Circus Street Started
Community Stadium \
i360 X
The King Alfred Development X
Open Market Started
Preston Barracks X
Yellowave V

28. Many of the developments highlighted in 2007/8 were stalled by the
recession, while others were unable to get the approvals needed to go
forward.

29. The challenge was highlighted recently by the council’s Planning department.
Around 90% of commercial Planning applications are approved by the
Council, however only a small proportion of these have started on site. Many
private landlords have sought permission for commercial development but are
reluctant to invest without an end user in place.

30. The Strategic Director for Place has initiated a review of key development
sites in the city to consider their ongoing viability in light of the current
economic conditions. It is likely that some space currently allocated for
employment will come under increasing pressure to meet our housing needs
in the city.

31. It is evident that this city needs to take pro-active steps to encourage
developers to bring forward approved developments and for landlords to
upgrade the available commercial space. The city needs a balance of
commercial space to accommodate start-up businesses and those that are
seeking to expand.

32. The university has highlighted a need for more business incubator space and

work is underway to identify a suitable space for an Eco-technology business
park.

Who should we target for inward investment?

33.

Some of the sectors identified by the BRIl in 2009 have weathered less well in
Brighton & Hove since the recession, while others have proved more resilient.

124




34.

Table 3 is based on the latest data available from the Business Register and
Employment Survey (BRES) — between 2009 — 2010

Table Three

Sector Employment Growth/ contraction 09 — 10 [n / %]
Food & Drink Manf 112/ -30%

High Tech Manf +255/

Financial Services 142/ -3%

Computer & Related +152/

activities, incl. gaming

Retail -489 / -3.5%

Other business services -552 / -27%

(inc. creative industries) (-378 1 -6%) > -930 /

Growth in the Environmental Industries

35.

36.

37.

38.

In March 2010 the Department of Business, Innovation & Skills (BIS)
published an update on their 2009 paper ‘Low Carbon and Environmental
Goods & Services: An Industry Analysis’. In the period 2007/8 to 2008/9 the
global Local Goods & Environmental Services market grew by £150bn
(4.7%), to reach a total market value of £3.2 trillion.

The total LCEGS market value in the South East for 2008/9 was £13.5bn
(12% of the UK Market). The total export market value for 2007/8 was
£1.57bn (15% of UK LCEGS exports). The total LCEGS employment for the
same period was 117,000 (12.86% of the national total).

There is very little data available on the Environmental Industries at a local
level. The BRIl identified around seventy-five businesses in the sector broadly
operating in three categories:

e Commercial and Domestic waste recycling
e Environmental consultancy
e Energy Saving Consultants

Table four highlights the growth in sectors with a higher GVA value. It
demonstrates that the sectors showing greatest growth are those within the
knowledge economy.

125




Table Four

GVA Growth '05-13 by sector: - ::zi::)% Services (Emns, 2005

1 (major GVA components) ——Banking & Insurance (Emns, 2005
prices)
Other (largely public) (Emns, 2005
prices)

——Health (Emns, 2005 prices)

——Education (Emns, 2005 prices)

——Retailing (Emns, 2005 prices)

£mns 2005 prices

——Transport (Emns, 2005 prices)

—Wholesaling (Emns, 2005 prices)
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Year ——Other F&B (real estate, R&D etc.)

(Emns, 2005 prices)

39. Table five shows that the higher value intermediate GVA industries have
grown at the top end, remained relatively static in the mid range, and
remained static or declined in the lower range.

Table five:

GVA Growth '05-'13 by sector: Construction (Emns, 2005 prices)

2 (intermediate GVA components) __p,jic administration & Defence
(Emns, 2005 prices)
Hotels & Catering (Emns, 2005

250 .
prices)
3 200 —— Electricity, Gas & Water (Emns, 2005
g prices)
:,' 150 —— Communications (Emns, 2005
g prices)
: 100 ——Paper, Printing & Publishing (Emns,
c 2005 prices)
5 50 —— Electrical Engineering (Emns, 2005
0 prices)
——Chemicals & Manmade Fibres
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 (Emns, 2005 prices)
Year ——NMechanical Engineering (Emns,
2005 prices)

126



40. Table six indicates that the lower value sectors have remained static or have
declined over the same period.

Table six

GVA growth in lower added value sectors

Food, Drink & Tobacco (Emns, 2005

GVA growth '05-'13 by sector: zlfi':ef) —
3 (minor GVA components) etals (Emns, 2005 prices)

Other Manufacturing (Emns, 2005
prices)
——Mineral Products (Emns, 2005 prices)

N
o

N
(8]
|

——Rubber & Plastics (Emns, 2005 prices)

——Wood and Wood Products (Emns,

£mns 2005 prices
=

2005 prices)

5 1 ——Agriculture, Forestry & Fishing (Emns,
% 2005 prices)

0 T — ——Textiles, Footwear & Clothing (Emns,
‘ 2005 prices)

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 ——Motor vehicles & other transport
equipment (Emns, 2005 prices)
——Mining (excluding Oil & Gas) (Emns,

2005 iricesl I

41. It is clear then that if Brighton & Hove wishes to meet its employment targets,
increase productivity and grow the business base there needs to be a pro-
active strategy to ensure that the city attracts and retains key businesses and
key business sectors.

Year

The Economic Development Commission

42. In spring 2011, following discussion at the Public Service Board the Strategic
Director for Place at the City Council chaired the Economic Development
Commission - a series of meetings with relevant stakeholders to revisit three

main areas:

e Employment & Skills
e Business and Enterprise
e Development enabling

43. As a result of this consultation it was generally agreed that the city would
need to develop a strategy to attract investment and to grow its existing
business base. Three actions were agreed upon:

e A city Prospectus
e A City Expo
e Arevised Economic Strategy

127



The City Prospectus

44,

45.

The aim of the prospectus is to set out the investment offer for businesses in
the UK and overseas. The content will focus on all areas of the city that
influence investment decisions. The summary in appendix one provides an
outline of the areas that would need to be included in the prospectus.

The available information suggests that the focus for inward investment
should be businesses in the key sectors identified in the BRIl as these sectors
are already operating in the city. There is evidence of sector growth and there
are opportunities to link the graduate pool to future jobs.

128



Questions

Are these the most appropriate sectors to target?

There can be higher variations within sectors than between them in many cases.
Sectors are too broad a category — we should focus on sub-sector
‘interdependencies’. We have low Co2 due to a low manufacturing quotient but green
tech is linked to some manufacturing sub-sectors. We should also identify sub
sectors to support the city prospectus.

What is the Brighton & Hove offer to investors for each of the identified
sectors?

Investors will look for supply chains that complement their needs.
Skilled workers are an important component.
Proximity to markets e.g. Gatwick, London supply chain and logistics.

Our local market structure favours smaller, dynamic, higher value added operations
which are final-demand oriented (e.g. Solar PV rather than windfarms). An exception
is the (co) production of knowledge and digital / creative content.

What countries/ cities do we need to target?

Regional (UK / EU / Global) knowledge centres with Knowledge Based Industry (KBI)
growth, capturing ‘spillover’ to feed our cluster development.

Are there particular firms that we need to target?

The city has benefited from high profile businesses moving into and expanding their
operations here, e.g. Amex, Disney Club Penguin.

How are we set up to respond to enquiries from each of these sectors?

Businesses interested in our city may approach a number of individuals/
organisations for information; do we provide a coherent offer? What more can be
done to ensure that opportunities are not lost. How will any inward investment service
be resourced and funded?

What are the potential obstacles for businesses wishing to locate here? How
can they be overcome?

How can we make the most of our assets and mitigate some of the challenges to
locating in our city?

Who else needs to be involved in developing our offer?

What other agencies, individuals and/or organisations have a role in branding and
marketing our city?

What organisations/ individuals are available to offer Investor Development
(aftercare)?

Once businesses arrive in our city how can we ensure that they stay, grow and have
access to the business support that they need?

129



Appendix One
Invest in Brighton & Hove - City Prospectus

This is a scoping paper that aims to identify the scope of future work needed in order
to develop a city prospectus. The purpose of a city prospectus is to attract more
businesses and investors in the city of Brighton & Hove.

This paper outlines the proposed content of the city’s prospectus, the media that can
be used to promote it and provides examples of existing websites that other cities
use to attract investors and businesses.

Topics to be covered in the prospectus

» Foreword — The city at a glance (e.g. transport links, skilled workforce,
business start ups, business support, quality of life). Marketing pitch - If the
foreword was saying there are 3 key compelling reasons to invest and locate
in B&H these might be themed throughout the website and documentation —
lasting images or impressions of what you would be buying into.

» Show case key employers, clusters and niches (give a sense of what is key
to the local & regional economy and also the business and knowledge
networks that provide competitive advantage).

» Showcase of major projects (1. A sense of what we have achieved in the
recent past. 2. What is happening now (e.g. consented schemes and those
under construction). 3. What is up and coming. 4. Long term ambition)

» Facts and figures

» |nfrastructure and Transport links

Rents per sq foot

Commercial development sites

Population growth, skills, employment rate (incl. languages)

Travel to work and employment catchment

Skills

Number of businesses, sector analysis (business to business &

business to consumer)

» Telecoms infrastructure

= Earnings and disposable income

= Visitors — market segments

= Quality of life (e.g. house prices, community safety and crime, culture,
festivals, places to live (including those in the wider region for exec
market, retail, restaurants & café culture), the natural environment, sea,
Downs and surf etc.)

= People services — health, social care, advice etc

= Retail spend

» Business support available (including links to directory of partnerships,

specialist business associations etc.

Testimonial from businesses about the city, its workforce, the business

support that they have received from the Council and other agencies, their

decision to invest/expand in the city.

List of recent investors and existing businesses that have expanded (need to

capture in this the sense of entrepreneurial dynamism).

Map of development sites and small description of them.

List of sites and properties available for development and letting - public and

private ownership.

Case study of an investor.

A\

YV VV V

130



» Contact details for Economic Development and other business partnerships.

Media

» Prospectus (electronic file), Newsletters
» Website which includes items such as:

=  Why invest in the city (small description with quick links to the following

topics)
Video which promotes the city

Description of development sites
Interactive map with the location of the development sites

showcase/
= Property search

How we can help (e.g. business support, property search, etc)

An electronic version of the city’s prospectus that can be downloaded

Virtual Brighton —one example - http://blog.virtualviewing.co.uk/3d-

= Operational costs (e.g. rent prices per sq foot, tax, business rates, etc.)

» Travel links including a map (a good example is on

http://liverpoolvision.com/A Place to Invest/Connectivity.aspx)

Economic overview
Sector analysis

Quality of life
Newsletters

Events

Latest news

Links to other websites
Contacts

Examples of existing websites aiming to attract investors
Gloucester - http://investinglos.com/

Manchester http://www.investinmanchester.com/

Nottingham http://www.investinnottingham.co.uk/default.asp?PagelD=1

Southampton http://www.invest-in-southampton.co.uk/

Belfast http://www.belfastcity.gov.uk/investinbelfast/

Liverpool http://www.investmerseyside.com/, http:/liverpoolvision.com/
Birmingham http://www.birmingham.gov.uk/aip

UK http://www.ukti.gov.uk/invest.html?quid=none

London Borough of Newham
http://www.newham.com/invest/home/home/0,10,0,0.html

Auburn http://www.auburn.nsw.gov.au/Business/Pages/business.aspx

131



132



ECONOMIC Agenda Iltem 11
DEVELOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council
CULTURE COMMITTEE

Subject: Peter Pan leisure site, Madeira Drive - Development
proposal
Date of Meeting: 21% June 2012
Report of: Strategic Director Communities
Contact Officer: Name: Toni Manuel Tel: 29-0394
Email: toni.manuel@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: East Brighton

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

To seek approval to grant Landlord’s consent, subject to final determination of
Heads of Terms by Policy Resources Committee, for the Brighton Bathing
Pavilion development on the former Peter Pan site on Madeira Drive.

This report details the process that officers have undertaken to market this site
for redevelopment and selection process which has resulted in the preferred
developer being chosen.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Economic Development & Culture Committee agree to grant Landlord’s
consent for the Brighton Bathing Pavilion development on the former Peter Pan
site on Madeira Drive.

That officers negotiate Heads of Terms for the required Agreement to Lease and

Lease to be approved by Policy & Resources Committee.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

133



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The site on Madeira Drive to the west of Yellowave, formerly known as the Peter
Pan Amusement Park, has been vacant for several years. In September last
year the site was marketed nationally by agents Oakley Commercial on behalf of
BHCC. An advertisement was placed in the Estates Gazette and a site brochure
was produced (see appendix 1). The brief was for a leisure development
opportunity and 10 applications were received.

A panel comprised of officers from Seafront, Tourism, Estates and Planning
along with the agents assessed the applications using a scoring matrix to
determine the strongest proposals. The assessment revealed that 2 of the
proposals closely matched the criteria and scored significantly higher than the
remaining applications. These 2 proposals were therefore shortlisted for
interview.

Presentations were made to an interview panel of Strategic Director for
Communities, Seafront Development Manager, Seafront Estates Surveyor and
Marketing Manager - Visit Brighton and representatives from Oakley Commercial
Agents.

The proposal called the ‘Brighton Bathing Pavilion’ presented by the Karma

Royal Group was chosen by the panel as the preferred development. The

scheme is modelled on a spa resort and comprises 5 pavilions; an indoor/outdoor
Children’s Club, a year round Spa and Health Centre, a Beach Club and restaurant, an
outdoor swim and bathing area and a member’s club with library (see appendix 2, 3 &
4).

Of the 5 zones featured in the scheme, 4 of these, the Children’s Club, Spa and Health
Centre, Beach Club and restaurant and outdoor swimming pool will be available to all
members of the public. The 5™ zone, the Member’s club, will only be available to users
who hold a membership with the Karma Royal Group. The proposal would provide a
year round, high quality, inclusive and family friendly facility which officers consider
would compliment existing uses within the area.

The developer, The Karma Royal Group, is internationally renowned, owning and
operating award winning resorts and spas across the world. The Brighton
Bathing Pavilion will be their first venture in the UK and the proposal is for a new
iconic attraction for local people and tourists in Brighton & Hove.

The Brighton Bathing Pavilion is an exciting and unique development opportunity
which will provide a high quality and sustainable attraction for the seafront. The
emerging Seafront Strategy identifies Madeira Drive as a key area of the seafront in
need of regeneration. Building on the success of the Seafront Development Initiative
between the two piers the council’s vision is to establish Madeira Drive as an all year
round leisure destination for residents and visitors alike. Existing businesses on
Madeira Drive already present an assortment of leisure opportunities for a variety of
different user groups. Examples include Yellowave for active young people; Peter
Pans playground providing free family play facilities and Concorde Il live music venue
providing nightime entertainment for young adults. The addition of the Brighton
Bathing Pavilion to the seafront portfolio will not only provide a new public attraction
and directly enhance the site but it will perfectly complement the existing uses adding
to the overall offer on Madeira Drive.

134



3.7  The Brighton Bathing Pavilion would not only provide a unique and attractive
facility for residents of Brighton & Hove but the concept also meets latent visitor
demand. The scheme would deliver much needed enhancement of the built
environment as well as significant employment and training opportunities.

The project would support approximately 300 new jobs and The Karma Royal
Group envisage working alongside educational institutions such as City College
and University of Brighton to deliver vocational training opportunities and work
placements.

3.8  The proposal builds upon the traditions of the city from 250 years ago and the
practices of the celebrated Dr Richard Russell. His recognition and promotion of
the health giving properties of water and of the seaside are credited as being
responsible for the transformation of the village of Brighthelmstone to become
the town and eventually the city we now know. The concept of this proposal is
truly bespoke to Brighton bringing the heritage of sea bathing back to where it all
began, yet delivering a contemporary and international flavour to reflect the
unique essence of the city today.

3.9  The building design will seek the highest aspirations of a Zero-Carbon footprint.
Energy systems will embrace the site’s unique characteristics to harness
renewable energy generation. On site energy production may involve solar-
electric (photovoltaic), solar-thermal, bio-mass and CHP, geo-thermal and air-
source-heat recovery in addition to a super-insulated building fabric. Designed
with a sustainable ethos the building will maximise solar gain and natural
ventilation. The baths are ‘naturally aspirated’ buildings using durable and high-
quality materials from local sustainable sources. Carbon-off-setting for in-direct
energy-consumption will be considered and where relevant ‘Re-Forestation’
schemes and investment into positive-energy production will be offered.
Construction will embrace the potential for training and look to benefit local
suppliers and craftsman as much as practicable.

3.10 The development site is currently an enclosed hardstanding which is located to
the north of the Volks Railway line and has remained vacant for many years.
The proposal seeks to use the whole of the existing site to the fence line.
Crossing points over the railway line connecting the beach to Madeira drive will
be maintained. Therefore there will be no changes to public beach access as a
result of the development.

3.11  The project is fully funded through private investment and does not require
support from either the banking sector or the council. The level of investment from the
developer will be approximately £5 million. As a result of the development of this
vacant site and the creation of direct and indirect employment the annual economic
impact of this scheme is considered to be in the region of £10 million.

3.12 Officers will negotiate the Terms for a Lease to provide a substantial rental
income acknowledging the major investment in the site proposed by the developer. It
is envisaged that an Agreement for Lease will detail the full extent of the works to be
carried out by the developer. Officers will seek to finalise Heads of Terms as quickly
as possible and seek approval thereto by Policy & Resources Committee.

135



3.13 The developer intends to undertake a public consultation exercise this summer
utilising the site for marketing and promotional activities.

3.14 Planning permission will be sought by the developer following Landlord’s consent and
public consultation.

3.15 ltis envisaged that subject to all permissions being granted the developer could
commence building on site early in 2013.

4, COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

4.1  Ata Scrutiny Committee workshop to discuss the Seafront Strategy all Members
were in agreement that the focus going forward should be on the regeneration of
Madeira Drive and in particular the vacant Peter Pans site.

4.2 A representative from the Local Planning Authority took part in the shortlisting of
the applications.

4.3 A pre-application meeting has been held between the Planning team and the
developer architects and the initial responses to the design have been favourable.

4.4  Officers within the Tourism and Visit Brighton teams welcome this attraction and
consider it meets a latent visitor demand.

4.5 The developer intends to undertake a public consultation exercise this summer
utilising the site for marketing and promotional activities.

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

5.1  The financial implications will be determined by the negotiations on the Heads of
Terms which will need to be based on a sound business case and ensure that
best consideration is met whilst addressing the key points as detailed in 5.2.1.
below.

Finance Officer Consulted: Michelle Herrington: 21/05/12

Legal Implications:

5.2  The proposal will require considerable investment and the developer has
suggested leasing arrangements and a rent holiday will need to reflect this.
However there has been no negotiation on the Heads of Terms and the council
must satisfy the requirements of best consideration under s123 Local
Government Act 1972. Key points which need to be agreed include the following:

General terms of the Agreement for Lease and the Lease

Extent of design control/input by the council
When the lease gets granted — before or after practical completion?

136



5,2,2

Premium and rent arrangements
Period of the lease

When the proposed Heads of Terms have been agreed it is proposed that they
be approved by Policy & Resources Committee.

Lawyer Consulted:Bob Bruce: 21.05.12

Equalities Implications:

5.3 The facilities will be designed to be DDA compliant. Pricing-to-suit-means and
memberships will ensure that the proposal is open to all and seen as a local
resource for local people.

Sustainability Implications:

5.4  The building design seeks the highest standards of sustainability. Energy
systems will embrace the unique characteristics of its seafront location to
harness renewable energy generation optimising sustainable productions.
Crime & Disorder Implications:

5.5 The facility will be open all year round and into the evening therefore providing
additional controlled activity and security in a currently underutilised area of the
seafront.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

5.6 Two developers were interviewed and both proposals were strong in terms of
their leisure use and compatibility with the brief. However, the panel felt that the
Brighton Bathing Pavilion proposal was the stronger of the two on financial,
architectural and reputational grounds. Existing businesses within Madeira Drive
will benefit from the new investment and increased footfall.

Public Health Implications:

5.7  This proposal will provide a facility where local residents can undertake exercise
and promote wellbeing in a high quality, relaxing environment.
Corporate / Citywide Implications:

5.8  This proposal will provide employment and training opportunities for local
residents and will act as a catalyst for the regeneration of Madeira Drive which
has been identified as one of the key elements of the emerging Seafront
Strategy.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Peter Pan site brochure

137



2. Brighton Bathing Pavilion UK Presentation
3. Brighton Bathing Pavilion Presentation (version 6) by Liam Russell Architects

4. Brighton Bathing Pavilion Addendum (version 1)

Documents in Members’ Rooms

1. Brighton Bathing Pavilion Presentation (version 6) by Liam Russell Architects

Background Documents

1.

138



SHRIOSEIR

72

NOITIAVd ONITHLVI zoemeﬁu—

—

\/ /

139

ﬂwﬂwu.&v S

9AOH pup uolyslg ‘SAIQ DIISPDIA/
91IS UD{ 49194 Jaw.o4 ay1 1o} [psodoid anbiun y

c1oz'so ® ﬁ N



SLAOS ]

NOI'TIAVd ONIHLVA NOLHOIdH

9|yodd Auedwo) dnoun) [eAoy ewJed| ay|
s|ie3ag 12eIU0D)
uonewsJojul pue s3uimedp 3dasuod)

XIAN3d

NOISSTddII S.LSIL
uoisn|puoD)

$S922Y/

A1jIqeureIsns pue uodNJISUOD)
asuodsay udisa(]

1dacuon) ay |

JUBWISSISSY NS

wea | 129(oud

$1J0S9Y Bw.eY)

uoldNpo.LIU|

dV
R\
06
08
0L
09
0§
(VR4
0¢
0¢
0l

X3aqg ®

140



NOI'TIAVd IONIHLVA NOLHOIH

‘|eadde SpIMP|JOM UIIM UOITBUISIP B SAOH PUe uolydlig Sxew Jeyl aunjeu anbiun syl 03 Suianqliluod -
uonRn|os jeanoeld pue Sujlidsul uB yIm SNSSI 3S3YI DUODISA0 03 $yjoo| [esodoud siy | -adeys JejndauJl s3I pue (Yoeag 9yl 03 UO[IDAUUOD
s31 3undnaiajul) aul| Aem|iey S>|OA U3 4B SSNSSI UiBW S,231S 3y | ‘Buidudy A3ijenb mo| pue 3uipuels-paey Ajujew sasidwod Jjas3i 231 3y |

. ‘(58e.u9A5q puE pooj Ajurewr) sSN |BIRUSPISSI-UOU JSYIO PUB GN|D) PUB JBg SH|OA dU3 SI ‘DALI(] BIISPR| JO SPIS YIJOU Y3 UO
‘U0IEIS ABM|IBY $3{|OA 342 03 1udEIpY/ USld S0B[B4 SY3 IBYI PUOASq PUB UOIIEIS ABM|IBY SH|OADY? [12UN 3[1W B JO pJiyl auo Aj1ewixoldde
Joj paadniusauiun yoesq Jo Yd532.43S B USYl PUR SPIYS PaJoA0D 3|24-3uljoo. ABYSISUn JO unJ e Sal| 9IS Y3 JO ISOM AJSIBIpaIW|

'[eadde |euoneu Sey pue aNUIA UOIIEIDUSZ-INW B SI
SIY | 'S123y8i4 004 3y | SB Y2NS SIOB P3UMOUS. PlJoMm Suj3dBIIIB SNUSA DISNL SAI| B - Z 9pJOOUQY) BYI PUNO) 9q UBD 9IS Y3 JO ISEIYIION]

"BULJBJ] UO3Y3lug Yydead uay) pue (waopejd-uoness |jews si
UYIM) BUl| SY|OARY3 JO puUD 33 D0y >oB|g ‘PuUnoly saxn(g ssed A|[enjusAe [|Im SUO 3J49Y3 Wod) 3uinuiuoy) ‘B3 93BI2A3q PUB POO) |[ewsS
B Yum 3uofe Juswdinba Buiquiid pue saunjes) J9Jem SUIBIUOD YdIYM uaJpiyd |jews Joj punoudAeid sejndod e sai| urede 3ses Jayiing

"$3UN0D |[BGA3||OA PaJ2AOD pues a3 apISSUO|e SIS SIY3

pUe [oyoDdje ulpn|oul SYULIp Ylim Suoje POo} JO PJepURIS POOS B S9AUSS 1Y) Ba.UE 93BI9ASQ PUR POO) B SBY SABAA MO||SA Y| "SUOIIIPUOD
[eSp! 93 21834 01 pues pataodwi Ajurew 9s11dwod SpUNo.I3 S11 PUB BaJR UDBq Y YIIM |[9M SDIBISIIUI SABAA MO|[SA 3Y | '||Bq100}
-UoBaq pPUR ||BGAS||OA S4B S140ds uleul Sy 1|8 S}NP. PUB UJP|IYD 4O} UOIIDRIIIR S1u0ds B S| SNUIA S110dg yoeag SABAA MO||IDA YL

"aul| Aem|Iey $H|OA 3Y3 JO YInos pa3edo|
S| 9ABAA MO||SA 3Y3 Pa||ed uondeJyle aunsia| Jejndod e “1ses syl 01 4aylang ISSM 03 1SeD Wody AUepunoq 3)IS uiayinos ayl Jo Yidus)

ay3 03 snon3i3uod 3uluunda aul] ABM|IBY D11303|F SH|OA Y3 SB YONS S2UNILS) SJRIPSUILI SJOW SWOS Sey pue adeys ul Jejn3dadul si 331s ay |

"9ALI(] BJISPRL S,uo1ydlug 01 [9]eded Suluuna speuswold Syl JO SPIS UIBYINOS Yl UO P]BIO| SI (,33IS 3Y3, ) SIS UBY J213d JaWIo4 3y |

141



1107 24811Ado — AydeiBo10yg Aonre uog Aq afew)

NOI'TIAVd ONITH.LVA NO.LHITH

'ssado.d uonenjeas-aud a3 ul A||nj paJapisuod

U93q 9ARY $93Ud||eyd 3uliSdUISUT PUB [B4N1IIYIIY SY | ‘Pa3esIAuD uaaq Sey 91ep 3ujuado 1S31[Jes Byl 4Nsud 03 $HJoM jo Suiseyd
J1sieaJ & pue 303foud a3 jo A1|IqBIA SYI S4NSUS 03 INO PaLIIed US3q APBAU[R SBY >JOM DAISUIXT “BulIRY| Ym diysuone@a Supjuom

® 9AeY ApeaJje oYM SIsieIoads uoi3dNnIIsuoD) puB [Bin3daliydly paseq A||edo| Aq paiioddns 9q ||Im $340SaY BUULIRY| IB WEd] SIY pue uyof

‘24n3e.43)| 3ulAuedwodde Joj xipuadde 23S - payoeIIe S| BULLIBY| JO MIIAIDAO Pa|ieIap W

"SI9INO |13 PUB SIIUSD 2DUBIJUOD ‘sqn|d
Yoesq ‘syue.aneisad ‘seds uipn|oul S3131USWIE PaJe|ad JO S3UBI SPIM B pue ‘sjuosad g| seledado pue sumo mou dnous [eAou ey 3y |

"SJUSAS PUB S2DUDIDJUOD

A43Snpul 38 JOSIApE pue Jayeads Juanbaly e S| pue 4es) 3y | JO Jnauaidasiug ueljeaisny 3Unop @ 3sulg (0] 07 Y3 papleme sem uyof
0107 V| '$340S9Y BLUIRY| 1O} UOIIBZI[BIISIBUI PUB UOISIA 9dadu0d Y3 jo Suipueisiapun 3uouis B pue A31|IqIpa4d SPIMPJIOM uyo[ sploye
‘sueaf g| 3uiuueds Auedwod Jusuund siy jo diysisumo ayi ydnoayl Ajaejnon.ed quawdo|oAsp 140sad Ul 9dusLIsdXa SAISUSIXS S,uyof

"anjeA pue a3eds ‘9A3saj| Aunxn| Jo SsJUBWIJR Y3

UO SNJO} B YIIM S3UISSP pPUB SPasu [eNpIAIpUl ,$1S9n3 JO uoisn) & aplAcid 03 SulAjoAS A|JUBISUOD S $1U0SDY BUILIRY| “SHJBWYDUS] 1S3y

s,A13snpul ay3 3uipasdxa A1IAIIESUD pPUE 3N|BA ‘92UBS39|D ‘9 1S9| BulUaYO 140SDU AINXN| JO SABM MIU B padO|aASP SBY BLUIBY| USY] 3DUIS
"BISSUOPU] I|eg ‘Aeg ueaequI[ Ul PRIBDO| ‘UBJRqUII[ BULIRY - 110SY BWJIRY| IS4} 9Y3 paydune| dnoud [edou ewuey 2yl £007 2unf yig| uQ

40ddns

[BUIDIXD 4O} PISU OU S| 3433 PUB SPUN) SSNOY-UI WO SWOD [|IM Juswadinbau Suipuny ay] A0 ay3 yum diysasuraed |nyssadons

© 2UNSUS puB SAOH pue uoly3iig Joj JuswisaAul pasodoud aiay ureisns 03 3uoddns pauinbau ay3 ssjuesend 03 $924N0SAU JUBDIUSIS SBY
‘A|[euoneuiaiul pawie|dde 3uiaq Se ||Pom Sk ‘uyof jo A3usus pue wseisnyiua syl Aq pa| ‘dnoud [edoa ewuey| ay| *(suriuolydiug pjQ Ajenbs
aJe s40123d1p dnous ¢ siy jo 7) sduadg uyo[ ueiuoyydiug p|O Aq p3| pueaq pue Auedwod [euoijeuISIUl UB - [BAOJ BwlIRY| 9Y3 SI 303loud
a3 4oy Jusuodoud sy | "SAOH pue uoly3iag Ul SJ3Y ISXJBW JUSLLIUIRIISIUS PUB SUNSIS| I JO J3UI0D YU ¢ [|1} 03 sasodoud piq siy |

142



| 10z 3y21iddory — AydesSojoyy Aaasep uag Aq a8ew|

NOTI'TIAVd ONTHLVE NOLHOTHY ¢

‘uoneJspIsuod ojul syuiod ssayl Sunjel uoneandiyuod wnwndo ue sasodoud Jaluqg Siy |

*90edS |BUIDIXS S|geSN pUB UOIIBPOWIWOIDR [BIDISWILLIOD 3|qises) SulpiAoad 1s|iym 311s oyl uo s3ulpjing a|dnjnw usamiaq asiwoidwod

B pulj 01 pasu Y1 3q ||IM 1S 3y AII0oYINy |07 Y1 YUM pauwiijuod Apusnbasqns ussq sey Siyl - SOUDJIR dAI( BAISPE| Y1 01 42N
Jaddn ay3 ueyl usysiy ou pue skau03s oml Ajlerewixoidde 01 pa3d1aIsad 9 pjnom Jusudojeasp sy jo y3isy a3 Jeyl pajedidijue Sem I

"PUoAaq eas pue yoeaq syl Yyaim diysuonejad 3109.1p SJow € )Bpowwiodde o3 pasodoud aq

[|!M S20BdS |BUIDIXS BY) pUB SJB.II) Y3 Jo Buisied JY3i|S B UOCHIPPE U] *B|OYM B SB JUOUJBIS SY) JO UONIqIE 33 saydiew pue sjesodoud
ay3 sans 1eyy Ayenb ySiy Suiyiswios yim paoejds. aq U SUIDUSSIUSIIND SYI WNWIUIW B Sy UOIBAIS JUSIIND SY) SDUBYUS pUB
aro.udwi 01 sjesodo.d sssy Jo uonuSIUl SY3 SI 3| USYIOUR SUO YaIM 1ea833ul 331 pasodoud pue yorsq syl 1BYL.ABM SY1 01 USHEL 3] [|IM
yoeoudde (sfes 1nq) 4os & A||eap| '911S Y3 WOy Ydeaq Syl SSIPIAIP UdIYm ABM|IBY SY|OA Y3 JO 1034 a3 S3y31jysiy 211 a3 JO [9AS| 3Y |

‘pasodoud auopuayy
S1 3uIp|ing o|3uls uo uey) JaYyied SSuIp|INg JO SIS Y "D1IS Y3 uideurw Jo sayedndesd pue A3undas ay3 Suisiwoidwod Jou IS|Iym
uado |93} pjnoys Auepunoq sy | "apeuswodd ay3 jo Yyidua| syl uluuna Apeadje sa0udj aY3 03 Je|iwis Auepunoq sjqeswaaduw Jayjoue
JO 109448 8Y3 1eaJD 0] Jou Sk 0S ydeoddde pajuswide.) B SpUBISP 331S 343 JO YI3us| Y ‘|eSp! JoU S| 3IS DY) JO SUNIBU JB|N33UUl Y|

:s|esodoud jusuund syl pa3d3jje SABY JBY) SUOIJBISPISUOD JO J3qUINU B 4. 343Y3 A||edluyds|

DABAA MO||SA PUB 7 9pJ0dU0D) 243 SB yons Ydoeaq 3y3 Uo $asn Jaylo o3 Ajwixoud ay | .
Jawnsuod ay3 03 AJuniuoddo auow sayo 03 asn Jo adA3 JejiwIs B JO OB B e
AeM[IBY 111033 SY||OA Y3 JO UONEIO| Y | »

SAlIQ _uiapely 03 ANwixoud sy .

:SMO||0} SE aJe saniunlioddo aq 03 palen|eAS-aJ Ua3q SABY YdIYM 31IS 3Y3 JO SDNISIIDIDBIBRYD)
‘'uonnjos anbiun e saainbau yons se pue anbiun s1 yoeag uolysiig tuoedo| S,331S
3Y3 JO w0} 3yl ul 35 pajuasaid Ajiunjaoddo anbiun e eyl ues|d sem 3 ‘sjesodoud sy uo duom uedsq Wesl syl JusLoW Y3 Wo.l

143



| 10T 3yB1uAdoy — AydesSojoyy Aaasep uag Aq a8ew|

NOI'TIAVd IONIHLVA NOLHOI1YH

"suoduny
10} 9|qeIINS Dq OS|E [|IM BIJR SIY] — U A|iep JO} S|qR|IeAR SSuIyDeW Sulyieq [BD140ISIY oI paudisap seueqed a1eAlld 9q [|Im
2493 A||euonIppY "928.43] 3pISIN0 puk |ood B apn|dul [|IM JBY) Jawwns ay3 ul [euonesado Ajluewiad eaae ue dojoASp ||IM BuLIR)

(eaue Jowwins Aseijodwa) pue [BUISIX3) SAUIYDRL 3ulyleg 9y | — G UOl|IAeg

"A3luswe pue gnjd siyl 4o} Jusuodwod UOIIBPOWIOIDE [BD0| B 3plAoid 03 (311S 9|qelns

Ajjennuajod e paounos Apeau|e 9ABY M) [910Y [BD0] [jBwS B dOjSASp pue AJl OS[E [|IM SAASII0SU [BqO|S UNO 01 $S3228 BUIAIS sqn|d
SPIMPJJOM ano 03 diysiasquiaw os|e Inq AJIUSWE SIY) A|uo-JoU WO J1J2Uq |[IM SI3GUISJL] 'SLWOOU 3ulISdW pue 3UNOo| JaUJalul

pue ‘AJeuqi| B Yeq Staquisw B 3pn|aul [jim siy | ‘diysisquisw oy uado aq ||IM Yd1ym gnjd siaquuisil 31eAlad & dojpASp ||Im BB

qn|> euwJE}] 8y | — § UOl|iAEd

JSWILINS 3] I0J 9DB.1ID) B SE [|9M SEB JSUIBIM peq

40} 90eds [euualul SPN[DUI [|IM PUB SNUSA PUNOI-IBSA B 9q ||IM 1 — SPUBQ PUE S,[(Q WO} Y3 Ul JUSWIUIBIIDIUD DAl UM SUOIR UulIp
pue pooj 1ea.3 Jo uoneuiquiod e aplao.ad o) padojsAsp 99 ||IM 3dSDU0D JUBINEISSI/IBG B PUBIQ JUBINEISSI-YIBIQ S BULIRY| JOPUN

SOWWEN] — § Uol|iAed

‘padeurw pue paunidonuis A|nj q ||IM pPUB S31IAIIDR [euoneINpa-UN) pue Aejd Jo UOIIRUIGUIOD B UO
3q ||!m siseydws sy3 feaue Ajjuswe uny 1am |[ews e 3uneisodaodul Aj1oey Aejd s,usup|iyd JOOPUI/IOOPINO UB dO|SASP |[IM SM BLUUIRY)|

punoJ3Ae|d ued 49194 @y — T uol|iAed

ueq

92IN[ pue BaJE [1B1DJ [|BLUS B SE ||9M SEB 'SOIpN]S pale|aJ pue B304 ‘Sa1B|ld JoyO OS[e ||IM eds sy 'suondo pue sjuswiesdl punod Jeak
apiao.d 1M pue Jusuodwod 19M, B aARY ||IM BdS ay3 Ajjeuonippy 233 ‘Buljind |nos ‘Suljeay |e1SAUD {|ensnun pue SABUISI|E SJowW

a3 03 239 ‘@undipad ‘©8essew {euonipe.) ay3 wouj ulAieA syuswiesd) jo a3ued e 3uipiroid eds 301A43S ||n) B dOJSASP ||IM IAA

edg BWIRY| — | UOI|IARY

14

€S

1°S

‘asodund oypads e Suialss
OB UYIIM SSUOZ G OJUI PSPIAIP 3q ||IM BSJER 33 A|IUBWIIJ "SBIIB PAISA0D AJeiodwa) [BUOSESS PUB ‘SBSUB |BUIDIXS ‘SUOI|IARd Pa3dNJIsSuod

Jo Jaquunu e 3s1dwod |IM SIY] " NOITIAYd DONIHLYE NOLHDIYE 243 p3|jed Aluswe ue 33eaud 03 si 1dsduod 3d3loud ay |

144



| 102 yBuAdoy — AydesSoloyy Aaase uag Aq a8ew|

NOI'TTAVd IONIHLVA NOLHIIH

‘sjue|d 2130X3 SulISMO|} SAIIDRIIIE JSYIO PUB (9341 wijed) SB3DBIAUY SB YONs $3123ds 130X 40w IpIS3uo|e
sjue|d pue SuaMO|) ‘sasseud p|IM, Jo sa1dads [eD0] SpNn|doul ||IM Seaue padedspue| sy | "Seade AJIAO. pue Sulleas [BUJSIXS ujew
93 WO} ||IM $2UNJe3} JJBM puB SUIDBLINS-P.BY ‘pues iseate padedspue| pue sa0eds |Bulslxa Jo A1a1ieA e spiaodd [jim [esodoud ay |

odeospue| pue sadeds [euJsix3y

'SUOIIDUNY [BUISIUI SUIAJOAS A3UBISUOD S3I YyIm Buip|ing 33 Jo doup->oeq [Bdn3da1IYdJe JUod! 3y Aolua oym Jeak yoes

SJOJISIA UOI||IW | PUNOJB SIDBUIIB YDIYM [|IYXDg Ul UOI|IABY JUBAA B (] 2Y3 SE ABM SWIBS 33 YdNnwl ul papJesdad aq ||im suol|iAed
9y3 Jo u3iSsp Y3 eyl padesIAuD S| 3] U0} umowy| 3q Ajerewn|n |[Im [esodoud syl yoiym Aejd Jo ssuss pue sa0eds |euusijul paway)
ay3 01 doup>deq & Sk 3unde Is|IYyM Aunnids [Ban1dS3IYdJB PUBISYIIM D10jJ3Y1 ued 3ulp|ing 9y | 'ASBIUR) PUB UNJ JO ISUSS B D|OAD
0} U3q SeY 335IN0 Y3 Wod) ‘|esodoud SY3 JO UOIIUSIUI DY | "DINIUSAPE PUB UNSID] ‘SJAIS YIIM SNOWAUOUAS SI 0097 34y ISI[BWIUIW
JO/pUE 1SIUISPOW SB PagIISaP USYO SI YIYm 3jA1S 023 14y SY3 JO SANBI0AR Aj91euaqisp si [esodoud siyl jo udisep sy

soueseaddy

‘sanjioe} A3jenb yiy ay3 3soy o3 (papiaoud suoppuay3) pasinbad swinjoA

JO Junowe [ende ay3 3sIN3sip 03 ulp|ing Ydes jo ssew 3yl ysiuiwip sdjay osje [9A3| Jaddn s 3uip|ing Ao403s-0M1 Ydea Jo udisap
>0eqIas 9y | JuiodmalA suo Aue wouj 3ulieaq-IaA0 3ulaq J0U 1S|IYM SUO SB peau 03 paudisap ua3q sey [esodoud ay3 jo Seds 3y |

9WN|OA pue SSew ‘9jedg

"9NUSA/INOAR| 21IS JUaJ2Y0D B Sunuasatd IS|Iym Juoyeas ay Jo ssauuado
a3 sureaurew [esodoud aya 3BY) 2unsud 01 ddeds [euldIxa/usdo Yam 33ea9A02-231S paduejeq Aj23elaqi|ap sey jesodoud ay |

"sapeuswoud padeospue| IA paplAoad Si UOI|IAB4 OB 01 SS30DY/ BS PUB YdB3q Syl US3MISq 31|/208)

pue 3)1S Y3 JO Sa3pa uJaYINos 3y uo|e palenlis SJe SIDBAS [BUIRIXD Y| "30IS Y] JO 93pd uJayliou 3yj UO|. ISSM O] ISES WOl
unJ suoljiaed ay| ‘wbsgz| punoJe jo |9 B yum uoljiAed usjjews e pue wbsgpg Aj91ewixouadde jo (YD) BaJay [BUI)U| SSOUE) B
3uipiaoad suoljired £2103S-0M] 2313 DJB S49Y) ‘SBAUR [BUIRIXD puk suoljiaed Sjeaedas unoj apiroid o) paundiyuod si InoAe| 3is Y |

93e.2A0D 23S pue AJIsusp InoAeT] 21IS

r'9

€9

9

19

145



DZ 3YB11hdoD) — AydeiBoloyy AaateH uag Aq a8ew|

NOI'TTAVd ONTH.LVA NOLHITH

‘||e 03 3|qissa20e pue uado 2q ||im [esodoud sy3 — sjuswaJinbad Yons s3epOWILIODIE O3
paudisap Seaue 9Y3 JO AUB Ul SpBW 3 [|IM UOIIDUINSIP OU IO 3|33 PUB SIS3SN Pa|qesip Pue Jugnquie Joj papiacad aq |jim A31|iqissd0e ||n4

"SYIUOW IUIM pUB 3SN Sl JY3Iu 1o sadeds [BUIIXS JI|-||oM O) uonIppe

ui papiaoud aq ||1m sadeds 31240 24nd3s pue passao)) ‘jesodoud sy Joj pasn aq os|e ued eyl asn 21jqnd Joj (393.43s-uo) sadeds jo
Jaquinu adue| & 3uiAey (Ajjeonoead pue) osje 1sjiym (unjued pajedipsp Suipiaroad Jou AqQ) asn Jed sadeunodsip a3s ay | “luodsue.) ojgnd
Aq pue 3242 Aq 100} Aq paydead aq ued |esodoud 3y | ‘opow Juodsueay 3|qeurelsns jo adA1 AuaAs o) pa1edo| A|jeap! si jesodoud ay |

‘sua1|ddns [edo| woudy 3|qissod auaym padanos 3u1aq Is|Iym 3u1Ise|-3uo| pue 9|qeanp .. Jey] S|elJJBW UO SNJ0j O3
UOIJUUI BYJ JSASMOY S| 3| ‘PIBMIO) DAOW IM SB DG 01 SNUIIUOD ||IM PUR JO |NJpull S| Wes| udisa ay3 Sulyiswos si A3uaus palpoquil

"PRAI[INO US3q SBY Ja1uq [BUISIIO SYI SDUO/JI PUB S4NINJ SYI Ul SISN JSYI0 Joj uoneidepe
9JepowiLodde 01 paudisap aq p|noys 3ulp|ing ay3 Ja1uq 3Y3 Jo JuswadinbaJ e se '3 uISap S|qBUIRISNS JO D1ISIISIDBIBYD P OO|JSA0
-uayo Jayjoue se 3ulp|ing 3|qix3|}, © Jo uoisiroud syl spaedas wea) udisap ay3 Ajrewn|n ‘sjesodoud pajieisp syl uiyum pakojdwas

3q 01 ||e aJ4e uonejnsul-ladns pue 3unsaAiey A3usus 931S-U0 ‘S3UI) PUB S2UNIXI) ASI9US MO| ‘UOIIBNUSIIE JSJBMUIBY "SOWOH 9|qeuleIsnS
10} 9p07) 9Y3 SB YONS SWISAS Sulpedd Joylo Byl pIBPURIS SNBYAISSEY DI U] DDUBAS[DJ SJOW SIS WIE) USISSP DY | "JUSWUOUIAUD

9U3 UO 1D3Y€ [BWIUIW & pue (SWiIay| s3I 40)) asn A3uaus 1S9MO| a3 Yyum 3|qissod se 3uo| se 4oy s1se| Jey3 3ulp|ing e si [esodoud siyl ul
Ajiqeureasns ay3 jo a|didulud [edi8ojospi sy | "ued 31 Juswdo|sASp S|qeuleIsnS 3sow 33 3ulp|ing YIIM paysel usaq sey wesl udissp ay |

146



| 107 3yB1iddoD — Ayde.Boloyy AanaJeH uag Aq adew)

SURI@ISICIN| I —
>kl TN AT AT /7))
DAL ST

L2/ L

NOI'TIAVd ONIHLVA NOLHOIYH

"S3UIp|INg JO SIS HJBUWIPUE| B 9 UBD dAI[2q M TBYM
uo |12unoD) L1170 9AOH pue uolysiug YMm SUDIOM Ul 3S3431U] B34 AJSA JNO SWIUOD 3 ISN.II OM JIAIMOY UOISSNISIP P3|ielap aJow
01 123[qns ‘Ajjeanieu ‘st [esodoud unQ "nok o1 uolssiwgns 4no Juasald o1 3|qe 3q 01 pa1YsI|ap 3JE WEI] USISIP S PUB S1IOSY BULIRY|

147



7990 081 §¥80 — W02 |- yauaZ Mamm Aq a3ew

.W’y‘-l!‘ :ﬂ-.ﬁ <

alnut



NOTI'TIAVd ONITH.LVA NO.LHOId

SN TN TSN T —

/ |
7|\ (q N o) Il

\-\\v .\\,I.......ﬂ...m.. (= _.\\\\f....l /
= - (__— O

3|yo.d Auedwo) dnour) [edoy ewuey| ay |
s|re3sq 10e3u0)

[esodoud 1y SAlIQ BlIpEl Suoly 3upjooT] — adew| Yol ‘0
aoue.ug s |esodoud oy Iy SupjooT — 23ew| YIS q
YaJoN 8upjoo] sjesodoud ay| wouq — 23ew| Y2Is =

1S9ANA Bupjoo] sjesodoud ay| wou4 — a3ew| Y2Is ‘q
3se3 3uP|00T SAYDJY BY | WOou4 — 3dew| YoIng umy
IS9ANA BUD|0OT 943 s paig — 23ew| YIS 'q

yoeag oyl wodj 3seq YlaoN 3upjooT - a3ew| yois W
umoys edg BwUBY| DAIBDIPUI — SUB|4 UOI|IARY [ed1dA| S00
SUOIIBAS|] UOI|IARY |ed1dA| $00

UOIIBAS|] / UOIDDS YINOS PUB UONEAS|] YION €00

V-V uondag 3uoT pue ueld Jooy 700

Sue|d JOO|4 3SJl{ PUB puUNo.L) 100

3unsixa se ueld S 000

XIAN3d ©

149



00 Osrerm

/

‘fﬁ T

B
b

i

;'?
7%

3“;5#

B LI
LT
e

150

aj
8l
5
_ﬁfg k
o &
L
g &
8 §
o | ]

bRIGHTON BATHING PAVILION

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.  THI DAAWING 5 COFTRIGHT ©




@@&@@H@

9 AHOMASOD §1 DNIMYEO SHL  DNAYSD SIHL WO 3TYDS LON 00

4 4% 0w foainl phs
!‘Ii’!!t! (lﬁvhl:!lqilu

WRWAGIAIP PUT FINIINRIT

$12911YdJYy |[3SSNy WelT

NOI'TIAVd ONIH.LVA NOLHOIIYH

==
—_—
e,

™ ) >
I |
|
s BEsnELas el
T A= HibtT i s wa NSNS 1,
mi naas i W [ TG
11 4 | | IR+ 111 112 HESaEa 8 P LR G
t ol o 8 i ENEEES S wres 4 IR ﬁm. 1
H H Bas | ] I issan: T EEEEE -
Bas T W..uﬂ ++l 7 ST 8 H7 / L/ . L. ..-_M\ L1 i
T - { = i T = H-EH
1 + L UL it T.w by w = NPy B ik
is EmE 35 550 Ra TN ws IWE uN 58
is EBE wus i) ous 100 HHES T TR "
1 Ems AR X - I F-HH ; +
Bui EEmE mr A wl.ﬂi..l o s i mud HE an...., Wuﬁw*lh o e i
- BEE fah\Ryika: an E3% iSH War i an 328 33
1 I ST i |- -- MEE NS T TR
211 11 i 17 1 _ _ 111 _ ~ 1] o B LB 3w
! 11 Hamse IZsunm EERE i i e 2 i 8
f AR xwvsimw &Y .mrw» E AR S e [

TE0

..,.sNo

s s ks

& o o \..L”..W_..a\& - 9 mwwlaa @ = o 1” T

puno.dieyg 5utd J33ag | — o

NV1d ¥OOTd LSuld

P -~

i S v e~ e < e S

€0

sy Ang Joopaing

punc.iBley s ury smag | — o

NV1d YOO T4 ANNOYD |—H

0

151

0



O AHDMASOD 3 ONIMYD SHL  DNMYEO S5 WOW TTV2S LON 00
PEMLLNG oo Bae punag s pasainiin B sIqLry ey e
- IV 001 EHRRIVE 5 TEVE DT THHA) bhe 8
A1 AT GRS IR i, W AR wevRaa] 3 AT i NPT PR § Ve R

= oot e R NOI'TIAVd ONITH.LVA NO.LHITH

B

f mwﬂ_

o =y V-Y NOILD3IS ONOT - [e21dA |

152

SNLLNY W ONY 3300 WY

SOVOE0Z0 107

W wims Buppe.q ® Jog, ) _. == _ 1004 30NS WLV

e S amames ma Y. S v B T B 7 A . M v 2 S 52 S RS R0 R0 v S, ¥ Sy ¢ S T S A

—E0

| dBams ;2 unaas (I ] = ¢
ST vy v =, w7 < W —

punodie g ung Jmad ) _ o

NV1d YOO4 400Y - 2AEdIpY|

LY 00



D\\J\\ 7 /7

D IHDLS0D § DAAMYED SHL  DNWYEO BHL WO TTY29 LON 00

VEPELLHE Pean Pet bandeg & esmiides BN) MY (RTETY S0
S iaptamtriniiin it b UL G L TR U TR
W LTS (e SRS 10800 WG e st 8 ey ey e P § R L

qd@um@ _zlfm_l B - mﬂmmw_mm..,_( |[2ssny werlq

\

fecq

l x\\w\m./l

NOI'TIAVd ONIH.LVA NOLHOIIYH

|

N ? X

st ol SreEtlo
L e

|

|

|
153

HOV3g WOYS - UOREAS|F / UORIRS Y3nog

JARNRA VYHIZAVIN WOY4 - UOREAI| YIION



é@&@@ﬂ

D LHONLAOD ¥ OMMYED FHL  DNMYED L HOW TTYOS LON 00

e St o NOTTIAVd INTHLVE NOLHOTY

/ $12211YdJy ||3SSNYy wWel

/ S
\ \ \\\ ) 2/ 1334
\\............n..\.......w Ve

—

JANA VYIZAVIA ONIDVA / ¥V3Y - uoneas|g [eaidA |

G0

1

154

Vv3S ONIDV4H / LNOYS - uoneas(g [eaidA |

¥ STEATT HLOE NO - 30V0V4 N340 OL S¥00Q ONIGNS

NI _ iy

700



Y15 MEATTLLNYD QHIHL 3NO / SYIHL OML

3AVOVH O3ZVID ITYNIHO

¥dS OL LHOM
O TTVAMA X208 55v1D

ol S e ) [
 smeyuems

53 O e

NV1d ¥OOT1d ANNOYD - 3In0Ae] aAnedIpy|

H0ds oy

oy gy

ods apeyy

—

9 LHDMLIOD 51 ONUAYED BHL  DHUMYEO SIHL WOW TTYS LON 00

FOVRELIG Yoan vt penleg @ peawnlies Br) SRRy (ROTY Sy
- T TS RSN AL 50 OF) SHRlalrh e 20 001 Sredad e -

e T e T

WWHDIBAIP PUR 3INIW T

$12931YdJ4y/ ||9ssny Wel

NOLLYNINLLY ¥aLVAMNIVY
W04 J00Y WNa3s |

SHIVLS ¥ESAD THMLHDI

NOI'TIAVd ONITH.LVA NO.LHITH

NV1d 4004

IAYOVL TIZVID TTEVNILO

SWOOY LNIWLVIYL
Ol S¥OOJ DNIaNs

NV1d YOOT4 1S¥Id - 3noAe aAnedIpu|

...........

.....

Sl B2
- | s e
> e oo T S, e o . | S -
A%
S == LA
————— 1 B = s ] O Y
oy — g
R,
f i
ey ooy
R ..P € _.M!_ [
B ooy
. \
oM =
S

155

00



NOTI'TIAVd ONITH.LVA NO.LHOId

S g
..........
L] pr

M

--------------

156

HOVAI HHL WOYA LSVH HLYON ONIMOOT © <



=
0P
=
=
ol
Z
e
e
-
Q
]
=
P
=
&
-
e
(-
ma)

157

bRIGHTON BATHING PAVILION



v@%O@m@ ey
\\J\ v\m A\K

NOITIAVd ONTHLVI zoemﬁmo—
W

|‘P

158

R e s
=

LSVA ONIMOOT SHHDYV AHL WOodd  ©® Q




SIHOSTA — 7 NOT'TIAVd ONTHLVY zoﬁ%&&
DR SFP) X
42 itler] \M\N\Q L

159

R <= s
=3

LSAM IONIIOOT STVSOdOdd AHL Woda  © Q



UaNe

SJLAOS

HAl

NOI'TIAVd ONITH.LVA NOLHOIYH

160

HLYON INIMOOT STVSOdOdd HHL Woda ® ” _ —



SINQSIN
SN T

e —_—
/
o - B . .

/ N\J\u 5

[”H\\

7

5 : = |_1 ///.. \ !
i l\\ \\\ 3 \ \\\.\\\.\\\:W 1“\..\
.= ‘l\ - |\P\\

NOI'TIAVd ONIH.LVA NOLHODIYH

161

ﬁawwunnu. B
j—

HINVHLNA STVSOdOdd HH.L .LV ONIMOOT ¢ _ —



@@%@@@%

NOITIAVd ONTHLVY ZO,EQEAU—

162

TVSOdOdd LV HATHA VIHHAVIN ONO'TV ONIMOOT




NN T e T
OST -
o L ld

WOD'S110SUBW.IRY ) SO|MOoud| AJed
SO|MOUD| AJeo)
wodaAndads.iad|eAoa@)dIA
JaWj||Ne4 JIA
SUOSJ3d 10.IU0D)

C19 992 19€ 79+ 4
80 ¥9L 19€ 09+ 1L
BISSUOPpU|
‘19€08 !|eg ‘eIny| ‘peoy 39sung ujf
‘asequelqy uedunydurl £7°1 dolg
3uip|ing |eAoy Bw.ey)
2210 eaoduon)

¥6¥8 18€6 8 19+ -4
€€9/ 8868 19+:- 1
eljeaIsny
8009 YA\ ‘0deIqNS
19935 ABH | 6 40O|4 IS |

20 peeH

NOTI'TIAVd ONITH.LVA NO.LHOId

163



COMPANY PROFILE

| f be!P gjdf !
2t UGpps!: 2!l bz!Tuf f U
Tvcjbdp-IX B!7119!
Bvt usrjin!
Ul;l, 72191: 49918644!
Q;1, 72191: 492195: 5

Dpsgpsbd IP gjdf !
Lbsn b!SpzbrCvjrajoh!

Crml '12-34!Mohl vohbo!Bcjbocbt f -!!
Km!Tvot f USpbe-IL vib-ICbij#91472-1bepof t jb!
U 73147218751193!

3!, 7314721866!623!

DpowbdUC¥ ¢ pot !
Wd!Govrhof ¢

wdA spzbmf & gf dywf /dpn !

Hbsz!L opx Mt !
hbsz/| opx mt A z8n bjrdpn !
hbsz/l opx ht A | ben b t pai /dpn

IMPORTANT NOTICE

Dpogef ogbnue-Mn jif e!Sf t gpot jcjie!gpdbps: bypolboe!Ejt driojn f <

Ui f Idpodf od !pdu jt .bgosn bypo!Nf n pshoevn !be ldpogef oybriboe!n vt dopucf Idpgjf edejt t f n jobd elpsivt f eljolboz!x bz!f ydf quez! f ! diqjf odgslu f !t pri!
qvsgpt f ! pd f wombyoh! f o goh! joup! bo! bsbohf n fou xju !u f ! Lban b! SpzbriHspvqg! 0 bdf sobypobriibdbypo! Px of & i jq! Mn ju e/! Vobvu pg{fe!vtflpduf!
jopa bupolgd tf of e!n bz!s t vidjo!u f ldpn gboz!qv vioh!mhbribdypo/!Ui jt lbgan bypo!Nf n pshoevn ljt lebd e!Opwf n cf 43121!boe!li bt Icf f oljt t vf e!boe!
qdf gbd elczlu f ILban bISpzbriHspvglcbt f e!polu f ljogs bypo!bwbjicrhlyp!jubud buyn f /!

Pufdubo!wp!uf!fydoddrvjselcz!ix-!Lba b! SpzbriHspvaq!boe! ju ! <f t gf dywf ! f n qmpzf ft -! pgydf & !boe!bhf od 'n bl ft lop!s gsf t f olbypo! pd x bsbowz-!
fyqgstt Ipdjn gnfie-Ibt p-lboelbt t vn f lop!s t gpot jcjiee!pdibejime!gps!u f Ibvu f oydjz-pghjo-vbrej-bddvehdz!pddpn grinf of tt |pg!pdboz!f spd Ipdpn jt t jpot !
gpn ! boz! jops bypo-! t bif n f od psl pgjojpo! dpoibjof e! jo! u jt | bgpsn bypo! Nf n pshoevn ! pd jo! boz! bddpn gbozjoh-! qsf wipvt | pd t vet f rvf od n bif gbrhpd
qd t f olbypo/!!Boz!d bef dpdu jt b bypo!Nf n psboevn In vt dopus mlpolu f Idpouf od !pdu jt bbgsn bypo!Nf n psboevn /!

164



THE KARMA ROYAL GROUP

li fILbsn b!SpzbrtHspvq!pddpn gbojf t lef wf pqt Imyvsz!i piebz. gy t wrhisf t psit jolt pn f Ipdu f In pt Ucf bvygrrtboe!
“=eftjsfelqrdft!jo!u f!xpsm/! Pvs! fyqfgfodf-! gspdttjpobitn !boe! witjpo!i bwf ! gspevdfe! vojr vf!i priebz! boe!
rhjt vsf If yqf §f odf t Igps!pvsipx of st Iboe!lgsf f Iboeljoef qf oef odwsbwf minst !brh f /IFwf szu joh!x f lepli bt 1d f !dvt ipn f sljo!
n joe-In bl joh!u fjsli prebz!f yqf §f odf lu flcftdu bdu f z!dpvrali pgf |@¢/ILSH!i bt !eft jhof e-lcvjmdboe!n bobhf e!bo!
f yuf ot jwf Isbohf Ipdf ydmt jwf !qspqf suf t Id spvhi pvdd f !Bt jb.Qbdjgd!sf hjpo/!Pvslef wf mgn f ou !dbo!cf !gvoe!pold f!
fypyd!ti psft!pgHpb!jo!bejb-lpo!Lpi !Tbn vjljo!u f IHvm@pd Ui bjrnoedjo!cf bviygritboe!lcf hvjjoh!CbyiUlu f | At hoe!pd
u f IHpet @Nzl popt -IHsf f df Iboe!x f Ibsf !dvssf ounlef wf ipgjoh!po!Murfll bscpvs!d oeljo!u f ICbi bn bt /!

Lbsn bljt !ggwbuf ml px of e-lef cugf f Iboeli bt !fn cbd felpo!b!t ispoh-!t vt bjoberhlhspx u !gbu /1X ju !b!brhod elboe!
f yqf §f odf e! jouf sobypobrhjo!i pvtf!n bobhfn fodu bn-!d f!Lbsn b! SpzbriHspvq! jt ! of sf dum! gpt jupof e! ip! ef fuf s!
r vbwe!gspgf syf t-levjmdwp!d i jhi ft Ut gf djgdbypot !boe!n fn psberfli priebz!f ygf §f odf t !gsibmipx of st Iboelhvftu /!

INTRODUCTION

é,\{‘!!pi o!Tqf odf -IDi bjsn bo-Igvoef s!px of slboeldsf bywf Igsdf cf i joelu f ILbsn b!SpzbriHspvg-li belblwit jpo! UlEplef wf ipg!
' 'sftpat !jo! of x ! boe! f ydjjoh! ef t jobyjpot ! bspvoe! i f ! x pgaNboe!  jt Iwit jpo!i bt | eswf o! Kpi o!boeli jt |if bn ! p! ef faf s!b!
gpagoip! pd 27! sft pat ! bdspt t ! Bt jb! boe! 4! jo! Fvspaf boe! u f ! Dbgecf bo/l I Ui f1 Lban b! SpzbriHspvq!i bt ! bo! bhhsf t tjwf !
f ygbot jpol gripo! gpslu f lof yd 8! zf bt Ixi jdi I xjmit f f18!of x ILbsn b!Sftpat-18!Di bl b!Sft pat |boe!bggspyjn buf ml 341!10f x |
Spzbrsft pslvoju !dpn johlpolcpbse/!

Ui f ILbsn b!SpzbriHspvaljt Ibli pt qibie!dpn qboz!pgf hyoh!voef i p!x f msf t gf dif elcsboet -lobn f mLbsn blboe!Spzbrboe!
x jnth ppoliavodi bl jselcsboe-IDi bl sb-lqpt jpof eljol f 15/61t wslt qbdf -If n csbdjoh!u f lgvnim jyf elvt f Idpodf qu!

Ui f ILban blesboe!gpdvt ft Ipold f lef wf mgn f oult brit Iboe!pgf bypo!pdgwf !t bsigmt s t pat ljo!f ypydipdbipot -lgsf epn joboun!
jo!Btjb-lcvun pdf !sf df ouml jo! Fvspqf Iboeld f!1Bn f gdbt bt Ix f mUi jt 't f hn fodpdd f levtjoftt!li bt Ib!gppuggoujo! Nzl popt -!
Hsf f df -ICbijRbepof t jb!boe!L pi 'Tbn vj-!Ui bjinoe!boe!spnmvuqrinot !gpdlu f IDbgccf bo-IMpn cpl -IGH-ITf zdi f nint -!Qi jiqgjof t-!
Csb{jroe!lFvspqf /!

Lbsn blsft pat Ibsf Isf dphoj{ f elbt Imyvszlgspaf syf t 1u bupgf slijd t wiH f ihbodf -Iwbrf 1boeldsf bywwe!buu f ljoevt sz@li jhi ftu
cfodi n bd t/ILbsn bljt Ib!sf gsf t i joh!dpn gboz!u bux jmapot jt & ourdf wvomf liplgspwef Iblgrt jpo!pdhvf t t Joejwevbrof f et Iboe!
ef tjsft Iboelgdvt ft Ipolu f If din f od !pdb!myvszlidf t eIt gbdf Iboelvwbmf /!

Kpi olgvoef eld f ILban bldpodf qujo!3113-!gpn !blhbg!li f ljef oydf eljo!u fli jhi .f oe!mijt vsf Isf t psun bd fu!l f!sf bijif eld buju
x bt ! ejgidvrh ip! goe! b! ggpevdd u bu pgf s e! ipq! f oe! g t ! bddpn n pebypo! gos! b ! don jrad xju ! b!tfbn mtt!t f sydf !
f yqgf §f odf Igpn bsgwbrighi Ud spvhi Iiplef gbawst /!

b! bl cje! ! gmnd jt! ojdi f1tfdps pd G f! nbd ful Lben bl Sftpst! pafst! hvftd! ggubd - myvsgpvt ! boe! t gbdjpvt ! winin!
bddpn n pebypo/! Ui f Iwinist !t jux ju jo!b!sf t psujogbt svdwsf Iboe! f Ihvft u @f ygf §f odf ljt Icpui !f yif ot jwf 1boe!joyn b /1Ui f !
Lbsn bISft pat Idpodf quijt plaspwief blmyvsipvt I t il owspon f oux ju b f !ign n joht Ipgb!x pse. diot t Isf t psu!

Ui f ISpzbrtsoe!@dvt ft Ipolef guwf szljo!lu f lgrmimbmnf 1di bjo!x ju jo!u f i piebz!pxof &i jgq!n bd f uboe!pqgf sbift!jolcpu i f!
Egpoupdi pvt f Npggpswojuf t !boeld f IEEbdl ! pgjdf !boe!sft pain bobhf n f ollldpn qpof ou /! Ui f I Egpoupdi pvt f Nidpn gpof ou
wqjdbra jowpr t lef wf mgn f oult brfit boe!n bd f goh!bdywidf t-Ix i jmld f IEEbdl !paidf Npgf sbypot ljodmef |dmc ben jojt sbypo-!
n fn cf gn bobhf n f ou!sft f sabypot -ldvt pn f gt f swdf Iboe!n fn cf dwbmf !beet -lyphf u f sl ju |gvmisf t paln bobhf n fou!Ui f!

165



Spzbrizsboe!t jhojgf t I f Iwf sz!cf t ujowbraf Igpsin pof z!sf t palbddpn n pebypolboe!paf sif t jo!Tpvi IFbt UBt jblboelbejblboe!
i bt ljtt Iqgn bszlcbdl Ipgjdf lgyodipot li f ber vbsf f eljo!Chibepof t jb-Iboe!H pb-Lbejb/!

Spzbrsft pad lit In bef lvq!pdgvsin bjolejwit jpot -Ibt Igommx t ;1!
Qs t palef wf pgn fod

@in bd f yoh!boe't brft !

Giwbdbypolt f swdf t Iboe!

@isf t pain bobhfn fou

Ui f 1Spzbrievt jof tt i bt Icf dpn f Ibo!f gidif oun bdi jof luebot jipojoh!isbejypobrpof . pgt bifit ljowp!boovjie-Isf dvsgoh!sf wf ovf t/!
Ui f 1t s oh t Ipgd i f It brfit Iqspdf t t-It | jainiboelgspevdui bwf It f dvsf elb!sf hviisl bwf sbhf Idpow st jpo!qf sdf otbhf Ipd2!jo!9-1ps!
23& Ipdpvsf elhvf t t /11!

Ui jt 1t f hn foupd i f Ihspvg!phf u f 9xju !sft psin bobhf n f ouboe!pu fslcbd! paidf It f sdf t lqspwef t !d flcbdl cpof Ipdu f!
cvtjof tt boel f Iggn bsz!dbt i Igmx Iboelqigos Igsthspx i /!

Ui f IH9pvq!jt lopx !gpt jypof elwp!invodi !ju IDi bl !Sft palcsboe-lip!t juof burlcf k f folu f ILban blboe!lSpzbrtsboet !boe!x jmin
bshfuu f15/6!tbsin bd fuxju !b!dpn gif In jyfelvtf!n pef dh!Uif!n pef i jmit f f | wgjdbri puf fpgf shypot ! x pd joh! x ju !
pxofsgijgth fncfgijgin pef miplef gtlld f Idbgjibrijow t in f odp!t f dvsf Ibgaspagbuf Isf wsot Igpslt Wl fi praf st /1UI f IHspvq!
x jmisf csboe!df abjolqspgf qjf t ljo!u f If yjt yoh!gpsupip!phf u f slx ju !ef wf mgjoh!of x !qspqgf aif t ljo! CoiA Qi jpagjof t-1Mpn cpl !
boe!Kbgbo/!!X f Ix jmmppl !wp!t f dvsf 181gspqgf aif t Ivoef du jt lcsboeljold f lof yu4!zf bst /!

Ui f!Lban b! SpzbriHspvq!i bt | pwf & 29! zf bgt | pd qspaf sz! ef wf pgn f od f yaf §f odf !jo! i f ! bcpwf ! n f oypof e! dpvougf t-! boe!
dvssf ourldpn qsit f t pd29!pgf sbupobrisf t pst UL bsn b!.15-1Spzbm!25-Ix ju Iblorsi f sl plt di f evife!p!iovodi ljo!3122@3/!

Jb!beejypo! p!dpoyovjoh! pvsiwf sz! x f mil opx o!gbu -!u f !Hspvq!jt ! brip! voef sbl joh!b!wf sz! ef fof sbuf In pwf !jop!d f I Cf bdi !
Dmct !boe!4%1gbse!t gb! f owjspon fou /!!Ui ft f !dbgjibrjhi Un pef mix jmit f f 1u f Ihspvqg!wf sbhjoh!f yjt jyoh!dpn gf «f odjf t 1ip!
egwf !ti paugbz!cbdl !gf gpet -t vaf gpsidbt i gmx t |boe! shgje! somipvit /11X f Iboudjgbd ! pgf ojoh! bd bt U4!of x | Lbsn b!t gbt !
evgoh!3123!boe!b!n jojn vn !pd4!of x lcf bdi dmct Ipwf sl f lof yd23!n podi t /!

Ui jt lepdvn f odi bt !cf f oldpn gjie!wp!qspwief ljod st f elgbaif t Ix ju !bo!pggpswoje!plcf uf slvoef g tboe!u fIHpvqlboe!juf!
pqf sbypot Iboe!pqgpavojuf t /IILjt lopdjodf oef elw!hjwf Iboljolef qu Isf wif x Ipdu f IHspvg@lhspx u !t b hjf t Iboelvojr vf It f mph!

gpjou /1Ui jt lepdvn fougspwief t Iblsf bt pobcmlpwf swf x Ipdu f IHspvq®!f yjt yohlcvt jof t t Iboelju Igpuf oybrispx u !pw slu f lof yd
6!zf bst /11!

GROUP OVERVIEW

Tjn gt ydbnx-!u f IHspvqljt In bef lvglbt Igpmmx t ;!

L bsn b!SpzbriHspvq!
)bdmwef t INfn cf sITf swdf t -IGobodf !boe!bmin
Df owbijb f elef gban fou *

W v 7 W
Lbsn bl! Spzbrth Lbsn b! Spzbh
Efw mpgn fou ! | pjebz!Px of i jq! Sftpsl | prebz!Px of sti jq!
Thrft ! Thbrfit ! N bobhf n f ou SftpsaINbobhfn fou

166




Ui fILbsn b!SpzbriHpvq!i f be! pgidf !jt lcbt f el jo! Qf i -1X ft U so!Bvt wbiip/! Ui f 1 pgjdf !jt !pold f!12t UGpps!: 2! bz! Tisf fu!
Tvcjbdp-! Of s -! Bvt ubijy/! Ui f! Dpsgpsbuf ! Pgjdf | beesftt! jt! Lban b! SpzbmCvjmjoh-! Tvot f U Spbe-! Lvib-! Cbid 91472-!
Jbepof t jb/IUi f IHsovg!bip!i bt Ipgjdf t ljo!Hpb!boellL pi IThn vj/!

Spzb piebz! Px of & i jg! Thifit ! Ui jt !cvtjof tt!vojui bt !t ffoldpotjtf ouhspx u 1d spvhi i f 1zf bst Ixjui 1 f st Uzf bslpd
wbejohlcf joh!281zf bst Ibhp-ljo!2: : 4/11Ui f It brft I bn t Ipgf sbif ljo!Chijtboe!Hpb/!

Lbsn bISftpat Ui fILbsn blsf tpaln bobhfn fodcvtjofttlopx !i bt Igvslqspgf sjf t 1jo!ju !qpsupip/! Ui ftf1qpgf syf t I bsf !
Lban b! Kin cbsbo-! Lban b! Thn vj-! Lban b! Lboebsb! boe! Lban b! Qf ghbopt /! Ul jt ! boydjgbif e! i bd u f sf ! x jnincf | b! grai f <! 3!
gspqf gjf t ! voef sl n bobhf n f ou boe! f yif ot jpot ! ! fyjt yoh! Lboebsh! qspK du! cz! n je! 3123-!boe! d jt ! x jmimgspwief It pn f!
n f bojohgerit dbrh!ip!u jt !f ydjgoh!t f hn fodpdu f levtjof tt /Ui f ILban b!Chi bn bt !qspk du!jt ! f !dof t def wf ppgn f odqsph du
boe!qi bt f 12!jt Iqpjt f elypldpn n f odf !dpot wvdjpolcf @ i f If oelpd3122/1X f Ibsf brip!jo!of hpybupo!gsblgspgf szl ef brijo!
Vojif elLjohepn -Ixi jdi !x jmgvsi f sif oi bodf i f lgpsagpiip!boe!bee!dwf sbhf Ip!pvsit uf ohu ljolu f IBt jb!Qbdjgd!sf hjpo/!

Spzbri prebzIPxof &i jq!Sft psi IUUi f ISpzbr8f t psun bobhf n foucvt jof ttli bt 1251qspaf sijf t Ivoef sin bobhf n f ouboeljt !
u f In pt Udpot jt f ouqf span fsljo!d f IHspva/!Ui f Iboovijie!sf wf ovf !t sf bn t li bwf lhgpx oldpot jt b ourlpwf sld f 1zf bst /!l bdmvef e!
jold jtlevtjof tt !t f hn f ousf wsot bsf lu f Isft v Ipdui f In jopslpgf sbyohlef gban f ou -Igobodf boe!n fn cf sit f swdf t /!

HISTORY AND OWNERSHIP

i f ILbsn b!Spzbriispvq!pdDpn gbojf t Ix bt Igpvoef eljo!2: : 4-Ix i f olu f IDi bjsn bo!boe!DFP-Iboe!t plpx of sipdu f Hspvg-!
L—-*-‘Kﬁ o!Tqf odf -lef wf ppgf e!li jt Igst Usft psdef wf ipgn fodjo!Hpb-lbejb/IUi ftf st pat Ix fsf It vddf tt grmadt pralbt lyn fti bsf !
ef wf ppgn f ou -lboe!bsf It ymisf Wbjof eljo!u f IHpvqEClqspgf se!lgpsgip/!

Ui f IHspvqli bt !t jodf If ygboef elwp!@vsaf f olsft pat lvoef du f ISpzbriiCsboe-!t f wf olpdu f t f ljolbejb-1i s f ljo!Cbijrlbepoft jb-!
pof ljo!Mpn cpl -l bepoft jb-!x pljo! Ui bjimoe!boe! pof ljo! Tdi ffid f f-IHf a1 boz/!!Bt In f oypof elbepwf -l f sf Ibsf Iblovn cf slpd
of x lqsplf du ljo!u f !qjgf fof Iboeljujt lu f It b hjdljouf oupdu f IHspvaliplhspx i jt it f hn foupdu f levtjoftt/! !

Lbsn b! Sftpat ! xbt! gpvoefe! jo! 3113-Ixju !u f ! dovodi ! pd Lbsn b! Kn cbsbo-! boe!i bt ! hspx o! wp! govs! pgf sbiypobrief t pat -!
jodmvejoh! Lbsn b! Tbn vj-! Lbsn b! Qf hbopt |boe! Lbsn b! Lboebsh/! Lbsn b! Lboebsb!jt i f ! gbhti jg!pdu f ! Lbsn b!tjef Ipdui f!
cvtjof tt Ix ju !gwf !qi bt ft!jo'i f lef wf ppgn f ouqrino/!

Di bl sb!Sft pat Ix jief IMovodi f eljo!f bsml31231boe!x f li bwf Igrot Iup!t f dvsf It f wf olsf t pa ljo!u jt Igpsugprip!pwf sld f lof ydu sf f !
zf bst /11Df abjo!Spzbryspqgf sjf t Ix jmef IS choef elboelu f sf Ibsf Iblovn cf slpdef wf ipgn f od !buwbgpvt 1t bhf t Ipdqimoojoh!yp!
dpn gri Wi jt It fhn f odpdu f levtjoftt/!

Ui f hspvqljt If gf dywf mlpx of e!211& lcz!Kpi o! Tqf odf -lu sovhi i sf f ICut i IWshjold imoeldpn gbojf t /1Ui f 1 f Idpn gbojf t li pral
u f In blpge!psldpospnphljod sf t d ljolwbsgpvt Idpn gbojf t lepn jdjmeljolu f Isf t gf dywf Ipgf sbdoh!dpvousft /!

OPERATIONS AND PREMISES

167



t i f 1 dpsgpsbif !paf sbypobripgjdf !jt Icbt f eljo!L vib-!Cbid bepof t jb-Ix ju !t buf nf ! pgidf t ljo!Hpb-lbejb!boe! Qf si -1Bvt ubijb/!

"Ui f ICbijtpgidf lqspwief t ! f It vagpsugrodypot Iyl f IHspvqlboeljt I f Iebdl Ipaidf paf sbipolgspwiejoh!i f Ibddpvoyoh!boe!
hf of sbrtben jojt sbupo!t fswidf t/!1X f Ibsf ljo!lu f Iqspdf tt Ipdt f ujoh!vq!b! Tjohbgpsf !pgjdf !xi jdi !x jmvoef abl f !df sbjo!Hgvq!
g/odypot -lqgn bgmelpold f Iben jojt wbypo!t jef Ipdu f lcvt jof tt ft /11U f ITjohbgpsf pgjdf ljt ljouf oef elyp!cfdpn f i f IDpsqpsbif !
| fbelP gidf !gpslu f IHgpvqljo!u f lof yu29!In pou t /!

Mpdbypo!pdSpzbrtbf t pai !

Spzbrid pbo!Cf bdi !Dmc!IbuCf obvin IUHpb-Lbejb!

Spzbritd pbo!Cf bdi !Dmc!bul bbu jINbi brit)iH pb-lbejb!
Spzbritd pbo!Cf bdi !Dmc IbuN pouf Sjb!UH pb-Lbejb!

Spzbri pbo!Cf bdi Dmc!buSpzbr@om t !UH pb-lbejb!
Spzbrih. pwbron ICf bdi IDmc IbuHsf f 0o!Qom t IUIL f sbrin-Lbejb!
L 3!'buSbwo!l bwf mlUKbjqvs-bejb!

Spzbr jn bipzbo!N pvoibjo!Dmc IbUTi jn io-!Ti jn Ao-lbejb!
SpzbrCbihCf bdi !Dmc!buDboej!Ebt b!UICbrlbepof t jb!
SpzbrAChiCf bdi !Dmc!bukin cbsbo!Cbz!UIChrplbepof t jb!
Spzbrsf f gSft psubuHjitN f op!UNpn cpl -lbepof t jb!
SpzbrAChiCf bdi IDmc!buTbovs!UIChialbepof t jb!
SpzbriMhi u pvt f IWnist IbuCpbuMbhppo!UIGi vl f u!Ui bjinoe!
SpzbrCf nim!Wt b!Dpvousz!Dmc!UIDi jboh!N bj-!IUi bjrboe!
Bmyf odmc!UITdi i &t f f -ICbwbgb-IHf sn boz!

Mpdbypo!pdL ben bISf t pat

Lbsn b!Kn cbsbo!UChralbepof t jb!
Lbs b!Tbn vj!UL pi Thn vj-!IUi bjrinoe!
Lbsn blL boebsb!UICbralbepof t jb!
Lbsn b!Qf jhbopt IUIN zI popt -IHsf f df |

THE TEAM

li f1d sf fIn bo!f bn Idpn gt joh!u f !Cpbse!pdEjsf dipst Gsf gpsujowp!u fIDi bjsh bolboe! DFP-IKpi 0! Tqf odf /IFbdi In fn cfsl
“~“pdu f!cpbse!i bt !t gf digd! ebz! p! ebz! sft gpot jcjigf t ! boe! jt | f t gpot jerf! god ef rwf sz!jo! i f js! bsf bt | pd f yaf syt f ! boe!
dpn gf o odf /!1Ui f ICpbseljt Ibrip!sf t qpot jerhlgpdu f It wbd hjd!ejsf dypo!pdu f IHspvg!boe!u f It vaqpsl sl f lef af sz!pdui f !
hspx u If ygf dlbypot /!
1l

I C D LW ST af acf

Di bjsn bolboe!DFP IUKpi ol Tgf odi

Kpi olt baf elpddi jt Ix pd joh!dbd f gljolu f If bard2: 91@!jolu f In vt jdljoevt we-Ixi fof li f Ixbt ld f Ibhf odgpsin boz!bsgjt u Iboelcboet -!
jodmejoh!t pn f Ix f m opx olobn ft !t vdi !bt |Dvmwsf |Dc!boe! Cbobsbn b/!Ejt jmmt jpof elx ju !4 f In vt jd!t df of !bdd f 1yn f -1Kpi o!
n bef Iblifbqgljowpli f lqepgf azljoevt szljo!2: 95! f oli f lipjof e!Hmcbrtbli pd ryn fti bsf Iboelqepgf azlef wf pgn f oudpn gboz!jo!

Uf of §d /!Gspn 'boljojybnmibopozn pvt lgpt jupo!bt bt bt gf & poljo!bli vhf !t brt In bdi jof -!Kpi o!r vjdl mn bef li jt In bd !boe!x bt !
gspn pud el wp! Thrit In bobhf s Bsf b!n bobhf s Sf hjpobrejsf dps!boe! vign buf ra VYHF | Qsf t jef odpdu f !dpn gboz!x ju jo!b!t f wf o!

168



zf bdlyn f.tgbo/ll f1x bt Isf dphoj{f elbt Ipof Ipdu f !t f ojps!l f zldbef & Ipdu f IFvepaf bolyn fti bsf ljoevt izlboe!jux bt !t pn f u joh!
pdblti pdl Ixi f oli f Iboopvodf eli f Ix bt !hpjoh!ip!imvodi i jt 'px oldpn gboz!jolu f 'wishjo!lf s5upgf t IpdBt jb/lb!2: : 4-1Kpi olgvoef el
u f ISpzbriHspvqg!)iof slplcf Isf .cshoef elLban blSpzbriiczlef wf ipgjohli jt Igst Usf t padjo!Hpb-lbejb/tl i bt Idi bjsf eld f Idpn gboz!
wp!blgpt jupo!xi f<f 126! t pai li bwf lcf f olef wf pgf e-lboeld f lcvt jof tt Ihf of ot ljo!u f !Isf hjpo!pd VTE!66!n jmpo!jo!boovbrin
g wovft/!

Kpi oli bt ! & df jwf el ovn f vt | joevt isz! bddpripef t | pwf sl u f ! zf bst ! jodivejoh! f fmbypo! w!d flun ftibsf 11 bmipd Gon - wpd e!
Qi jinou spqjt Updu f 1Zf bslez! f IBn f §dbo!Sft palEf wf ipaf & IBt t pdjbypo!boeln pt Usf df ourlobn f e!Bvt wsbijivo!Fousf gsf of velpd
uf1Zf bdezlFsot d' 1Zpvoh/!

Blhsbevb IpdDbn cgehf IVojwf st jue-IWdli bt lcf f olx ju !d f IHspvq!gsigvaf f olzf bat -Iboeli bt lcf f olqgn bgmldpodf sof elx ju !
u f! ben jojt wbywf ! boe! paf sbiypobrt jeft ! pd u f! dpn gboz/! Gepn ! U f! dpn gboz®! pgidft!jo! Cb i f!ibt! pwfstffo!uf!
ef wf ipgn f ouboe!hspx u Ipdu f ILban blesboe-Ibt Ix f miibt Il joh!sf t gpot jejiee!gs!d f ben jojt whiyjpo!pdd f lyn fti bsf lejwjt jpo/!
Wd!i bt ! bl dhhbrcbdl hspvoe!i bwoh! r vbiigf e! yp! gshdydf !ox ! jo! i f ! VL-! ggps! wp! kpjojoh!u f ! Hspva/! ' Uphf d f & x jui ' Hbsz!
Lopx it -!VWd! x jmie f !f t gpot jerhl god!f ot vgoh!u bubmipddi f lcvt jof tt !voju Iboelt fhn f ou Ibsf Ix pd joh!bt ljouf oef e!boe!u bu
boz!pct wbdrt lwplhspx u bsf Isf n pwf e/!

Chief Operating Officer — Gary Knowles

Hbszljt Ib!Di bsf sf e!lBddpvoilbouboe!i bt wbgf e!f yqf §f odf |bdsptt In vaggriljoevt wgf t/!l i bt !t gf odu f ot U26!zf bst ljo!u f !
pvst n !boeli pt gjbie!joevt wsz!boe!i bt Ipgf bif eljolu f !dbgbdjue!pd DGP-IN bobhjoh!Ejsf dypslboe!DFP Igslejgf s odf oyyf t ljo!
n vaggrithf phebqi jd!sf hjpot Ibdspt t i f !Bt jb!Qbdjgd!boe!Bgidb!dpoyof ou /IHbsz!jt sf t gpot jerhlgpslegwiohlgspdf t t !f gidjf odjf t-!
n f shf slhoe!bdr vjt jypo!bdywje-lof x Ipggpswojuf t Iboe!f ot vgoh!jousb.hspvqlt zof shif t Iboe!t bwoht Ibsf Ibdi jf wf e/!Hbsz!jt Ibrirp!
sft qpot jerhl sl egwjoh! i f 'hspvq! ipx bset ! bl sf t isvdwsf e! f oyte! t bujt bghof el x ju ! f lgrwsf Thepx u [grinot ! gpdu f 'Hspvg/!
Uphf u f slx ju 'Wd!Gbviinof s!Hbsz!x jmdh f f 1 bud f IHspvq!bdi jf wh t lju thepx i lgpuf oybrit

Di jf dGobodjbri gydf dUISvtt f mik ojhi u
Svt t f mjt IbIDi bsf s e!Bddpvowbouboeli bt Icf f olx ju i f IHgpvqlgdt jyd f olzf ba Iboeljt Isf t gpot jerhlgpdu f Igobodjbrin f brh Ipdu f !
Hspvag-Ipwf ¢ f f johld f lebz!ip!ebz!bddpvoyoh!gdcpl lcoet Igpn i f ICbijhpgidf t /1!1Svt t f miit Hioshf misf t qpot jerlgdt f wijoh!jo!

of x Ipagpawojijf t 'gpn Ibigobodf tboelt zt «f n t If & qf dywf /!

Lf z!bqgpjown fou !i bwf Icf f oln bef ljo!u f ot Uu sf f 1zf bst-In bjoral bjn f e!but f dvsoh!bo! f yqf sif odf el bn 1yp!f oberl f!
hspx i 'pdu f Hspvg/!1ST df oubqapjown  ou !pd! f 2! WHF 1Qsf t jef ouspritt !x jmi ot vsf Ib!x f micbiodf e!f yf dviwf I bn -Iblt pije!
gvoebypo-Ix ji 1 f lof df t t bszlgzodipobriboe!t gf dibiut | jaiplgspwef i pribyd!t vagpsuup!i f Ihspx !t wbif hif t Ipdu f IHspva/!

Ui f lgrad fslt f dvsf It vddft tjpo!boeldpn n polvoef & boejoh!pd f Iwt jpo!boelhspx u !grnot -1 f 'hspvqli bt |sf dphoj{fe!u f!
Tf ojpsiINbobhf n f odyf sipdu f levtjof tt /11U jt I bn !yphf u f slxju i f If yf dvywf I bn In f f uboovbmmjo!Ef df n cf slip!f ot vsf !
dipiz!gdu f 1zf bslbi f belx ju !sf t gf dyp!t wbuf hjf t -lcvehf u Iboelqgpsyf t /!

1l

Ui f IHspvq!f n qipet ljo!f ydf t t Ipd3-111!f n qpzf ft /!

169



OUTLOOK

Ui f IH9pvq!i bt Iblt jhojgdbodqjgf fof lpdimoelcbol f elqepqgf syf t Iboelblovn cf slpdqspqaf aif t Iboe!sf t pai Ivoef slof hpybypo/!
Lbsn b!Ef w magn f od !plef Iiovodi f el

Lbsn b!Cbi bn bt -IDbsiccf bo!)3122@3*!
Lbsn b!Bhvoh-ICbijdbepof t jp!)3123@4*!
Lbsn bITF zdi f it -ITf zdi f nfit 1)3124®5*!

Di bl IEf w mgn f od !plcf lef w maf elpds cshoef elboelcsovhi Upo!jof !

9lef hsf f t ITpvi -!IChijbepof t jb!)3123@4*!
Qbriox bo-!Q¥ jiagjof t 1)3123@4*

Brof odme-ITdi ffist f f -ICbwbgb-IHf sn boz!)3123*!
| bl veb-IKbgbo!)3124®@5*!

X ftuBvt usbrjip-'Bvt whrjin!)3123*!

Sbo!l bwf npkbjqvslbejb!)3123*

HjijtiN f op-INbn cpl -lbepof t jb!)3123@4*!

Mboelchol !lgspgf syf t !

Mbn cpl -!ibepoft jb!
Hjiiht rnoet -lbepof t jb!
Qbrox bo!-!Q jiagjof t !

N bshbsf USjwf s!Bvt ubijin!
Di boh!N bj-!Ui bjinoe!

KpjouW ows O hjdIBhs fn fou !

Lbsn bITgb!UX zoei bn !l puf iboe!Sft psi 1)3122@3*
Cf bdi Dt Lbif sobypobmiCshi tpo!)3123*

Obn n pt IHgpvg-Hsf f df 1)3123*!

Qepaf sif t Ivoef dsf Wf x !

Evcbijl)3123*

Tf zdi f mint 1)3123*

Dsf uf 1)3123*
VT!)3123%

Ujn fti bsf IQspqf syf t !

170



L vib-ICbijAbepof t jp1)3122*
Vohbt bo-IChibepof t jb!)3122*1

CONCLUSION

111 i f1Lbsn b! SpzbriHspvq! jt ! x f mmpt jypof el yp!ef fuf sl ju f mbt ! b! fbejoh! hipebrti pt gjbjee! Hpvag-! x ju ! b! t Lgpoh! Bt jb!
'*———’Jdejgd!ngtquodboe!t sbif hjd!gpt jypojoh!ljoli jhi lef n boelef t yobuypot !bspvoeld f Ix psw/!!X f Ibsf !dpoyovpvt mEst wif x joh!
boe!bobrzt joh!d f In bd f Ugrndf !goslpggpswojyf t Ii bugupvsiwt jpo!ps!u budbolcf Isf bijhof elx ju !pvsiwt jpo/!IX f Ix jmiwiwf sohf !
pvat e ohud tljolu fIn bd f Uqrindf !ip!ef juf slqpt juwf ! sft vid ! gpstii fIHspvq@!t bl fi pref st !boel!t vt ibjobcr! hspx u ljowp!d f!

yws /!

171



172



Prime Seafront
Leisure Site

Superb opportunity with potential for:
Children & family themed leisure attractions
Wet & dry sports attractions
Art & Heritage related attractions

0.58 acre site (0.2369 hectares)
with 380ft (116m) frontage to
Madeira Drive & Brighton Beach

Expressions of Interest Invited Close to Brighton Pier, Brighton Marina,

(by 4th November 2011) the new Brighton Wheel, Yellowave Beach
Volleyball Centre, Peter Pan Playground,

Madeira Drive & the Volks Heritage Railway.

Brighton & Hove
City Council

On behalf of Brighton & Hove City Council



Brighton & Hove

Brighton & Hove, on the south
coast of England, is one of the top
seaside cities in the United
Kingdom and has recently
appeared in the top ten UK cities.

Attracting more than 8 million
visitors each year, many of whom
are from overseas and generate
an annual spend of £350 million.

In 2000, Brighton and Hove was given
city status and is regarded as a creative
and cosmopolitan European city.

Brighton is also a major conference
centre and regularly plays host to the
major political party conferences.

Brighton has a resident population
of 247,817 (Census 2001) and an
extensive and affluent catchment
population, extending from Rye

to the east, Chichester in the west
and as far north as the M25 and
London.

Drive time analysis indicates that
Brighton has a core catchment
population of 449,877, with 1.3 million
within a 60 minute drive time (CACI).

Brighton is a highly affluent area with the
proportion of ‘wealthy achievers', ‘affluent
urbinites', 'prosperous professionals' and
‘better-off executives' all being above the
national average (a detailed CoStar/Focus
Town Report on Brighton & Hove is
available upon request, providing detailed
Demographic and Socio Demographic
information on Brighton & Hove).

Leisure and Tourism is a main stay of
the economy, which is boosted by both
Brighton & Sussex Universities being
based in the City and excellent links to
London and Gatwick Airport.

Travel Times

By Road

Destination By Train

London Victoria 50mins 84mins

26mins 35mins
[45mins

Channel Tunnel Terminal 106mins

Gatwick Airport
Heathrow Airport 75mins

84mins

174

ter Pan
T{l,giggre Site

Brighton & Hove City Council are
now inviting expressions of interest
from potential occupiers for this high
profile seafront leisure site.

The available site comprises a significant
part of the Peter Pan Leisure Park area,
which has significant Local Heritage having
been reclaimed from the sea in 1877.

After the war the site was developed for
amusements, fun fair rides, a children's
theatre and roller skating area.

The site is currently temporarily let for
amusement rides.

The site is level and offers a site area of
0.58 acres (0.2369 hectares), benefiting
from frontage of 380 feet (| |6m) to
Madeira Drive. Much of the site currently
comprises concrete hardstand, with the
exception of an area on the southern side
of the site which comprises beach area
(pebbles), the site being to the immediate
north of the Volks Electric Railway line.

Currently the site does not benefit from
connection to mains services, although
main services (water and electricity) are
available in Madeira Drive.




Madeira Drive...
. an iconic location’

Madeira Drive has been immortalised
by the 1938 Graham Greene novel
Brighton Rock, Quadrophenia and
London to Brighton Rally's.

Attractions within the immediate vicinity of
the site include:

* Brighton Pier which was opened in 1899
and is now one of the UK's top themed
tourist attractions as well as a Grade II*
Listed Building

* The Brighton Wheel at 45 metres high
and due to open in October this year

* Yellowave Beach Volleyball Centre is
located adjacent to the site, the UK's only
permanent beach volley ball venue, which
offers a variety of beach related sporting
activities and a café

All year round and in addition to
many other events centred on
Brighton and the Seafront area,
Madeira Drive hosts a number
of high profile events, some of
which include:-

» Volks Railway, the worlds oldest operating
electric railway runs the length of Madeira
Drive and passes directly south of the site.
The Volks Railway Halfway Station is close
by. Over the next few months, the Council
intends to invest in the refurbishment of
the original siding sheds behind the station
and improve the adjacent area fronting
Madeira Drive

Peter Pan Children's Play Area and
Adventure Golf are close by

Concorde 2 is situated opposite the site
and is one of Brighton's leading live music
venues with an iconic music heritage.

Brighton Sealife Centre opened in 1872 and
is the oldest operating Aquarium in the UK

February
* Brighton Half Marathon (8,000 entrants)

March

* Incar Nation (modern car event)

* Pioneer Run (vintage motorcycle rally)
April

* Brighton Marathon with 18,000 entrants
* London to Brighton Jaguar Run

May

* HCVS London to Brighton Run

* London to Brighton MG Car Run
» Great Escape Music Festival

* London to Brighton Mini Run

June

* London to Brighton Classic Car Run
* London to Brighton Bike Ride

* Brighton Marina one of the largest man
made marinas in Europe offers boating,
shopping, cinema, restaurants, bowling
and an Asda Supermarket

* Black Rock adjoins Brighton Marina
nearby to the site and is earmarked
for development of a new Ice Skating
and Conferencing Arena

* The Terraces leisure development
offers restaurants and The Gym,
at 17,000 sq.ft., recently opened
within the development

* There is an ‘artists quarter' comprising
two art galleries and two studios on
the north side of Madeira Drive

September
* National Speed Trials
» Ace Café Reunion (Motorcycle Rally)

October

* Brighton Breeze (annual VW run)
* Land Rover Run

» Cancer Research 10k Run

* Brighton Cyclosportive Event

* Brightona 201 | (motorcycle event)

November
* Annual Veteran London to Brighton Car Run
* Brooks |0km Run

December
* Burning The Clocks (Annual Solstice Event)




righton [isieoking fora:
breath of fresh alr

Potential

The site has potential for a variety of
uses and could be operated/occupied
with a mix of open air and indoor
facilities, the Council wish to remain
open minded in respect of the potential
uses for the site, of course subject to
receipt of planning permission.

The site is currently zoned as a Leisure site in
the Brighton & Hove Local Plan and potential
uses should ideally provide an all year round
attraction for both residents and tourists and
ideally not replicate uses found elsewhere on
the Seafront. Possible uses might include:-

* Children and Family attractions (Themed
attractions & play areas)

* Wet & Dry Sporting attractions to
compliment Yellowave (e.g. sporting centre,
board sports, wave riding machines/surf
centre, marine related sports)

* Art & Heritage related attractions (e.g.Vintage
Car & Motorcycle Heritage & Galleries)

Proposal

Brighton & Hove City Council are inviting
expressions of interest for the site from
interested parties to be received at the
Brighton Office of Oakley Commercial (for
the attention of Chris Oakley MRICS) no
later than 5pm Friday 4th November 201 |.

Interested parties are requested to make
comprehensive submissions in writing outlining the
proposed use for the site and in particular:-

a) Comprehensive overview of the proposals for the site
b) Details of the project team

) Details of how the venture will be funded and any
supporting funding information

d) Preference will be given to those parties who
provide a Business Plan and or details of
experience in running similar ventures elsewhere

e) The type of tenure required & rental proposal

f) Any other information considered to be relevant

Misrepresentation Act 1967 Oakley Commercial for themselves and the landlord/vendor(s) of this property
whose agents they are, give notice that: These particulars do not constitute any pa:z of an offer or contract.
||

Tenure

For more information contact sole agents

01273 688882

www.oakleyproperty.com

Chris Oakley MRICS
Email chriso@oakleycommercial.com
Tel 01273 645776

Matthew Wakemen
Email mattheww@oakleycommercial.com
Tel 01273 645774

Akl
Brighton & Hove
City Council

On behalf of Brighton & Hove City Council

Design by Proworx : : www.proworx.co.uk



dnolr) jleAcY ewiey

) -4



IAOH ANV NOLHDNY JANNA VIIIAVWN
1LIS NVd J3L3d JIWLO4d FHL YOd TVYSOJOUd INOINN V

NOITIAVd DNIHLVE NOLHONE
4 \ .\\\ \ \Na\x




SNVId TVAOTD HLIM AdVNOISIA e
JAOd NOLHDIYY e
AVAA FHL 4O LISIdOYHLNVIIHC e

HANOISSIWWOD
WSTHNOL NVITVYLSNV LSIM e

AdViA dH] 40
HAIANTIJTILINT NVITVHLSNOY O10C »

HdAINMO R NVWHUHIVHD e

IDNIdS NHOI

.dB9A Y] JO Jnauaidaliul 4
L @cso%mu,mw:m_@




AINMO %001 ALINOT
+9501 VL1Id3
NOITTIW +60T $SN AIAONINL
IDOVHIATT 4O 1L.99d o.oow
SINIANILNOD ¥ NO SdD1440 SH1VS N S140S3d
INIAWJOTIATIA NI ANV DNINNVId d4ANN 9
d31VdddO ANV dddOT9A3d S1dOS3d Q1

SHIVLS dILINN FHI 3dIS1NO
ATdOM dHL NI dNOYD dIHSHINMO AVAI'TOH ONIAVA

OIAIOVA-VISY NI d3dOTIATA THdOSTY INIANIJIANI ONIAVIT

dnols) [eAoy ewiey

Y



\IV\ SROSTY VIDIVHD ¢ SIMOSTY TVAOY g  SINOSTY VWUV gh

\ A 15071 LSINLLOY
LSINLLOY

NVSVON(N ‘THOSTY VIIVHD,
AV NVIVIWI[ ‘NVIVIWI[ VWAV
NVSVON( ‘VIVANVY VWAV

~ ANNVS 1V D4 9d L
. ONIW I1 . AV NVIVEWI[ LV D4
4 . N
: )

VSVAIANVYD Lv D99

b N\ Wg H
IJOSTY VIIVHD, ‘

NVMV TV,

T VI,

_D??@I o
sh.

IVW DONVIHD LV 9NT1D AYLNNOD V1§

Hé NIV dl ldil-v :._"1;.);, ,,1,11:.41,),‘.

NOOOSVT] 1vOq LV . /
SVITIA 3SNOHLHDIT TVAOY 4NTD HMES “ \(

A )| d g
Dtﬂé@ OngEt

SWTV gl

Vd
’

A

DI TATI ]
.
I
_Xn 8 O] L LS
P / ey g
PAS V A \O e A\
) T W ) TN ~N r 1
\/ \ J &
\\ ,,/ J

T103T110D 1d ODYOY LV A

ONINNVTd NJ «

ANVOSNL



SIOIAYTS Y4H 1O
DONIODONVNIA
SINVINVLSHYH iy SUvd
LINAWIDVNVW LdOS3d
ONILIMNIAVW ] STTVS
INIWJOTIAIA ANV

NOILISINODV ANV1

A4 ILVIDIdLNI ATIVOILYIA



VISINOANI TTVY - VIVANVI YWI WA



VISINOANI TTVY - VIVANVI YWI WA




FONNOT ANV LNVHNV.LS3d

T Y










_ - m,l..,...._.,_.\.r__.‘..
AT

=
i
&
| L rh

R ’
.m_rm“.u ._.___.rm. -

.r.w e ﬁ._ﬁ; e

VISINOANI ‘T1IVY - NVIVIAWI[ VWAV



VISINOANI ‘T1IVY - NVIVIAWI[ VWAV



a
-
-
=)
:
as
:
>
:
S




ANVIIVHL TNOWVS HOX - INWVS VW4V



10dTYD 'SONOMAW - SONVAITId VWUV




=
193

1D4TYD 'SONOMAW - SONVAITId VWUV




ANOZ AV1d SNIIATIHO JOOdLNO / HOOUNI NV

ANMNOUYDAV1d S.NVd dd14d

SANOYZ, §

SNOITIAVd ONIHLVd NOLHDIY4d

1LdIONOO iHL






JYINTD HLITVAH ANV VdS ANNOY YVIA Y

VdS VIWWH VA

SANOYZ, §

SNOITIAVd ONIHLVd NOLHDIY4d

1LdIONOO iHL






ALdVd AYIHL ANV VWYV
HLOY S4NTO 4dHLO HLIM dTHSNOILV1dd TVOOddIO1d

NOILVAOWWOODV 4L1I1S-110
ANV UdVd 4010 AAVALIT HLIM 9010 SdHd9WAW J1VATEd V

d'TO VIWWHVIA dH.L

SANOZ, §

SNOITIAVd ONIHLVd NOLHDIY4d

1LdIONOO 1HL






INVINOVLSIY ANV 4110 HOVAd TALS NVINVIUILIAIW V

HOVid VWUV

SANOZ, §

SNOITIAVd ONIHLVd NOLHDIY4d

1LdIONOO 1HL



F 1 i."- .
A LT

Ll L
ot i W
.
L

T LA

:. r-; ;._:'1.. ¥ a‘:?'r-t:‘.::: -".'_.1 I. .a. I ':~ L 1-. ; ‘,ﬂ'&kl 1 | -|
ol s ot tEELTERE R ¢
B UL |\



VMY ONTHIVINNS ANV DNIWWIMS YOO LNO NV
SNOITIAVd ONIHLVY dHL

SANOZ, §

SNOITIAVd ONIHLVd NOLHDIY4d

1LdIONOO 1HL






INAWJOTIAIA AIDVLS
SSANTHUVMY OOd 4O TdNLTND 1I1VIOJdHdOOD

VdS AHL YO 4T ATTVNYU4LNI
SWHLSAS Y4ILVM ANV TOOd dHIL 4O4d NOILOITIOO dVI1OS ANV 1SN1-1Yd
YALVMNIVYE ONIAOTIWA NOISIA ADYINT MOT AdILVINSNI-dddNS V

NOIS1d 1SN90d ANV IWVHdd-d494WIL
SHA1TddNS ANV SHOLOVILNOOD SINVLIINSNOOD 1TVOO1
SNOTTIAVd A4LNAL dIWWWIS

NOILOMYLSNOD AUdVH ANNOY dViA

ALTTIIVNIVLSAS ¥ NOILONYILSNOO






SNOISSTHAWI LSI1UV



r—

.._._.._..

T ..\.._._.____. \_,_ .\\\HI.. Iu..
Lt

g = ——

s \!\‘—-l\”\..ll ﬂ....-..




juswdo|aAsp pue 3.n12311ydde

mpumw_;u(_,q__mwm:xem_._ mZ{jmequPmMEDZ,«DZDOMU
Dagnl?

1\
|
i
i

|

7.
V4
\

£
~k
ys

S
imEmmEa;
T

T
i
ImE|

=2
i
INEEEE|

NV1d 4OO1d LSHId

208

Vv

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

HOVIE IOVHEL ©

TP R T T
(EEESNEREE SN RE i
T

N i

_H Muufduﬁu}gxgwwi

puno.Belg s ueg 19304 / — o

NV1d 4OOd ANNOYD



juswdo|aAsp pue 3.n12311ydde

SI23UYDIY |25y wer] SNOILVAdTd NOITIAVd TVOIdAL

JAINA VYIIAVIW DNIDV4 / YV3IY - uoneas|g [edrdA |

() e

209

V3S ONIDVH / LNOYA - uoneas|g [eordA |

\4 $13A37T HLOE NO - 3avOV4 N3dO OL SHOOd SNIAIS \4

s




1uswidojaasp pue a.an12911

51393124y l[essny wer] HOVid dHL WOYUd 15Vd HIHON DNINOOT

Darff

= L At el T = — : T LI | ——— |.||]|.L|II|IP.FPr“JL.ﬂl_|I}I_II'HI
H _— ! ] H
R i - T S I

ole

T g

1DOVWI HOLIXS




f""-‘r': LR
. ...:,I .“ £

cture and development

archite

e
—

Liam Russell Architects

—
99
s
=
),
Z
7
@
O
—
L
>
o
7
-
=
as

SKETCH IMAGE




wdojanap pu

muumu_;u%ﬂ __mmm:m wel

e

Wi
.J'f f_.'r |
g

.,
!

/

1SV1 ONIAOOT SIHOYY dHL WOYd

= b’ .35-. L____ﬂ._-._hﬂ.‘m._..ﬂ___.uﬂ._ _ll T ||.[”

:“,_r‘ _ ..
}____m_ﬂ_._ A I g
L




1uswidojaasp pue a.an12911

$32931YdJYy [|9SSNY Wel 1SIM ONDIOOT STVSOdOYd IHL WOYA

= — [ ﬁ | - = . ) - 11.&11..].1

213

1DOVWI HOLIXS




u:mF_n_O_m>mU pue 3Jnide8liyddie

SURIERARIN/ (JJSRSEN: ] EUE TVSOdOdd LV IAIRA VAdIdAVW DNOTY DNIJOOT

1DOVWI HOLIXS




\V\ AWONOODT TYOOT 404
HOLVHINID 4NNTATE ¥ INAWAOTdWHT LNVOIIINDIS

HOVIY ONILIAEVW ANV dd TVHOTD SYWHVIA
HONOYHL ATIAISNILIXT AILOWOXMd NOLHONY ANV 1D3(0OYd

SHOLISTA NT DN
ANV NOLHDNMY F1OWOYd "NOILVNILS1d XHdVWANYVI

TVSOJOYd ITIVNIVISNS ATHDIH V
JNOINN, ANY AHIMOM Yd
SINIOd ID1d 40 ID9NVY IV

ANNOY YVIA RN JAISOTOXd NON

SLI4ANAEYd / STANLVId AdA






e vsuan an
ISITILOHK * .
L dHL

L \
R hds
" g &

8,

it 1

e ]
}. :.J.

00 s
1 e sonsas g

L LI

o
7

e
A

it

111 s

) 3y a_
“_.___MME Dﬁ..:‘_w..“. s
43

* JIUEA —:.ﬁh.v ..E.K.
auZeRRYy WO I L]

o

\)
e

o
¥

Seh, . ./
< il by
i

m{& A

------ siree
iy g R!.-u..“
| 2
P e PR
- HNIN
IAgaLT ONY

m.ﬂ..@.

d3lN3

1+ /w‘_._



( LATVA ) SNOILNTOS DNIMAVd HLIM dTiH
1HdOddNS
STVAOUJddY ANV SINASNOO HLIM dT11H

ASVAT WYH1L DNOT

SINIWTIINOTY



HAWOH 4dWOO OL 4DIN 49 A TNOM LI

NOISNTONOOD



dnolr) jleAcY ewiey

) -4



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 12
DEVELOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council

CULTURE COMMITTEE

Subject: Ultrafast Broadband Bid 2012: Wired for Growth

Date of Meeting: 21 June 2012

Report of: Strategic Director Place

Contact Officer: Name: Max Woodford Tel: 29-3541
Email: max.woodford@brighton-hove.qov.uk

Key Decision: Yes

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

In the March 2012 Budget Statement the Chancellor announced an additional
£50m to provide ultrafast broadband for cities. This is in addition to £100m
previously announced in 2011 by DCMS for 10 Super-Connected Cities
(including London, Edinburgh, Cardiff, Birmingham, Manchester, Leeds/Bradford,
Newcastle & Bristol).

Brighton & Hove has been invited to submit proposals to accelerate Superfast
Broadband provision in the city and to extend provision of Ultrafast Broadband.
A formal Invitation To Tender (ITT) has been recently issued by the Department
for Culture, Media & Sport (DCMS) with a September 2012 State Aid compliant
submission deadline. The bid submission will be similar to that recently made by
core cities such as Birmingham and Bristol. The business case sought from the
government, is sustainable economic development and business growth. [f
successful, the additional government funding on offer to Brighton & Hove is
thought likely to be in the region of £5-10m with options for match funded
investment from broadband infrastructure providers such as BT Openreach,
Virgin Media or others able to provide broadband infrastructure to business.
Delivery by a reputable provider is likely to be subject to a procurement exercise
drawing on approved frameworks or on OJEU compliant procurement process.
Compliance with EU State Aid rules will be essential.

A small officer team with support from Wired Sussex has convened to outline the
business case for the bid and define a specification for a specialist consultant to
draft the technical aspects of the bid and to handle complex and potentially
contentious State Aid issues.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Economic Development & Culture Committee agrees to:

221




2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Note the recommendation of the allocation of up to £150,000 by Policy &
Resources Committee on 14" June 2012 from unallocated general reserves to
support submission of an Ultrafast Broadband Bid to government, costs including
expert consultancy and legal costs;

Support submission of a bid to the government in accordance with the timetable
and criteria when published;

Delegate finalisation of the bid to the Strategic Director Place.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

‘Ultrafast Broadband'’ is defined (Dec 2011) by the lead government department,
Culture Media Sport, as providing a minimum download speed (rateable rather
than actual) of at least 80 megabits per second upgradeable to 100 megabits per
second (Mbps). This compares to ‘Superfast Broadband' speeds of 24 Mbps.
The government attaches significant importance to the capacity of Information
Communications Technology (ICT) infrastructure in sustaining the UK’s
international economic competitiveness and hence has sought to bolster and
accelerate the pace of private sector investment with targeted public sector
investment in indentified ‘Core Cities’ and, as anticipated, growth potential cities
such as Brighton and Hove.

Many businesses and public sector agencies in the city are increasingly reliant
on the broadband infrastructure of the city and wider region to cost effectively
access their customers, suppliers and clients. For some years Brighton and
Hove has earned a reputation as a leading ‘Creative & Digital Media’ city in the
UK. However, we are no longer alone in making this claim nationally or
internationally. As such, if existing businesses are to compete effectively and we
wish to continue to attract leading edge new companies to locate and invest in
the city, the ICT infrastructure underpinning our business sectors needs to be
world class.

It is also the case that access to public services will become increasingly
dependent on accessing the web and it is in the wider social interests of the city
to ensure a robust and inclusive infrastructure.

A small officer team, with support from Wired Sussex, has convened to outline
the business case for the bid and define a specification for a specialist consultant
to draft the technical aspects of the bid and to handle State Aid issues.

Bid Business Case

The city’s broadband network continues to be upgraded and is dependent on: a)
the economic need and willingness to pay of businesses and consumers; and, b)
the investment plans and funding commitments of infrastructure providers —
mainly BT Openreach and Virgin. Businesses in the city have 4 main broadband
infrastructure options:

i) Direct and bespoke provision by very large companies where the
requirements are substantial and the costs significant;

222



Ethernet connection to the main network via a broadband provider
business package. This provides significant bandwidth and thus up and
down load capacity but comes at a cost of some tens of thousands pounds
per year;

i)

Standard broadband connections using entirely fibre optic cable
connection (Fibre To The Premise-FTTP) or copper cable connection to
the premise and fibre optic cable to a nearby cabinet (Fibre To The
Cabinet-FTTC). These come in a variety of cost options and will be the
same or similar to the offers to the home user;

ii)

Micro businesses and freelancers may use wireless internet at various
locations around the city, either free at cafes or through subscription
services. However, free public wireless connection is not available on any
scale in the city at present.

3.6 Intheory 99.42% of the population is currently estimated to be covered by
‘superfast’ broadband in Brighton & Hove. However, most areas experience
differences between advertised ‘up to’ broadband connection speeds and the
reality of day to day to service. This is largely due to ‘contention rates’ (i.e. the
number of concurrent broadband users on the network at any one time) that can
affect speed, capacity and reliability of service due to the ‘bandwidth’ and
exchange constraints of the infrastructure network. As business and domestic
applications using broadband technology increase in size and volume, this will
rapidly slow the responsiveness of the network and thus constrain the growth
potential of dependent businesses. As set out below there may be some
significant areas of the city where limited capacity is likely to be affecting the

business community/

Figure 1: ‘Slow Spots’ 2Mbps & Less

w3
pry Bl

0«__%
)
G
*4
o .
w2l A
-
Uiniversify
of Sussex

Great \Wood
pt

=
®
£ £ % Faimer Hil
e P0E i b
o2 5 aldea o @,
Waad b f‘}
§. AZTY 3l
c £ 7 a
AZT. T Withdean Q
S G ® park i G
& 8 % & @
o -]
o § % H
& 3 o § e
3 2 5
2] :
T B
o ) Q, 9 =+ ¥
oF 4, %
ad " € gy prestan Drave_Brighton &
g Wil 4y a2 o 2 i i
g £ Hove 2 & & et
& - Bahit B,
w7 U £ # Recreation @ = & it Ry
ADTO hd-Bhereham Rd- = Ground B"fq, % }1\
5 , ] creseey
4275 a Warrgn R =
2 =
2 O
2 i Eim Grave
y-5ea 82 g ; 5 Gr 1
AZ5g i o
: £ 1 ad = }
2, = Queens =
Klngs-,-,q, an i Waos ? .\5 Park .Q".“éu ?;
a5 stern Ry S 7y Q\eﬁ’ &l
Hi - 3
9swg, Ed,
Hing'y % A gy 2
a }
E A &“asf East Brighton
A2sg b Park 3
oring g, &?G‘as i
G(@n‘s - IQQ%
. ~
A2sg g %,
£ %
'f’fa;..-,_e o =
»4353

A5

223



3.7

3.8

3.9

The bid submission will need to collate and present expert evidence to support
the case for public investment to accelerate and extend the existing pace of
private sector investment. A sub-optimum digital infrastructure is no longer
sustainable for local businesses competing in a global sector. Without
investment in the city’s broadband infrastructure, the UK and south east will be
unable to capitalise on the business innovation harnessed in the city. Ultimately
the foothold established in this highly competitive and fast changing sector is at
risk of being lost. Spin-off economic opportunities will not be realised.

Investing for sustainable business growth

Based on the information available to the project team, the recommended goal is
to enable the creative and digital media sector hosted in the city to continue to
expand as a distinct but integral part of the South East and London digital
economy with global reach. Through the bid, we are seeking to equip the city
and the businesses that locate within it with a broadband infrastructure and
business network to match or exceed that of our global competitors:

v'an ongoing commitment to upgrading digital infrastructure in the city and
thereby optimise the business potential from developments in the Information
Communications Technology industry;

v enabling residents and visitors to the city to experience the best in information
service technology;

v ensuring our digital infrastructure is accessible to and inclusive of all sections
of our community in helping to meet household, income and public service
needs & requirements.

The initial work of the project team suggests a fourfold public/private investment
approach including:

Wireless City - A commercially sponsored roll out of outdoor web access for
phones, tablets and other portable devices within the central commercial and
business districts of the city, including the sea front. Work undertaken by
Westminster Council suggests a ‘concessionary agreement’ procurement
route. Investment will include a network of low voltage wireless units mounted
primarily on council property assets notably lamp columns and buildings.

100% coverage of superfast broadband - Subject to match funding
commitments from the main infrastructure providers, this will accelerate and
extend the roll out of new exchange cabinets across the city providing more
extensive fibre optic cable to the cabinet (FTTC) and where fundable, more
widespread fibre optic cable to the premise (FTTP).

Commercialisation of ‘dark fibre’ - The City Council has 12 pairs of fibres
which leased from SSE. This provides connectivity between 5 BHCC
‘locations’ — HTH, KH, BTH (including Barts House), Jubilee Library and the
central museum / pavilion complex. There is also a ‘legacy’ connection to Lees
House at the bottom of Dyke Road which is a key point of presence on several
national networks. This is represented in Figure 2. Further work can be done
to explore the potential for letting some of this capacity on a commercial basis,
subject to the contractual position with SSE.

224



Figure 2: Council ‘dark fibre’ network

Brighton and Hove City Council — core sites — network overview

: Intedmnet

Redstons AS5552 /‘/
D/_ il
/ Y 5 PoP Oid Court
House
5
A
& :
Portslade Town Hall i

Kings House: 7 Brighton Library

11 Brighton Town Hall

= VirginMedia 200Mby¢
""1——— NEOS / SSE Gigabit "1_.-— bl

. Dark Fibre 12 pairs

ites:-
13 Libraries ———L___ VirginMedia Gigabit
11 Secondary Schoals EVEN Fibre Ring ‘1—# NEOS] SSE 200Mb!
71 Primary Schools 1Gig barer
46 Councillor’s Home
3 Musus

umiges 1: 200Mb transit
152 Networked Council Sites

Ultrafast Site Specific - This may include a variety of development locations
such as Station Gateway, New England & North Laine Business Quarter,
Lewes Road Knowledge Corridor (From Sussex University to Valley Gardens -
including ex Amex offices & new Hospital sites), the Seafront & Cultural
Quarter, Hove Station area, Shoreham Harbour, the Marina and Black Rock
site.

3.10 Timing is currently estimated as:

4.1

May Bid criteria & opportunity announce expected from Govt

Jun  Appoint appropriate consultants & complete detailed bid & clarification
with officials

Sep Bid submission to Ministers

Oct  Govt announce successful bidders

Nov Commence implementation & formal procurement.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

No significant community or wider business engagement has been undertaken to
date. Phil Jones from Wired Sussex is supporting the officer project team and
may be able to provide quick feedback and input on commercial needs and the
business case for the bid. Engagement has commenced with BT Openreach and
officers are seeking to open up a similar dialogue with Virgin and any other
broadband infrastructure providers. Once the scope of the bid is clear the project
team will initiate consultation with key business representatives to seek their
input and support in making a robust and evidenced business case.

225



5.1

5.2

5.5

5.6

5.7

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The Targeted Budget Management Provisional Outturn 2011/12 report to Policy
& Resources on 14™ June 2012 recommends the allocation of up to £150,000 to
support the delivery of Superfast Broadband provision in the City and to extend
the provision of Ultrafast Broadband throughout the city. The costs will support
consultant and legal costs associated with the preparation of the business case
to support the delivery of the bid to the government.

If the bid to the government is successful, the additional government funding on
offer to the city of Brighton & Hove is thought likely to be in the region of £5m out
of a total fund of £50m with potential for match funded investment from
broadband infrastructure providers.

Finance Officer Consulted: Rob Allen Date:28.5.12

Legal Implications:

The Council can rely on its economic development and general competence
powers in participating in the bid. Expenditure of any sums awarded by the
Government must comply with the Councils Contract Standing Orders, Public
Contract Regulations and the EU Procurement Rules. There is a risk that the
investment will be classified as State Aid, in which case it might need to be
authorised by the EU , depending on whether it falls within one of the tolerated
exceptions. Legal risk here will be reduced by the lessons’ learned from the first
tranche of authorities granted funding, and also by engaging consultants at an
early stage to help design the bid in a way which complies with the State Aid
rules.

Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce Principal Solicitor Date:28.5.12

Equalities Implications:

A more effective and affordable broadband infrastructure that improves access to
all sections of the community can bring significant advantages to the daily lives
and future prospects of city residents.

Sustainability Implications:

An effective and efficient broadband infrastructure creates opportunities to
reduce the cities carbon footprint such as reducing the need to travel.

Business impact

There is a strong imperative to use available public funds to improve the
resilience and competitiveness of the local economy and extend the benefits of
global reach. A world class broadband infrastructure will be critical to the efficacy
of the City Investment Prospectus currently in development.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

226



5.8 Broadband is an essential part of the regulatory infrastructure of the city.
Particular attention will be directed at ‘wireless’ provision on police and
emergency service communications systems.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

5.9 The government have opted to vest State Aid compliance with successful bid
authorities. State Aid rules in this field are complex and it has been estimated
that up to £100k may need to be provided for in terms of seeking expert legal
opinion and in managing compliance with EU monitoring.

Public Health Implications:

5.10 Broadband access can play an important part in managing information
dissemination concerning public health.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

5.10 The Council has an important facilitating role to play in supporting submission of
a bid that offers economic and social benéefit to the city.

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

6.1  The Council is not obliged to bid for the public funds announced by the
Chancellor however this may be widely perceived as a failure of civic leadership.

6.2  The final bid will consider options in the light of government guidance.

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 In addition to seizing the government invitation to bid, the outcomes sought
include:

= Competitive advantage for Brighton & Hove businesses particularly the
creative & digital media sector and the visitor economy;

= Enhanced digitalisation of public services;
= Site specific value & marketing uplift (e.g. Block J New England Quarter);

= Greater regional economic significance & influence (e.g. link to “Tech City’ in
London);

= Enhanced digital inclusion.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
None.

Documents in Members’ Rooms
None.

227



Background Documents
On line bidding documentation
http://www.culture.gov.uk/what we do/telecommunications and online/8830.aspx

228



ECONOMIC Agenda Item 13
DEVELOLPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council

CULTURE COMMITTEE

Subject: Amendments to wooden beach hut specification —
Hove Promenade

Date of Meeting: 21% June 2012

Report of: Strategic Director Communities

Contact Officer: Name: Viki Miller Tel: 01273 292716

E-mail: viki.miller@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Wards Affected: Wish, Westbourne, Central Hove

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 To provide an update on the consultation undertaken to introduce amendments
to the beach hut specification on the painting of the beach Hut doors (single solid
colour or vertical stripes) size of the doors (double or half doors) and the letting of
the hut for exhibitions ( by application only)

2, RECOMMENDATIONS:

21 (1) Thatthe Economic and Development and Culture committee members note
the result of the consultation exercise on changes to the specification of
beach huts and the temporary change of use.

2.2 (2) Thatthe Economic and development and Culture committee member
approve the changes taking in to account the results of the consultation.

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY

EVENTS:

3.1 It is important to distinguish that this report relates to a consultation on privately
owned wooden beach huts located on Hove promenade and not beach chalets
which are owned and let by the Council. ( see appendix 1&2)

3.2 The beach huts on Hove promenade are highly sought after and hold significant

historical and traditional value. The enjoyment of the seaside is a key
recreational resource for thousands of the city’s residence as well as vast
numbers of tourists.

229



3.3

3.4

3.5

The beach huts have formed a part of Hove seafront for many years, Brighton
and Hove City Council inherited the huts when Brighton and Hove became a
unitary authority in 1997. Many of the huts had been built to varying
specifications although all were painted in the specified colours.

Complaints were received from existing beach hut owners wishing to make
alterations to their beach huts for safety and security reasons but were restricted
by the current specification. Officers assessed what changes to the specification
would be required to ensure all the huts became compliant. Although there are a
vast number of discrepancies in design and / or materials used only a few minor
changes would mean that all the huts comply with the specification and allow for
a degree of flexibility adding to the overall appeal of the huts.

Over the last several years officers have become aware of a growing appetite for
the beach huts to be used as part of temporary exhibitions and charity
fundraising events. This is due to the popularity of the huts and their iconic link to
the city. These events offer a chance for media exposure and encourage further
visitors to the seafront. Therefore a suggestion to allow a temporary change of
use was included in the consultation.

A consultation was undertaken and 460 beach hut owners were sent details
along details along with there annual licence renewal letter. The survey was
available to complete both on —line and in paper format. Details were also
advertised on the council website and at the public information desk at the
seafront office. There were 61 responses to the consultation. 56 on-line and 5
paper. This represented 12% of the owners.

3.6 A Summery of the Responses to the survey are indicated in the table below.

1.

We propose that there may be some variation made to the specification to allow
the hut doors to be constructed using tongue and Groove OR panelling.

2. We propose to allow some variation to the size of the doors.
3. We propose to allow a variation in the design to allow vertical stripes OR a single
solid colour
4. We propose the owner may apply to the seafront office for a 4 week permit to
alter the appearance of the hut or to use the hut for exhibitions.
Question Agree Disagree Don’t Know
One 90 % 10/%
Two 61 /% 39%
Three 59% 41%
Four 85% 15%

As the results show there were a majority of responses in favour of the changes.

230




3.7

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Although some changes to the external features of the huts are proposed the
main characteristics will remain unchanged. The uniform appearance of the huts
will remain with the dimensions and external colours staying consistent with each
other. The changes to the doors of the hut will enhance the visual appearance of
the huts and add further interest to these popular iconic structures.

CONSULTATION

A consultation exercise has been undertaken using a survey accessible both
online and in paper format the survey was available to existing beach hut owners
and any members of the public. Internal consultation was undertaken with the
Planning Conservation team who have no objections to the proposed
amendments to the specification.’

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations of
this report and the Officer time required to implement the changes can be
accommodated within existing resources.

Finance Officer Consulted: Michelle Herrington Date:28/05/12

Leqgal Implications:

The terms and conditions of the beach Hut licence will need to be amended to
reflect the changes recommended.

Lawyer Consulted:Name Bob Bruce Date: 28/05/12
Equalities Implications:

None Specifically

Sustainability Implications:

None Specifically

Crime & Disorder Implications:

None Specifically

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

None Specifically

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

231



5.7  None Specifically

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

6.1  The Options have been considered in the consultation exercise.

6. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. None

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Background Documents

1. None

232



Beach Hut Consultation

Questions

Question 1

The current beach hut specification
states that the doors of the hut must be
constructed of plywood and be panelled.

We propose that there may be some
variation made to the specification to allow
the hut doors to be constructed using
tongue and groove OR panelling.

Agree / Disagree

Question 3

The current beach hut specification states
that the doors of the hut must be painted
one single solid colour.

We propose to allow a variation in design to

allow vertical stripes OR a single solid colour.

Agree/ Disagree

‘ ‘ A6786 beach hut consultation.indd 1

Question 2

The current beach hut specification states
that thedoors of the hut must be to a
specified size.

We propose to allow some variation to
the size of the doors.

Agree/ Disagree

Question 4

The current terms and conditions state
that alterations cannot be made to the
hut, site or place.

We propose the owner may apply to
the Seafront Office for a 4 week permit
to alter the appearance of the hut or
to use the hut for exhibitions. This may
in be in conjunction with a fundraising
event or linked to the Brighton festival.
The council reserves the right to decline

applications.
Agree/ Disagree

I

Brighton & Hove
City Council

27/01/2012 16:58



234






[PuUno) A1y 'SLLT6T €410 UO 3DIHO JU0Ijess
JA0H ¥ UOIY3LIg 9Y3 1oe1uod ased|d ‘uoisian Jaded e aiinbal noA §j

ﬂﬁéﬂﬂ sInyydeagqHg,/wod |AnAuiy’mmm o}
M ob asea|d 'sMaIA JnoA a1epaidde pjnom am pue
Aieniga4 1| 9yl wou} UuoIle}NSUOD INY Ydeaq e

Buiyenapun aq ||IM [12UnNo) A1) SAOH ¥ uolyblig

oourIeadde sany yoeoaq
InoA noge sn ol jyreg, °




ECONOMIC Agenda Item 14
DEVELOPMENT & Brighton & Hove City Council
CULTURE COMMITTEE

Subject: Ovingdean Conservation Area Review

Date of Meeting: June 2012

Report of: Strategic Director of Place

Contact Officer: Name: Sanne Roberts Tel: 292261
Email: Sanne.roberts@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: Rottingdean Coastal

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 This report provides a summary of response to the recent consultation on a
review of Ovingdean Conservation Area. The consultation results show strong
support for extending the conservation area boundary to meet that of the South
Downs National Park. This report seeks approval for the amended boundary and
adoption of the revised Character Statement. This will provide an up-to-date
assessment of the special interest of the conservation area, in order to help
preserve and enhance this special interest.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That the Ovingdean Conservation Area Character Statement is adopted, subject to any
minor grammatical and non-material alterations agreed by the Strategic Director of
Place following consultation with the Chair of the Economic Development and Culture
Committee

2.2 That the proposed boundary changes, as illustrated in annex 4, be approved and
formally designated as part of the Ovingdean Conservation Area under section 69 of
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

3.1 Ovingdean Conservation Area was designated in 1970. Since designation, the
conservation area and its boundary have not been reviewed, and no up-to-date
character statement therefore exists. An area of the Ovingdean Conservation
Area, unaffected by the boundary change proposals, falls within the South Downs
National Park.

3.2 Two phases of formal consultation have been undertaken as part of this review:
A draft Ovingdean Conservation Area Character Statement and boundary review
were approved for a first phase of public consultation at the PEER Cabinet
Member’s meeting on 11 July 2011. This proposed removal of the farms area
from the conservation area, as shown in annex 1, as the area comprises modern
buildings of no architectural interest. Formal public consultation took place

237



3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

between 8 August and 18 September 2011. The response to this consultation
showed a high level of support for preserving and enhancing the special interest
of this area. There was a strong response to the proposed boundary
amendment, with the maijority of responses requesting that the area be enlarged
— rather than reduced - to include the farms area to the north and allotments to
the south and thus align with the boundary to the South Downs National Park.

As a result, a revised character statement and boundary - reflecting the
consultation response — were approved for further consultation at the PEER
Cabinet Member Meeting on 2 February 2012, and consultation took place
between 13" February and 25" March 2012. The response to this phase of
consultation supports the revised boundary proposal and character statement, as
described below.

The character statement (as amended following the consultations), which is
appended at annex 2 and has been placed in Members’ Rooms, is in line with
current guidance from English Heritage (2011). It is informed by historic
research and on-site analysis. It describes the overall character of the area and
notes four distinct character areas. The revised boundary proposal better
reflects the area of special historic interest — particularly in terms of the historic
importance of farming to the village - and aligns with the boundary to the South
Downs National Park. The proposed boundary changes are shown in annex 3.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

Two phases of formal consultation have been undertaken. During both phases
of consultation, copies of the draft statement were made available on the
Council’s website, at City Direct Offices and at Rottingdean Library. Local
residents, businesses, Ward Councillors, South Downs National Park Authority,
Ovingdean Residents and Preservation Society and other local and national
amenity societies, English Heritage and other key stakeholders were consulted.
Posters were displayed in the area, and an article placed in the Ovingdean
Residents and Preservation Society Newsletter. The statement was reported to
the Council’s Conservation Advisory Group (CAG). A meeting was also held with
members of Ovingdean Residents and Preservation Society on 05 October 2011.

The responses to the second phase of consultation are summarised in annex 4.
9 responses were received, of which 6 supported the revised boundary proposal
and amended character statement. 1 response objected to the revised boundary
proposal. It suggested that the conservation area should be reduced in size, but
only if the boundary to the South Downs National Park could be extended to
meet that of the conservation area. 1 response suggested a number of very
minor adjustments to the ‘Spatial Analysis’ section of the character statement,
which have been incorporated into the final document. 3 responses support the
making of an Article 4 Direction, which has been brought forward separately to
this report.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

238



Costs associated with the adoption of the Ovingdean Conservation Area
Character Statement and boundary extension will comprise staff time and press
notices in the Brighton & Hove Leader and London Gazette. These will be met
from within existing Planning revenue budgets.

Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 04/05/12

Legal Implications:

The Council has a duty under section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (“the 1990 Act”) to review its area, from time to time, to
determine whether any parts or further parts should be designated as conservation
areas. There is no statutory requirement for public consultation prior to designation
but this is considered best practice. The 1990 Act also grants local planning authorities

5.3

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

a power to vary or cancel such designations.
No adverse human rights implications are considered to arise from the Report
Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward Date: 8/5/12

Equalities Implications:

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EQIA) of the Conservation Service was
undertaken in 2010 and covers work on the designation of conservation areas.

Sustainability Implications:

The proposals in this report have no substantial impact upon the four priorities of
the UK’s Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 (sustainable consumption and
production, climate change, natural resource protection and sustainable
communities).

Crime & Disorder Implications:

None have been identified.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

The failure to maintain the character and appearance of the area and its historic
buildings could lead to adverse publicity for the Council.

Public Health Implications:

Preservation and enhancement of the special interest of a conservation area can
improve the well-being and sense of place of existing and/or future inhabitants of
the area.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

The proposals accord with the corporate priority of Creating a Sustainable City,
as set out in the Corporate Plan 2011-2015. More specifically the character
statement and boundary review are a response to the Council’s priority to create
a higher quality built environment and to preserve our architectural heritage.

239



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Original boundary proposal from the first phase of consultation
2. Revised boundary proposal

3. Revised Ovingdean Conservation Area Character Statement
4. Summary of consultation responses

Documents in Members’ Rooms

1. Ovingdean Conservation Area Character Statement
Background Documents

1. Letters of representation

2. Minutes of the Conservation Advisory Group — 13 March 2012

240



Original Boundary Amendment Proposal Annex 1

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence: 100020999, Brighton & Hove City Council. 2012.

m D Conservation Area
~ Remove

Brighton & Hove
City Council .~ South Downs National Park Boundary

241



242



Revised boundary amendments proposal. Annex 2

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence: 100020999, Brighton & Hove City Council. 2012.

i I@I i D Conservation Area

S I - Proposed extension
Brighton & Hove

ty Council - South Downs National Park Boundary

243



244



Ovingdean Conservation Area
Character Statement

Designated: 1970
Extended: 2012
Area: 21 Hectares 2147 Acres

Article 4 Direction controlling incremental
change made 24 April 2012

Introduction

Location and Setting

Ovingdean comprises a small agricultural hamlet, set in rural downland, 4.2km to the east of Brighton
and approximately Tkm north of the coastline. The historic part of the village nestles at the base of a
valley, surrounded on three sides by open downland. 20th century residential development extends up
the valleyside to the south and east; however the surrounding downland remains the dominant feature.
The topography creates a particularly inward-looking village, much removed from the hustle and bustle
of neighbouring Brighton and the A259. Its location away from main routes in the area mean that the
historic village is still a relatively quiet backwater, although increased levels of traffic travelling through
the village has affected this.

Ovingdean Conservation Area was designated in 1970 and centres on the historic village. It is bounded
by Longhill Road to the northeast, the grounds of Ovingdean Hall to the southeast, the woodland to
the rear of St Wulfran's Church to the southwest and Hog Croft Field and the operational farm to the
north. Amongst its heritage assets, the area contains 14 listed buildings, two buildings of local interest
and an archaeological notification area (see Existing Designations graphic - page 2). Three further
archaeological notification areas are located in the immediate surroundings. lan Fraser House (Blind
Veterans UK) - a centre providing support to blind ex-Service men and women - is a grade Il listed
complex situated at the junction of Greenways and the A259; to the south of the village. Hog Croft
Field and the westernmost portion of the conservation area were designated as part of the South
Downs National Park in 2010, along with surrounding downland to the north, south and west.

A conservation area is defined as 'an area of special architectural or historic interest the character or
appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance'. The area has changed since designation.
This document seeks to define and assess the current 'special interest' of Ovingdean Conservation Area,
and make recommendations for its future management.

Heritage, Planning & Public Protection, Brighton & Hove City Council, Rm 414 , Town Hall, Norton
Road, Hove, E.Sussex, BN3 3BQ Tel: 01273 292271 Email : conservation@brighton-hove.gov.uk

245

Brighton & Hove
City Council




Existing Designations

L=

T
&

s”‘“\j ﬁ,;}.f'/ T 7 /
Eoid~
, xf\.‘__ﬁ\i;‘ﬂa\h - !{f
| .

S
[ ]

() Crown Capyright. All rights reserved, Licence: 100020899, Brighton & Hove City Council. 2012, Cities Revealed(R) copyright by The Gealnformation(R) Group, 2012 and Crown Copyright (c) All rights reserved.

7/ Archaeologically Notification Area
‘ I I * I Locally Listed Buildings
LS Rh, TS B Listed Buildings

Brighton & Hove
City Council

}"\?{'

D National Park Boundary
Conservation Area

Page 2
246



Assessment of Special Interest

General Character

Ovingdean developed as an isolated farming community and manorial estate. The manorial estate was
originally located on what is now the open field of Hog Croft, and closely associated with the church.
The church itself is particularly historic: dating to at least the Norman period, if not earlier. The Manor
was rebuilt as the current Ovingdean Grange in the 16th century, whilst Ovingdean Hall was constructed
in the 18th century with its own associated farm. Greenways Corner was reconfigured in the 1930s, and
residential developments occurred to the south and east throughout the 20th century. Historic farm
buildings within the old village were replaced by purpose-built farm structures to the north in the 1980s,
with the original farm buildings converted to residential use. Throughout these changes however, the
village has remained a secluded rural village, albeit now predominantly residential in character.

The old village retains its medieval street layout, which orientates towards the former manorial site at
Hog Croft Field. A former village pond straddling the east boundary of this field suggests the possible
presence of a spring - although this dried up in ¢.1934. The presence of a pond is probably an
important factor in the origin of the village - which likely formed a watering hole for livestock.

The main architectural pieces comprise St Wulfran's Church (and the buildings that flank its approach),
Ovingdean Grange, and Ovingdean Hall. Other than these, the conservation area is comprised of farm
buildings (of which the majority are converted to residential use), vernacular cottages and 20th century
infill development. Although the historic farm buildings and cottages are not high status buildings they
are nevertheless of special interest in themselves. Despite variance in form and function, the buildings
are united through the use of traditional vernacular materials; predominantly flint elevations and clay tile
roofs. The 20th century infill development varies in character and architectural quality. Since
designation, the historic village has altered greatly due to the loss of a farming presence from the
physical centre of the village and the conversion of the historic farm buildings to residential use. This
has led to a change in its character. Nevertheless, the area remains of interest particularly due to the
surviving flint structures, clay tile roofs and picturesque rural lanes. The historic village and surrounding
downland are of great amenity value.

Historic Background and Archaeology

The origins and historic development of the area

The name Ovingdean translates as the 'valley of Ofa's people'. The first record for Ovingdean is in the
Domesday Survey, where the manor is identified as 'hovingedean', and the settlement comprised a small
church and a population of approximately 50 to 100. After the Norman invasion, part of Ovingdean
was held by conqueror Godfrey de Pierpoint, whilst part remained with its former Saxon owner,
Brictmer. These two parts - described here as the western and eastern estates respectively - have
distinct histories:

The western part of Ovingdean was one of five Sussex manors granted to Pierpoint; the others being
Portslade, Aldrington, Piddinghoe and East Chiltington. Of these, he made Portslade his main residence
and manorial court, and gave Ovingdean (which used the Portslade Court and therefore had no court of
its own) to a relative. Ovingdean manor house was located on Hog Croft Field. In the 16th century this
building was replaced with a new manor house; which was constructed using material from its
predecessor. This manor house was renamed 'Ovingdean Grange' in the 19th century.

The history of the eastern part of Ovingdean is less well documented. About a quarter of Ovingdean
Parish - including those parts that originally remained with Brictmer - had been donated to Lewes Priory
by 1252. A Lewes Priory Survey of 1445 and deeds conveying land show that after the dissolution of
the monasteries in 1537, the lands consisted of the eastern third of Ovingdean Parish, known as the
‘eastern farmlands'. Records show that at this time the manor was well-stocked, with 2000 sheep, as
well as oxen, cows, hogs and horses. This emphasises the importance of sheep pasture to the village's
economy throughout its history.

Page 3
247



Throughout the medieval and post-medieval periods the Lord of the Manor was rarely present in
Ovingdean. Rather than being used as the residence for the Lord of the Manor, Ovingdean Grange was
primarily a farmhouse to the neighbouring Grange Farm to the south. The Grange was immortalised by
Harrison Ainsworth in his book 'Ovingdean Grange, A Tale of The South Downs' (1857), which
describes Charles II's stay at Ovingdean Grange during his flight to France in 1651. The story is fictional
(the Prince stayed in Brighton); however the Geere Family - who occupied the Grange at that time - are
reported to have been involved in organising his return to England.

The 1662 Hearth Tax returns show that there were three sizeable properties in Ovingdean at this time.
The rectory and the farmhouse to the eastern estate (occupied by Robert Wildbore) are both recorded
as having three flues, whilst Ovingdean Grange is the most substantial house, with six flues.

In the early 18th century, lands in Ovingdean remained divided into two estates. At this time, the
eastern part was owned by Richard Beard, whilst the western part was owned by Richard Paine. Upon
the death of Richard Beard in 1714, a map was drawn up of the eastern estate (Grover Plan, ESRO BRD
3/4). This shows that the current morphology was already mostly established: Greenways forms an
ownership divide along a field boundary; with a track present along the line of Ovingdean Road.
Ovingdean Grange and the Church are depicted as being in the western estate. Two further buildings
are shown in relation to the church: that to the southeast is likely to be the parsonage. Another to the
northeast is situated close to the known location of the Manor House on Hog Croft Field. This suggests
that a building remained on the site of the Manor House. This building probably comprised an
agricultural building, such as a cattle shelter. Buildings and small fields lining the northern side of
Ovingdean Road, are identified as 'The Upper Croft Close and Yards' and 'The Lower Croft and Closes'
on the Plan. These form the main farm buildings of the Beard (eastern) estate at this time.

Ovingdean Hall - originally called Ovingdean House - was built in 1792 for Nathaniel Kemp on lands
forming part of the eastern estate. His nephew, Thomas Kemp junior, went on to design Kemp Town in
1825. Nathaniel Kemp's son, Charles Eamer Kempe - born at Ovingdean Hall - was a notable stained
glass window designer. CE Kempe designed various features of St Wulfran's Church, including
windows, the painted chancel ceiling, rood screen and the Kemp family tomb in the graveyard.

The associated Ovingdean House Farm was built along Ovingdean Road, including its own farmhouse
(Flints), farmyard and workers' cottages. The farm was constructed on the approximate site of the
crofts and farm buildings shown on the 1714 map. It later became known as Upper Farm, before
amalgamation with Grange Farm on Greenways.

The rectory was built in 1804 to replace the former 'mean thatched parsonage house' known to exist in
c.1780. The tithe map of 1839 (Map 1 - page 5) shows the hamlet at this time. The Church, rectory,
Ovingdean Grange, Ovingdean Hall and the two farm complexes are already evident, such that the
historic village has taken on much of its current form. The map highlights how integrated the
residential (shown in red) and non-residential buildings (shown in grey) were in the village, with barns
and houses set cheek-by-jowl. A small village pond is shown at the corner of Greenways and
Ovingdean Road, with the early 19th century 'Peartree Cottages' set opposite.

The 1873 1st edition Ordnance Survey (OS) map shows little change from the tithe map. A smithy is
depicted to the northwest of the village, and chalk pits to its east and west. The buildings to the east
of the church, and to the rear of the Grange, have been altered.

A small 'National School' was constructed in 1873 on Ovingdean Road, and is shown on the ¢.1890 OS
map. Due to falling numbers, it closed in 1907. It was then used as a 'Church Room’, until 1993 when
it was leased to Ovingdean Nursery School.

Following the death of Nathaniel Kemp in 1843, Ovingdean Hall continued in residential use until
c.1890. At that point the Hall was converted to educational use, and opened as a 'Young Gentleman's
School'. Numerous extensions were built in 1897, and are shown on the 1910-12 OS map (see Map 2 -
page 6). At this time, the settlement remained small, with a population of 248. However substantial
residential growth occurred after 1928, when Ovingdean became part of the Borough of Brighton for
administrative purposes. The first piecemeal development is shown on the c.1932-3 OS map (see Map
3 - page 6), which shows Longhill Road set out on the line of a former track.

Page 4

248



Map 1 - tithe map of 1839
N : \

A | Y “

=

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationary Office @ Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceadings. 100019601. 2008.

Ainsworth Avenue is also shown on the line of the footpath depicted on the 1714 Grover Map. The
ancient landownership divide between the eastern and western estates (as described on page 3)
remains evident; with residential growth limited to those lands to the east of Greenways.

Road improvements to the junction at Greenways Corner necessitated the demolition of Peartree
Cottages, and a series of semi-detached properties were built at the Corner as replacement
farmworkers' cottages. The adjacent pond also dried up at this time, when a mains water pipe was laid
to connect Balsdean reservoir and Kemp Town. Infill development occurred along Ovingdean Road, and
a Village Hall was constructed in 1932. This was replaced by the present Village Hall in 1986.

Ovingdean Hall remained as a Preparatory School until 1941. During World War Il it housed troops
from the Canadian Army. The Brighton Institution for the Deaf and Dumb School opened in 1947 and
remained in operation until 2010. The Hall now houses an international language college.

In the later 20th century, a number of new residential enterprises were built to the north, many of the
original farm buildings were converted to agricultural use and infill developments occurred. These
included a poultry farm, built to the north of the village in the 1960s. New farm buildings were also
constructed beside these in 1981, releasing the Grange Farm complex for redevelopment.

Page 5
249



Map 2 - 1910-12 OS map

N

LR

1

/" COringdeait
\5\ Frall

N

™
g ar’i Ey:n m

£

an

1-arg

Ovingde

(et
el Y
g

T2
“om S
A P’

b
Siﬁ\\"\llfmn'ﬁ-:t?llurpl{ E
G o/
£ s

Y This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the
X parmission of Grdnance Survey on behalf of the Controller af Her
Majesty's Stationary Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised
raproduction infringas Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings. 100019601, 2008.

Map 3 - ¢.1932-3 OS map
N

% wn
% TE-2gh

,“:\- Uﬂingdean'%, ‘\.’";_ j<% -
S¢ VAN

N,
i

Ueiipdean Crangh, 3

= £ \ N

5103

Tri miags is reprodutad Tinim Orinanes Sy melast wih e
permiszian of Orenonce Swwey on oehalf of the Cantroliar of Her
iagssty's StaHnnary (s & Crosm copynght. Unamhonsa
reprodution infrirges Crown cooyrighl snd my kesd 1o prossasion o
whil procarrings. THIFARGO. 26
ik ]

Page 6
250



Archaeological Significance

There is evidence for activity in the area since prehistoric times. The earliest evidence includes Iron Age
field systems and a number of barrows, set upon the surrounding open downland.

Evidence for Roman field systems survives on Cattle Hill, to the west of the village. Fieldwalking
undertaken on this site by Brighton and Hove Archaeological Society identified a scatter of Roman
pottery, as well as a scatter of earlier Bronze Age flintwork. It is possible that a Roman villa or trading
coastal station were located in the vicinity.

An Anglo-Saxon burial with iron spearhead was found close to Long Hill Road during construction of a
house in 1935.

Geophysical survey and excavations have been undertaken over recent years by Brighton and Hove
Archaeological Society on Hog Croft Field. A medieval manorial site has been recorded, dating to late
12th and 13th century, and in use into the 14th century. The complex was closely associated with the
church, and included the manor house, barns, a well and timber-framed outbuildings. Walls exposed
during excavation were of dressed flint with Caen and chalk quoins, and a number of phases of
construction were evident. Evaluation trenches elsewhere in the field exposed a trackway, earthworks
and possible dovecote. The area was also used in the filming of 'Oh What a Lovely War' in 1969, when
at least one World War | trench was recreated in the field.

Spatial Analysis

The existing morphology of the historic part of Ovingdean village relates to the ancient landownership
divide that existed along Greenways. Land within the manor was divided into eastern and western
estates; which were variously owned, occupied and farmed as separate entities. This led to the
development of two farming nuclei; that on Greenways which was associated with the western estate
(operating from the manor/Ovingdean Grange) and that on Ovingdean Road which was associated with
the eastern estate (see Graphic - page 8). The eastern farm was largely rebuilt in the late 18th century
as part of Ovingdean Hall, and operated from Flints. This ancient divide and the resulting binary
farming focus remains evident in the morphology of the historic village today.

The village retains a rural setting; with downland dominating the surrounding skyline. These ever-
present views have a strong presence in the village and contribute to a clear sense of place. Long views
to the woodland and open downland on Cattle Hill in particular form the backdrop to views of the
Church, which can be viewed in this context along Greenways and from as far away as Beacon Hill.

The roads in the area are generally narrow with irregular or non-existent pavements and grass verges,
emphasising the rural character of the village. The narrow, winding and sylvan Ovingdean Road in
particular retains the appearance of a quiet medieval country lane; creating an intimate atmosphere.
Houses are generally set behind flint walls, at a distance from the road. The flint walls and thick
vegetation create a strong boundary to the road. Many of the buildings are set at right angles or are
loosely set around former yards - having been converted from farm buildings or originally built to
orientate towards the farm rather than the road. Due to later infill and conversion, the overall layout of
buildings appears rather ad hoc.

Hog Croft Field and the grounds to Ovingdean Hall are particularly important green spaces in the
conservation area. They are, however, important for very different reasons: Hog Croft Field is located at
the main junction in the village, and is of particular archaeological significance as the original location of
the manor. It now forms a grassed field bounded by a flint wall, and marking the start of open
downland to the west of the village. Its former importance as part of the village's civic centre remains
evident in the surviving morphology of the village, which orientates towards the space: Ovingdean
Road - the main residential axis of the village - leads directly towards it, whilst Ovingdean Grange, St
Waulfran's Church, the buildings flanking the approach to the church and the former Grange Farm all
orientate towards the space. The village pond (since dried up) was originally situated on the east
boundary of the field - emphasising still further its function as an original part of the village centre.

Page 7

251



2 Farming Nuclei (hased on 1873 OS map).

N

“.:.&s
i ) ""‘-—1__._“\ i
Ty L
'---“_\.‘z ‘\
Hore ¥ -‘“"‘--L_ LY
i a.,_,_‘_. ~
"""ﬂv“_ %
f S S
(e} Crown Copyright. Al rights ressrved. Licence 100020668, Brighton & Hove Oty Counall 2071, Cihies Revealsd(R) copyright by The GealnformationiR) Graup, 2011 and Crown Copynght (o) Al fights ressnved

Boundary between Eastern & \Western Estates
Farm associated with Eastern Estate/Ovingdean Hall
Farm associated with Western Estate/ Ovingdean Grange Br lghton & Hove

City Council

Page 8
252



Spatial Analysis

() Crown Copynght. All nghts reserved. Licence: 100020222, Bnghton & Hove City Council. 2012, Cities Revealed(R) copynght by The Geolnformation(R) Group, 2012 and Crown Copynight (o} All nghts resenved.

hliRlch

Brighton & Hove
City Council

€4S important space

* Important Landmark

-

B important View
LSS Tree cover
Green space

Page 9
253



In contrast to Hog Croft Field, the grounds to Ovingdean Hall are not visually prominent in the area.
They form a secluded space on the edge of the historic village, bounded by flint walls and mature
vegetation. It is these walls, vegetation and the entrance and lodge on Greenways that are most
apparent in the conservation area. To the south and west, the space forms a green 'buffer' between
the historic village and surrounding 20th century development.

Important views in, and of, the conservation area include (Spatial Analysis Graphic - see page 9 and
Figure 1 - page 10):

V1.  Views between open downland and the village. These include those to and from
(a) Cattle Hill,
(b) Greenways,
(c) downland to the northwest of the village and
(d) Beacon Hill.

Within these, views of the Church with woodland backdrop are important.

V2.  Views to Church and the buildings flanking its approach from Ovingdean Grange and across
Hog Croft Field.

V3.  Unfolding views along Ovingdean Road
V4.  View of Ovingdean Grange from St Wulfran's Church
Important spaces in and around the conservation area include:

S1.  Hog Croft Field

S2.  Grounds to Ovingdean Hall

S3.  'The Green'

S4.  Land at Greenways Corner

S5.  Woodland and land to the rear of the church (Cattle Hill)

S6.  Surrounding downland dominating the setting and the skyline of the village; particularly
Cattle Hill

Local landmarks in the conservation area include:

L1. St Wulfran's Church
L2.  Ovingdean Grange
L3.  Barns set throughout the area, particularly the Olde Barn and Tythe Barn

Public Realm

Road and pavement surfaces in the area are mainly generic. However, gravel surfacing to Byre Cottages
and The Ridings emphasises its rural character, as does the use of minimal road markings and soft
verges throughout the area as a whole. Sarsen stones and white bollards have been used to deter car
parking on the green and outside Ovingdean Grange respectively. There is minimal street lighting in the
village, which contributes to the retention of a rural character at night. Lighting to Ovingdean Road is
of a modern design whilst a single swan-necked design is evident outside Ovingdean Grange. This
informal, low key approach to the public realm contributes to its character.

The narrow width and irregular pavements in the area contribute greatly to its character, emphasising
their origins as rural farming tracks and lanes. This is particularly true of Ovingdean Road. The roads
are, however, now subject to heavy traffic levels relative to their size and character. This has a harmful
impact on the character of the area. The lack of pavements in some areas also brings the needs of
pedestrians and car users into direct conflict.

Page 10

254



Fig 1. Some of the important views in, and of, the conservation area

Page 11
255



Character Analysis

The area can be divided into four distinct character areas (Character Area Graphic - page 13): The
Church and Manor to the southwest includes the oldest buildings associated with the Church, Manor,
western estate and its farm. Ovingdean Road Character Area comprises the fine grain of cottages and
converted farm buildings associated with the eastern estate and Ovingdean Hall Farm as well as later
infill development. To the north and northwest of Ovingdean is the The Farms Character Area,
comprising the late 20th century replacement farm complex, and associated agricultural enterprises.
To the southeast is the Ovingdean Hall Character Area, comprising an 18th century residence, with
associated grounds and later school buildings.

These four character areas together make up the historic village of Ovingdean.

Character Area 1: The Church and Manor (Graphic - see page 14)

The Church, Manor and associated farm buildings form a compact cluster of prestigious buildings, and
are the surviving part of the village's medieval civic centre. The original Manor was situated on what is
now Hog Croft Field; and the surviving buildings still orientate towards this space.

The importance of the buildings in this area is reflected in their individual scale and architectural quality.
Relationships between the manor, church and agricultural community are reflected through the
proximity of these buildings.

Important Spaces

Hog Croft Field

Hog Croft Field (Figure 2) comprises a large grassed
field, located at the junction of Greenways and
Ovingdean Road. It is bounded by a flint wall, with an
unusual stile providing access from beside the church. ~-
It is of spatial and archaeological importance to the
village as it is the site of the early medieval Manor
complex. The site has been subject to excavation by
the Brighton and Hove Archaeological Society.
Earthworks remain noticeable within the field, which is |
given over to grazing. These relate almost exclusively
to the deserted manorial complex, but some are the
consequence of later use as part of the film set for
'‘Oh What a Lovely War". Fig 2- Hog Croft Field

The area is protected through a tenancy arrangement as permanent pasture. This allows both the
appearance of the field and the surviving archaeological features to be preserved in situ.

'The Green'

A small green space is situated on the approach to St Wulfran's Church. Although actually forming
Church land, this space is often nevertheless referred to as ‘'The Green', 'The Village Green' or 'The
Church Green'; and is used for a variety of community and Church events. The space is an important
part of the setting of the Church and the buildings flanking its approach, and helps establish this area
as the historic civic heart of the village.

St Wulfran's Wood

St Wulfran's Wood comprises a small rectangular-shaped wood located to the immediate west of St
Waulfran's Church. The majority of the surrounding landscape comprises open downland; and therefore
this small area of woodland is particularly striking, and forms an important backdrop to many views of
the church. Designated as a Local Wildlife Site, it mainly contains broad-leaved trees, which are an
uncommon habitat in Brighton & Hove.

The Allotments

The allotments - although their current appearance is not historic - occupy a small field which is already
evident on the 1890 Ordnance Survey Map. They are highly visible at the entrance to the historic
village. They provide a reminder of Ovingdean's historic links with farming and food production.

Page 12

256



Character Areas

Akl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

() Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence: 100020899, Brighton & Hove City Council. 2011, Cities Revaaled{R) copynght by The Geolnforrmation(R) Group, 2011 and Crawn Copynight (c) All rights resarvad.

D Conservation Area Boundary

| Ovingdean Road Character Area

- Church & Manor Character Area

| ovingdean Hall Character Area
The Farms Character Area

Page 13
257



Church & Manor Character Area

\
Woodland_\fcrms
_ backdrop to church
N\
| M N
\ \
I|II ‘\\ .
Ill L .\-. W
1
&) Cravn ch_wyriglhl_ Al rights reserved. Licance, 100020064, Br]qhtoﬂ & Howve City Council. 2011, Citess Revealed(R) copyiight by The Geolnformation(R) Group, 2011 and Crown Copyright {¢) All rights reserved.
D Character Area Boundary
~ Positive Feature
P Negative Feature
. | Positive Green Space
Brighton & Hove
City Council
Page 14

258



Important Buildings and Groups of Buildings

The Church ,
The Church (Figure 3) is the oldest building in the | Fig 3- The Church p
village. The earliest reference to a church at 07

Ovingdean is in the Domesday Book, which refers
to an 'ecclesiola’ or 'little church'. There is a
suggestion that the surviving St Wulfran's Church
retains Saxon fabric; certainly it is one of only two
churches in the country named after this Saxon
saint. The nave and chancel date primarily to the
early Norman period, whilst the low square tower
is a 13th century addition, with 14th century bell
chamber. Many of the internal features are the
work of Charles Eamer Kempe, including the
painted ceiling and five stained glass windows.

It is set within its own churchyard, which contains
several notable incumbents; including Brighton e S :

inventor Magnus Volk, William Willett (inventor of British Summer Time), Helena Normanton (first
female Barrister), Sophia Jex-Blake (one of the first female doctors) and the Kemp family tomb.

Set back from Greenways, it is in fact the lychgate and churchyard boundary that are most prominent in
the streetscene. Nevertheless, the church's location on higher ground means that it is clearly visible
from many locations in the village and its surroundings, when it is viewed in relation to St Wulfran's
Wood to its west. As such, it forms a prominent landmark in the area, and is of particular community,
architectural and historic significance.

Buildings flanking approach to church

‘The green' is flanked by a number of individual prestigious buildings of particular architectural quality.
Set at right angles to Greenways itself; both the front and rear elevations of this group have prominence
and contribute to the character of the area; in particular their varied pitched tiled roofs. The buildings
can be divided into two groups; those that relate to the Church and its Rectory, and those relating to
the Grange Farm.

The Rectory group comprises the Rectory itself, Rectory Cottage and Rectory Lodge. Rectory Cottage
and Rectory Lodge face on to the green. Of these, Rectory Cottage is the most visible; a detached
cobbled house of three storeys, it was built by Rector John Marshall for his son in c.1825. Rectory
Lodge is a one storey building built in 1848 as a gardener's cottage, and marking one of the Rectory’s
entrance drives.

The Rectory is set back from the road within its own mature, landscaped grounds, such that it has little
presence in the streetscene; instead promoting a clear sense of privacy and prestige. The roadside
boundary is formed by a flint wall, with mature vegetation behind. A red letter box is set in to the wall,
and adds character to the streetscene. The Rectory is more prominent from the churchyard, from where
the south (side) and west (rear) elevations are particularly visible. They are faced in red mathematical tiles
in header and Flemish bond respectively; highlighting that the building dates to a number of construction
phases. The building has a classical cobbled frontage. A listed coach house survives in association.

Associated with Grange Farm, The Granary and Manor Cottages form a cluster of buildings on the
corner of Greenways and the green, and comprise workers' cottages and farm buildings. The buildings
display varied clay tiled roofslopes and gable ends to the street front, which make a significant
contribution to the character of the area.

Page 15

259



Tythe Barn comprises an 18th century barn also Fig 4 - Tythe Barn
associated with Grange Farm, probably with earlier
foundations; converted to residential use over three
floors in the early 20th century. It presents a flint
gable end to the road. Historic photographs indicate
a single hay loft entrance to each floor; these have
been replaced with leaded windows when converted
to a dwelling; substantially altering the character of
the building. The building nevertheless retains much
aesthetic appeal and historic character.

Ovingdean Grange

o

The numerous older ranges of Ovingdean Grange
(Figure 5) are disguised behind a three storey c.1835
facade - of which the third storey is a dummy. This
facade comprises an extensive remodelling of the
BENE Duilding to update its appearance in line with
modern fashions of the time. Prior to this, the main
elevation - including a two storey porch - was that to
the north. This alignment matched that of the
original manor building on Hog Croft Field.

Set back from the road behind a formal garden, high
hedge and grass verge, the building is located
directly opposite the green. As such, there is a clear
visual relationship between the Manor and the
Church, despite the physical distance between them.
The relocation of the Manor from Hog Croft Field to the current site greatly influenced the development
and resulting form of the village. The building is of archaeological interest due to the many phases of
building evident behind the formal facade. It is, however, the formal facade that retains the greatest
presence in the street scene.

Ovingdean Grange Farm

To the immediate south of Ovingdean Grange, numbers 1 to 10 Beacon Court and numbers 9 and 10
Grange Cottages comprise the former manorial farmyard. Numbers 9 and 10 Grange Cottages were the
former stables, and were later converted to use as farmworkers' cottages. Their interest is reflected in
designation as listed buildings.

Numbers 1 to 10 Beacon Court comprise a mixture of converted former barns and new build development
dating from the mid-1980s (Figure 6), and retain a
farmyard arrangement. The two surviving 19th
century barns (now comprising numbers 6 to 10
Beacon Court) are designated as buildings of local
interest. One of the two barns backs on to the road
to create a relatively secluded enclosure. Of one and
two storeys, the new dwellings (numbers 1 to 5
Beacon Court) are constructed from traditional
vernacular materials, which are in keeping with the
character of the area. Although the development
retains something of its agricultural character and
form, its conversion to residential has diluted this
character, through the inevitable introduction of
additional openings, small front gardens, purpose-
built garages and a generic tarmac surface.

Page 16

\Fig 6 - Beacon Court

260



Further buildings associated with Grange Farm -
The Olde Barn and The Hames - are set at the
eastern end of Ovingdean Road (Figure 7). The
Olde Barn is the former Shearing Barn, whilst
The Hames constituted another lower barn
structure. Both were separately converted to
residential use during the mid to late 20th
century, but have retained their traditional form
and materials. The Hames fronts directly on to
Ovingdean Road, whilst The Olde Barn is set at
right angles. The form and roofscape of The
Olde Barn are prominent in views from
Greenways Corner, and act as a reminder of the
agricultural history of the area.

Fig 7 - The Olde Barn and The Hames

Infill development at entrance to historic village

Aldingbourne Farm and Field End comprise two later detached dwellings. They are located at bends in
the road at the entrance to the village, and are therefore prominent in the streetscene. Aldingbourne
Farm is of a standard late 20th century architectural style. In contrast, Field End incorporates some more
unusual features, with shiplap weatherboarding to its gables. Of no historic precedent, the buildings are
of a greater scale and massing than is typical for the old village. They nevertheless retain flint boundary
walls that are in keeping with the area.

Conclusion

The Church and Manor Character Area comprises the original civic heart of Ovingdean, and includes the
most significant historic buildings; including St Wulfran's Church, the Rectory, Tythe Barn, Ovingdean
Grange and the former Grange Farm. The buildings are generally of high architectural quality and
individual design; yet they are unified through the use of a limited palette of wall materials -
predominantly flint. The variety of steeply pitched clay tile and slate roofs also contributes to the
character of the area. The now open space of Hog Croft Field is also of significance to the history,
development and current morphology of the village.

A number of intrusive features have, however, had an impact on the character of the area:

e Although the former Grange Farm retains some of its original agricultural character, in terms of
its form and materials; conversion to residential use has diluted this character.

e Aldingbourne Farm - at the entrance to the village - is a disappointing addition to the village
which has a neutral impact on its character.

Character Area 2: Ovingdean Road (Graphic - See page 18)

Ovingdean Road Character Area comprises vernacular cottages, converted farm buildings and modern
infill development, strung out along and to the north of Ovingdean Road in a somewhat irregular
arrangement. The character area developed from a second farm yard associated with the eastern estate
and then with Ovingdean Hall. From the end of the 18th century it was known as Ovingdean Hall Farm
and then Upper Farm, before its amalgamation with Grange Farm. This second farm complex is shown
on the 1839 Tithe Map and c.1875 1st edition Ordnance Survey map; when the two yards remained as
largely distinct entities.

Ovingdean Road rises steeply to the east, and forms a narrow road with few pavements and overhanging
vegetation creating an intimate atmosphere. The southern side of the road is dominated by the large
20th century school buildings of Ovingdean Hall School, which are of variable architectural quality.
Although these buildings are situated in Character Area 4 (Ovingdean Hall), they impact greatly on the
Ovingdean Road streetscene. The location, large scale and overall design of the buildings mean that they
are dominant features which detract from the intimate scale and rural appearance of the street. It is the
rear elevations to the buildings that front on to the street, forming a largely inactive frontage which does
not address the street.

Page 17

261



Ovingdean Road Character Area

\
N A
\

N

\

Sdetract ﬁ%n%;saffeetscene
/\’\ / g h /\ ANY
I o ) N

/5 L /;/ - / "
AN ,{\ A7, /I—x_/ \\
N /‘f{r}getatlon to \
N\ R o ol ™,
v roadside N
\%\\\\ o I| :: \:

_.: w\

() Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence: 100020992, Brighton & Hove City Councill. 2071, Cities Revealed(R) copyright by The Geolnformation(R) Group, 2011and Crown Copyright () All rights reserved.

i

: A 3 D Character Area Boundary
&lmﬂ& Positive Feature
Brighton & Hove Positive Green Space
City Council B Negative Feature

Page 18

262



Small scale buildings are located to the north, including small flint cottages, converted farm buildings and
later infill development. These are generally set back from the street behind front gardens with high
levels of vegetation and flint boundary walls. The walls and vegetation combine to reaffirm a clear
distinction between public and private space.

Important Buildings or Groups of Buildings

Flints, The Cot and The Nook

The irregular form and plan of Flints, The Cot and The Nook reveal the piecemeal development of this
terraced group over time. They are unified through flint elevations, red brick dressings and pitched clay
tile roofs. Originally comprising the farmhouse or 'Bailiff's House' to Ovingdean Hall farm, Flints was
constructed in 1792 and comprises a substantial two storey building. The Cot is also of two storeys but
is much lower in height. All three properties were present by 1805, and likely were built between 1792
and 1795. They have, however, been extended over time. They are set behind grassed front gardens
with flint boundary walls.

Upper Cottages

Upper Cottages is a short terrace of three cottages
(Figure 8). The two end buildings are evident on
the 1839 tithe map; the central building appears to
be a later addition that is first evident on the
€.1870 Ordnance Survey map. The difference in
construction date is reflected in the height of the
buildings; with the end cottages substantially lower
than that to the centre. Extensive alteration
through time means that the buildings (including
particularly their roof form) now form a unified
group. They retain a rendered front with flint to
the roadside.

The buildings are set at right angles to the road,; ' . Fig 8 - Upper Cottages
behind small front gardens with flint boundary -
walls. They face towards the former Ovingdean Hall farmyard - although they do not form part of the
yard itself - and therefore likely originally formed farmworkers' cottages.

The terrace is set hard against the roadside, at a kink in the road, which strengthens its presence in
the streetscape.

The Smithy

Set upon the grassed area in front of Greenways
Corner Cottages, the Smithy is a small, one storey
flint structure with a gabled flint roof (Figure 9).
The structure is first evident on the ¢.1870 OS map;
~ where it is identified as a smithy. As such, it acts as
~ areminder of the area prior to redevelopment in

. the 1930s, and would have performed an
important function within this farming community.
It is now used as a garage, and is in need of repair.

gl National School/Church Room

The current Nursery School on Ovingdean Road
T comprises a small flint building with brick dressings
Fig 9 - The Smithy : and a pitched clay tile roof. It was built in 1873 as
a 'National School'. Due to dwindling pupil
numbers, it closed in 1907 and was instead used as a Church Room. It opened as Ovingdean Nursery
School in 1993 - returning it to educational use. Set back from the road behind a tall flint wall; its late
Victorian architecture contrasts with the remainder of the village (despite matching materials); and
provides an indication of developments in the village at this time.

Page 19
263



Later developments

The Ridings, Byre Cottages and Orchard Court
The Ridings and Byre Cottages were developed in
the late 20th century on the site of Ovingdean Hall
farmyard and comprise converted 18th and 19th
century agricultural buildings (Figure 10), as well as
new buildings. Orchard Court forms a further
terrace of modern buildings, located at the entrance
to The Ridings and Byre Cottages. The buildings are
all constructed in traditional vernacular materials,
with knapped flint and brick walls with clay tile
roofs. A well house survives (although the originally e :
open sides have been boarded) to the side of -

number 1 Byre Cottages and adds interest to the F/g 10- Byre Cottages -
area. Number 1 Byre Cottages originally held a carriage and 3 or 4 horses. Numbers 2 and 3 formed a
granary, whilst numbers 4, 5 and 6 were barns. The addition of modern buildings partly disguises the
original farmyard arrangement.

Numbers 1 to 6 The Ridings (Figure 11) in particular
form large detached dwellings that are somewhat
oversized in comparison to the traditional workers'
cottages of the area. The use of informal road
surfaces nevertheless retains something of the
original rural agricultural character.

Fig 11 - The Ridings

Greenways Corner Cottages

Four semi-detached pairs of farmworker's cottages
(Figure 12) were built at Greenways Corner in the
1930s; in conjunction with the widening of the
road. One of these semi-detached properties is set
at the bend of the road itself. The other three
buildings flank the approach to the farm to the
north of the village. They are set back from the
farm track. The buildings are each of a similar,
symmetrical English Vernacular design. They are of
two storeys with brick and tile hanging to the
elevations. The roofs are hipped and covered in
tile, with a prominent central shared chimney
stack. Set at a sensitive central location, their
symmetry is particularly important, as is the use of
matching traditional materials to provide a uniform
architectural unit.

Fig 12 - Farmworkers Cottages

A further detached residence of later date has been constructed to the north of the cottages. Although
of less architectural merit, it responds to the materials and design of the cottages.

Page 20
264



Other infill development

In addition to the larger residential schemes of The Ridings, Byre Cottages and Greenways Corner, other
individual dwellings have been built along Ovingdean Road over the course of the 20th century. In
general, these respect the form of the streetscape; being set back from the road behind flint walls and
verdant front gardens. The dwellings are generally detached, and vary in form and style. They are
generally of limited architectural quality. However, the flint walls and gardens are most prominent in
the streetscene, reducing the impact of these houses on the conservation area.

Village Hall

Constructed in 1986 as a replacement to the original 1930s Village Club Room, the current Village Hall
is brick-built with a pitched roof. It is of little architectural merit, but preserves the characteristic
relationship between the street and buildings in this character area; being set back from the road
behind a wall and vegetation. It functions as an important community hub for the village.

Important Space

Land at Greenways corner

A large grassed and gravelled area, bounded by a flint wall, is set to the immediate north of Greenways
corner. The Smithy is located on this space, and Greenways Cottages front on to it. The space
contributes to the rural character of the village. Combined with Hog Croft Field and The Green, it
provides an open aspect to the historic village centre.

Conclusion

Ovingdean Road Character Area is characterised by small vernacular cottages, farm buildings and infill
development, set along and to the north of Ovingdean Road. The conversion of traditional farm
buildings to residential use has largely been executed in a sensitive manner, but it has nevertheless led
to a change in character. Despite much infill development, the area remains distinctive, with the
majority of buildings unified through use of traditional materials; predominantly flint and clay tile roofs.
Most buildings are set back from the road, with the narrow street clearly defined through flint walls,
vegetation and the dominant rear elevations to the buildings of Ovingdean Hall School.

A number of negative features nevertheless detract from the character of the area:

e The rear elevations to Ovingdean Hall School detract from the streetscene, and would benefit
from improvement and a more holistic management approach.

e Ovingdean Road is subject to heavy levels of traffic relative to its size and nature. There is direct
conflict between the needs of pedestrians and car users due to the lack of pavements.

Character Area 3: The Farms (see Graphic page 22)

The area to the north and northwest of the conservation area comprises a 20th century farm and other
rural enterprises. Historically, the area is shown as a series of small fields on the 1714 Grover Plan;
associated with the neighbouring farm complex on Ovingdean Road. This situation persisted until the
late 20th century, when a series of farms and enterprises were constructed on the site.

Although set back from the main routes through the village and therefore removed from its physical
heart, the area - particularly the farm - is visible from the church and from surrounding downland. It is
accessed via a lane set at the main junction in the village. It also marks the entrance to the village from
the north; forming a prominent gateway feature in this direction. Although the buildings are of no
architectural merit and their location has no precedent; their uses are a strong reminder of Ovingdean's
agricultural past, and continued rural setting. The associated sights, sounds and smells would have
always very much been a part of the character of the village.

The area can now be described as three separate groups of buildings or spaces; the relocated farm to
the northwest, the former poultry farm (and now stables) to the centre, and an area of open-sided
barns and storage space to the northeast.

Page 21

265



The Farms Character Area

A

Dilapidated former
poultry houses and
hardstanding ¢.1960

FFFFF

Farm buildings £=——
constructed ¢.1981

N e,

\

Storage space

associated
with farm

Riding
stables

Open sided

alcble

Brighton & Hove
City Council

(c} Grovm Copyright All rights reserved. Licencs: 100020889, Erighton & Hove City Council. 20171, Cities Revealed(R) copyright by The Geolnformation(R} Group, 2011 and Crown Copyright (2 Al rights reserved

D Character Area Boundary
" Positive Green Space
/1]l Negative feature

Page 22
266




Groups of Buildings

The Farm is located to the northwest of the area
(Figure 13). It was constructed in 1981, when -
due to the changing requirements of modern
farming practices - Ovingdean Grange Farm was
relocated from its original location on Greenways.
It comprises a series of large - generally open-sided
- sheds and barns which are typical of 20th century
farming complexes. They indicate the changes in
farming practice, with a general trend from
function-specific buildings, to multi-functional
buildings which take on a more generic size and
shape. The continued presence of a farm in
Ovingdean is an important reminder of the
significance of agriculture to the origin and
development of the village.

The central portion of the area comprises the
stables, and the buildings of the former poultry
farm (Figure 14). The poultry farm was established
in ¢.1960, and comprised six large poultry houses.
These were demolished in the 1987 hurricane, but
some parts of these buildings survive in a
dilapidated condition. These remains detract from
the area and would merit reuse or removal.

A stables has been established on part of the

former poultry farm site, contributing to the rural el g e MR
character of the area. B ":' Fig 14 - stables, former poultry farm ’

The field to the northeast of the area (Figure 15)
has been cut into to provide both internal and
external storage space; including the erection of
open-sided sheds. This area is in a somewhat
neglected state, and would benefit from
improvement and maintenance. A track along its
northeastern edge provides access from Ovingdean
Road into the surrounding downland.

Open Space S S Fig 15 - field to north east

Although there are no public open spaces within the area, the space between the buildings forms a
network of spaces that contribute to the area's overall green character. The spaces are generally left in
a largely 'wild" state, which - although giving a somewhat neglected appearance - provides a haven for
many types of wildlife.

Conclusion

The Farms Area - forming the northern limit of the village and gateway to the Downs - contains groups
of functional buildings which are largely of no architectural of historic merit. Some of those buildings
remain in use as a farm and stables. These uses contribute greatly to the character of the area, and act
as a strong reminder of Ovingdean's agricultural past. Other buildings - particularly those of the former
poultry farm - are under-used or dilapidated, and detract from the area.

Page 23
267



Character Area 4: Ovingdean Hall (Graphic see page 25)

Ovingdean Hall is a grade Il listed building set within its own contained grounds which form its primary
setting. It fronts on to a large grassed parkland, with the drive entering from the southwest. Its
boundary is formed by tree belts and high flint walls. Later use as a school has led to the construction
of many 20th century school buildings of little architectural interest, which back on to Ovingdean Road,
whilst a small late 20th century housing development (Woodland Walk) has been constructed in the
northeast corner of the grounds. The Hall orientates away from the village and the location of
woodland belts mean that the Hall and its grounds retain little visual relationship with the village itself.
The flint wall, entrance and lodge to Greenways are prominent features that identify the entrance to the
Hall within the streetscape, and the predominance of flint in these features emphasise the historic
character of the estate.

Important Buildings

Ovingdean Hall

Ovingdean Hall (Figure 16) was constructed in the
late 18th century for Nathaniel Kemp. The main
formal facade orientates south and is faced in yellow
mathematical tiles. Of a symmetrical 6 bay design,
the two central bays project forward and are housed
beneath a pediment. The building retains a shallow
hipped slate roof set behind a parapet.

Yot :
ﬁ. 1
.

The formal facade is the Hall's most important
elevation. It fronts on to the driveway and a large
open green space (former parkland; now playing
field) which comprises its primary setting. Later
additions to the building extend to the rear, such
]’Ehat they do not interfere with the symmetry of the Fig 16 - Ovingdean Hall
ront elevation.

Ovingdean Hall Lodge

The Lodge (Figure 17) at the entrance to Ovingdean
Hall comprises a two storey flint building with red
brick dressings and a tiled roof. It is set in the
curtilage to Ovingdean Hall, and is significant due
to this association. The use of traditional materials
and flint boundary walls is in keeping with the
character of the area.

School Buildings

20th century school buildings have been built to
the northeast and southwest of Ovingdean Hall.
The incremental development and expansion of the
site is reflected in the different styles and materials
apparent in these buildings, which are generally of
limited architectural merit. Nevertheless, most of
the buildings are set back from the main elevation of Ovingdean Hall, and are of a lower height, such
that they appear subordinate to the main building. This limits the harm caused by these buildings on
the setting of the listed Hall.

The northernmost buildings on the site back on to Ovingdean Road. Here, the buildings are up to three
storeys in height, and are mostly built directly on to the streetfront or immediately behind a flint wall;
without room for pavements. Their large scale and massing, and strong building line, mean that they
form a dominant feature in this streetscape, which detracts from its character. Use of traditional
vernacular materials such as tile hanging is nevertheless in character with the area.

Page 24
268



Ovingdean Hall Character Area

Open Green Space

. - i G4
iy _ - & bl R

Perimeter tree belts

~ ~—/ Entrance Lodge

g} Crown Copyright. All nights reserved, Licence: 1000002399, Brighton & Hove City Councel. 2011, Cities Revealed(R) copynight by The Geolnfarmation{R) Group, 2011 and Crown Copyright (o) Al nghts resemved

& Positive Feature

Bl‘ightOIl & Hove Green Space
City Council B Negative Feature

Page 25

269



Woodland Walk

Woodland Walk comprises a small residential development constructed in ¢.1990 and located in the
northeastern corner of the Ovingdean Hall estate. Accessed from Longhill Road, and comprising a short
cul-de-sac of detached two to three storey dwellings, it is of an uncharacteristic form and arrangement
for this rural location. The buildings are constructed in flint with red brick dressings. They retain a
mixture of gabled, hipped and half-hipped roofs; the latter being more typical of agricultural rather than
domestic architectural forms. Due to changes in ground level, the neighbouring school buildings are set
at a lower level than this development, such that only their roofs are visible from within the cul-de-sac.
The development retains a secluded character much removed from Ovingdean Hall and from the village.

The original flint boundary wall to the Ovingdean Hall estate survives to the perimeter of the cul-de-sac.
The flint wall and the high levels of mature vegetation are in keeping with the character of the area as
part of the historic estate.

Important Space

Ovingdean Hall Grounds

Ovingdean Hall is situated within its own c.9 hectare historic parkland estate. The Hall fronts on to a
large open grassed area; with tree belts set to its perimeter. The main drive accesses the grounds from
the southwest corner. This design and layout were already evident by the time of the ¢.1839 tithe plan,
and form a generous parkland setting to the Hall. In contrast to the design shown on the tithe plan,
however, the grassed area has been divided by a further tree belt, with the area to the east allowed to
revert back to its natural state. Such a division is first shown on the c.1898 Ordnance Survey map, and
it therefore now forms a historic landscape feature in its own right. An early 20th century cricket
pavilion is set at the centre of the ground and is a positive historic feature, despite being in need of
repair. The grounds are designated as a Local Wildlife Site, supporting a range of habitats including
woodland, scrub and rough grassland.

The majority of later school buildings on the site are concentrated to the north of the site such that the
parkland estate remains as a cohesive whole. Areas of parking along the northern section of the drive
do impact on the parkland and on the setting of the main facade to Ovingdean Hall. Similarly, the
tennis courts to the east of the Hall also impact on the parkland and setting of the facade.

Mature vegetation and high flint walls provide a sense of boundary and high level of privacy for the site;
screening views between it and the surroundings. As such, it is these boundary treatments which are
most visible in the conservation area. The tree belts were severely damaged in the 1987 storm; and
have been subject to further thinning since. They would merit further strengthening.

The western boundary to the estate fronts on to
Greenways, and is particularly visible when
approaching Ovingdean village from the south
(Figure 18). Combined with the main entrance,
this stretch of tall flint wall and vegetation creates
a clear visual break from the neighbouring 20th
century residential development to the south and
forms an entrance feature to both Ovingdean Hall
and to the village. Two late 20th century houses
are discernible within the tree belt. Of no
architectural merit, they are partly screened from
views by the tall flint wall and vegetation, but still
detract from the green, undeveloped character of
this space.

Fig 18 - western boundary

Along Longhill Road, the eastern boundary retains &2
a similar tall flint wall and tree belt. Raised ground level along this boundary, combined with the
vegetation, mean that there are few views into the grounds from this location. Some portions of the
wall are in poor condition and would benefit from repair and maintenance. A small children's
playground has been constructed in the southeast corner of the grounds.

Page 26

270



In addition to its own intrinsic interest as an historic estate, the grounds to Ovingdean Hall form an
important visual separation between the historic village and later residential development to the
southeast; helping to retain its rural setting.

Conclusion

Ovingdean Hall Character Area comprises a large 18th century residence, its associated lodge and
parkland setting. Located at the entrance to the village, the estate forms an important gateway feature
to the historic village and safeguarding its rural sense of place. The area is predominantly green in
character. Tree belts and high flint walls create a strong sense of enclosure and privacy; and a clear
definition between public and private space.

A number of intrusive features are however evident, which are damaging to the special historic and
architectural interest of the area, and to the setting of the listed Ovingdean Hall:

e Numerous later school buildings on the site detract from the setting of Ovingdean Hall. This impact
has been reduced through setting the buildings back from the main elevation of the Hall, and
through their subordinate scale and massing.

e Parked cars along the drive and the tennis courts to the east detract from the setting of the Hall

e Tree belts around the Hall have thinned during the later 20th century; reducing their effectiveness
in screening views from the surroundings.

e Houses of no architectural or historic interest are located in the tree belt along Greenways, and are
visible from the road. Housing in this location has no historic precedent and detracts from the sylvan
and prestigious character of the Hall's grounds.

Special Interest of Ovingdean Conservation Area

Ovingdean Conservation Area comprises a downland farming village, set upon an ancient
landownership divide. Due to this divide, the village contains two separate farming units; which from
the 18th century formed part of the estates of Ovingdean Hall and Ovingdean Grange respectively. The
Manor was originally located close to the Church on Hog Croft Field, and the old village still orientates
towards this space. The Church is the most historic building - with parts dating to the 11th century or
earlier - whilst Ovingdean Grange is also particularly historic. Ovingdean Hall was built in the late 18th
century and represents a major change in the morphology and significance of the village. There is much
later infill development in the village, which has partly blurred the boundary between the two farming
nuclei, to form the historic village seen today.

Whilst the Church, Ovingdean Grange and Ovingdean Hall are the main prestigious buildings in the
area, the majority of the building stock comprises more modest flint cottages, converted farm buildings
and later infill developments. Later infill developments and farm building conversions have led to a
dilution of the agricultural character of the conservation area since designation. Use of traditional
materials - predominantly flint walls and clay tile roofs - nevertheless works to unify the character of
the area.

The relationship between buildings and roads is not always direct; with many buildings instead set
around former farmyards or at right angles to the street and creating an irregular village form. This
emphasises the rural, agricultural antecedents of the area. A strong boundary and hard edge to the
roads is created by flint walls, belts of vegetation and irreqular pavements. These combine with their
narrow width to create picturesque rural lanes.

Strong views to and from surrounding downland emphasise the village's rural setting, whilst the
grounds of Ovingdean Hall create a visual distinction with later development to the southeast. Overall,
the area retains much of its character as an isolated agricultural village.

Page 27

271



Article 4(1) Direction

Of the historic buildings in the old village, many retain historic features such as original windows, roof
coverings and boundary walls. These make a significant contribution to the character and appearance
of the area. There are however examples where incremental change has had a harmful impact on the
conservation area:

Poor modern windows (eg uPVC replacements) have been installed in properties including The Hames,
Ovingdean Road and The Lodge, Greenways. This erodes the historic integrity and appearance of the
buildings and the area.

Clay tile roofs create a characterful skyline. The sweeping roofs of some of the agricultural buildings are
particularly characteristic of the area. Alien features inserted into such roofscapes, such as rooflights,
solar panels, vents and flues, have an extremely harmful impact on their character and appearance. This
is evident in the vents on the Olde Barn, Ovingdean Road and on the rear slopes of numbers 6 to 10
Beacon Court (as visible on Greenways). It is important to preserve and enhance existing plain roofs
which form a characteristic part of the skyline.

Flint walls of varied heights are present throughout the conservation area, creating a clear distinction
between public and private space that is important to the area's character. The loss of these walls would
erode historic building lines and the character of the area.

An Article 4(1) Direction has been made under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order. This Direction removes certain permitted development rights in the area, which
means that planning permission is required for changes such as those set out above. This allows control
to be retained over how and where such alterations occur in order to minimise the impact this will have
on the character and appearance of the area. This will help to prevent the gradual degradation of the
special interest of the area as a whole.

Policy and Proposals

Flint walls make a major contribution to the special character of the conservation area and merit a
programme of maintenance, repair and reinstatement, in accordance with best 'traditional’ practice.

Traditional forms and materials - particularly flint walls, timber casements and pitched clay tile roofs -
should be utilised in extensions and new development.

Roads in the village were not originally designed for vehicular traffic. The narrow width and lack of
pavement - especially evident along Ovingdean Road - creates direct conflict between the needs of
pedestrians and car users. Further growth in the amount of vehicular traffic on the roads in Ovingdean
should be deterred. Any future traffic management will need to be sensitively handled and sympathetic
to the historic character of the area. Resurfacing of roads and pavements should be in keeping with the
area and signage should be kept to a minimum. Positive proposals should be formulated for traffic
management and reduction.

Farming is important to the historic development and character of the village. Retention of a farming
presence in the village is important to retaining this character. Agricultural uses of the farm buildings to
the north of the village will therefore be encouraged.

The farm area to the north of the village would benefit from enhancement. Redundant modern farm
structures should be brought back into use or their structure removed and reinstated as grass. The area
forms the interface between the village and the National Park, and links between the village community
and with the National Park would be encouraged. Any future proposed developments in this area
would need to be considered in light of the character of the conservation area and setting of the
National Park.

Page 28

272



The Ovingdean Hall College site occupies a large site and has a strong presence in the area. The
piecemeal addition of buildings in various designs and styles impacts on the setting of the listed Hall
and on views along Ovingdean Road. The site forms a single historic estate, and should, as such, be
considered as a single unit. Production of a holistic management plan is encouraged. The historic
parkland should remain predominantly green. Buildings should be set back from the main frontage of
Ovingdean Hall; such that it retains its primary setting. Tree belts to its boundaries form an important
part of the character of the conservation area and of the setting of the listed Hall. These should be
maintained and strengthened where possible. The extension of the tree belt along the drive to the
immediate west of the Hall would reinstate the historic planting scheme whilst screening some of the
later school buildings in views of the Hall. Improvements to the appearance and condition of the
Ovingdean Road frontage would be encouraged.

Business signage and lighting in the conservation area should be in keeping with its rural, historic and
now mainly residential character.

Numbers 50 and 52 Greenways (Figure 19) comprise
a semi-detached pair of flint cottages. Dated 1892,
they incorporate a stone crest. The pair is located
outside the conservation area, but is of sufficient
special interest to be considered for inclusion on the
list of buildings of local interest. The Hames, The
Olde Barn, The Smithy, The Church Room and 1 to 6
Byre Cottages should also be considered for
inclusion on the local list.

Existing tree cover contributes positively to the
character of the area. Tree cover should be ,
maintained and strengthened where possible; except
where this obscures important views to and from
surrounding downland.

The open spaces around the village that form part of the 'green buffer' are important in distinguishing
the village from the surrounding 20th century development and highlighting its originally rural setting.
These areas should remain predominantly open and green. Views between the village and the South
Downs National Park should be protected and enhanced.

F/'g 19 - 50 & 52 Greenways

Where farm buildings have been converted to residential use, a farmyard setting should be promoted.
The curtilage of the buildings should remain uncluttered and an open aspect retained.

Further Reading

Brighton and Hove Archaeological Society Field Unit (n.d.) Archaeological Field Notebook 2009.
Available online at http://www.brightonarch.org.uk/17.htm

Brighton and Hove City Council (2009) Brighton and Hove Urban Characterisation Study pp79-82
Carder, T. (1990) The Encyclopaedia of Brighton. Lewes: East Sussex County Libraries
Collis, R. (2010) The New Encyclopaedia of Brighton. Brighton: Brighton & Hove Libraries pp227-228

Davies, J. G. (1989) A Historical Gazetteer of Ovingdean Parish. Ovingdean: By the author (being
revised) Available in some local libraries

Davies, J. G. (2004) The Manorial Dwellings of Ovingdean. Ovingdean: By the author Available only
from the author

d'Enno, D (2010) East Brighton and Ovingdean Through Time. Stroud: Amberley Publishing Plc
Fisher, E. A. (1970) The Saxon Churches of Sussex. Newton Abbott: David & Charles

Page 29

273



Ovingdean Conservation Area Boundary

/

N

5

_SOE
) Rt \

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence: 100020999, Brighton & Hove City Council. 2012. Cities Revealed(R) copyright by

@l& E Conservation Area Boundary

Brighton & Hove
City Council
Heritage, Planning & Public Protection, Brighton & Hove City Council, Rm 414, Town Hall, Norton Road,
Hove, E.Sussex, BN3 3BQ Tel: 01273 292271 Email : conservation@brighton-hove.gov.uk m

Brighton & Hove
City Council

274



Number

Group

Annex 4

Content

0C2G001

0C2G002

0C2G003

OC2R001

OC2R002

OC2R003

OC2R004

OC2R005

OC2R006

ORPS

South Downs Society

Communities and
Local Government

Individual

Individual

Individual

Individual

Individual

Individual

ORPS welcomes the boundary changes now proposed in the revised
draft.

1. Support the terms of the Article 4 Direction. 2. ltems covered are
important to that sensitive conservation process. 3. The additional
controls should serve to improve the area and increas - rather than
decrease - the property values in the area. 4. In any event it introduces
the requirement to seek planning permission, rather than prohibition

The Secretary of State has no comments to make in respect of the
Direction

1. Pleased to hear that the proposed removal of the boundary area has
been revised so that the CA boundary will adjoin the SDNP, and
including the allotment site. Fully approve the revised proposal. 2. Note
the approval of the Atrticle 4 (1) Direction.

1. Very strongly support and welcome the suggestion for the boundaries
of the Ovingdean CA to match and align with those of the National Park

1. The modern Bulstrode Farmyard and the Ridings are far too recent to
conserve. They are not historical or aesthetic which I think of as the
main purposes of Conservation Areas. 2. | feel the Ovingdean
Conservation Area should be based on St Wulfran's Church, Hog Croft,
Ovingdean Grange, Ovingdean Hall and the pre-1911 residences and
farmyards connected with them. 3. Reduction of the conservation area
should however only be undertaken if the South Downs National Park
can be extended to abut the conservation area. 2nd Comment: 1.
Bulstrode Farm is set outside the North Gate, which was the ancient
northern entrance for carts, horseriders and people into Ovingdean
Village.

1. Seems fine to me. 2. Clearly responds to the views of the local
inhabitants

1. Delighted to hear boundary proposed to be extended to meet NP. 2.
Not had time to read papers in any detail, but trust comments on earlier
draft have been taken on board. 3. Note what said in covering email on
traffic issues. | will be returning to this point with councillors as it is time
action was taken to have a sensible package of traffic calming and
traffic reduction measures. Appreciate that this is not primarily a point
for the CA document but it is nonetheless a very significant factor and
cannot be ignored

1. Generally welcome and support the findings in items 'Article 4',
"Traffic', 'Boundary' and 'Revised Character Statement'. 2. p2 Map
shows proposed not the existing. 3. V2 on p9 does not match the photo
and only partially matches the description. Photo does not show Hogs
Croft Field. Perhaps 2 photos are needed - earlier photo across Hogs
Croft Field and new photo from in front of The Grange. Both are
important views. 4. Several references made to construction
material/type of building and therefore captures the essential essence
of roofscape. 5. Ironic that the proposed developments at the school
will change this feature forever.

275



276



Document is Restricted

277



280



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes 29.03.12 - Agreed

	4 Constitutional Matters
	5 Public Involvement
	7 Saltdean Lido
	Item04SaltdeanLidoSitePlanApp1
	Item04SaltdeanLidoCMMReport61211App2doc
	Item04SaltdeanLidoExtractMinutes61211App21
	Item04SaltdeanLidoCMMReport60312App3doc

	8 Royal Pavilion & Museums Catering Review
	EDCC  RPM Catering June 2012 Appendix

	9 Implications of the National Planning Policy Framework for Decision Making
	Appendix 1 NPPF summary Final
	Apprndix 2 NPPF consistency summary
	Appendix 3 WLP Policy Consistancy with NPPF
	Appendix 4 Assessment of MLP policies with NPPFv1

	10 Update on the Economic Strategy & the City Prospectus
	11 Peter Pan Leisure Site,  Madeira Drive, Development Proposal
	PeterPanReportAppendixdoc
	BHCC Peter Pan Brochure (2)
	Appx 3 PeterPanReportAppendixdoc

	12 Ultrafast Broadband Bid 2012: Wired for Growth
	13 Amendments to Wooden Beach Hut Specification -  Hove Promenade
	A6786 beach hut consultation.doc
	4011 Beach hut postcard - r3

	14 Ovingdean Conservation Area Review
	Annex 1 for Ovingdean Conservation Area Review
	Annex 2 for Ovingdean Conservation Area Review
	Annex 3 for Ovingdean Conservation Area Review
	Annex 4 for Ovingdean Conservation Area Review

	16 Part Two Minutes - Exempt Category

